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Kuznup ouapoarenbHoil CeneHbl Moprad nmoHadairy MOXKET Ka3arbCsl JOBOJIBHO MPO3aNMYHOM.
Ona eXeIHEBHO CTOUT 3a IMpUJaBKOM coOCTBeHHOW anTeku. Ho Bmepeau ee XAyT camble
HEBEPOSTHBIE JIFOOOBHBIE MPUKIIIOYEHHUS, B TOM YHCJE MOE3[Ka Ha OCTpOB MapTHUHHKa, IJle OHA
YyZIOM CITacaeTcsl OT MOCATATENBCTB 3J101€SI-TUITHOTH3EPA.

A HauMHaeTCs BCE CO Cay4dalHOW BcTpeud ¢ J[paiikoM J[PATOHOM, OAHAXK/IBI 3alleAIEM K HEH
B aITEKY...

JlelicTBHE poMaHa MPOUCXOJUT BO BTOPOU MOJIOBUHE MPOLUIOTO BEKA.

YACTbH 1

HOBBIV OPJIEAH

JIYU3UAHA

BECHA 1886

I'naBa 1

OTKpBIB IBEPH U CHSAB LUIAIY, Jpaiik J[3/ITOH BOIEN B Mara3uH.

- Kak 310, 4epT BO3bMU, 0KA3AJI0Ch Y MEHS IO/ MOAYIIKON ?

Yeapmmas mym. Cestena Moprasb OfHsIa TOJIOBY U C YIMBICHUEM B3IVISIHY/IA Ha CTOSIBIIETO
nepen Hell 4enoBeka. ['7ie TONBKO OH OTKOMAajd Takue OpIOKH, KOXKaHyI0 pydaxy ¢ 0axpomoi,
HEMBICJIUMbIE OOTMHKU M OTPOMHYIO KOBOOWMCKYIO HUIsNy? 3aropesoe JUI0 KOHTPacTHUPOBAJIO C
I'YCTBIMHU, CBETJIBIMH, BBITOPEBIIMMHU Ha COJHLE BosocaMu. OpHako OH ObUT  BBICOKHM,
MYCKYJIUCTBIM U, HECMOTPS Ha 9K30THYECKUI HAPSI, TOPA3UTEIIBHO KPACHBBIM.

ScHo, mocerurenps He U3 HoBoro OpneaHa, ckopee BCero oTkyaa-To ¢ 3amnaaa. B anreke craio
TECHO U KaK-TO HEYIOTHO. 3aX0TEJNI0Ch, YTOOBI OH KaK MOKHO CKOpPEE YILElL.

JIpnToH Opocuil Ha MPUIIABOK MaJICHbKUM OapXaTHBINA MEIIOYEK.

- Kt0 3T0 Kynun u 3auem?

Komnara Obiia monHa 3amaxoB. Cliajkue, TEpIIKME, OCTphIE, pa3lpa)kalole - OT HHUX
XOTEJNO0Ch HE TO YUXHYTh, HE TO KalUISIHYTh.

CeneHna BcTasia, XO0Ts OT 3TOr0 MX pa3sHUIA B pOCTe MaJlo M3MeHwIack. Ho oHa He mo3Bosut
ce0s1 3amyrarhb.

- Pa3penmre nocMoTpeTh, y MEHS JIH. ..

- OTO KyNWJIM TOYHO Y Bac, jieau. Beapb 3to anreka "JItoOoBHBIE cHanoO0bs"?

Pa3rnsineB Ha BHYTpEHHEN CTOPOHE MENIOYKa CBOIO AMOJIEMY, OHA CHOBA 3aTSHYJIA BEPEBKY.

- CMecbh HOMEpP ceMHaIaTh. Bl HeTOBOJIbHBI TOBapOM? XOTUTE €r0 OOMEHSTh?

- Her! 4 xo4y 3HaTh, KTO €r0 KymuJ!

- Tak ero Kynuiii HE BbI U Bbl HE XOTUTE OOMEHSTH?

- Hy, HakoHen-To 0 Te0s1 101110, - COLLypuJCs OH. - JIanHo, Kak Te0s 30BYT U KTO 3TO KyNui?

- Cenena Mopran, Brnagenuna jgydme anteku B HoBom Opneane. - OHa mokosebanach,
NPUKUBIBASL, KaK ObI MOOBICTPEE OT HETO OTAENAaThCA. - BbI BIItOOIEHbI?

- Her.



- Hy m nmamHo. DTta cMech Ha Hac BCE€ paBHO HE NOACHMCTBYeT. Jlymaro, Bac mydiie
MPUBOPAXKUBATh C TMOMOIIBIO KypHHOU yambl. - OHa XOTena 3a/leTh €ro, HO caMa YIbIOHY/IacCh.
Cutyalus cTaHOBHIJIACH 3a0aBHOM.

- KypuHoii nanel? - ¢ OTBpallieHHEM IMOBTOPHII OH.

OH SBHO YYBCTBOBaJI C€Os HEYIOTHO B ATOW OTJ/IEJIAHHOM B PO30BBIX TOHAX KomHare. Emy,
MPUBBIKIIIEMY K 3araxaM JIolajiei, Tabaka U KOXKH, BCE 3/1eCh Ka3aJ0Ch CIUIIKOM KE€HCTBEHHBIM.
Ho yxonuTth Bce ke He, XOTEJOCh.

- [la, MHe Tak KaXXeTcsl, - CKa3ajia OHa. - XOTs, HABEpPHOE, HE OCOOCHHO MPUSATHO MPOCHYTHCS
YIPOM W HaTKHYThCS B CBOEM IOCTENM Ha KypuHyro Jjamy. Ho yBepsito Bac, 3TO BechbMa
adexTuBHOE cpeAcTBO. - OHA MpomoDKaia YIbI0aThCs. XOPOIo, YTO OH YYBCTBYET ce0si HE B
CBOEH Tapelike.

- TeI 3TO Ccepbe3HO?

OH BApYT MOXKaJjes, YTO MPUILE CIO/Ia, XOTA JIEBYIIKA 32 MPUIJIABKOM, HECOMHEHHO, XOpOIIia.
[lycth celiuac ee IIMHHBIE KalllTaHOBBIE BOJIOCHI 3a0paHbl B My4OK Ha 3aThUIKE W HA HEW MPOCTOE
3€JICHOE TJIaThe, HO OH T'OTOB CIIOPUTH - 0€3 HEr0 OHA MPOCTO BOCXUTUTEIIbHA.

- Jla, s cepbe3Ho, - ynbiOKa ucuesina c ee jauna. - [lomumo Bcero, 3To Most padoTa.

OH nmo4eMy-To ¢ TPyZIOM NOAAEPKUBAT PA3TOBOP.

- To1 Xouenb ckazaTh, UTO 3apabaThIBacIllh Ha KU3HB, TPOJIaBast IPUBOPOTHHIC 3€Tbs?

Ona KMBHYJIA U TIOCMOTpEa Ha HEro OOJIBIIMMU 3€JICHBIMU TJIa3aMHu.

- I moe neno npouseTaeT. ITO HE YIUBUTEIBHO, TAK KaK BOKPYT MOJHO TaKUX, KaK ThI.

- Takmx, kak 51?7 [la 9To, TBI, COOCTBEHHO, 000 MHE 3HACIIh?

CrpaHHO, HO OH, BUIUMO, € HE HPABUJICSL.

- lla, s Te0s, KOHEUHO, COBCEM HE 3HAI0, HO BUXKY, Thl Ipy0 M 3aHOCUYUB. Eciin MO3HAKOMUTHCS
MOOJINKE, TO CKOPEE BCEro BHIACHUTCS U YTO-HUOY]Ib MOXYXKE.

Cenena BAPYr IOHsJIA, YTO €IBa CAEPKUBACTCI. TakK 3axX0TEIOCh NMPUKOCHYTHCS K HEMY.
Cepaiie B3BOJHOBAHHO OMJIOCH. DTO OBUTO COBEPILCHHO Ha HEE HE MOXO0XKE.

- Tel ockopOmnsienb KaxJoro MOKYyIaresns, KOTopbli K Tebe mpuxomut? - OH HauyuHAI
BBIXOJIUThH U3 ceOsl.

- Thl HE TOKYyNATENb.

- Koneuno, ner, yepT mobepu! A Thl - MOIICHHUIIA, BBIMOTAIOIIAS JCHBIU Yy JOBEPUUBBIX
>keHIIH. Hano ke, 1r000BHOE 3€eibe!

- Mou KIMEHTHI NIOBOJBbHBI M PEKOMEHIYIOT MEHS CBOMM 3HAKOMBIM. PenenTsl HM3/1aBHA
M3BECTHBI MOEH ceMbe, UX JACHUCTBEHHOCTh MpoBepeHa. - OHa cXajla Meno4yeKk, 4ToObl OH He
3aMeTUJI, Kak JPOXHUT ee pyka. OH Toke TpuBe ee B OCIIEHCTBO, U, TOHUMAas 3TO, OHa 3JIMJIach
€lIe CUJIbHEE.

- JlagHo, mycTh OyZIEeT Tak, - OH 3aMsuICs, BCe-TaKW BCIIOMHMB, 3a4€M Clofia MpHulle. - Ternepb
HA30BU UM KEHIMHBI, KYTUBIIEH 3Ty raJloCTh AJIs1 MEHS.

- S He pa3miamiar MMEH KIMEHTOB. HO BKyC 3TOM KEHIMHBI OCTAaBIISIET K€JIarb MHOTO
JYYIIETO.

- Thl HU YepTa HEe MOHUMAECIb B My)XunHax. TeOs Hamo Obl BhICEUb, TOT/A Thl Y3HAEIllb, YTO
TaKO€ HACTOSIIMI MYy)X4YHHA. - B Hero citoBHO Beenmmiics 0ec. Ctapasich YCIIOKOUTBCS, OH MEIJICHHO
pazkai KyJIaKH.

- CTOUT 1M TaK YTOMJISITH ce0s1?

- Jla, Tl IpaBa, - OH OKUHYJ €€ JEMOHCTPATUBHO XOJIOJHBIM B3TJISAIOM.

Kak >xanb, 4TO OHa Takoro MaJICHbKOTO pocTa. PsjioM ¢ HUM OHa 4yBCTBOBajia c€0s MPOCTO



kpoueyHor. Ho y Hee 37101 S3bIK, M1 OHA 3TO 3HAaJA.

- Muctep, MoXxeT ObITh, BHI Bce ke yiieTe? Bbl pacmyraere Bcex MOUX KIMEHTOB.

- JlagHo, s nomen. Ho ¢ ToGoit moka He mpoIarck. Thl 0OMaHBIBACIIb JIIOCH, U S TOJIOKY
TOMY KOHEII.

ITomovias k ABepu, OHA OTKpbLIA €€.

- IIpomty Bac, mucrep...

- Hpouik J3nT0H. 3anmoMHM 3TO UMs. ThI €r0 €le YCIbIIMIIIb.

On Opocut Ha Hee TSKETbIN B3IJIs, HAJE ISy U BBIIET BOH.

3aKkphIB IBEpb, OHA MPUCIOHUIIACH K KOCSKY, BHE3aIMTHO MTOYYBCTBOBAB cl1abocTh. Eiie HUKTO U
HUKOIJIa TaK Ha Hee He jeiicTBoBai. OHa Bcerma cels kKoHTposimpoBaia. Ho B aToMm denoseke,
KpoMe TpydoCcTH, OBIIIO HEYTO, 3aCTAaBUBIIEE €€ CepALe ydaleHHOo 3a0uThest. OH ObLT B3OECIIEH, a eit
XOTEJIOCh PA303JIUTh €r0 €I CHIIbHEE.

VYBpIOHYBIIMCH, OHA BEPHYIIACH K MPUJIABKY U B3sJIa B PYKH MaJCHbKHUM OapXaTHBIN MEIIOUeK.
3HAUUT, OH HEHABUAUT JIFOOOBHBIE CHAJIOOBS, JyMaeT, 4TO OHA MoOIIeHHHUIA. Xopoo xe! OHa
MPUTOTOBUT CMECh CIEIHUANIbHO JIJIi HErOo, 4TOObl OH BIIOOMIJICS B HEE. A TOTOM PaCCKaXeET,
rouemy 3To mpou3onuio. Torjga oH caM yOeauTCsl, HACKOJIBKO XOPOIIl €€ TOBap, a OHA PacCMEETCs B
JIAI0, TIOBEPHETCS U YUJICT.

- Cenena, uyto 31ech mnpoucxomut? - Poza JlyboHM cmycTuiaach CO BTOPOTO H3Taxa,
OCMOTpENACh U HAIPAaBUJIACh K BXOJHOM JBEpH. - ThI UTO, BEITHAJIA MOKYHATEIA?

CeneHa TPOMKO paccMesiach.

- TosnbKO 4TO sl mOpyrajaach C OHUM YKACHBIM YEJIOBEKOM.

- IlpaBna? - Po3a ymuBieHHO mocMmoTpena Ha nomupyry. - Kro ke ymynpuics Tak TeOs
pa3zo31uTh? Bac ObUIO CIBIINHO 1a)Ke HABEPXY.

- Ot1o He "kTo-HuOYnB". Ho 51 0 HEM 103a004yCh.

- Uto Th1 uMmeens B BuAy? - Kapue miaza Belpakaiu ynuBICHHE U JIIOOOMBITCTBO. B oTiamume
ot Cenensl Po3a ObUta BBICOKOM U CTpOiHOM. JIIMHHBIE YepHBIE BOJIOCHI IEPEXBauYEHbI HA TOJIOBE
Y3KOU JIEGHTOYKOM, MTECTPOE MJIaThe C IMMPOKUM IOSICOM O4eHb el 1mwu1o. CejieHa BCeraa 3aBUaoBajla
ee ¢urype, 0cOOEHHO C TeX MOP, KaK y3Halla, YTO HUKAKas e]1a el He BPEIuT.

- [IpenctaBb cebde, BpbIBa€TCs ClO/1a KOBOOU U MBITAETCS MEHS 3aIyraTh.

- 3anyraTe?! Jla CKa)Ku k€ HAKOHEI, YTO CIYyYUIIOChH?

- Bce ouenb npocto. OauH 4esnoBek ¢ 3amnajia HaxoquT y ce0st o/ MOAYIIKOW HAlll MEIIOYEK.
EmMy Obl oOpajgoBarbCs, 4YTO O HEM KTO-TO JyMaeT. A OH BpBIBAaETCS ClOa U TPYOUT.
[Ipencrapnsens? O003Bal MEHS MOIIEHHUIIEH U YIPOXKaJl 3aKPbITh HAIIE JEJIO.

- Ox! - Po3a 3abecniokoumnacek. - Tsl Aymaelb, OH U BIPaBIy MOXKET 3TO CAENIATh?

- He 3Haro, Bo3mM0okHO, - BHe3anHo ee OpaBaja ncnapuiach, 1 OHa 0OECCUIIEHHO OIYCTHJIACh
Ha cTyil. - CaMa 3Haellb, Kak JOKTOpa, Ha3bIBalolMe ceOsl "HACTOSIIMMU", OTHOCSTCS K aKylllepKaM
Y 3Haxapkam, TeM 0oJjiee, K TaKuM, Kak fi.

Po3a naxmypuiiace.

- Ortu "HacrosAume" JOKTOpa JIMINAIOT MPOCTOM Hapoa BbiOOpa. MHOrMM MpocTO HE IO
KapMaHy ux yciyrd. Jla u Ha 4TOo OHU cIOCOOHBI, 3TU JNokTopa! M3neBarbes Haa TOOOM, naBas
CTaOUTENHHOE WIIM XJIOPUCTYIO PTYTh. MHOTMM 0€3 HuUX maxke nayuiie. Ecim TBo¥ OM3HEC pyXHET,
TIJI0OXO OT 3TOTO Oy/IeT MHOTHM, a HE TOJIKO HaM ¢ TOOOH.

CeneHa KuBHYJIa, COTJIANIASACH, U OOBEIA B3IJISIIOM CBOM BJIaJCHUS.

- Bce 310 Havana most 6abyiika BCKope mocie BOMHBL. Mbl ObUTH BABOEM, M Y HacC HE ObLIO
HUYETO, KpOME €€ ONbITa U 3HaHUS 1eeOHbIX TpaB. OHa nmpoaaBaja J000BHBIE CHA00bs, TOITOMY



s cMoIIa XoAuTh B 1Koy, Ceilyac MHe JBaJiliaTh YeThIpe. S BBIpOCIA 3/1€Ch U XOUY KUTh 31€Ch U
3aHUMAaTbhCSI CBOUM JICJIOM.

- U TB1 31€CH MHOTUM HYXHa. Beb MBI-TO XOpOIIO 3HAaeM, 4TO TOJBKO Ojarofaps JeHbram,
BBIPYYEHHBIM OT MPOJAXU HAIMX CHaIoO0uil M mapdroMepuu, Thl MOXKEIIb YTO-TO JAeNaTh IS
O€THBIX.

- [a, HoO...

- Tel mpocTo HE MMeelb MpaBa MO3BOJUTH 3TOMY YEJIOBEKY MOBPEIHWTH ANTEKE. JTU TaK
Ha3bIBa€MbIe "JIOKTOpa' HE 3HAIOT U MOJIOBUHBI TOTO, YeMY Hayuuia Te0s 0alymika. - Poza mmyboko
B3oxHYnMa. - OHU YK€ MBITATMCh HAc 3aKpbiTh. KoHewHO, ecimu ObI UM 3TO YOAlnoOCh, Y HUX
npubaBuiIoCh Obl KIMEHTOB. Eciam 3TOT THUM CKaXXeT UM, YTO MBI CAENaIM €My 4YTO-HUOYIb
IUIOXOE...

- He roBopu Tak! - 3enensie miaza CenaeHbl BCOBIXHYIH. - TO, YTO s X04y CHE€JIaTh, TOUIET
Hpoatiky JanToHY TOJABKO Ha moib3y. M1 He Oecriokoiics 3a cBoe mecto. Poza. Tel - mydmas
MMOMOIIHHIIA, KAKYI0 TOJBKO MOXHO HaWTu. Ha camoM nene Thl yK€ BIIOJHE MOXKEIb OTKPBITh
COOCTBEHHOE JIEIIO.

- Bynb y MeHst cBeTast Koxa, s Obl, HAaBepHOE, Tak U cnenana. Ho s mymarka, Tak 4TO HEYEro
00 ATOM U TyMarTh.

- B Te6e He Tonbko adpukaHcKas KpoBb, HO U (paHIly3CKasi, U HHEHCKaI.

- Bce paBHO, s - MOTOMOK pa0oB, a Thl TPEKPACHO MOHUMAEIIb, YTO 3TO 3HAYMT.

- Jla, HO 4 HE OTHOWYCh K TEM JOKTOpaM, KOTOPBIE CTaparTCid HE IyCKaTb MYIATOB B
MeIUITMHY. Thl TaK)Ke HYKHA JIIOISM.

- 51 He mepectaHy UM MOMOTrarTh, JaXXe €CIIM Oorarbie Oeyble U31ayT 3aKOH, 3alpelaronii
MyjaraM 3aHUMarbCcsi MEAUIMHON. BCro xu3Hb s Oyay Jenarb TO, YTO CUMTAI0 HYXHbIM. MHe
JBAJATh IIECTh, U Y MEHSI €IIe €CTh BPEMsI, YTOOBI TOMOYb MHOTHM.

- A Kak ¢ TMYHOM XU3HBIO? P03a mokayvaa rojaoBou.

- He namomunait Mae 006 Anbdpene.

- OH Oerblid, e1eT Ha ceBep. 3HAUUT, HE MOXKET B3SITh T€0s ¢ cO00#, Kak Obl CUIILHO HH JIFOOHJI.

- OH npaB. XXenutrba Ha MylaTKe pa3pylMT BCe €ro IjaHbl. - Po3a BcTana u mpuHSIACH
pacxakuBaTh 10 KOMHare. - Bce ero npenku Obuid CBOOOIHBIMH, CPEAN POACTBEHHUKOB HUKOTA
He ObUTO UuepHbIX. B HeM TeueT uncTas KpoBb. U, B KOHIIE KOHIIOB, Y HETO €CTh nacnopt. S He Mory
MPOCHUTH €r0 BCEM 3TUM IOKEPTBOBATD.

Cenena mpomoisidana. Takhe apryMeHThl OHA YK€ ClblIala MHOro pa3. Uto oHa moma
caenars nsi Po3wi? Jlums kak MOXKHO JIydIlie BECTH Jiefia, 4TOObl y HUX ObUTta paboTa M JIEHBIH.
Teneps xe Hy)HO noaymars o paiike JlpnToHe.

- 5l n7am eMy BO3MOXKHOCTH BO BCEM YOEAUTHCA CAMOMY.

- Ansdpeny?

- Her, Hpoatiky Jlantony. S X094y MpUTrOTOBUTH JJISI HETO JIFOOOBHOE CHAJI00he. A KOIJla OH B
MEHS BIIOOUTCS, pacckaxy npasay. EMy mpuzaercs Ham noBepuTh. U ckazarb "mokropam" emy
poCTO OyIET HEYEro.

Po3a Haxmypuiiace.

- Ho Benw THI emie HUKOTa Tak He aesaial

- Ila, 1 He xoTena JOMOJHUTENbHBIX X0moT. He xouy ux u cenuvac. Mucrep [Is>1T0H MHE
abCcooTHO Oe3pa3inuyeH, HO CIeayeT mpenojarb emy ypok. - OHa yxke 3mmiachk. - U s - Ta
KEHIIMHA, KOTOPasi 3TO CAEHAET.

- He 3nato, He 3Hato0. [lo-Moemy, 310 onacHo. Y OoraThix OeJbiX OOJIbIasi BIacTh.



- Moxet 6b1Th. Ho y Hac Toxe ecTh BIacTh, B MBI €0 BOCTIOJIB3yeMCS.

Cenena pa3Bsizalia NPUHECEHHbIN [[p3iKOM MEIIOYEK U BhICHITANA COACPKUMOE Ha IPUIABOK.

- 910 cHanmoObe cnuIKoM cinabo ana muctepa paiika J[snrona. Po3a kuBHyma.

- Hasepnoe, M0OkHO mTonpo0OoBaTh. A €CIM OHO MOJEHCTBYET U Ha TeOs?

- Ha mens?! - CeneHa oTpulLIaTE€NIbHO IMOKadajia ToJIOBOM. - ITO OOBIKHOBEHHBIH KOBOOIA.
Takue MeHs HUKOTJ]a He UHTEPECOBAIM. Y MEHS XBAaTUT yMa, UTOOBI HE BIIOOUTHCH.

- K yMy 3T0 He nMeeT HUKAKOoro OTHOUIEHHUS], - ycMexHynack Po3a. - Haue s He cOexana Obl
ot Ansdpena. [IpocTo ThI emie He BCTpeTuiia cBoero npuHiia. Korma 3To CayduTcsi, Thl BIFOOUIILCS,
HaBEPHOE, €Ille CHIIbHEe, YeM s ceiiuac. BoT Toraa Mbl ¢ TOOOH ¥ TTIOTOBOPHM.

- MoxeT ObITh, THI PaBa, HO OJTHO 5 3HAI0 HaBepHsKka: Jpaiik J[2/ITOH - HE TOT YEIOBEK, U3-3a
KOTOPOTO Sl MOTY IOTEPSIThH TOJIOBY.

KuBnyB Po3e, oHa BblIUIa, penmB B3IIAHYTh Ha anTeKy cCcHapyxu. llepenas Ha
MPOTUBOIMOJIOKHYIO CTOPOHY yiIulbl /lekaryp, oHa octaHoBwiach y kade "le Mounse" u crana
BHUMATEIIbHO Pa3TJISIbIBATH CBOM JOM.

AnTeka M KUJIOM ATax HaJ Hed ctanu noMoMm st CeneHbl Tociie BOMHBL Tenepp OHa Kuja
3/1€Ch OJIHA, HO OJJMHOKOU ce0s He YyBCTBOBaja. Y Hee ObUIO MHOTO JIpy3€d, MOXET OBbITh, Jaxe
CIMIIKOM MHOro. MHOrga OoHa aymana O TOM, YTO MNPUIET BPEMSI, U OHA CBSDKET CBOIO KU3Hb C
MY>KUYHHOU, KOTOPOTO TOJIOOMT M KOTOopomy OymeT moBepsaTh. Ho eciam 310 korma-HuOyas u
CIIyYUTCS, TO, KOHEYHO, HE CKOPO.

CHapykud JIOM BBIDIAJE] O4YEHb NpHUBJIEKaTenbHbIM. [lepBbiii 3Taxk ObUT BhIKpalleH Oenoi
KpacKoi, CKBO3b OTPOMHBIE OKHA BHJHEIUCH CTOSIBIIME HA IMOJOKOHHUKE KYBIIMHBI C CYXUMU
IBETaMH U TPaBaMH.

Bropoii 3Taxk U3 KpacHOro KUpIUYa yKpalliaiu JABa OKHA C OCJIbIMU HAJTUYHUKAMU, U MEXKTY
HUMU - OajJKOH C YEpHBIMU KOBaHbIMM Tnepuiiamu. [log caMbiM KOHBKOM KpPYTOMl KpBIIM -
MAaJIEHBKOE CIIyXOBO€ OKHO.

Bucsmast Han nBeprio BbiBecka "JIr0O00BHBIE CHA00bs" ClIeTKa MOKaYMBajiach OT AYIOIIETO C
Muccucunu Berepka. Ha ronydoom Hebe co cTopoHbl MEKCHKAHCKOTO 3aJIiBa MOSIBUIMCH TEMHBIE
obOnaka. Iloxoxke, mocie oOena omnsATh OyIeT MOXKIb. 3HAUYUT, € HE NPHUACTCA IMOJUBATH
MHOTOUYHCJICHHBIE TPaBbl U LIBETHI, PACTYIIME B SAIMKax Ha O0ajgkoHe. B 3ToM romy UM J0CTaTo4HO U
JIOKAeH, U COJIHIIA.

Cenena BepHYIach B JIOM, OCTaBUB JBEPb OTKPBHITOM, UTOOBI HEMHOI'O MPOBETPUIIOCH, U
npucoenuHuiachk Kk Pose, paborasiieii 3a JUYIMHHBIM CTOJIOM B 3aJHEM YacTH MarasuHa. 3/1€Ch, MOJ
JeCTHUIIEH OBbUT TUXWH, Olaroyxaronmid TpaBamu yroyiok. Ctos ObUT 3aBajieH KycOYKaMU TKaHEH,
Pa3HOOOpPA3HBIX MO IBETY U PUCYHKY, C Kparo JIe)aju JEHTHI BCEX I[BETOB PaIyrd, IUPOKHE U
y3KHE, JUINHHBIE U KOPOTKHE.

Cromio CeneHe B3STh B PYKH JIOCKYTOK M ITOCMOTPETH HA MOIPYTY, KaK HaNpsHKEHHUE CTANIO
CIIaaTh.

- Tl uro-HuOyb cabimana o Gpaniyase u J>xone? - cnpocuna Poza.

- Her, - orBetuna Cenena, Aymast y’ke JIMIIb O TOM, KaK Jy4llle CIIMTh MEIIOYEK U3 YEPHOTO
IIEJIKOBOT'O JIOCKYTKA. - CEroJiHsi yTpoM s ONsATh ObUIa B MOJMIIUM, HO Y HUX MO-TIPEKHEMY HUKAKUX
HOBOCTEM.

- JlyMaenib, Ha caMmOM JIeJie OHU HIIYT KaKyl-TO MYJATKy U UPaHIa - MOPTOBOTO Ipy3urKa?

- Bpsin nmu oHu ocobenHo crtapatorcs. Ho UM mpuxomuTcs nenarb BUI, S BEllb PErYISpPHO
CITpAILMBAIO UX O PE3YJbTATaX.

- Koneuno, eciu pedb UIET HE O ACHbrax, OHU He OymyT Hamnpsrarscs. [lo-moemy, HaM HY>KHO



YTO-TO JeiaTh caMuM. JKaaTh O0JIbIIE HETb3sl.

- Ho uto? - CeneHa OTKycHIIa ITMHHYIO YEPHYIO HUTKY. - CKOJIBKO JIIOACH yXKe UCUe3I0?

- Ilo-moemy, oxomo naByx mrokuH. W Bce OHU O€3M0MHBIC: HUIME, ITPOCTUTYTKH,
0e3paboTHBIE, OBIBIIIME 3aKJIFOYCHHBIC.

- ImeHHO TakuM MBI IOMOTaIM. Beap OHM HEIUTOXKE JIIO/IU, TPOCTO HEBE3yure. BaeB HUTKY B
WTOJIKY U 3aBsI3aB Ha KOHIIE Y3€JI0K, OHA BOTKHYJA €€ B TKaHb. - Ox! - ykonona nmanen Cesnena.

Po3a couyBCTBEHHO B3JI0XHYIA.

- Ham u3BeCTHO 0 IBYX HIOKMHAX. A O CKOJIBKMX MBI HE 3HaeM?

Ona Haxmypuiach W cTaja OTOMpaTh TPaBbl M3 Pa3HBIX TOPIIKOB, CTOSBIIMX 3/I€Ch K€, HA
CTOJIE.

- To1 nymaens, ux yousarot? Mnu onn yexanu? Moxet ObiTh, Ha CeBep B moUCKaxX paboThI?

- Ho Torna xoTh KTO-TO pacckasai Obl HAM O CBOUX IJIAHAX.

- Ha, noxanyu. S mpocTo He 3Haro, 4To Jenarth. Po3a moaHsa rojaosy.

- TeI paccnpanmBana MOJUIKMIO, OHU CBOMX OCBeoMUTENEU. S roBopuiia ¢ npy3bsiMu. HUkTo
HHUYEro He 3HaeT. JIroau Hamyrassl.

- DTO NOHSTHO.

Cenena ngenmana akKypaTHBIE CTEXKH MO Kparo, MIETKOBOTO YepHOro KBaapara. Eciam Obl
MPEOJI0JIeBaTh KU3HEHHBIE TPYAHOCTH OBUIO OBl TaK >K€ MPOCTO, KaK CIIMTh 3TOT MaJeHBKUHN
MeEIIoYeK!

- Bce-Taku 4TO K€ HaM JenaTh?

- Te1 BUusienia adguim o JeKIUAX U ceancax runHo3a ['ycraBa Jlomunuka? - cnpocuiia CeneHa.

- Jla, HO KaKO€ OTHOIIICHHE OHU UMEIOT K Ham?

- I'unHO3 - HOBOE HampaBieHue B MeaulHe. CUUTAIOT Aa)Xe, YTO €ro MOXKHO HCITOJIb30BaTh
BMecTO xinopodopma. S Obl1a HAa OAHOM JIEKITUU, a TeTIEPh MHE XOTEJI0Ch ObI CXOJUTh Ha CEaHC.

Po3a otopBasiace OT pabOTBHL.

- Jla uTo ¢ T060#1? To THI XOUelb NMPUTOTOBUTH CHAM00be I 3TOro J[3:nTOHA, TEmeph BOT
ceaHc. TblI e MOHUMAaEIIb, KaK 3TO OMACHO.

- MoxeT ObITh, THITHO3 KaXEeTCsI OMaCHBIM TOJIBKO MMOTOMY, YTO MaJOU3BECTEH?

- A Bapyr aTo Tebe oBpeauT? - Po3a B3sia OMH JTOCKYTOK, OTIIBBIPHYJIA €ro, B3sla IPYrou. -
Cama 3Haelb, HOBOE - BOBCE HE 3HAYUT XOPOIIEE.

- Ho Hano xe y3HaBaTh HOBOE, TOJBKO OAaOYIIKMHBIX 3HAHUW HENOCTATOYHO. A €ClI 3TH
ceaHCchl He oOMaH? Bapyr MHe y1acTcsi HOrOBOPUTH C KEM-TO U3 MPONABIIHX.

- AX BOT B ueM Jieio! - Po3a BO3MYIIEHHO NOMHSIACh. - Thl MPOCTO HE MOHHUMAEUIb, Kyda
cTpemulllbcsa. be3 cnenuanbHON TPEHUPOBKM U KOHTPOJISL BCE, YTO KACaeTCs TyXOBHOW 3HEPIUH,
MOKET IPUYUHHUTH TPOMAJHbIE HEMPUATHOCTH.

- 51 Bepro Tebe, HO X049y MONPOOOBATh.

Po3za cena psgom ¢ CeneHoil 1 B3sia €€ 3a PYKY.

- JlagHo, 3HaI0 TBOE YNPAMCTBO. TOJBKO Oyab OCTOpOXKHA. A 51 T€M BpEMEHEM IOMpOOYIo
pa3y3HaTh HAMX JPY3bsX €lle B oqHOM MecTe. [IoToM pacckaxy, 4TO y MEHS U3 3TOTO BBIILIO.

- Twl roBOpUIIb 3arajkamu. Po3a ynbiOHyIaCh.

- A Tenepb 1aBail BepHEMCS K padoTe.

I'naBa 2

Hpovik J[3nTOH B oyepenHou pa3 BeIpyrajics. M 3To caMblid IpecTUXHBIM panioH HoBoro
Opunieana?! Jla, nevictButenbHo, HA YapTec CTPUT MOKHO KYMUTh BCE, YTO YIOAHO, U Hexoporo. Ho
OH YK€ HE MOT BBIHOCHUTH BJIQKHOTO BO3yXa, MOCTOSHHOIO 3aIaxa BETOB, Y3KUX YJIIOYEK C IJIOTHO



MPYIKATBIMUA APYT K APYry AOMaMH W MPa3JHO MIaTaroummcsa HapogoMm. EMy xorenochk oOparHO B
Texac.

[Inoxoe HacTpoeHue He mnokuaano ero. Bcrpewa c¢ Cenmenoit Mopran He yimydmmia
nonoxxenusi. C kakod crath oHa Tak ropautcs cBouM nenom! ITlomymaenis, OOBIKHOBEHHas
MOILIEHHUIIA, TPOJAIOIIAasl JIOKb U MYCThle MeUThl. Hajio moI0XuTh 3TOMY KOHEII.

Jpaiik pa3misiapiBai HEOOJIbIIME JOMUKHU C aXKypHBIMU OankoHamu, OThICKuMBast Homep 1109.
Hanpacno on npunsut Ceneny Mopras tak 6iu3ko k cepany. [Ipocto 3a mociegHee BpeMsi OH ChIT
10 TOPJIO KEHIIMHaMu-oOMaHnmuamu. ot Mapu. Hy kTo Obl MOT olymMarb, 4TO €r0 HEBECTKA
CHHUMET CO CUeTa paHYo BCE JO MOCIIEIHETO IEHTa U COEXKUT ¢ KAKUM-TO HE3HAKOMIIEM !

On Bcerga mobun Jxoit Mapu, oTHocwics K Hel, kKak K cectpe. Ha Hee MOXXHO OBLIO
MOJ0XUThCS. OH CIIOKOWHO OCTAaBHJI pAHYO Ha €€ MOMEYEHNE, KOTIa MOTHAI Ha ceBep CKOT. Kpome
TOrO, OHa YyBCTBOBaJia ce0sl OMHOKOW IOCIe CMEpPTU Myxka, Opara Jlpaiika, U ee HYKHO OBLIO
3aHATH JIEJIOM, YTOOBI OTBJI€Yh OT MPAYHBIX MbICIEH. - , OH NPUXOIUI B SIPOCTh BCSIKHUHU pas,
BCIIOMMHAs, KaK BEPHYBIIMChH JIOMOM, HAIlle] MyCTOE paH40. ITO OBbLIO BCEro JABE HEIETW Hazal.
[TapnorTra n JXKOpK, MEKCUKAHCKad Maps, yXa)KMBaBIIas 3a JIOIMAJbMU €IIE MPU €ro POAUTENAX,
pacckazanu emy, yto B Cucrepmuu ne ko Mapu BCcTpeTuna MapHs, YMEBIIETO KPAaCUBO
TOBOPUTH, U TYT K€ BIOOUIIACH B HETO. Bece mpoun3onuio OykBaJibHO 32 HECKOJIBKO aHei. [IlapioTTa
nbeITaNach OTroOBOpuThH kol Mapu, HO Ta ee mpocTo He ciymana. Ckaszansa TOJIbKO, 4TO Oeper
JEHBbIW PAH4YO B KaueCTBE MpUIaHoro. Bor u Bee.

Korna 3mocte HeMHOro ynemiach, Jpaiik Hauanm OecriokouThCs. MoxkeT ObITh, 3TOT MapeHb
3amyrai ee WM yBe3 HacuiabHO? Heyxenn oHu Ha camoM jelie nonoominu apyr apyra? OH penmi
BCE ATO BBISICHUTDH U BBIPYYUTH €€, €CJIM OHA Tonasna B 0exy. Ecnu ke HeT, To moTpeboBaTh AEHbIU
Haszal.

[TapnoTTa ciablmana, oyaro onu cooupanuck B Hosbiit Oprean, u Jpaiik oTnpaBuiics Tyna, HO
HaIleql ee B OOJBITIOM TOpoze naineko He cpa3y. OH u ceiiuac He ObUT yBEpEH, YTO 3HAYMBIIASCS B
pacKJICEHHBIX IO BCeMY Topofay aduiax acCucTeHTKa runuotusepa ['ycraBa Jlomunuka - Ta camas
JI>xot Mapu, koTopytro OH uieT. Ho CKOpo OH BCE BBISICHUT.

WNnnro3uii B OTHOIICHUM JKEHIMH OH OoJjbliie He muTal. [lo kpaliHeil Mepe OfHYy KOBapHYIO
KEHIMHY U3 CBOECH XU3HU OH TeNepb BbIUEPKHYI. OH mo3HakoMuiicsi ¢ Cr03aHHOW Ha KOHHOM
3aBOJIE, BEUEPOM OHHU OTHPABUJIUCH B Oap, UTpajid B KapThl, U BCIO UTPY OHA HE CBOJUJIA C HETO
ma3. OH Bemrpan, u Cro3aHHa O TOJNYIHS COTpeBaJIa €ro nocreiab. HaBepHska 3TO OHA monoxuna
eMy o[ MOAYLIKY JIFoOOBHOE 3enbe. CeneHa Moprad 3ToO HE NOATBEPAMIIA, HO SCHO, BOPOXkOa -
neno pyk Cro3aHHbl. bosbliie oHa /71 HETO HE CYIIECTBOBAjIAa: OH HE JMIOOWUI HU TEMHBIX JICIHUIICK,
HU CEKPETOB, HU BCAKUX MOILICHHHII.

Hakonen [paiik moOpaiicst 10 HY)KHOTO MecTa U ocTaHoBwiics. Ha BTOpoM 3Taxe KpacuBOTO
I0OMa B 3aKpBITBIX KPYKEBHBIMU 3aHABECKAMHM OKHAaX TIOCTEIIPUMMHO TOpEJl CBET, OIHAKO
MAaCCHBHBIEC JICPEBSIHHBIC BOPOTa C KAJIMTKOW BBINVISAIEIH, OTHIOAb HE JIpyXKeltoOHo. Bee ke oH
noctyyai. Kakoro uepra stot ['yctaB JIoOMMHUK IPOBOAUT CBOM CE€AHCHI IoMa? J[p3MK HUKOIIA HE
ObIBaJI HA OJO0OHBIX CEAHCAX U HU 32 YTO HE MpHUILeI Obl Croja, eciiu Obl He /[0l Mapu.

Ero He mokugana MbICIb, 4TO 31€Ch Kakas-To apyras [[»xoii Mapu. Hackonbko OH 3HaJ CBOIO
HEBECTKY, OHA HUKAK HE MOAXOIWJIA Ha POJIb ACCUCTEHTKU TUIHOTHU3epa. [IpaBna, He W3BECTHO,
KaKHhe HY>KHBI CIIOCOOHOCTH JIJIsl OAOO0HOM paboThl, ecliu OHU BOOOIIE HYXKHBI. OH CxKajl KylaKu U
MOMBITAJICA YHATH 3710CTh. Ceiluac He BpeMs TePATh T'OJIO0BY.

Brapyr kanutka pacnaxaynach, u Jpaiik yBujen denoBeka OKosio ceMu (yroB pocrta. Y
BeJIMKaHa HE ObLUIO OMHOW PYKH, HO OH, BHIUMO, OO0Jajajd HEIIOKHUHHOW CHIIOW: MYCKYIbI



YraJpIBAIMCh JAXKE IO JOPOTUM BEYEPHUM KOCTIOMOM.

- Sl npuien Ha ceaHc.

BenukaH npoTsHyN XpyCTadbHYIO Ba3y, OYTH JOBEPXY 3aMOJTHEHHYIO OAHKHOTAMHU.

- Ckousbko?

YenoBek mo-npexHeMy Moj4a JAepKal Ba3y.

Jpa3iik mosiokuia B Hee Oouibllle, yeM coOupaicsi, 1 TOT OTCTYIWJI, NMO3BOJUB €My BOWTH B
HAIOJIHEHHBIM 3araxoM mMarHonui caja. Kak xopomo, 4To OH Jorajgajcs CupsiTaTb CBOM IUCTOJIET
3a MOSIC ¥ €T0 NPUKPBIBAJIA KYPTKA.

Benukan nHampaBuics udepe3 can, Jpsuk - 3a HUM. JIYHHBIM CBET CTPYMJICS CKBO3b KPOHBI
J€pPEBbEB, HECKOJIBKO a)KYPHBIX, O€JIBIX CTOJIOB U CTY/IBEB CTOSUIA CPEIU IJIAKYUYUX UB U LBETYILETO
KycTapHuKa. J{paiik ocMoTpencs, IpuKuIbiBas, Kak moObICTpee oTciona BeiOparhes. K coxanenuro,
BBIXOJI OJJUH - Yepe3 TTIaBHBIE BOPOTA.

ITomoisa Kk 1OMYy, 4EJIOBEK OTKPBLI ABEPD, NpUriiamas Jp3iika BOUTH.

Oxka3zaBumch BHYTpH, JIp3UK yciblman, Kak JABEPbh MO3aJM HETO 3aTBOPWIINA, HO, KAXKETCS, HE
3anepad. OJHAKO OH YYBCTBOBaJl OMACHOCTh M, OBICTPO ONIAJEBIIMCH B KOMHATe, MOCTapajcs
OLICHUTbH CUTYALIHIO.

KomHuara ocBeraiach quilb CBe4aMU B BUTOM CEPEOPSHOM MOJACBEYHHUKE, CTOSBIIEM B LIEHTPE
KpYyIJIOro JIepeBSIHHOTO cTojia. Bokpyr Hero cuieno mecth yenoBeK. OkHa ObUTM 3aKpBITHI U
3aHABEILICHbl TEMHBIMH NTOPThEpaMHU. bbUIO )KapKO U CyMpPayHO.

Jpaiiky Bce 3/1ech He HpaBWIJIOCh. B Takoil 00CTaHOBKE MOTJIO MTPOUCXOAUTH BCE, YTO YIOJIHO.

N3-3a cToJ1a MOJHSIICS YEIOBEK.

- IIpoxoaute, noxamnyiicra. Mens 308yt I 'ycraB JloMUHUK.

Hackonbko /[lpaiiky ymanock paccMoTpeTb, JJOMUHHMK ObUT CTPOMHBIM YEpPHOBOJOCHIM U
yCaTbIM YEJIOBEKOM JIET TPUILATH ISATH, TPUOIU3UTENBHO MATH (YTOB CEMHU IIOMMOB POCTa, B
JOPOTOM YE€PHOM KOCTIOME M Oeliol KpyKeBHOW pyoOarike. [IpoHUIaTenbHBINA B3I KapuX IJia3
Ka3aJICsl OTHOBPEMEHHO YyBCTBEHHBIM U BIIACTHBIM.

JpaiiK HEB3JIIOOUII €T0 C MEPBOTo B3IIIAIA.

- A 31O - MO pekpacHasa accucTeHTka J[oit Mapu. - ['yctaB ykas3an Ha CUJEBIIYIO CJIEBA OT
HETO )KEHILHHY.

Vre10asck, 0OHaA BcTaja.

- 3npaBcTByH, [dpoaiik. Uto npuseno Teds B HoBbiit Opiiean?

XonoaHasi, TAMHCTBEHHAs, MpekpacHas. Ha ynuiie oH Hukoraa Obl ee HE y3HaNl. YJIOKEHHBIE
CBETJIbIE BOJIOCHI, KOCMETHKA, YEPHOE C OJIECTKaMH IUIaTb€ C IIIYOOKMM BBIPE30M Ha TpPYyAH,
UJIealIbHO CUJEBILEE U MOTYEPKUBABIIEE BCE TOCTOMHCTBA Gurypbl. OHa ObUTa COBCEM HE MOXOXKa
Ha 3aropeiylo JEeByLIKY, KOTOPYIO OH NPUBBIK BUAETh Ha TexXacCKoM paHudo. W Bce ke 3To ObLia
Jl>xon Mapwu.

Jpalik He OTBETWI], a JIUIIb MPOAOJDKAI CMOTPETh Ha Hee, U kol Mapu 1moBepHynach K
I'ycraBy:

- Oto poiik [{paToH. [ToMmHumb, s pacckasbiBaia Tede 0 HeM?

- bpat TBOero Myxka, - ['ycraB npunrypuiicsi. Hakonen [paiik cHoBa oOpen gap pedu.

- Sl npuexan B HoBeiit Opiieand, 4ToObl OTOBOPUTH ¢ TOOOH, [0l Mapu.

- OT0 O4eHb NMPUATHO. Y TeOs 3/1eCh elle Kakue-HuOy/Ib aemna’?

- Het. Beap Th1 yexana He nomnpoinaBiumch. OHa yabIOHYIaCh.

- Ax, na.

- 51 xo4y ¢ TOOOI MOTOBOPHUTb.



- Xopomo. Ho Torma mpuaercs momgokjaaTh OKOHYAaHHMs ceaHca. Mbl Kak pa3 HauyMHaEM.
OcraBaiicst c HaMH.

- Her, 4...

- Ter uTOo e, ucnmyrancsi? - ¢ BBI30BOM IPOW3HEC KEHCKUW rosoc, u Cenena Mopran
noBepHylach K Hemy JuiioM. OT ynuBneHust [[paiik uyTh He BbIpyrajics BciayX. OH JOJIKEH ObLI
3aMETUTh €€ Ccpasy ke, HO OHa cujena ciuHoil. OH ObUT Tak nomiomeH /ol Mapu u ['ycraBowm,
YTO Ja)K€ HE B3MISIHYII Ha OCTaJIbHBIX. DTO OIUIOIIHOCTD, HENb3s OBUIO MO3BOJIUTH TaK MPOCTO CEOs
MOWMATh.

- Bpsig i 4ro-nmmbo B 3TOM KOMHATe HamyraeT 4esioBeKa, TOHSIOIIEro craja u3 Texaca B
Kanzac.

- Hy u xoporto, - CeneHna kuBHyJa Ha CBOOOAHBIN CTYII BO3JIE HEE. - 3HAYUT, Thl OCTACIIbCS.

Hpoaiik cen. Ero nepexutpunu. Ho ceriyac 3to He maBHOe. Hy)XHO y3Harh, 4To 34€Ch EIAET
Jlxoit Mapu u kakas ponb orBelneHa CeneHe Moprad. Cyng mo tomy, kak I'ycraB JloMHHUK
CMOTpEN Ha HEe, OHU He uyxue. Uto ke 3a urpy Beaer Cenena?

- S BUXKy, BBl YK€ 3HAKOMBI, MUCTEDP [[31TOH, - cKaszam I'ycTaB, XOJOIHO IOCMOTPEB Ha
Jpaiika.

- Hac cBeno 1r000BHOE 3€ibe, - paccMesachk CeneHa.

- Mucrep Jlpaiik, Bbl TOJDKHBI ObITH OcTOpOoXKHBI B HoBOoM Opiieane, - ckazan ['yctas. - 3nech
He Jlukuii 3anan.

- Cnacu0o 3a npenocTepexenue, - Jpaiik cTUCHY 3yObl B HEKOM mooouu ynbioku. [louemy
['ycraB Tak arpeccuBen? boutcs, 4yto o yroBoput kot Mapu yexars oOparHo B Texac? Wnu 310
Kak-To cBsizaHo ¢ CeneHoit? Tak uiy nHaye, OH B 3TOM pa3depeTcs.

['ycTaB cnerka KuBHYI U 00BEJ B3IJIAIOM CUJSIIMX 38 CTOJIOM.

- Pazpenmre npenctaBuTh BaM OCTabHBIX TocTer. CripaBa oT Bac - mMaaam [[kopmxkec. Ee
MYX OTHO Ha Bamel ['pak1aHCKOIl BOMHE, K OHA XOYET C HUM MTOTOBOPUTb.

JIpaWiK BEKJIMBO KMBHYI, IOIyMaB, OJHAKO, YTO MajiaMm J[>KOpIKeC CTOMIIO BCE CKa3aTb MYKY
elIe ABaJUaTh JEeT Ha3al. Benb cerogHsmHenr BO3MOKHOCTH MOTJIO U HE MPEACTaBUTHCS.

- Pagom ¢ Hel - kanuTan Pait. Heckonbko mMecsAneB Ha3al ero Jo4b yToHyjaa B Muccucurm.
OH X04YeT y3HaTh, BCE JIU y HEE B OPSAKE.

JIpaMik CHOBa KHMBHYI. YBBI, C JIo4uepblo KanuTaHa Paiita Bce coBcem He B mopsake. OHa
MEpTBa.

On nocmotpen Ha Ceneny. C keM XodeT nmoroBoputh oHa? M BAPYr ¢ yIMBIECHUEM MTOHSII, YTO
€CJIU C JIPYroM, JIIDOOBHUKOM HIIH MY>KEM, TO ObLIT ObI paji yCIBIIATH, YTO TOT YMED.

- 3a HalMM CTOJIOM MPHUCYTCTBYET elie MajeMmyasesib BuceHT. Ee )keHux nmpomnan Ha Mope. -
I'ycraB mocmotpen Ha Jpavika. - Muctep [I31TOH, Kak s IOHUMAKO, BBl TOXKE IMOTEPSIIA KOTO-TO U3
Onmu3KuX?

J{paK HaXMypHIICA.

- Jla, Opata Palimonpa, - nmocisimancs Tuxuil roioc ot Mapu. - OH OblT MOUM MYXKEM.

- Ho s He xouy ¢ HMUM pa3roBapuBarhb! - J{p3iik cTUCHYN 3yObl. - MbI BC€ ¢ HUM OOrOBOPHIIH
emie 10 €r0 CMEPTH.

YepT BO3bMU, UTO K€, OHU U BIPABIYy COOMPAIOTCS Pa3roBapuBaTh C MEPTBHIMU?

- K coxxanenuto, Mbl He Bcerja MOXEM MOTOBOPUTH C TEMH U3 YCOIIIMX, KOTO Bbl XOTEJIH Obl
yenbimath. He npasaa im, J[>koit Mapu? - ['ycTaB npucTaIbHO MOCMOTPET Ha HEE.

- Jla, 1 TOITBKO MEAUYM - KaHaJ ISl TE€X, KTO 3aX04ET C HaMU rOBOPUTh. CKPECTUB PYKH Ha
rpyau, Jlxoit Mapu nomHsana miaza Kk HeOy. B TyckioMm cBeTe cBedeil OHa HallOMHUHAJIa aHredna,



CJIOBHO YK€ CJiejaia MePBbIi Iar Mo Ty CTOPOHY OBITHS.

Jpa1iKk cTapasics yCIOKOUThCS. ECium OH cerldac B30PBETCSA, €r0 HEBECTKA PA303JIMTCS, U OH
HHUYETO HE Y3HAET.

- Jxoii Mapu, Bbl YyBCTBYETE, UTO MOH MYXK THE-TO pAIOM? - THXO CIpPOCHIIa MajiaMm
JIxopmxkec.

- Eme paHo, iyHa He B3olia, - oOHaaexuBaroIle yiaslonynachk [[>xoir Mapu. - Ho ceroans,
HaJICI0Ch, OyJIET yJauyHasi HOYb.

- [oxanyiicra, naBaiiTe HauMHaTh. - B OONBIIMX KapuX a3zax MajieMyas3eidb BUCEHT cTosuH
CJIE3BI.

Hpoatik cHoBa mocmotpen Ha Ceneny. Kakas e posib B 3TOM CIIEKTakiie oTBeaeHa en? Mx
B3MVISIABI BCTPETUIIMCh, U OH IMOYYBCTBOBAJ, KakK IO TENy Mpoluia Terias BoiHa. YepT Bo3bMU!
HeBaxxHo, Kakast poib €l 0TBeieHa, OH €€ xemnai! Ho Bce paBHO €l He yAacTcs ero OypadnTh.

OtBens B3man, CeneHa BAPYT TOXKE MOYYBCTBOBaJIa, YTO B KOMHATe CTallO Kapko. [[paiik
JIPJITOH TIOJHOCTBIO JIMINAN €€ MPUCYTCTBUSA OyXa, XOTA OHAa W CTapajlaCh HE MOJABaTh BU]LY.
XoTenoch AePKAThCsl OT HETO MOJIAJbIIe, HO HYKHO ObUIO TIOMOYb CBOEH alTeKe U CBOUM JIPY3bsIM,
yero Obl 3TO HU cTOoMJI0. Henb3s ciyckars ¢ [[paiika mia3. Ero mpuxos MpeKkpacHo BIUCHIBAJICS B €€
TJIAHBI.

3naunt, dpaiik npuexan u3 Texaca crenuanibHO 3a CBOed HeBecTKoM. JIroouT nu ee Jpaiik?
Hagepnsika! Tak MOXHO JIM OTBJIEYb €r0 MBICIA OT 3TOT0 MPEKPACHOTO BO3AYIIHOTO CO3JaHMS,
3oBymierocs J>xoit Mapu?

N Bce ke OHa JOKHA 3TO CHAeNarb, €CIW YX pEelia J10Ka3arb JACHCTBEHHOCTh CBOMX
mo00BHBIX cHanoOui. Ho ecou Hpaiik u ot Mapu mo-HacTosiemMy Jro0AT Apyr Apyra, HU4TO
HE CMOKET 3TOMY NPOTUBOCTOATh. Toraa nouemy xe J[>xoit Mapu coexana? UTo-To 37€Ch HE TakK.

Cenena nocmotpena Ha Jlpaiika. Ero uncto BEIOpUTOE BOJEBOE JIUIO OBUIO COCPEOTOYEHHO,
YyBCTBEHHBIC TYOBI TIJIOTHO CXKAaThl, CIIOBHO OH CTapajics clepkarh CBou 3moInu. Kakue amorun?
JIro60Bb? Jlacxke gymas O TOM, YTO OH JIOOUT JPYryi0, OHA MbITaJach MPEACTaBUTb, KaK OH
uenyercs. W mopasunack coOCTBEHHBIM MbIC/sSIM. Her, Henb3si 3a0bIBaTh: €€ HUHTEPEC UYUCTO
JEJI0BOM, HUYETO JIMYHOTO.

- Yro TbI TaM yBuaena? - J{paiik momHss OpoBb. CMYTHBIIMCH, OHA MOHSUIIA, YTO YK€ JIaBHO
MIPUCTAIIBHO paccMarpuBaeT ero. Cierka nmokpacHeB, OHA BCE K€ BBIJEPHKAJIA €r0 B3I/,

Tenepb OH TOXE paccMaTpPUBAII €€.

- A TBI HUYETO.

OTtBens HaKoOHEI] T1a3a, oHa yBujena B3 ['yctaBa. JlomkHO ObITH, OH 3aMETHII, KaK OHU C
JlpatikoMm paccMmarpuBaiu apyr apyra. Hamo ObITh 0CTOpOXKHEE, HUKTO HE JOJDKEH J0TaIaThCs, 9TO
ee uarepecyet pank I>1T0H.

- Jlemn U TKEHTIBMEHBI, - ['ycTaB OCMOTpEN NMPUCYTCTBYIOIMX, - MOJIOKUTE, MOXKAIYUCTA,
PYKH Ha CTOJI U BO3BMHUTE 3a PYKH COCEJIEH.

B3noxnys, CeneHa TMOJOXKWIA JIAAOHW HA CTOJ. XOTA M HE XOUETCA, HO MPHUJIETCSA B3ATh
Hpoiika 3a pyky. A 4dro, eciia ee pyka Bcrioreer? Mnm 3ademercs? Mnu OH ee CIUIIKOM CHIIBHO
COXKMET?

Jlpaiik cxBaTuil e€e MpaBylo PyKy, U €€ MajJeHbKas JIaJIOHb CKPhUIACh B €r0 OOJBINON pyKe.
OmryTuB TEIJIO U CUITY, OHAa, HEOKUIAHHO JIJIsi cCaMOi ce0s1, OTBETUIIA Ha €ro MOoXKaTHe.

- Ecniu g1 coxMy TeOe pyKy CIMIIKOM CHIJIBHO, Thl MHE CKaXH.

YT0-TO APOTHYIO Yy HEE BHYTPH, U IEPE]l TEM KaK OTBETUTH, € MPUIIUIOCH OTKAUUIATHCS:

- JlagHo. B ciydae yero, Thl TOKE CKAXHU.



OH ynbIOHYIICS, TTOKa3aB KpenKue Oerbie 3yObl.

- Tyt st He OecTmoKOIOCh.

Manemyazenb BuceHnt B3sna CeneHy 3a JIEBYIO PYKY M IIOCMOTpEJIa HA HEE IMEYAIbHBIMU,
KapuMHU, IIOJIHBIMU CJIE3 IJ1a3aMHu.

- MHe Tak MHOTO HYKHO CKa3aTh MOEMY >KEHUXY!

OH yI1men Tak BHE3AIMHO, YTO S Ja)e HE yCresa MonpoIaThCs.

- Bece Oyzaet xopomo. - CeneHa HCKpEHHE MOKelala, YTOObl U BIPSIMb ObUIO TakK.

- Tenepb HauHewM, - ['ycTas cen psaom ¢ kot Mapu.

B xoMHare HacTynwiia THUIIMHA, U CTAJA CJBIIHBI IIOKOT KONBIT Ha YIUIE U NAIbHUE TYJIKU
IMapOXO0JIOB.

['ycraB gocran u3 kapMaHa HEOOJBIOW KPUCTAIT U MOAHSI ero Haj roioBod J[»xoi Mapwu,
MEJUIEHHO MOKAaYMBasi UM, U OHA 3aBOPOKEHHO CJIENJIA 32 UCKPUBILIMMCS B CBETE CBEUE KAMHEM.

- Tel xoueus cmarb, Jxor Mapu. Tel O4eHb, OYEHBb XOYELIb CIIATh. [BOM BEKH CTAJIMU
TSDKEJIBIMU, Thl HE MOYKEIIb UX OTKPBITh. ThI X04Yellb TONBKO cniaTh. - OH MOKaunBall KPUCTAIJIOM B
TaKT TUXUM MOHOTOHHBIM ciioBaM. J[»xoit Mapu 3akpblia miasa, €€ rojioBa CTajla KIOHUThCS Ha3all,
MOKa HE YIepJiach B BBICOKYIO CHUHKY cTyla. Bor Tak, xopomo. Thl xouemb cnarb, y TeOs
3akpbIBaloTCa mia3a. Cnu, paccinadbbea. Bee xopomo. - CriokolHbIM, yBepeHHBIN rosioc ['ycTaBa
3aBOpaKuBall. - Teneps Thl OyAelh caTh NTYOOKHM, CITIOKOWHBIM CHOM.

CeneHe TOX€ 3aXOTENOCh CHaTh, HO OHA MOYYBCTBOBAJIA CHUJIBHOE MOXKaTue pyku [lpoaiika.
[IpaBna nu, yto ['ycTaBy yaanoch Tak OBICTPO yChIUTH J>koi Mapu, wim 3T0 OTpabOTaHHBIN
Tprok? OHa BHUMATEILHO MTOCMOTpEIa Ha HuX. J[>koit Mapu aplinana poBHO U TTyOOKO.

OrsisizieB ¢ TOP’KECTBOM MPUCYTCTBYIONMX, [ ycTaB yOpasl KpucTajul B KapMaH.

- Tenepr mMoxHO HauumHarbk. ko Mapu, NPUCYTCTBYIOUME 31€Ch XOTAT IOTOBOPUTH C
OJIN3KMMU, HAXOIAIMMHUCS IO Ty CTOPOHY. ThI UyBCTBYEIIIb, UTO KTO-TO XOUET OTBETUTH?

Jxolt Mapu He moleBenuiiach 1 BoOOIIe HUKAK HE MpopearupoBaia Ha ero ciosa. CeieHa
nocMmoTpena Ha [paiika. ToT ckenTudyecku moAHsul OpoBb. B KOMHare BApPYr CTajio XOJOIHO.
[InaMs cBeueld METHYIIOCh, CJIIOBHO HajeTeN MOphIB BeTpa. CelleHa OmIsHylach, HE OTKPBUIACH JIU
IBEPH, HO BCE OBLIO MO-MPEKHEMY.

CraHnoBuiock Bce xoJionHee. ol Mapu Havana Bpam@arb rojoBou. JpaWk Kpemue cxall
CenieHe pyKy W Hampsrcs, MPUrOTOBUBIIMCH JACHCTBOBAaTh. BHE3amHO pa3gaincs 3BOHOK, u J[xou
Mapwu B31pOrHyJia, TOUHO OH MPO3BEHEN MPSAMO Y HEE IO YXOM.

Cenena orBeTuia Ha noxarue Jp3ika, O abIBasICh, MBITASACh MMOHATH, OTKY/Ia MUCXOIUII 3BYK,
HO HUYETO HE YBUJIEIIA.

JI>xort Mapu, BEIHIPSAMUBIIMCH HA CTYJIE, 3arOBOPUIIA HU3KUM, IIOYTH MYKCKUM T'OJIOCOM:

- JIrtobumasi, He BOJTHYMHCS.

- Knon! - Bckpuknyna magemyasenb BuceHT, cuibHO cxxaB Cesnene nanblbl. - S npuay k Teode!

- Het. ThI nomkHa kuTh. THI CIUIIIKOM MOJIOA, YTOOBI MATH 3a MHOIA.

['maza y JIxoit Mapu octaBainuch 3aKpbITBIMH, HO T'YObI ABUTAJIUCH.

- Ho s Tak xouy! S He Mory 0e3 Te0st )KUTB!

- Ter momxua. Ilomymait o marepu. Ilomoxxau, moka mpoObeT TBoWM udac. Ho He panblie.
OO0emaii MHE 5TO, JTIOOMMas.

[To mexam manemyasenb BUCEHT TEKIM CIIE3bL.

- Jla! A ob6emaro! Ho xaaTh Oynet Tak He mpocTo!

- [Tomuwu, st Bceraa Oymy T€0s1 TFOOUTS.

- A toxe!



- A Tenepsp Npolaii.

- He npomait, a 10 BCTpeun, - BCXIIMIIHYIIA MaJieMya3elib BUCEHT U BbITEpiia Ia3a ILUIaTKOM.
JI>xori Mapu OTKHHYJIach HAa CIIUHKY.

- He oTmryckaiite pyk, - ckaszan ['ycraB. - DHEprus JoJDKHA UATH pOBHO. MasieMyasenb, C BAMU
BCE€ B IOpsAJIKe?

- l1a. - Ona mmakana. - boaemoe cmacu6o. S Tak Bam o0s3aHa!

- MBI pagpl, 4TO CMOIIM BaM NOMO4Yb. - ['ycraB mocMmorpen Ha Jxoi Mapu. - Xoder s
CETrOJIHS €Ile KTO-HUOY/Ib MOTOBOPUTH C HAMHU?

TunmHa.

- A MHE HUKTO HHMYEro He xoueT cooOnmTth? - CeleHa IMOKa HE MoOIIa pa3o0parhCs B
MPOUCXONAIIEM, HO XOTeja MOonpoOoBaTh M ATy BO3MOXKHOCTB. - Mcue3nun mMou Jpy3bs, U s Xo4y
Y3HaTh, YTO C HUMU CIIYYUJIOCh.

- EcTh 11 KOHKpETHBIA YeJIOBEK, C KOTOPHIM BBl XOTeIU OBl MOToBOpUTH? - Temnepsr ['ycran
cmotpen Ha Ceneny.

- Her. S naneroch, Bce oHU kuBbl. - Jlxoi Mapu. XodyeT M KTO-HHOYIb MOTOBOPUTH C
Cenenoir? CHOBa THUILIMHA.

- IIpoctute, - n3puHmicA ['yctaB. - 3aCTaBUTh TOBOPUTH Mbl HUKOTO HE MOKEM.

Cenena xkuBHYNA, cTapasch He cMOTpeTh Ha [[paiika. He Obuto HyXHbl cripammBarh, 4TO OH
000 BceM 3ToM nyMaeT. Ho gaxke ecinu 3To u MUCTU(UKAIUS, TO BETUKOJICITHAS.

- Iloxkanyiicra, - mporoopuia maaam Jxopmkec. - MHE O4eHb, O4EHb HAJO MOTOBOPUTH C
MyxeM. Het i1 yero-uuOynp 115t MeHs?

Jxor Mapu Mouyaia.

- Moxet ObITh, B ClIeAyIOUMI pa3, MagaMm. - ['ycTaB CHOBa U3BUHUJICA.

Manam J[xopmxec KuBHYIIA.

- 51 3Har0, OH 3aXO4ET MOrOBOPUTH CO MHOM, KaK TOJIBKO €MY IMPEICTABUTCA BO3MOKHOCTb. Sl
MTOIIPOOYIO eIIie.

- Xoportmo, MajiaM. - ['yctaB 0060psitolie ¥ ¢ CUMIIaTHEN TOCMOTpEI Ha Hee.

Bapyr Jlxoii Mapu BeITpSIMHUIIACH.

- JIpaiik, s Xo4y, 4TOOBI Thl O HEM mo3aboTuics. Teneps, Kpome Te0s, y Hee HuKkoro HeT. OHa B
onacHOCTH. Thl 3Haelb, Kak s ee ao0ui. - ['onoc Jxoit Mapu Obul HU3KUM U TpyObIM. - BecmomHun
rpeMy4yto 3Mero Ha xoaMme. Torga tede Obuto aecsaTh. Caenail 4To yroJiHo, TOJIBKO CHacu €e.

JI>xoit Mapwu 3aMo4ajia i CHOBa OTKMHYJIACh Ha CIIUHKY.

Komuary Hanmomaui sieasHou xonof, u CesneHa nmoyyBCTBOBaJIA, YTO [[paMik ele CuiibHEe cxkail
CC PYKY.

- Bort, 3HauuT, Kak. - JIpaiik Bcran, BeiTycTUB pyKy Cenenbl. - Eciu 3To mIyTKa, TO JOJKEH
CKa3aTh, OHA MHE HE HpaBUTCs. S ke MPOCUI He BCIIOMUHATH MOETO OpaTa B ’TOM MPEJICTABICHUH.

- DTO HE MPEJCTaBICHUE, - TOPKECTBYIOIIE YILIOHYICS ['ycTaB. - TONbKO YTO BBI CIIBIIIAIN
rojioc Bauero ymepiuero 6para. O4eBuIHO, OH JJO CUX IOP OECIIOKOUTCS O CBOEH JKEHE, HO YBEPSIO
BAC, HUKAKAasl OMACHOCTh € HE TPO3HUT.

- XBatuT ¢ MeHs. Pa30Oyaute ee. - J{paiik ObUT yKe TOTOB BBITAIIMTh NUCTONET. YepT Bo3bMU!
HuKTO U3 NpUCYTCTBYIOIIMX HE MOT 3HaTh O rpEMYy4eil 3Mee, yOUB KOTOpPYIO Opar crac emMy >KU3Hb.
006 sTom He 3Hana gaxe Jxoit Mapu. Ho uTo Obl 31€Ch HU MPOUCXOAMIIO, OH HE XOTE]I MPUHUMATh
B 9TOM y4acTus. [ 'ycTaB oriisiiesn npucyTrCTBYFOLIHX.

- borock, UTO HYKHOE HACTpOEHHE HapyieHo. [IpuaeTrcsa nponomkuTh B cieayommi pas. - O
HakJoHWIICs K Jlxoi Mapu. - Korna Tel mpocHelbcs, Oynelh 4yBCTBOBaTh ce0s CUACTIMBON U



otnoxHyBme. Ha cuetr "gecsate" Tl mpocHembes. - OH MEIJIEHHO COCUMTal 10 JecCATH. [[>Kou
Mapu oTkpbiia ria3a u ynpioHymnack. OHa ¥ BOPSMb BBITJISIENIa CYACTINBON U OTJOXHYBITICH.

- 5l momorna Bam?

- Kak Bcerna, - I'yctaB mornaaun ee o pyke. - Kak Tbl ce0st 4yBCTBYeIlb?

- Otnuno. Ipocto BennkosenHo!

- A 1 O4eHb ycTala, - cKaszajga Majemyaselib BuceHr.

- U 51 Toxe, - coodumiia magam J>xopxec. - Ho mocie ceanca s Bcerzia Tak ce0st 4yBCTBYIO.

CeneHa ycTaJlOCTH HE YyBCTBOBaJa, HO ObUIa OMYCTOIIEHA W CHJIBHO MPOTOJ0AANIACH.
XOTenockh Mockopee orcroaa yutu. Iloka HEMOHATHO, YTO 34€Ch MPOUCXOIUIIO, HO, MTO-BUIUMOMY,
ATO HUKAK HE TTIOMOXXET PEIIMTh €€ TPOOIEMBI.

- JI>xoit Mapu, st Xxouy ¢ TOOOH MOTOBOPUTH, - pe3ko ckazan [paiik. - [Ipsmo celiuac.

['naBa 3

- JIpa#iK, Thl OeCIOKOUIIILCs 3a MeHsI? - J[>koit Mapu ob6onuia Kpyriblii CTOJ U MOJIOKUIIA PYKY
€EMY Ha ILJIEYO.

CeneHa He Momia BUJETh 3Ty KapTUHY. Y HEE B CYMOYKE JIEKaJl MAJIICHBKUN MEIIOYEK C
J000BHBIM CHa/J100bEM, MPUTOTOBICHHBIM CIielanbHO i1 Jpatika J[paToHa. OHa yKe HECKOJIBKO
JTHEeW Hocujia ero ¢ coOoM, oxuaas noaxonsimero ciaydas. Ceituac camoe Bpems, HO [[»xoit Mapu
MOJKET HAPYLIUTh BCE €€ IUIAHBI.

- Bam nonpaBuiics ceanc? - nogoien k Cenene ['ycras.

- la, crracu6o.

PaznipaxxeHHas Tem, 4TO TeNeph HE CIbBIIUT pa3roBop psiika u J[xoi Mapu, oHa Bce ke
nocrapajiach ObITh JIFOOe3HON. B nroboe apyroe BpeMsi €il Obulo Obl MHTEPECHO MOTOBOPHUTH C
['ycraBom JIoMUHUKOM, HO ceidac ee 3aHUMalu JIpyrue, 0ojiee BaxKHbIE Jea.

- XKaib, 4TO MBI HE CMOIJIM BaM MMOMOYb. BbI Cka3aiu, 4To mponaiyd BalK APY3bsi?

- lla. x He Bcerga nmpocTo HAWTH, TOTOMY YTO CPEAN HUX MHOTO O€37J0MHBIX, HO OOBIYHO, JI0
HEJIaBHErO0 BPEMEHHU, 1 YaCTO UX BHjea. - OHa MONbITalach MPUCIYIIATHCS K pa3roBopy Jpaiika u
Jxoit Mapu, HO 3T0 ObUTIO 6ECTI0NIE3HO.

- byny paa Bam momoub. Bo3MOXHO, HaM yaacTcs CAENarh XOTh YTO-TO CIIENUAIBHO AJIS Bac. -
OH nmocMoTpest Ha ee TyObl, 3aTeM CHOBA B IV1a3a. - Sl ”Mero B BUAY C€aHC TUITHO3A.

VY IuBHUBIIMCH, UTO ATO TaK €ro 3auHTepecoBasio, CejieHa BAPYT MOYYBCTBOBaJIa O€CIIOKONCTRO.

- 910 Tak M00€3HO C Ballell CTOPOHBL, HO...

- 4 cam nmomory en. - [pauk kuHyn Ha ['ycraBa TsDKenbIM B3IUIsAA, U, B3sB CeleHy 3a PyKy,
nputTsHyn K cede. OHa ynbiOHynace JIoMUHUKY, U3BUHSSACH, U MepeBena B3N Ha J[>koit Mapu u
Hporika.

- IloroBopum B npyrou pas, MajemMyaseib, - IO0Kaj [eyaMu |ycTaB, IOBEPHYBIMCH K
OCTaJIbHBIM.

- JIxou Mapwu, 3to - Cenena Mopras, - ckazan J[paiik.

- Paga mo3nakomuthcsi ¢ apyrom [paiika. JKanb, KOHEUHO, YTO €My MPUILIOCH MTOHANPACHY
€xarh B Takyro gaib. Kak pa3 ceruac s roBopuiia, 4To y MEHs Bce xopoio. M ¢ nenpramMmu, KoTopbie
s B3sla CO CUETAa PaH4yo, s aOCOJIOTHO HE3aBUCHUMA MarepuaidbHO. Tak 4ToO emMy He O YeM
0ecrioKoUThCs. Bbl MOMOXKeETE B 3TOM €ro yoeauTh?

- S monpobyro, - cmyrminack Cenena. Moxet ObITh, OHa onmbanace, J>xoir Mapu, He moOUT
Hpaitka? Ho 310 BoBCce HE 03Ha4aeT, uTo Jpaiik He TI0OUT CBOIO HEBECTKY.

- [Ipucnymaiics K MHEHUIO IPYrou >KeHImHbI, [paiik, - kuBHyna Ha Ceneny J[>xoit Mapwu. -
CeneHna MHOTO 3HAET O JIIOOBHU.



Jpaiik MesbKOM B3TIIsSIHYJ Ha CelleHy, MOTOM CHOBa nepesen B3risaa Ha Jlxon Mapu.

- Sl npoOyny B Topoje ellle Kakoe-To BpeMs Ha CiIydaid, eciu MoHan0010ch Tede.

- Criacu60 3a 3a00Ty, HO 5 BIIOJIHE CYACTIUBA, - [[xoit Mapu umokHyna J{paiika B mieky. - Pai
OIIeHMJT OBl TBOIO 3a00TYy, HO 5 JIF0OI0 ['ycTaBa M cOOMpParOCh BRIATHU 3a HEro 3aMyx. Tak 4To Tebe
HET cMbiciia octaBaTbesi B HoBom Opneane. paiik mocMmotpen Ha ['ycTasa.

- 1 Bce ke s Oyay nodmuszoctu. Mel moroBopum ¢ To00it motom, J>xoit Mapu. Haenune.

CeneHa He cTana NMpOTUBHUTHCA, U Jpaik BbIBEN ee U3 noma. BeduepHuil BO31yx ObUI UHCT U
npoxianeH. OHa ¢ yIoBOJIBCTBUEM BJIOXHY/IA apOMar MarHOJIMM, paaysCh, YTO HAKOHEL-TO BBIIUIA
Y3 THETYIICH TyXOThl. 3 TE€HM BBICTYNHIJ BBICOKAM ABOPEUKHMN U, MONOWUMS K KAJTUTKE, paCIaxXHYIl
ee. [Ipoxoasa MUMO HEro, OHa 3aMEeTHUIIa, YTO Y HETO HET JIEBOW PYKHU.

OxkazaBumch Ha ynuile. CeneHa 00JIeTYEHHO B3IOXHYIIA.

- Sl paga, 4TO BCE 3aKOHYMIIOCH.

Ona momnbITanack OCBOOOAUTHCA OT AEprKaBILEro ee moa pyky [paiika, HO y Hee HUYEro He
NOJIY4HJIOCh. J{p3iik ObICTPO MOIIEN, MOTAHYB €€ 32 COOOM.

- OroT yeptoB ['ycTaB cunTaer, YTO MOXKET YBECTH C OO0 JHOOYIO )KEHUMHY, KOTOpasi eMy
noHpaButcs. Ho s 31eck A1t Toro, 4ToObI I0Ka3aTh €My 00paTHOE.

- Ecniu 11 X0uens BepHyThes K [[oit Mapu npsimo ceitdac, st 1oobepych 10 1oMa cama.

Ona cHOBa MOMBITAIACH BBICBOOOIUTH PYKY, HO OH MPOCTO HE OOpaTUiI Ha 3TO BHUMAHUSL.

- Ceilyac 1 HMYEro HE MOTY CJIeNlaTh, Pa3Be TOJbKO MOXUTUTH J[>koil Mapu. Ho nymaro, oHa
ToT4Yac nooexxut ooparHo k ['ycraBy. OHa BIoBa, cBOOO/IHAS KEHIIMHA, OH TTocMoTpen Ha Ceneny.
- K ToMy ke He MoTy BeJlb sl OCTaBUTh T€OSI CpeAr HOUH OJIHY.

- Sl npuBbIKJIa K OIMHOYECTBY, MUCTEP J[3JITOH.

- 3oBu MeHs JpaiikoM. [Tonum B kade "/le Monnabe". BeimbeM kode.

- MHe HyXHO JIOMOH, - CKa3ajla OHa, XOTsl €l He XOTEJOCh C HUM paccraBarbcs. - A Teoe,
HaBEPHOE, HE 3aX0YETCS MOKA3bIBATHCS HA JIIOJIAX B OOIIECTBE MOIICHHUIIBL.

- C aTuM pazbepemcst TOTOM.

- Sl He MolIeHHULIA.

- Kade "ne Monawse" Henmameko ot "JIroOOBHBIX cHamoOui". Beap TBOs KBapTupa Hajn
anTexkomn?

- Ha.

On Ob1 ciaumkoM HacToMuuB. HO AEHCTBUTENBHO HAAO BBIIUTH C HUM Kode - 3TO
MPEKPACHAS] BO3MOXXHOCTD BBIIOJHUTH CBOU IJIAH.

- 51 xouy moroBopuTh ¢ To60M 0 J[>koit Mapu. [lorom mpoBoXKy TEOS TOMOM.

- Bpsin i1 1 cMory 4eM-To Tebe MOMOYb.

- ThI - )KeHIMHA, a ceiiyac MHE HY)KEH KEHCKHUH COBET, - YIIBIOHYJICS OH.

- Jlagno, mompo0yro.

Onu mw B OoTKpeITOoe Kade. Ee 3mech Bce 3HaAIM, HO, OBITh MOXET, UX HE Pa3mIsIIT B
ITOJYMPAKE 3a CTOSAIMM HA YJIHUIE CTOJIUKOM.

Hpaiik Ben Ceneny no [ekaryp CTpuT, 4yBCTBys MSTKOE€ NIPUKOCHOBEHHE €€ pyku. Kak Obl
IJIOXO OH O HEW HU Jymal, OHa Bce Oouibllie U OoJblie npuTaruBaia ero. OH penmi ObITh ¢ HEl
rpyOBIM, HO 3TO OBLIO JAJIEKO HE MPOCTO.

[Tocne BcTpeun ¢ [[»xoit Mapu ero He OCTaBUIIM TsKesble MbIcii. OH HE BEPUIT B YECTHOCTh
['ycraBa JlomMmuHuKa, U BOOOIIE ATOT 4YEIOBEK €My He HpaBuicsi. Ho moka oH HUYEro HE MOT
cAenarb Uil CBOeW HeBeCcTKU. Mor iuib x7arb M HabOmomgarb. OH BCIIOMHUJ cjoBa Opara,
npousHeceHnble Jlxoit Mapu. Pait ckazan Obl umeHHo Tak. Uept Bo3bMH, Kak ['ycTaB Bce 3TO



nenaetr?

Onu nmomonwn kK kade "Jle Mounbe". paiik nposen CeneHy MUMO HECKOJIBKHX YEJIOBEK,
NUBIIMX KOPEe M Pa3roBapuBaBIIMX, B caMblil AaJbHUN yroj. OHU ceau 3a MaJeHBKUN KPYIIIbIA
CTOJIMK, U OH 3aKa3ai kode U NUpoxKu. EMy HpaBuiock, kak ToToBAT nupoxku B HoBom Opieane,
a K KpernkoMy Koe oH mpuCTpacTUiICs B TaIbHUX JOPOTrax.

B oxunanuu kode oH npuaBunyics onmxke k CeneHe.

- Yro 11 nymaeus o ['ycraBe JJomuHnke?

- 4 ero coBceM He 3HawW. - OHA cTaja OCTOPOKHO OTKPBIBATH CYMOYKY. - 3JICIIHHAE BpauH
OTHOCSITCS K HEMY C YBA)KCHHUEM.

- 1 umero B Buay He 3T0. Kak ThI gymaenis, oH He nenaer J[xoil Mapu HuUuero rioxoro? -
JIpaiik HUKaK HE MOT OT/ENIaThCs OT MBICIH, 4TO ['ycTaB - 11000BHUK CeneHBbI.

- [Toxoxe, oHa cyacTiauBa.

- A 9TO ThI MOXEIIIb CKa3aTh O TUITHO3E?

- 1 moka MaJio 0 HEM 3Haro, HO 3TO OY€Hb UHTEPECHO. f ciplnana, ero u3y4yaroT Bo OpaHiiuu
1 B AHrnu, a Ha BocToke y:ke JaBHO MPOBOASAT OIIBITHI.

Ona BApyr moHsia, Kak xopomo ei ¢ JIp3ikoM. DT0 ObUIO YAMBUTEIHHO, OCOOCHHO €CJIH
BCIIOMHHUTH, KaK OHU TTO3HAKOMUJIUCH.

- Koneuno, To, yem 3anumarorcs ['yctaB m J[xou Mapu, BIOJHE MOXKET OKa3arbCs
apJIaTaHCTBOM.

- Jymaro, Tak oHOo u ecThb. [louemy J>koit Mapu 3amHTEpecOBaiuM 3TH CEAHCHI? ITO
COBEPLICHHO HA HEE HE MTOX0XKE.

Bpone Ob1 Cenena u npapaa Huuero He 3Haet o ['ycraBe. EMy oueHb XO0T€10Ch, 4TOOBI TaK OHO
Y 0Ka3aJIOCh.

- MoseT ObITh, TBOSI HEBECTKA U BIpaBy BitoOuIach? Torjaa Bce CTAaHOBUTCS HA CBOM MECTA,
- Cenena 3amsjiach, TepeOdsi CyMOUKY. - ITO T€Os1 OECITOKOUT?

- Koneuno, uwept BOo3bMH! S MPOCTO HE MOry NOHSATh, KAK OHA MOIJIA YBIEUYbCS 3TUM
MOIIEHHUKOM I10CJIe TOTO, KaK Jro0uaa Moero opara. Pait Obi1 yecTHEH MM MTapHEM.

VY Cenensl ynano ceple: €€ miaH MOXKET IPOBATUTHCS.

- 3HAYUT, ThI JIOJIKEH O HEH 103a00TUTHCS.

- Koneuno, nowken! - Oduipantka mocTtaBuia nepes; HUMHU AbIMSIIMECs Yalllku ¢ Kode U
TapeJIKy ¢ OOCHIMTaHHBIMU CAXapOM MUPOXKKAMU.

Cenena otxieOHyna kode, 000KriIach U MOCTABUIIA YAIIIKY OOPaTHO.

- Tax 9TO k€ ThI coOOMpaenbes aeaaTh?

- 'maBHoe, uT00651 Jl)011 Mapu Obina cyactiauBa. Uto s gymaro o ['yctase, He Tak BaxxHO. Benpb
s MOTY U onmoOarbcsi. XoTs Bpsija Jiu. S moOyy 3/1ech elie HEMHOT0, MOCTaparoCh MOTOBOPUTH C HE
Y BBISICHUTB, YEM JKE€ OHHM BCE-TaKU 3aHUMAOTCH.

- Heninoxast mbicb. Sl yBepeHa, oHa OyzaeT paja.

- He 3nar0. Eciin oHa 10 y B HETO BTIOPUJIACH, TO HE 3aXOYET U Pa3roBapuBaTh CO MHOM. -
OH B3sJ1 MUPOXKOK U OBICTPO ¢ HUM pacnpaBuiica. CaenaB HECKOJIbKO ITIOTKOB, MOCMOTpPEN Ha
Ceneny u cooOpa3uil, YTO TOBOPUT TOJIBKO O CBOUX MpobieMax. - A 4To TaM O MPOMABIIMX JIFOJISX?

OHa 3a1yM4YHlBO CMOTpEIIA HA CBOIO YAIIIKY.

- Nuorma s momorar0 TeM, KTO HE MOXET IO3BOJIUTH ce0e OOpaTUThCS 3a MOMOIIBI0 K
JOPOTUM JOKTOpPaM.

OH yauBIEHHO MOAHSIT OPOBH.

- VB mocneaHee BpeMs Thl X HE BUjena?



- Her. Ilo kpaitHenn mepe naneko He Bcex. U npyrue toxke nx He Buaenu. "'Ha camom nene
rcue3ajao 0osiee JBYX AIOKUH YEJIOBEK. A MOXKET OBbITh, M OOJIbIle, KTO 3HAeT. S ObUIa B IOITHUIINH,
HO UM HUYEro He M3BECTHO. - OHa KpyTHia B pykKax MUPOKOK. - Cpeau MOMX Apy3ei HET TaKHX,
KTO 3aHUMan Obl XOTh KaKoe-TO IMOJOXKE€HHE B oOlecTBe. Y HHUX HET JEHer, Tak 4To Io-
HACTOSIIEMY O HUX HUKTO HE OECITOKOUTCS.

- Kt0 e onn?

- beiBie conarkl, 0CBOOOXKIEHHBIE paObl, MPOCTUTYTKH, BAOBBL. ECIIM OHU MCUE3HYT, TO ATO
3aMeTST JUIIb Jpyrue 0e310MHbBIE.

- Ts1 gymaenis, oHu Ooru0amn?

To, 0 yeM oHa roBopuiia, HUKaK HE CBA3BIBAJIOCH C 00pa30M MOIICHHUIIBI, ¢ Tol CeleHou,
KOTOpYIO OH BCTpeTui BHavasne. Kakas ke oHa Ha camoM jniene?

- Hapgerock, 4To HET.

- A Korza BOepBbI€ 3aMETHUIIN, YTO KTO-TO Mpomai’?

- Heckonbko Heaens Ha3an.

- OTO CIy4UI0Ch MPUMEPHO B TO K€ BPEMS, KOIJa BIEPBbIC MOSIBUIUCH adUIIM O ceaHcax
runHo3a ['ycrasa?

Cenena 3agymanack, corpeBas JaJoHH O YaIlKy ¢ Kode.

- MHe 3T0 He HpaBuTCsA. BOJIBHO y)X HanmoOMHHAeT HWCYE3HOBEHHE C paHuo J[xou Mapwu.
Jlymaro, 371eCb MOXKET OBITh KaKasi-TO CBA3b.

- ThI xouelb CKa3zarb, YTO K UCUE3HOBEHUIO MOUX Apy3el npudacteH ['ycraB? UTo OH Kak-TO
npuMeHWI TiIHO3? - OHAa HaXMypuJIach. - IT0 OeccMbIciuia. J[a 1 BO3MOXKHO JIU Takoe?

- He 3Hato, Kak OH 3TO AeNaeT U 3a4eM, HO, IO-MOEMY, 3TO €ro PyK JIEJIO.

- IIpocTo oH TeOe He HpaBUTCS, U Thl X0Uelllb BEpHYTh J[xo0il Mapu.

- 5l xody, 4yTOOBI MOEW HEBECTKE OBUIO XOPOIO, U HE JyMaK), YTO ATOT YEJIOBEK MOXKET
MPUHECTHU €1 CYACThE.

- OHa BBRIVIAAUT BIOJHE cyacTiauBou. CelleHe CHOBa MOKa3ayloch, 4To JIpaWik moout Jxoit
Mapu, u 310 paccTpomsio ee Kyaa 00blle, YeM OHA OXKHKJIaja.

- A 4T0, €clIi OH BCE Bpems TMIHOTU3upyeT Jxoi Mapu? - Ip3iik OmIaHYIICS, TOYYBCTBOBAB
3arax ;KUMOJIOCTH, MPUMENIABIIMICA K apOMaTy MUPOKKOB.

- Jlymaro, 3TO HEBO3MOKHO M OE3HPABCTBEHHO.

- besupaBctBenHo! He 3a0biBaii, uto peub uaeT o ['yctaBe Jlomunuke. - [[paiixk mocTtapaics
clepXarb ApocTh. - OH - CUJIbHBIN, )KECTOKUU YEJIOBEK, U, MO-MOEMY, MOWAET Ha BCE, YTOOBI
BBIMAHUTH JICHBI'H Y O€3YTEIIHbBIX BJOB, HEBECT U OTIOB, HE JTyMasi O MOCIEACTBUSIX.

- Ho nokxtopa ot Hero mpocTo B BOCTOPTE.

- A s HeT. U xouy noBHUMaTenbHEE K HEMY npunisaaeTbes. [la u k Tede Toxe. S mo-npexnemy
X04y IPUKPBITh TBOE AEJIO.

CeneHa BCIIBIXHYJIA.

- OT0 moclie Hallero-To pa3roopa? Jla Tel HUUYEero He 3Haeb 0 "JIF0OOBHBIX CHATO0bSIX"!

HaknoHuBIIMCH K HEH, OH B3sJI €€ 32 MOA0OPOIOK. Y Hee mepexBaruiio apixanue. OH XoueT ee
nonesioBatb? OH JOJDKEH OBITh KaK MOXHO OJMXKe K HEH, 4TOObl OHA MOIVIa MOJOXKUTh €My B
KapMaH CBOW MemoueKk. A 3TO 00s3arelbHO HY)KHO CJiejarh, Belb OH CHOBAa CKa3aj, YTO XO4ueT
MPUKPBITH €e Jie0. Bribopa y Hee He ocTaBaniock. [lophIBIIMCE B CyMKe, OHA HaIylajna MaJIeHbKUH
LIEJIKOBBIM MEMIOYEK U CKajla €ro B PYyKeE.

- Tel 3acTaBisienll- My>K4YMH 3a0bIBaThb 000 BCEM, HO s JieJiaTh 3TOro He cobuparoch. - OH
OTKUHYJCA Ha3al. - MeHs Thl HE IPOBEACIIIb.



PazogapoBanHO B30XHYB, OHa OIyCTHJa JIOOOBHOE CHaJo00he oOparHO B cymouky. Kak ke
3TO CEJaTh?

- [lo-moemy, nopa gomou, muctep 31ToH.

- 30Bu MeHs J[paHKoM.

- JIymaro, Jyist 3TOrO Mbl HEJIOCTAaTOUYHO OJTU3KH.

- To1 Xouenb, 4ToObI MbI cOMM3mwIMch? OHa onmycTuiaa pecHuIlbl. Kak naneko MOXXHO 3alTu?
OH cHOBa cyieTKa KOCHYJICS €€ TOA00POAKa U MOHSUII €i TOJIOBY, YTOOBI OHA CMOTpEJIa Ha HETO.

- 5l nyman, 4To HE HpaBIOCH TeOE.

- MHe He HpaBUTCS TO, YTO Thl XOYENlb Pa3pylMTh MoO€ Aeno. - OHa CHOBa BbITAIMIIA U3
CYMOYKH JIF0OOBHOE CHAJI00bE.

Jlpoiik HaKJIOHWJICSA K HEW eme OyMke, MOCMOTpPEB Ha ee TyObl, moToM B miaza. OHa He
clenana MONBITKH OTCTPAHUTHCA WM OCTAaHOBUTH €ro. OH OCTOpOokHO ee monenosai. [lo ee temy
MpoluIa TEIIas BOJHA, MepexBaTuiio JapixaHnue. [logHsB rojgoBy, OH CHOBa MOCMOTpEN €M B IJasa.
Tenepp yxe yausiieHHO. I cHOBa, Teneps yKe HaJ0aro, npumnai Kk ee pry. Eil mokaszanoch, 4to B
Hee BXoAuT ero temino. Ho oHa Bce-Taku OBICTpO OmMycTHIa eMy B KapMaH MeIloyek ¢ TpaBaMu. OH
MCTOJIKOBAJI 3TO JICHCTBUE MO-CBOEMY U MPUKPBHUT €€ MAIICHBKYIO JIaJJOHb CBOEU OOJIBIION PYKOM.
OnHa MmoYyBCTBOBAJIa, KaK CUIILHO OBETCS €T0 CEp/Ile, M TToayMala, 4To €€, HaBepHOoe, TOXE OCIIeHO
cTyuuT. OH pe3KO OTCTPAHUIICS, €TO TJ1a3a CY3UJIHCh.

- JlyMaenib, mocie 3TOro st OCTaBI0 TBOKO alTEKY B TOKOE?

Wtak, 3TOT mouenyi Jyisi HETO pOBHBIM CYETOM HUYero He o3Hayain. Ho noboBHOE cHanoObe
elie He ycrmeso moneicTBoBarh. [lokauaB roJioBOM, cTapasicb HEMHOrO MNPUNUTH B cels, OHa
MOTSHYIAch 3a Kode. OH ee 0OCTaHOBUJI, CXBATHB 3a 3aIlSICThE.

- Co MHOH He NpPOHIYT TBOM >KEeHCKHEe YnoBkH, CeineHa MopraH. I He Kakol-HUOyIb
JEPEBEHCKUN TMPOCTAYOK, KOTOPOTO MOKET OIypauuTh roponackas OapeinmHg. Eciu Th
oOMaHBIBaCIIIb JTIOACH, 5 ¢ 3TUM TTOKOHTY. Eciiit BbI, 00beIMHUBIIMCH C ['ycTaBOM, 00MKaeTe MO0
HEBECTKY, HEMPHUATHOCTU OyIyT y Bac 000UX.

Omna oTnepHysia pyKy 1 BCTajia.

- O0beaunuBIMCH ¢ ['yctaBom Jlomunukom? Jla 3To cMemmo. [Ipoctu, HO 51 X0Tena MOMOYb
BaM ¢ /[>xoit Mapu. Tenepb ocTaBb MeHs. - OHa TOBEPHYIACh, YTOOBI YUTH.

- 51 He oTcTtaHy OT TeOs, TaK YTO Jydllle CMUPUCH. Pe3Ko MOBEpHYBIIMCH, B30OCIICHHAs, OHA
IMOCMOTpENa Ha HETO.

- 1 otkyna B TeOe CTOIBKO BhicCOKOMEpHsA? Thl HE MMEENb MpaBa BMENIMBATHCS HU B MO0
KU3Hb, HU B Mou jena. HaBepnoe, J[>xoit Mapu oT 1eOs u cOexalna, IOTOMY 4YTO Thl BCE€ BpeMms
KOMAaH/I0BaJl.

On Haxmypuiics. B Hem Toxke 3akunana 3j10CTb.

- JI>xoit Mapu - caMocTosITeIbHAs )KEHIIMHA, U BCeTia Takou Obuta. Ee HUKTO He nepxkal.

- He comueBarock. Besikast HopMalibHas )KEHIIMHA CTAHET C TOOOW CaMOCTOSATEIHHOM.

[ToBepHyBIMCh, OHA BhICKOUMJIA M3 Kade. 3a CIMHOW Mmociblanuch ero maru. K cyacTeio,
"JI[ro00BHBIE CHANOOBA" pacmoiarajvuch MNPSIMO YEpe3 YIUILy, a JoMa OHa OyJeT B O€30MacHOCTH.
Omna Opocunach uepes Jlekatyp CTpUT, HO y ABEPU OH JOTHAI €€ U OOHSII.

B Tenu GankoHa OH Kpemko mpukai ee K cebe. OHa YyBCTBOBaJA €ro CUIY, CIbIIANA, KaK
CUJIBbHO Ouiock ero cepame. OHa momnbITajgack BeIpBarhcs. Bece HampacHO. A OH, 3alPOKUHYB e
rOJIOBY, CTaJl BRITACKUBATh LIMUJIBKU U3 My4YKa, B KOTOPBIA OBLIM aKKypaTHO COOpaHbI €€ BOJIOCHI
Ha ruteun ynan kackaj IJIMHHBIX BOJIOC, U OH OCTOPOKHO MTPOBEJ IO HUM PYKOM.

- Tak mpocTO ThI OT MEHS HE YOCXKHUIIIb, - OH IIPUTIA T'yOaMH K €€ PTYy.



Tenepp B ero moruenye ObIO HE TOJIBKO KEIaHWE, HO W 3JI0CTh, CTPEMJICHUE YIPaBIIATh,
BiIacTBoBarh. Kazanoch, ee yyBCTBa HE MMENM JJi1 HETO HUKAKOro 3HaueHusa. OHa yaapuia ero,
CTapasich CAeJIaTh eMy KaKk MOXHO OOJIbHEEe, HO 4epe3 KypTKYy M pyOalllKy OH, MOXOXe, JaXe He
nouyBcTBoBaNl yaapa. [lo kpaiiHeli Mepe, HMKaK He mpopearupoBai. Torga oHa mompoOoBaia
HACTYIIUTh €My Ha HOTY, HO HaTKHYJIach Ha TpyOblii 00TUHOK. OT OTYasHUS OHa yJgapuja €ro B
I'pynb.

OH noAHSI TOJIOBY.

- Tsl Belib TOXE XOUEIIb MEHSI.

- Her! 41...

3akoHuHTH ¢pa3y oH el He Aain. Ero s3bIk okaszajncs y Hee BO PTy, U OHA Cpa3y Ke YMOJIKJIA.
Tak ee elle HUKOrAA HE LEJIOBAIM. Y HEE 3aKPYKWJIach TOJIOBAa, U OHA CXBarujach 3a Jlpauika,
4yTOOBI HE ymacTh. Teno BaApyr ctano 0e3BosibHBIM. Haso ot Hero Gexars, HO OHa HE Moryia 0oJIbiie
COBJIJIaTh CO CBOMMHM YyBCTBaMU. Temnepb OHA MOJHOCTHIO B €0 BIACTH.

3a7porKaB, OHA MPUXKAJIACh K HEMY, jKejasi, YTOObl OH MPOAOJIXKaJI, IIes JaJIbllie, 3aCTaBUII €€
3a0bITh 000 BCcEX YCIOBHOCTAX. OHA yKe XOTesa, 4ToObl OH 1I€JIOBAJI €€ JI0 T€X MOop, MOKa BO BCEM
MUPE HE OCTAHETCSI HUYEr0, KPOME HUX U UX YYBCTBA.

Bnpyr ona wucnyranHo 3amepiia. UyBCTBO, KOTOPO€ OHHM CEWYAC HCIIBITHIBAIA, BBI3BAHO
J000BHBIM cHanoObem! Kak TONBKO OHa CyHylna MeIodek €My B KapMaH, OH cTail Oolee
TpeboBarenbHbIM, Oosiee cTpacTHRIM. Jla 1 OHAa HEe MOIVIa BOT TaK Cpa3y MOYYBCTBOBaTh CTPACTh K
MOYTH HE3HAKOMOMY 4esioBeKy. OHa XoTela Wb YAaIUTh CBOM JIejia, UCTI0JIb3Ys JTI000BHOE 3€ThE,
U Toraja B COOCTBEHHYIO JIOBYIIKY. HO oHa 00 3TOM 3HAeT ¥ OATOMY MOOEIUT.

On ochInal MorenysIMHu €€ JIUI0, HEXHO Kacasch rydamMu ee OpoBeil, KOHUMKA HOCA, TOTOM
CHOBA I'y0, BO30YXKJICHHO IIPOBOJISI pyKaMHU IO €€ CIIUHE.

- A xouy Tebs. Cenena Mopran. Tel gaxe He MOXEIb TPEACTABUTh, KakK 51 Te0s xouy. U Thl
TOKE MEHS XOYClllb.

- 51 - nenu. - Bee 9TO He UTPYIIKK, U OHA MTOYYBCTBOBAJIA Ce€0s1 TIIYIO U HEJIOBKO.

- 51 3Hat0, HO ceffyac HE BpeMsi 00 3TOM MOMHUTb.

- ThI OJKEH MEHS OTIIYCTUTb.

OHa nposkajna W, Kak HM CTapajiaCh, HE MOIJIA YHATh ATy Jpoxb. OHAa U HE aymalia, YTo €€
CHa00bs HACTOJBKO AcicTBeHHBl. Ho HeT. Hukorna.

- [To3BoIH MHE elle pa3 TeOs MOIEI0BaTh.

- Her. OT 3TOro cTaHer TOJIbKO XyXKe.

- Cenena, KJISIHYCh, 51 HE CENIai0 TeOe HUYEro MI0XO0ro.

- Ilomymaii, uyTto Thl Jenaenb. Benp Mbl cTOMM MpsAMO Ha yiauie. - OHa 3akpbUia Iviasa. -
JlanHo, 3axoau.

Broporo npuriamenus eMy He TpeboBaioch. Ho OH He cMor ynepxarbcsi U elie pa3 ObICTpo
roriesioBalt ee B ryonl. OH 3alliel1 B IOM, OHa - CJIEJIOM U 3aKphliia 3a COOOM BEPb.

Bunas cBoro mobeny, oHa ynbiOHynack. Ho TyT ke moHsiia, 4To 3a 3TO €d NMPUIETCS O0POro
3aIUIaTUTh.

['naBa 4

- Ha cerogus Bce, /[k0H.

OTOT mapeHb BBINOIHST JI0OYI0 paboTy Mo JIOMYy - OT ABOPELKOro 10 cTtopoxka. Ha camom
nene ['yctaB JIoMMHUK HE HaHUMall 3TOro OBIBIIETO MOpsiKa, HE JOBepsis padoTaroumm 3a
*anoBaHwe. [IpenaHHOCTh 3a AeHBI'M HE Kynullb. [IoaTOMYy K KaxxaoMy padoTaroiieMy Ha HEro OH
UMeEJ CBOU ITOAXO/I.



JI’)KOH KMBHYJI M 3aKpPbUI JBEPh CITAIIbHUA. YBEPEHHBIN, UTO MO/ IPUCMOTPOM CIIYTH BCE B IOME
Oynet B nopsiake, ['ycraB, HaxXMypuBIIMCh, MOBepHYICcA K J[>koit Mapu. OHa oTcTynuia.

- S... 5l He 3Hana, yTo mpuaeT Opar moero Mmyxa. YectHoe cioBo, st emy He nucana. Y Hukomy
HE FTOBOpHIIA, Ky/la MBI €JIeM. Sl Bce clienala Tak, Kak Thl cka3ai. [loxkanylicra, ['ycTas...

- Hpoiix JIpntoH. OH 4TO-TO BBIHIOXMBAeT O TeOe, - ABUHYJICA Ha Hee ['ycTaB, U OHa CHOBa
nonsATuiack. - 1 0060 MHue.

- IIpoctw, - OHa IPOTSAHYNIA K HEMY PYKHU.

- U TBI XOuenb MeHs yOeIUTh, 4TO Thl 3/1ECh HU MPH YeM?

- Jla, s HE 3HAK0, KaK OH HacC HaIlllell.

- OH MOr Hac HalTH, TOJIBKO €CJIM Thl EMY HaIKCAala.

- Het! Knsinycs, s He nenana 3Toro, - oYTH 3aKpuyaia OHa.

- S5l HUKOMY He TrOBOpHJ, Kyia MBI €IeM, HO OH KakuM-TO oOpa3oM y3Hal. - Ero miaza
CY3WJIHCh. - MOXKET OBbITh, Thl BCE-TAKU CKa3ana 00 3TOM CBOEMY JIFOOOBHUKY?

- JIto6oBHUKY? - OHa OTCTYyNUIIA einie Aablie. - Mbl ¢ JIpaiikoM - 11000BHUKH ?

- J1a. Bbl ObUIM C HUM B IOCTEIIH MOCIIE TOTO, KaK yMep ero Opat? - HacTynan Ha Hee ['ycTas.

- Her! - 31mocTh, cTpax, 6076 - Bce OTPa3uIIOCh y Hee Ha Julle. - Kak Tl Takoe MoT nmogymars?!
51 ke roBopmiia Tebe, 4To ObUTAa B MOCTENN TOJBKO ¢ My»)eM. Mkl ¢ [[patikom Obutn... MbI Kak Opar
u cectpa. dpy3bs.

- Takas kpacaBuna, kak Tei? W Takoit 6orarsipb, kak oH? bynyun Ha panuo oqHu? - Ero miaza
31100HO 3abnectenu. - Ha paHdo, riae MyXunHa MOOJTY HE BUAUT APYrou >keHUmMHBI? Thl yTO,
CUUTACIIb MEHS JTypaKkoM?

- Iloxkanyiicra, Bepb MHE, - MEUIEHHO OTCTyNas OT HEro, OHa Joluia A0 KpoBaru. Jlanbiie
UaTH ObUIO HEeKyga. - ['ycTas, 3To npasaa! A nobumro Teds! Tonbko Tebs!

OH pe3ko ymapui ee 1o IeKe, Tak 4To JepHyaach ronosa. Korma oHa cHOBa moCcMOTpesia Ha
HErOo, JIEBas 1IeKa HavaJla MeJJIEHHO KpacHeTh. OHa nmojHsuia pyky. He nmst 3anmThl, a B MOJIb0e€.

OH ymapun ee no apyroil meke. Terepp oT ynapa B3Aporsyno Bce ee teno. Ho ona cHoBa
nocMoTpena Ha Hero. U3 ee 00bIMX TOTyObIX TJ1a3 MOTEKIIN CIE3bl.

- Mue OoiibHO. - B ee rosioce mo-npexxHemMy He ObLIO HH 3J0CTH, HU MOMNBITKK OMpaBAaThCs.
TonpKO CMYILIEHHE.

- Ter Mens BeiHyAWIa. Sl He xoTen OUTh TeOs, HO HE BBIHOIIY JDKM. MBI HE JOJKHBI
oOMaHbIBaTh Apyr [pyra.

- 5l He 5Ty, moXKamyncTa. ..

OH ymapuil ee B )KUBOT, 1 OHa MEJIEHHO ocelia Ha 1moji. OH OTCTYIUI, OCBOOOXKIasi MECTO ISt
€€ pacILIaCTaBIIETOCA TEJIA.

- Urak, [xoit Mapu, paiik J[31TOH ObLT TBOUM JTFOOOBHUKOM?

Ona He oTBeTusa. OHA JUIIL TIIYOOKO JAblana, cTapasich COBIAATh ¢ OOJIbIO.

Pazpaics pe3kuii 3Byk - ['ycTaB ymapui ee HOCKOM OOTHHKA.

OHa B31pOrHYyIa.

- 1a, eciii ThI TaK TOBOPULIb.

- Her, 3T0O TBI Tak rOBOpHUIIIb.

- [a.

- Hy 1 uto B aTOM 1moxoro? - [locTaBuB ee Ha HOTH, OH yOpaJsl yIaBIlKMe €l Ha JTUIIO BOJIOCHI H,
MSTKO TIOII€JIOBaB B 00€ IIEKH, YIBIOHYICS. - Sl HE MMEI0 HUYEro MPOTHUB TBOMX MPEKHUX
T000BHBIX MoX0xaeHuM, [[>xoir Mapu. S Tonbko He xo4uy, 4TOOBI Thl MeHsI oOMaHbIBana. Ecnu y
TeOs1 Kakue-HUuOyap mpobnembl ¢ Jpaitkom JlpaToHoM, s AoimkeH 00 3ToM 3Harh. M s noimkeH



3HaTh O HEM MOOOJIbIIe, YTOOBI KaK MOXHO CKOpee OTJenarbcsl OT Hero. Tbl MOHMMAaeh MEHS?
Ona mpoBeia sI3IKOM 110 Ty0aM 1 KuBHY/A. HeskHO mo1iennoBaB ee B TyObl, OH CHOBA YABIOHYJICS.

- 1 noikeH 3HaTh 000 BCEM, UTO OBLIIO MEXAY BaMU. bblT OH ¢ TOOOM MSTOK WJIM HACTOWNYUB,
YIIOBJIETBOPSJI OH TOJBKO CBOIO MOXOTh UJIA CTApaJICA JOCTABUTh YIOBOJILCTBUE U TEOE.

Jlxxoit Mapu 3akycuiia ryoy.

- 51 xouy 3HaTh, UTO €My OOJIbIIIE HPABUTCS: TBOU MOIEIYH WIH 00bsITUS. OH 3aHUMAJICS YTUM
¢ TOOOM B mocTeNu WK npsiMo Ha TpaBe? OH XOoTel, YTOObI BaC BUJETU Apyrue?

Ona oTpunarenbHO TOKadaja rojJloBoM. Y Hee B IIa3ax CTOsUM cie3bl. Ho ynuBieHHON OHA He
BBITJISIZICIIA.

- Het? - Ero ma3a Bo30yxaeHHo 3abnectenu. - Het, Tl MHE Bce pacckaxkemnb. Mmu, erne
Jy41le, MOKaXellb, Kak Bbl eyainu 3710 ¢ Jpaiikom I3aToHoM. C 3TUM TEXaCCKUM FOHIIOM.

- Ho, I'yctaB, on yeaet. S mpocnexy 3a 3TuM. MblI Jaxke He OyieM O HEM BCIIOMUHATh.

- Kak »to Bce HeBuHHO. Kak mpekpacHo. Ho koHeuHO, He nenomyapeHHo. - Ha munyry
['ycTaB 3aaymMaiicsi, TOTOM TOJKHYI €€ Ha KpoBarh. - MHE MPUIILIOCh MHOTO padoTaTh, YTOOBI CTATh
TEM, KTO 1 CETOJIHS, U HUKAKOW T€XaCCKUW IOHEI MEHSI HE OCTAHOBUT.

- S mobmro Tebsa. OH a1 MeHs Hu4ero He 3HauuT. Bece B mponwiom. Celdac ajisi MEHS He
CYIIIECTBYET HUKOTO, Kpome TeOs. - OHa ynbpIOHYIaCh, Jieska Ha KPOBaTH, CTapasiCh €ro 3aJ00pUTh. -
Nmu xe ko mue, ['yctaB. [Tokaxu, kKak CUIIBHO Thl MEHS JIFOOHIIIb.

HaxmypuBHmce, OH 10cTai U3 KapMaHa KpucTasl.

- Celiyac Thl MHE MOKaXellb, YeMy TeOsl Haydus 3TOT toHel. Torma s Oymy 3HaTh, Kak ¢ HUM
noctynuTh. [loToMy 4TO, 3Has CTPACTH YEJIOBEKA, 51 3HAKO U CaMOT0 YEJI0BEKA.

[TonoxuB €€ Ha MATKUE MOAYIIKH, OH Hadajl MOKAYMBATh Y HEE MEpe] JUIOM KPUCTAIIIOM.
[onyOble TMa3a pacHmMpUINCh, KaK TOJBKO OH CTAJl MEJUICHHO MPOW3HOCUTH CIIOBA, Mapaliu3ys ee
BOJIIO:

- Jymaii nuimb 0 ToM, 4ToObI YCHYTh. Tebe xo4eTcs crarb, O4eHb XOUETCs cnarb. bl ycTana.
TBOM BEKM CTAHOBSTCS TSKEIBIMU, OYEHD TSLKEIBIMU. Telo TshkeneeT. Tol xouelb cnark. BoT Tak.
JlyMaii TOJIbKO O TOM, YTOOBI YCHYTh. TOJBKO YCHYTD.

Ona mMoprayna. B miazax nmosiBuioch 0€CoKOWCTBO, M OHA MOIMbITalach NOAHATHCA. OH CHOBa
TOJIKHYJI €€ Ha MOAYIIKH:

- Paccnabnces, [>xoit Mapu. [loBepbest MHE, ToBephes cBoel Jito0BU. M oHa pacciabunack. OH
MPOJIOJKAJl PACKauYnBaTh KPUCTAILIL.

- Bot Tak. Cnin. TBou Beku ctanu TspkelnbiMu. PaccnaObes. Thl 4yBCTBYyeIlh YMUPOTBOPEHHUE,
COHJIMBOCTB. Tebe xouercs crarh, - MOHOTOHHO roBOprJI OH. OHa MEJIJIEHHO 3aKphlia ria3a.

On nmomynan ei mynbc. B HopMme. OHa ObuTa OYEHB XOPOIIA, HO HEJb3s MO3BOJIMTh €M CTaTh
yrpo3oii it Hero. OH mpoIren Yepe3 MHOToe, UTOOBI cTaTh TeM, KeM ObLI ceilyac, u He JIONMyCTHT,
4yTOOBI Kakas-TO TeXacCKas CBOJIOYb BCTaja y Hero Ha myTtu. OH yOpajd KpUCTalI U BHOBb
MTOBEPHYJICS K HEW.

- Teneps, Ixon Mapu, BcnomHM 0 cTtpactd. O NEpBBIX AHAX C TBOUM MYyxkeM. [lomymai o
HACJIAXJICHUH CIIUBIIMXCS TEJL.

OHa 3acToHasa 1, BIEMUBIIKCH MMaJbLaMH B IIPOCTHIHIO, 3aMOTaJIa TOJIOBOM.

- Tlomymait 060 mue, [Ixoit Mapu. O dyemnoBeke, mpuHocsEeM Tebe cuacTtbe ceromusa. O
YEJIOBEKE, BBINOJHAIOIIEM KaxkJoe TBoe xenaHue. Ilogmyman o »xemanum [lpsiika Jlpiatona, o
CTpPacTH TBOETO Myxa. Bce MbI - OIMH U TOT K€ YEIOBEK.

Ee masa OTKpBUIMCH, COCKHM CTAlld YNPYIUMU OT KE€JaHUs, YyBCTBEHHbIE T'yObl MEJUICHHO
pacIuIbUIUCh B yibIOKe. OHa MeJUIeHHO TO/HsUIa ¢Jialyro pyKy U ToMaHuja ero k ceode. Jla, /[>xoi



Mapu J[31TOH ObUTA TOM CaMOM XKEHIIMHOW, KOTOpasi eMy HykHa. OH HEXKHO MPOBEI PYKOMl MO ee
JWIY ¥ BBITAIMI 3aKOJIKA M3 JUIMHHBIX BOJIOC. 3allyCTUB PYKY B BOJIOCHL, OH AEPHYI 3a JIOKOH,
00JIbI0 HATIOMHUB, YTO OHA IIEJIMKOM B €T0 BJIACTH - €€ KU3Hb, €€ CTPACTh, €€ PAJIOCTH U MeUau.

Ceituac OH €€ XOTeJ, HO IO OMBITY 3HAJI, YTO CKOPO OHA eMy HajoecT. Korga aTo mpousoner,
OH TMO-IpeXHEMY OylleT IMOJb30BaThCsl €€ TEJIOM, HO MOJIy4aTh OT 3TOTO BCE MEHBIIE PaJIOCTH U
YIIOBOJILCTBUS. ITO OBLIO TPYAHO MPEACTABUTH, HO OH 3HAJ, UTO OyJeT UMEHHO TaK.

Ho ceityac cymecTBOBain TOJIBKO BIACTh U kejlaHue. OH B3sU1 JIEXKAILEE y TMOCTENN JIJIMHHOE
Iepo W MPOBEI MO €€ Iee W MO TPYAW, BUISA, KaK pearupyeT Ha 3TO Teso. OHO BBITHYIOCH,
MOAABIINCH BIIEPE, HA KOXKE BBICTYIIUII HEXHBIM pyMsHel. [l[ekoya ee KoKy, OH 4yBCTBOBaJ CBOIO
BJIACTh, MOJHBIA KOHTPOJIb HAJI HEW WU OIIYyIlAajl, KaK 3Ta BIACTh ycuianuBaeTcs. Jla, OH clenaer Tak,
yTOOBI OHA €ro 3axoTenia. bymeT 3To Mo ee Bojie WM IPOTHUB, HE MMeeT 3HadeHus. OHa Oyner
MIPUHAJICKATh €MY, IIOKA OH 3TOT0 XOYET.

OH CHOBa MOCMOTPEJ HA €€ OKPYDIYIO CKPBITYIO ONEXKIOW Ipydb. 3HAsl, YTO HAXOAUTCS MO
IJIaTheM, OH UTpajl ¢ Hel, ¢ co0oil, BO3Oyxas ee u ceds. [loToM cTanm MeyIeHHO pacCTeruBarh ei
OrocTranbTep.

C Helt ObUIO JIETKO ¢ camoro Hadaja. OHa XOpollo MojiaBaiach TMIHO3Y - OTYACTH OT CBOETO
OIMHOYECTBA, HO B OCHOBHOM OJiarofapsi €ro mpuBJIEKaTeIbHOCTH U, KOHEYHO K€, CIIOCOOHOCTH K
TUITHO3Y.

Koneuno, oHa He ObUTa eMy Tak yxx HeoOxomuma. Ckopee, oHa Harpaaa. OH yaUBUIICS, HAWIA
B ukoM Texace Takyro MpeIeCTHYIO YyBCTBEHHYIO JKEHIIMHY. Y JUIIM)KaHCa CJIOMajach OCh, KOTa
OH €Xajl Ha Mo0epekbe U3 MbUILHOIO TOpO/IKa, HOCAIIETO Ha3BaHue CUCTEpPNII, U UM IPHUILIOCH
OCTaHOBUTHKCA. J[>k0i1 Mapu Bo3Bpamajiach JOMOW C MOKyNKaMH. Torna OHU U TO3HAKOMMIJIMCh. OH
pacckasan €d O TMIIHO3€, U OHa MojJaiach €ro yapam. Texac OH MOKUJAN KpaWHE JOBOJIbHBIN,
yBO3s1 ¢ co0oit J[xoit Mapu BMecTe ¢ JieHbraMu paHyo.

OH mOXKHHAJ TJI0/BI TOAT0M padoThl, HavaBieiics eme Bo @pannuu. Ckopo oH 3abepeT Jxoit
Mapu Ha ocTpoB MapTuHmKa, rie y HEro IUIAHTAIMM CAXapHOro TpocTHUkKA. [IpuHamnexammii
®paHuu ocTpoB Ha rore baraMoB kak HeNb3s JIydile MOIXOIWUI €My, UMEIOIIEMY (PpaHITy3CcCKoe
MOJTAaHCTBO. MOXET OBbITh, CO BPEMEHEM OCTPOB IIEJTUKOM CTAHET €ro COOCTBEHHOCTHIO, U TOI/IA
OH 3a)XUBET TaM Kopojem. Tam, Ha Maprtunuke, [[xom Mapu npujercs Aenarb BCE, 4TO OH
3aX0ueT, TaM OHa Y)K€ He CMOXKET HUKya cOexarb. M Toraa, BO3BMOXXHO, OH MEJJICHHO BBIBEJIET €€
13 TUITHO3a U MOCMOTPUT, KaKk OHa Oy/IeT pearupoBaTh Ha TO MOJIOKEHHUE, B KOTOPOM OKa3aiach.

Ho Bce 3to Oyaer motom. Ceityac Jyisi HErO caMO€ BaXKHOE - HACIAJUTHCS KAPKUM TEJIOM
JI>xoit Mapu. Torma o y3HaeT Oodblie u o [peiike [[anrone. OH mpolienTal eie HECKOJIBKO CIOB,
U OHa, BOWJS elle mIy0ke B TpaHC, 3aCTOHAB, MOTAHYJIACh K HeMY. Ee Teno crano eme ropsuee.
[Ipenna3zHavyanace Jin €€ CTpACTh MEPTBOMY MYXY, KOTOPOTO OHA JI0 CHX MOp Jo0uiIa, uin Opary
€€ MyXKa, HE UMeJIO JIJIsl HETO 3HAYECHUS.

OH cHsT ¢ Hee OICTraJikTep U CTAHYJ COPOYKy, oOHaxas rpyab. llotep ympyrue cocku,
CHayaja OCTOPOXKHO, NMOTOM BCE€ CUJIbHEE U CHUJIbHEE, IMOKa OHAa HEe MoMopumiiack ot 6oiu. OH
ynbIOHYyNCcs. Ee peakiysi HalloMHUJIA O €ro BJIACTH, O TOM, KaK OH ATY BIaCTh MOJYUYHUJI.

OH wu3yyan runHOTH3M U TUnHO3 B Ilapwxke, B mkone Yapkora. OH ObUT 3HAKOM C
pe3ylbTaraMy OIBITOB U JIPYrUX TMIMHOTU3EpOB. [IpnodpeTas 1ocTaroyHO 3HAHWM, OH MOHSJI, YTO
HE XOYeT HU MOMOTraTh JPYTUM, YeM OOBIYHO 3aHMMAaJIOCh OOJBIIMHCTBO Bpadeil, HU MPOAOIKATh
MPOBOJIUTh OMBITBl WJIM MHUCAarb CTaTbM, JOKa3blBasi 3HAYEHUE U JICUCTBEHHOCTh THITHO3a
CKENTUYECKU HACTPOCHHBIM MEJIUKAM.

['ycTaB ObUT BBIXO/IIEM M3 O0€IHEBINICH apUCTOKPATUUYECKON CEMbU W XOTEJ JICHET, BIACTH U



TaKoOW ’KM3HH, KaKyl0 €r0 CEeMbs MOTepsia nociie peBoaonun. OH OBICTPO MOHSJ, YTO THIIHO3 EMY
noMoxkeT. Ho Tonbko He BO @paHumu u He B AHDIMM. B Amepuke mnydinie OTHOCHUIIUCH K
oJ0OHBIM HOBILECTBAaM, U OH OTHpaBuiics K ee Oeperam. IIpoBons ceaHcbl, nepeesxas U3 ropoja B
ropoji, OH BCKOpE MpruoOpes AeHbI'M U U3BECTHOCTD.

B Hosom Opiieane Obuta ero mnocieaHsisi ocTaHoBKa. [IpoBeass 3a HECKOJIBKO HeNEb
MHOK€CTBO IPYNIOBBIX U UHANBUIYATbHBIX CEAHCOB, EMY YIAJIOCh YOEAUTh MECTHBIX MEUKOB, YTO
TMITHO3 MOXHO MCIIOJIB30BaTh Hapsiay ¢ xiaopodopmom. A ceancwl ¢ ydactueM Jlxoit Mapu B
KauyecTBE MeJIMyMa U IipaBaa ObUIM OYEHb NHTEPECHHBIL.

Tak unu uHaye, CKOpo OH yeAeT Ha MapTUHUKY, B3B ¢ coOoi J[>xoit Mapu. YiIbIOHYBIIHCE,
OH CHOBA IOCMOTpEJl Ha €€ TEJO, NPOIICNTAI €HIe HECKOJIBKO CJIOB, U OHa BIAPYI Hayajnga €ro
pa3neBarb. Ee oxBaruna cTpacTh, 1 HUYEro OOJiblIe g HEe HE cylecTBOBaso. OH MO3BOJIMI el
ce0s1 pa3feTh, YIMBHUBIIMCH, Kak OBICTPO BO3HUKIJIO B HeW jkemaHue. bbuia nu oHa Takoil ke
cTpacTHOM ¢ MmyxeM uin Jpaiikom [Isntonom? Bpsa nu. [I>xoit Mapu Oblia oueHb BHYyIIaeMa, HO
HaJl HEel JOBJIENM 3alpeThl, O3TOMY YBUAETh €€ HACTOSIIYyI0 CTPacTh MOKHO OBUIO, TOJIBKO
BO3/ICHCTBYs HA €€ MMOJACO3HAHUE.

Ceituac 11 Hee HE CYIIECTBOBAJIO HUYETO, KPOME CTPACTH, U HE ObLIO KEHIIMHBI, KOTOpas
MomiIa Obl ¢ HeMl cpaBHUTHCS. OHA MPUTSIHYIA €r0 K cede, HeXKHO MPOBEAs PyKaMH IO €ro CIUHE.
BHe3anHo OH TOXe ee 3aX0Tel M YK€ He MOT CIIEp)KMBaTh CBOETO jkKellaHus. 3aJpaB pyOallky, OH
pa3nBuHyn el Horu. OH HE MO3BOJIST €l HOCUTH INTAaHUIIEK, U TETNEph €ro OXBaTuiia Oe3ymHas
CTpacCTh.

seskesk

Yeaplmas TOHOCUBILIMECS CBEPXY M3 OTKPBITOrO OKHA CTOHBI U B310oxu Jlxou Mapu, J[:xoH
ITOJHSUI TOJIOBY U CTUCHYJ KyJsaku. [lepen HUM BO3HUKIIA KapTUHA:

Jlxoit Mapu niog 3Tum (hpaHIry30M, U OH OBJIAJIEBAET €€ TEIOM.

OT 5TOi MBICTIM €My CTAaHOBWJIOCH TIox0. Ho OH He ciemanm HUYEro, 4roObl OCTAHOBUTH
npoucxondilee B cranbhe. [[»oit Mapu - He ero, 1 HUKOrAa He OyIeT eMy MpuHaAIexarb. [[>KoH
HE MOT HU 3alMTUTH €€, HU Jake 4eM-HUOyap nmoMoub. OH HE MOT Jake K HEeM MPUKOCHYThCH,
IIOTOMY YTO OH - 4eJioBeK ['ycraBa /JoOMUHMKA U TEIOM, U TYLIOMN.

Jlxoit Mapu Obuia cuactiuBa. Ho TOJIbkO MOTOMY, UTO HE 3Haja, Kakoe Oyayllee KIET ee.
JIKOH ke BHUJEN UX paHblle, )KEHIMH, KOTOpbIX ['ycTaB mpeBpamian B paOblHb, UCIIOJIB3YSl CBOM
KpUCTaJlI, CBOE odapoBaHue U Tejao. OHM BIIOOISUIMCH B HETO, HO (DpaHIly3 HE JIHOOMI HUKOTO H
HUKOMY HE JIaBaJl HUKaKuX o0elanuii. B KoHIle KOHIIOB OH Bcerja ux opocai.

JI>kOHa 3TO HE Kacajoch, HO OH BUJEN, YyTO ['yCTaB MOXKET 3aMoay4uTh JIFOOYIO KEHIMHY U
OBITH C HEH J10 TeX MOp, IOKa OHA EMY HE HaJI0ECT.

[Tpexne 3To />koHa He BosHOBaO. Ho Te »KeHImMHBI He ObUTH MoXoku Ha [[»xoii Mapu. Onu
caMu ObUIM He 0e3 Tpexa, He CTpaJiaji, MOTePsB JIIOOMMOTo MyXa, U He ObulM OMUHOKH. Y J[>KOoHa
Toxe ObU10 xKecTokoe cepate. Ho [Ixoit Mapu 3amaina emy B Aylily, 4ero He ObUIO C HUM YK€ OYEHb
JaBHO, & MOKET OBITh, J1a’Ke HUKOT/IA.

JIro00Bb OblIa €My He HYXHa, U OH He mo0un [[xoit Mapu. Ho 4yBcTBOBa OTBETCTBEHHOCTb,
BOJIHOBAJICS 32 HEe. JTO ObUIO MPENaresbCTBOM IO OTHOIIEHWIO K ['ycraBy. J[>KOH paspbiBajcs
MEXIy HUMH, HO MOKa HU4Yero He aenai. Jlxon Mapu cuactiuBa, ['yctaB nmoBoseH. Ot HeEro
TpeOOBaNIOCH JHIIL UX OXPaHATh, @ 3TO OH YMeEJI JeJIaTh XOPOLIO.

Kpuxku [[>xoit Mapu cranu rpomue, U J[PKOH OTOLIEN MONAJIBILE, CTApPasCh AymMarb O YEM-
HuOynp apyrom. C Jlpaiikom [[pntoHoMm Moryt ObITh TipoOsiembl. Jla u ¢ Cenenoit MopraH,
HAaBEPHOE, TOXKE. A 3TOro NONMYCTUTh HENb3s. [0 oTmibITMs Ha MapTHHMKY OCTaBaJlOCh COBCEM



HEMHOTO BpPEMEHHM, W HHUYTO HE JOJDKHO COpBarh IUlaHbl. Ha ocTpoBe Bce OyaeTr Xopoilo.
Bo3smosxkno, I'yctaB maxe sxenutcs Ha J[koit Mapu u crnenmaer ee XO3sSHKOW CBOETro OCOOHsIKA.
Torna JIxxoH cMoOkeT Tr000BaThCs €10 Beeraa. OT 3TOi MBICIH €My CAeIanoch TPYCTHO.

Korma cronsl kot Mapu cramm ocoOeHHO TpoMkumHu, y J>koHa Ha 50y MOSBUIACH
HCTIIapuHa, U OH Y€ HE€ MOI HE€ AymMarb O TOM, KaKk 3TO MPEKPACHO - BIAJETh €. Emy, a He
['ycraBy. OH 00pyran ce0s 3a KpaMOJIbHBIE MBICIIH.

['ycTaB cmac eMy *H3Hb. JTO CIYYUJIOCh B AHIVIMH, B TABEPHE JINBEPITYIbCKUX JTOKOB. BCro
KW3Hb, HANUBAasChb, OH YCTpawBaJl CKaHAaibl. ['ycTaB €My IOMOT: OZHOIO YJIOXKWJI IyJIeu, a
ocTayibHBIC pa30exanuch. JPKoH ObUT HE aypak, W Korma ['ycTaB Mpeyioxuil emy pabdoTy, OH,
KOHEYHO K€, COIVIACUJICS.

OH o00s3an ['ycTaBy sku3nbto. M naxe 60abImM.

CBoe OH oTmiaBaj, NOTEPSJ JEBYIO PYKy, a MOTOM 4YyThb HE PACCTAICS C KU3HBKO OT
HavaBIIecs Tuxopajaku. B nokax paboTsl st Hero He Obu10. OH MBITAJICS J0Ka3aTh, YTO BCE €IIe
YEJI0BEK, HO BCKOpE IOHSUL: €EMY CYXICHO I0XKMBArb OCTAaTOK JHEN C MPOTSHYTOW PYKOW WIIH, B
Jy4IieM cliydae, nmepeOuBarbesl cliydailHbIMU 3apaboTkamu. He Mor oH BepHYThCS U JIOMOW B
JleHmapk u npenactarb nepej poACTBEHHUKAMU U APY3bsIMU KaJEKOH, KOTOPOro OyayT HOCTOSIHHO
KaJleTh, CTaTh UM 00Y30ii.

N oH k15171 CBOIO TOPJIBIHIO.

Tenepy on Obu1 yenoBekoM ['yctaBa Jlomunuka. PerynspHo e, crai Ha YUCTHIX MPOCTHIHSX.
Y Hero ObUTM JEHBI'M, HAa KOTOPBIC, KOTAA 3aXOYETCS, OH MOT BBIIUTh WM HAWTH >KEHIIMHY.
EnuHcTBEHHOE, UTO OT HEro TpebOBaIOCh, - OXpaHATh ¢paniy3a. C 3Toi pabOTOM OH CIPABIISIICS
XOpOoIO U ObLT CHOKOEH J0 TexX mop, noka I'ycraB He mpuse3 B Hosbiit Oprnean kot Mapu. C
ATOro MoMeHTa J[»KOH He Haxou cede MecTa.

Teneps OH Ayman Juib O TOM, Kak Obl ee OOHATH. Jla HE TOJNBKO OOHSTH, YEPT BO3bMU!
Jymars 00 3TOM OBUIO MIYMHO, JIa’K€ OMACHO, HO 3TO HE UMeJIO 3HaueHUsA. OH OTYasIHHO €€ XOTed,
JAYKE€ HE MOI03PEBAJ PAHBIIE, UTO €TO MOXKET OXBATUTh TAKasl CTPACTh.

A TycraB Temepb Kazajicsi €My JHIIb.., OOOJBCTUTENIEM, Pa3pPYIIMTENIEM, IMOKUpPATEIEM
YKEHILMH.

Hanex el He Obu10. J[k0i1 Mapu HHUKOTAA HE COIIACUTCA OBITh C KaJeKOM, C 4eJIOBEKOM, He
CIIOCOOHBIM O0€eCeYuTh €l TOT YPOBEHb >KM3HHU, KOTOpbIM OHa 3aciyxkuBaia. C 4eloBEKOM,
KOTOPBIA HE MOKET J1aKE MPUBECTHU €€ B CBOU JIOM, TJI€ U TaK TECHO OT MHOTOYUCIICHHOW POJIHH.

Ja. Menbiue Bcero Ha cete J[>koii Mapu Obu1 HyXeH ogHOpykui J[xoH J[31iH.

I'maBa 5

- Ota pabora TpebyeT TOUHOCTH, npasna? Po3a kpolmia BHICYIIEHHBIC JTUCThS B MAJICHBKHUI
KpacHBIA OapXaTHBIM MEIIOYeK.

- Jla!

CeneHa MeJIbKOM B3IJIsIHYJIA Ha pabOYuid CTOJI.

Bce ee BHMMaHue ObUIO MPUKOBAHO K BXOAHOM ABEpH. - Thl JOrOBOpPHIIACH TTOMTH Ha JIEHY C
HeBecTkou Jlpaiika Jlanrona, uyToObl cmactu Ham OuszHec? - Posza nmobaBuiia B MeIoyek
M3MeEJIbUCHHBIN (hranKkoBbld KOpeHb. Ee rojioc 3Bydan CKeNTUYECKH.

- Ipa¥K MONPOCHI MEHS TIOMOYb.

- CeneHa, Thl HUYETO O HUX HE 3Haelb. S aymMalna, Thl IPOCTO XOYEllb MPOBEPUTH HA HEM
T1000BHOE CHAZI00BE, @ TOTOM ero 3a0yneib. Eciu ThI Blie3elb B 3Ty HCTOPHUIO, TO 3a0BITh €ro Tehe
OyaeT HempocTo.

- Hukyna s He Bnesy.



Poza noansina Ha Ceneny riasa.

- Ho Benws ThI cobupaenines Ha neny ¢ J[xoit Mapu IpaTon?

Cenena BcTalia, Mpouuia o KOMHATE U CHOBAa MOBEpHYJach k Po3se.

- JIpaiik 6ecniokomics o J[>koit Mapu 1 monpocuit MeHs OroOBOpUTH ¢ Hell. Tak uto...

- OHn ee moouT?

- He 3Haro.

- OTO BaXHO.

- S moanmaro. - CesleHa paccesHHO HamarbiBajia Ha MaJel JJIMHHYIO 3€JIEHYI0 JIEHTY. - U Bce
Ke, 4eM OoJibllie s y3Hato o mponuioM Jlpaiika, Tem mydire. J[>koit Mapu MoOXeT paccka3arb MHE
HaMHOTO O0JbIle, ueM cam Jpaiik. Beab mponcxoauT 4To-TO CTpaHHOE.

- Uto ThI ©MeeNb B BUY?

- Bo-niepBbIx, [paiik ckazan, uto ['ycraB He gaet eMy BCcTpeTuthes ¢ [[xxoit Mapu. Bo-BTopbIX,
nouemMy Bapyr ['yctaB JloMuHUK crenan ee cBoer accucTeHTko? M B-TpeThux, mouemy paik Tak
0 Hell beciokouTcs?

- [TonstHo. TBOE HOOpPOE cepale HECTIOKOMHO, TeOe Ka)KeTcsl, YTO OHa momnana B Oefy.

- Twl cunTaenin, 1 BMENMBAIOCh HE B CBOE JIe710? Po3a mokavasa roioBoil ¥ yiabIOHYIIACK.

- Tel BCcrO xu3Hb momoraenb JgwoaaM, CeneHa. M1 s coMHEBaroCh, 4TO Thl BOT TakK Cpasy
OCTaHOBUIIIbCS.

- S nmeiicTBuTEIBLHO OecCIOKOIOCH 3a Hee. - Cenena Opocuiia JIeHTY. - Thl BeJlb HE XoAuiIa Ha
CEaHc.

- Tol nymaens, JIOMUHUK O4€HB CLTOCOOHBIN ?

- Her, HO moxoxke, OH - Heminoxol rumHoTH3ep. (CeaHC Ke IMO-MOEMY - CILIOIHAS
MUcCTU(DUKAUS. J[pIiiK TOXKE TaK CUMTAET.

- Ho, cxomuB Ha 3TOT ceaHc, Thl HU HA 1A HE MPOJABUHYJIACH B IOMCKAX HAIMX JAPY3€i?

- Her. Ho s He cmaroce.

- 5l Toxke. I Ansdpen paccipaimBaeT KOro TOJIBKO MOKHO.

- [TocnenHee BpeMsi OH 4UTO-TO HE 3aXOJUT K HaM, - HEpEIMTENbHO cka3ana CeneHa.

- 5l cka3zana, 4To emy opa OT MEHS OTBBIKATb.

- Po3a...

- Huuero He nonenaents. OH ye3kaeT Ha ceBep. S octatoch 31eck. Co BpemeHeM s 3a0yy o
HEM.

- Eciu emoxeln.

Po3a nocMoTpesna Ha Hee U, CHKaB I'yObl, TOTAHYJIACh 3@ CKJISTHKOU ¢ 4aOperioMm.

- Sl cunpHas U caenaro BCE KaK HYXKHO.

CeneHna xoTena OTBETUTh, HO B ’TOT MOMEHT HaJl IBEPBIO 3BIKHYJ OPOH30BbIN KOJOKOIbYHK.

Ha nopore crosina JIoit Mapu. Ha Heit Ob110 pocToe po30BO€ I1J1aThe, HUKAKOW KOCMETUKHU
Ha juie. CBeTJble BOJIOCHI 3a0paHbl B MYUOK.

B nepBeiii MmomeHT CeneHa pactepsiiach, HE y3HaB HeBecTKy Jlpaiika. 3arem mocnemmiia K
HEU.

- 4 Tak pama, 4ro THl cmomia npunth, ko Mapu. Ilpoxomm, moxamyicra. A xouy
MPEJICTaBUTh T€OE CBOIO MOJIPYry U MTOMOIIHUILY.

Boiins B "JIro6oBHBIE cHam00b", [[)koit Mapu orsiienacs.

- Kak y Bac xopomo.

- Cnacu6o.

Cenena nogena ee B IyOb noMeteHus. Po3a nmomHsuiack, Jiepka B pyKe KpacHbIA OapXaTHBIM



MENIOYEK.

- 3npaBctByid. S - Po3za Jlyoonu. /[>xoit Mapu ynbiOHymach:

- Panma ¢ To60l mo3HakoMuThes. - OHa B3IIsSHY/IA HA 3aBAJICHHBIA BCSKOW BCIYMHOM CTOJI. -
371€ech Bl TOTOBUTE CBOU CMECHU?

- [la. - Po3a cHOBa cena.

- Eciin BBI ceruac 3aHThL, MOKHO IIOMTH Ha JICHY I103XK€, - HEYBEPEHHO cKa3ana /[>xkou Mapu.

- Her, Takoii Oecniopsaok 31ech y Hac Bcerga. - CejieHa NPUIIONHsUIa royOOH aTjacHBIM
MEIIIOYEK U BHOBb OpOCHJIa €ro Ha CTOJI.

- HaBepHoe, uToObI paboTaTh B alT€Ke, HY>)KHO OY€Hb MHOT'O€ 3HAaTh U YMETh, cKa3zana J[xoil
Mapu, ctapasce, o-BUIUMOMY, 3aBOEBATH PACHONOKEHUE PO3BIL.

- Jla, aT0o BepHO, - Po3a mpooikana paboTars.

- JlagHO, IOMIEM, TTOXKAITYH.

Cenena HampaBuiiach kK Beixony. OHa xopoio 3Hana Po3y, 3Haia, 4To OHA HUKOMY HE BEPHT.
Oco0eHHO HE3HAKOMBIM.

- Paga Obuta mo3Hakomuthes. - J»xoir Mapu eme pa3 ynbiOHynack Po3e u Bbluia BCies 3a
Cenenoi.

Ha ymuue Cenena nmoBepHyIia HaJIeBoO.

- -Ilotinem B "Trroarero".

- Sl tTam Huxorma He ObUTa, HO CIBIIAJA, 3TO XOpPOIMH pecTopaH. - OHU UUIM MHUMO
MarasuHoB, 1 J[>koil Mapu ¢ HHTEpPECOM pas3riiAiblBajia BUTPUHBIL - Sl MOYTH HE BBIXOXKY HA YIHILY.

- Oto Hukynaa He rogutcs. B HoBom Opreane ecTh 4TO MOCMOTPETb.

- A1 3Har0, HO I'ycTaB OYEHb PEBHUB.

- HaBepHoe, Kak U Bce MY)XUYUHBI.

- Ha. On tak pazoznuics u3z-3a JIpsuka.

- Ho Tb1 ero ycniokoumna? Jlxoi Mapu Haxmypuiachk.

- B HEKOTOpPOU CTENIECHM.

- Bce 310 He oueHb xopomo. - OHU MEepEeNUid YUY U OCTAaHOBUIIUCH. - A BOT U "Throareio".
[Tonwwu. Ecnu 3axo4elniib, JOPACCKAXKEIIb MHE TaM.

OHU OKa3aJMCh B JJIMHHOM Y3KOM 3ajie. BJ10oJIb CTeH CTOSUIM KBaJpaTHbIe, HAKPBIThIE OEJIbIMU
CKarepTsIMU CTOJMKHU. Bbulo emie paHo, U moceTuteneil Obui0 HemHoro. IlosBuiics oduiuanT B
YepHBIX OproKax u 0eoil HakpaxMaJeHHOU pyOallike.

- Bonjour, manemyasens CeneHa. - OH NPUIIIACKI HX )KECTOM 32 CTOJUK Y OKHa.

- Mereci.

Ycanus ux, oH ymen. /[>xoit Mapu Obuta ynusieHa, a CeseHa paccMmesiach.

- He Bommyiics, 31ech He 3aka3piBatloT. OHU MOAAIOT TOJBKO OMWH HAO0Op OO, HO KaXKIIbIi
J€Hb YTO-HUOY/Ib HOBOE.

Jlxoit Mapu 3akonebanach.

- A 4TO, eciii eja MHE HE TIOHPABUTCSA?

- [lonpaBurcs. Moxenis MHe OBEpUTh. Pa3zBe Thl HE THOOUIIL TPUKITIOYEHUS?

Tenepp paccmesinace u Jxou Mapu.

- [IpuknrodyeHus 3a CTOJIOM. ITO MHE HPABUTCS.

- K Tomy ke 31ech TOBOPST mO-PpaHIly3CKH, a MO-(PpaHIly3cCKU, MHE KaKeTCs, Thl HE
ITOHUMACIllb.

- Her, He nonumaro. B Texace Mbl 4acTO rOBOPHIIM MO-UCIIAHCKHU, - OHA IMOXKAJIA IUIEYAMU. -
Jlaxxe He 3Haro, uTO OBl BHIIUIO, HAYHU 5 3aKa3bIBaTh OJ1t01a MO-(PaHIy3CKH.



- A B "Burokc Kade" MHOTHE TOBOPST MO-UCITAHCKH.

- Jla, g 3amMeTnia, HO 3TO HE TOT IUAJIEKT, HA KOTOPOM TOBOpAT B Texace.

- Ho, naBepHoe, He ocobeHHO oTimnuaeTcs. Ux pasroBop mpepsan oduimant. [loctaBus
OOKaJbl ¢ BOJOW, OH YIIIEJ, HO TYT € MOSBUJICS CHOBA C TapEIKaMU, MOJHBIMU JIBIMSIIErOCs CyIa,
U TJIETEHBIM OJIFOJIOM C TOPSIYUM XJIeO0M.

- Tenepp Thl, HaBEpHOE, MOHUMAENIb, IMOYEMY 51 HACTO CIOJA 3ax0XKy, - ckazana CelneHa,
ommyckas JIOXKY B cyn. Ho ceiluac eil XoTeaoch HE CTOJIBKO €CTh, CKOJBKO MOOOJBIIE Y3HATH O
kot Mapu, ['ycraBe u [poiike.

- BocxuturenbHo! - yIMBICHHO M JOBOJBHO cKasaina J[>koit Mapwu, mornpo6oBaB cyir. - O4ueHb
HeoObryHO. UTO 9TO Takoe?

- Uepenaxossiii cyn. J[>koit Mapu ynpIOHYIaCh.

- Xopo1io, 4TO 3/1€Ch HE 3aKa3biBaloT. Hukorna Ol HE OTBAXKHIJIACH MOMPOCUTH YEPEMAXOBBIN
cym. Ho Teneps ouens paga, uto ero nompobonaia.

CeneHa KHMBHY/A, ChEJIa HECKOJIBKO JIOXKEK, a 3aTeéM BHOBb ITocMoTrpena Ha J[»xoi Mapwu.
bosibine xxaaTe OHA HE MOTJIA.

- JlaBait moroBopum o ['ycraBe JlomuHuKe.

- On ouapoBareneH, npaaa? - ['omyObie raza J>xoit Mapu 3acBeTHINCH JTHO0O0BBIO.

- la. S xotena Obl y3HaTh y HETO O TUITHO3€. Sl HE TONBKO (hapMaIleBT. ¥ MEHs €CTh €Ile U
HEKOTOpbIE MEAUIIMHCKHE HABBIKA. DTOMY MEHSI Hay4usia Mosi 0alyIika.

- [IpaBaa? S To0O# MPOCTO BOCXUIIAIOCH!

- Cnacu6o. Ho Tbl TOXe odeHb TanaHTIUBA. CKaXX, TPYAHO OBITH aCCUCTEHTOM MHCTEpa
JlomuHuka?

- Her. Ilo Oonbieit yactu oH Bce nenaer caM. Ha paHdyo MHe nmpuxoauiaoch padoTars Kyna
0O0JIbIIIe, - B €€ T0JI0CE MOCHBIIIAIACH TPYCTh.

- ThI CKydaelb 0 CBOEMY MYKY?

- Ckyuana paHbllle, TOka He BcTpeTwia ['ycraBa. JIp3WK YacTo W HaAoJro yeszxan. Sl
gyBCcTBOBasa cebst Takoir Omaunokoi! Ho Teneps Bce mo-apyromy. - OHa B3suta Kycouek xieba. -
Toxe oueHns BkycHO! CeneHa nocieaoBaia €€ NIpuMepy.

- Ho Ipaiik npuexan 3a TOOOM.

- Hpoiik. OH nenaeT Bce, UTOOBI COXpaHUTh ceMblo. 1 s He Mory nmoHsTh, Touemy. HasepHoe,
MOTOMY, YTO OOJIbIIIE Y HETO HUKOTO HE OCTANOCh. - OHA HAXMYypHUIIach.

- Uto 3HauuT, "HUKOTO HE OCTANIOCH'"?

- D10 1 3HauuT. - [lokonebaBumce, Jxoit Mapu 3aroBopuna. - Ponurenu [paitka ymepnu ot
nuxopaaku. Mol cbiH, IeMaHHUK J[paiika, copBaicsa B mpomnacte. [lorom ymep Mot myx. Kpome
MEHSI Y HETO HUKOro HeT. - OHa moBepTenia B pyKax JIOKKY, TOTOM MOJIOKHIIA €€ U MOJHSAJA Ha
Ceneny miaza. - Ha Jlpnton-panuo, kyga Obl s HU DIsSIHYJA, MOBCIOAY BHjena 00jb, CMEpPTh U
MOTEPH.

- IIpoctn.

- [poiiky Toxe Tskeno. Ho oH Braamenen paHdo. M cTouT emy 3aX0Te€Th, € HUM COIVIACUTCA
YKATH JII00ast )KEHIIMHA.

- S mymama, MOXKeT...

- Hpoiik u g? - JI>xoit Mapu nokavana ronoBoil. - Het. Eme 1o toro, kak mosiBuiics ['ycran
JloMmuHUK, 51 cobupanack yexaTb. 1 MHe He X0Teloch BUACTHCS ¢ J[paitkom Ha mpomanue. OH, ObITh

MOXET, 1 Take yous Obl ['ycTaBa, 3ammminas To, 4To, Mo €ro MHEHUIO, TPUHAJICKUT EMY.
- Ho...



- Cenena, ToI He 3Haenb Jpotika Jantona. M gecTHO, coBeTyr0 TeOe AepKaThbesi MOAAIbIINE OT
Hero. S mo0mro ero kak Oparta, OH Bcerya ObUT KO MHE J100D.

Ho korma 4to-TO yrposkaeT ero paH4o WM XOTs Obl OH TaK JyMaeT, TO CBUPEIEET, CIOBHO
Obik. OH CTaHeT AparbCsi HACMEPTb, YTOOBI COXPAaHUTH CBOIO 3eMII0 M ceMbio. - OHa IIyOOKO
B3/I0XHYNAa. - Ho s Xouy , uTh cama mo cebe, monasnbiie OT J[PATOH-paHYO, MOJAIbIIE OT ITHUX
BOCIIOMUHAHUN.

IToxonones, Cenena kuBHyna. Jla, oHa xorena y3Harb o Jpaiike [[3/1TOHE, HO, KOHEYHO, HE
takoe. Hu k yeMy el Obuio 3HaTh 0 nevansx Jxoit Mapu. Pebenok. Myx. Huuero ymuBuTensHoro,
YTO OHA PEIINJIA YeXaTh.

- [Tonumaenp?

- Ha.

- Trl momMoxenn HaM ¢ JpatikoM?

- 1 mouTH HE 3Haro €ro.

- Jla, HO Haz10, 4TOOBI OH yexas. MHaue oT Hero OyayT HEMPUITHOCTH. Sl €ro 3HaK XOpOIILO.

Cenena BcrmoMHUJA O JIOOOBHOM CHaJ00be, MPUTOTOBICHHOM s Jpaiika [[pnToHa, u
anmeTuT y Hee cpasy ke nponai. He Oepercs nmu oHa 3a neno, kotopoe el He no cuinam? Her. B
ce0s HyxkHO BepuTh. OHA JOHKHA MOMHHTH O BCEX T€X, KOMY HYXKHa €€ MOMOIb, U HE MOXET
MO3BOJINTH ce0e HUKaKkuX cummatuid. Jpaiik [[>1ToH - ee Bpar.

- Hy Tak xak, Cenena?

- JIpaiik mpuBJiekaTesieH, HoO He B MoeM BKyce. J[>koit Mapu yinbpIOHYach.

- Bpar Mmoero myxa Bo BKyce BCSKOM >keHIMHBI. OCOOEHHO ecii OH caM O Hel aymaer. - OHa
noena cym. - Tak Thl MHE TOMOXKEIIIb ?

- Jlaxxe He 3Haro, 4TO sl CMOTY CZI€JIaTh.

- S 3naro [lpaiika. OH HaBepHsKa peumi, 4to ['yctaB MeHst moxutwi. Yy 4ro-Hubyas B 3TOM
porne. Ho aTo He mpaBaa. 3To mpocTo HEBO3MOXKHO. S 10010 cBOETO (hpaHIiry3a, MHE HPABUTCS TO,
YTO OH JIEJIA€T, €T0 IeJIeYyCTPEMIIEHHOCTh, €T0 00pa3 ®u3HU. U MBI y)ke moroBapuBaeM 0O CBaIL0e€.

- 51 ouensb 3a Tebs pajna.

- Cnacu6o. - JI)xoit Mapu BHe3anmHO norpyctHena. - S He xoay, 4ToObl J[paiik pa3pyinmin Mou
TJIAHBI.

- Sl noHnMaro.

Cenena uyBcTBOBaJIa ce0s oueHb HeyloTHO. OHa He noBepsuia ['ycrtaBy JloMUHHKY, HO
COBEPIICHHO SICHO, 4TO J[>)k0i1 Mapu He 3aX04eT U CIBIIIATh HUYETO IJI0X0TO O YEJIOBEKE, KOTOPBIN
MOMOT €l 3a0bITh Tparmyeckoe npoiuuvioe. Ona nonumaina /[>xoit Mapu, HO, TeM HE MEHEe, BCE 3TO
ee Oecriokouso. M oHa He Moria HE TTOMOYb YeJIOBEKY, KOTOPBIA TPOCHUT ee 0 moMoim. Tem Oonee
TaKoOMy OJIMHOKOMY, KOTOPOMY HE K KOMY O0JIbIlle 00OpaTUTHCA.

- S cnenaro Bce, uTo B MouX cuiax, [»koit Mapu, Ho Jpaiik MHE HE 0COOEHHO J0BepsieT. Emy
HE HPABUTCS, YEM s 3aHUMAIOCh.

- Ipaiik HUKOIJIa HE MPU3HABAJI HUYETO HOBOTO cpa3y. - [[>koH Mapu HakJIOHUIACh U MOXkala
Cenene pyky. - Cracu6o.

- Tak 4TO K€ MHE eMy cKa3aTb? BIapyr Ha cToN ymajia TEHb.

- Ckaxxu MHe, Kakoro uepta Tbl Jenaeib B HoBom Opiieane, xon Mapu! - B3as ctyn, Hpaiik
yCencs 3a UX CTOJIUK.

Jlxoit Mapu Haxmypunack u Opocuiia Ha CelleHy HEeJJOBOJIbHBIN B3I

- CerneHa 371eCh HM MPU YEM, - IPUCTAIIBHO TOCMOTpeN Ha HeBecTKy Jpaiik. [Ipocto Oynbaor
JloMUHUKA HE TTO3BOJIUT MHE C TOOOM BCTPETUThCA. 3 JOMa Thl BBIXOIUIIL HE YacCTO, HO MOXKEIIIb



HE COMHEBATHCS, KAXK bl TBOM IIAT MHE U3BECTEH.

- Jlpaiik, s 60mblie TeOE HE POJICTBEHHUIIA, - pe3KO cKkazana Jlxoi Mapu.

- Tel HaBcerma octaHemscs J3aton!

- Ecniu To1pK0 He moMeHsito pamuiinio Ha JIOMUHUK.

JIpaViK yAUBUIICS.

- TBI BeIXOOUIIL 3a HETO?

- 51 mob6mio ero, s roBopuiia Tede 310. MHe ¢ HUM xopomo. CaMbIM OOJBIIMM CYACTHEM IS
MeHs Oynet crath Mmagam ['ycraB JJoMUHUK.

- Ho panyo...

JIxort Mapu nokadasia rojioBOu.

- OTO TBOE paHuo.

- Ho TbI Besib moMoOrana MHe BeCTH Jenal

- Panpme. - J[>koii Mapu noassiinack. Y Hee B Iia3ax CTOsUIA cie3bl. - Kak Thl He moHMMaep?
Texac st MeHs - TOJBKO Medanb. J[PATOH-paHdo isi MeHs - Kjanouiie. Sl He BEepHYCh Tyaa
HUKorAa. S xouy »kuth ¢ ['yctaBoM. 1 ocTaBe MeHs B ITOKOE!

Ona BckoumsIa M3-3a CTOJA, ONPOKHWHYB CTYJ, U BblOexkana u3 pecropana. J[paiik Opocuiics
ObLIO 3a He, Ho CesleHa CXBaTHJIa €T0 3a PYKY.

- He nano. Eit Hy>xHO moOBITh 0HOM. THI paccTpouni ee.

IToxonebaBumich, OH CHOBA Cell.

- OHa HEHAaBUAUT MEHS, TOTOMY 4TO A - [[3nTOH?

- He nymato, utoOb1 oHa TeOs HeHaBuea. S nake He yBepeHa, UTO ceiiuac OHa B COCTOSIHUU
pazoOparbcsi B cBoux uyBcTBax. (OHa MPOCTO XOTeJia yexarh TNojajblle OT 0oy, OT
BOCIIOMUHAHUM. ..

- Uto oHa Tebe nmopacckazana?

- Bonxe nocrarouno. [IpocTo oHa cka3aia, 4TO B Balllel CEMbE BCE YMEPIIH, OCTAJICA TOJIBKO
TBL

- Ha, 3TO Tak.

- Manemyaszens? - OdUIIMaHT TONTANICS PAIOM, HE PEIIasiCh, IPEepBaTh UX Oecemy.

Cenena mocMoOTpesia Ha HEro, a MOToM Ha [[paiika.

- Ona 3a0bL1a Mpo JIeHY.

- JIagHo, g cheM.

Ona kuBHy”na opuimanTy. TOT MONPaBUII CTYN U, B3SIB TyCThIC TAPEIIKHU, YIATIUAIICS.

- Tak uro MbI OyzeM ecTh? - iepecen Jpaiik Ha MmecTo ko0t Mapu.

- He 3naro.

- Kak 310?

- Tol panbIte 31ech He ObLT?

- Her.

Cenena B3goxnyna. Eil xoTenoch yiitu BMecte ¢ J[>koii Mapu u nmonpoOoBarh €€ yCIIOKOUTb.
Ho ee oany /[Ipaiik HE OTIYCTHUT, a UATU BMECTE, YTOObI OHU MPOAOIKAIN CCOPUTHCS, A0OCOIIOTHO
He3aueM. Ho 1 ecTh e Tenepb COBEPIIEHHO HE XOTEJIOCH.

- S mymau, ThI yXKe 3aKa3ana, - cCMyTics Jpauk.

- 31ech HET BBIOOpA OJITIOI.

- Ecniu eja MHE He MOHpaBUTCS, 1 HE 3aravy. CelleHa 3aKkaTuia riasa.

- 371eCh XOPOIO KOPMSAT, U XBaTUT 00 ATOM.

- 5 cmoTpro, y TeOs Xopolliee HaCTPOCHHE.



- 5l IpoCTO MBITAIOCh OOBSICHUTH, TOYEMY B "'Thl0arsi0" HET MEHIO.

- JlamHO, HE paccTpauBaKcs U3-3a 3TOTO.

- 5l m He paccTpauBarock. - CeneHa faxe 3aKycuia ryoy ot 3JI0CTH.

- A o uewm emie pacckazana tede [xoit Mapu?

- Manemyasens CesneHal - cHOBa MpepBall UX MOAOMICAIMNA OQUITMAHT, TOCTABUB JILIMSIIUECS
TapEJIKU.

- Merci. - Tloxoxe, ceituac y Hux ¢ Jlpaiikom pasroBopa He mosyduTcs. OHU OymyT TOIBKO
pyraTbCs.

- Yro 310?

- OueHb coxalero, HO K YepernaxoBOMy Cyly Thl OMO3/aJ.

- A 51 00 3TOM He coxanero. - OH ¢ OTBpaleHHEM TTOCMOTPEI B Tapeliky. - S jydiie chen Obl
OudIITeKC WU TPOCTO KYCOK >KapEeHOro Msica.

- He comnesatock. Kcratu, 3to puc ¢ kpadbamu.

- 3716Ch MOKHO YMEPETH C TOJIONY.

- Ha necepr 3akaxxem kode.

- Her, nyume novigem. Tam, yepe3 ynuiny, TOPryroT NUPOKKAMHU.

- Te1 MOXeNs UATH, @ MHE TIOCJIE JICHYA HY)KHO padoTaTh.

Jpatik mponycTri ee ppazy MUMO yITled U penmiI mornpoooBars eay. OgoOpuTeNbHO KUBHYB,
OH OBICTPO pACIpaBHIICS CO CBOEH TapelkoW. Y Hee TOXEe IOSIBUJICA aIlleTHT, U OHa ¢
YIOBOJILCTBUEM MPUHSIIACH 32 pUc ¢ Kpabamu. MHTepecHO, ObIBal U OH KOrja-HUOyIb BOOOIIE
BEXKJIUBBIM U CIIOKOWHBIM? YMes JIn OH JI0OMBAThCS CBOETO HE CHUJIOW, a KaKUM-HUOYIb IPYyruM
crocobom?

- Ecniu y Te0s yT0o-HMOY/Ab OCTaHETCs, 51 10eM, - cKazall J[paiik, B3sB KyCOK xJieoa.

- [IpekpaTu CMOTPETHh MHE B TapEJIKY, S JOEM Cama.

- Ororo-to s Oosicsa. - OH goen xjied U, OTKUHYBUIMCH HA CIIMHKY CTYJa, CTAall CEPbE3HbIM. -
Kak 1b1 gymaens, uro npoucxoaut ¢ Ixoi Mapu?

- YectHoe ciioBo, s He 3Hato. [loxoxke, oHa moout ['yctaBa JlomuHuka. Ho oH runHotusep.
Xopoumit 11 oH? S He 3Har0. YecTHbIi? OnsaTh He 3Har0. OH mroout Jlxoit Mapu?

- Me1 He 3HaeMm. - JIpaik noaHs naneu. - Hyrpom 4yBCTBYrO, 4TO 3TOT JJOMUHUK MOIICHHHUK.
On yBen y J[lpntonoB Jlxoi Mapu u neHpru. 1 He TPOTUB, €CIU TOJBKO OH €€ JIIOOUT U
no3abotutcs o Hel. Ho ecnu 3To He Tak, 1 0TOEpY y HETO U €€, U JCHbIH.

- O10 ThI yx’e roBopmi. Ho kak Mbl y3Haem npaay? f moroBopuia ¢ J[>xout Mapu, Kak Tbl
npocuil. OHa MHe noHpaBuiack. Ho He 3Hato0, 4To emie Mory Juisi Te0s CAenaTh.

- IIpomomxkaii BcTpeuarbcsi ¢ Heil, Cenena. - [paiik HakimoHuica ommke. - CaMm g HE MOTY
ATOro AenaTh. JJOMUHUK HACTPAUBAET €€ IPOTUB MEHSI.

- [louemy s oiKkHA TeOE MOMOTaTh, €CIIU Thl COOMPACIILCS Pa3BAIUTh MOE JI€NI0?

- 51 Xo4y 3TO caenarth sl TBOEH ke MoJib3bl. Y 1Sl TOJIb3bI OCTabHBIX.

- Tbl MPOCTO HE MOHUMAENIb, O YEM TrOBOpHIlb. - OHa BcTana U Opocuiia Ha CTOJ caleTky. -
Kak s BUXKy, Thl BJ0OABOK HUYEro HE MOHUMACIIb B XKEHIMHaX. HaBepHoe, MOATOMY Thl U HE
*KeHat. - OHa HalpaBUJIach K ABEPH.

Jpaiik Opocuit Ha CTOJ JIEHBTH, HE 3Hasl, CKOJIBKO HY)KHO. XMYpO TTOCMOTPEB Ha OpHUIIHAHTA,
oH nocnenmi 3a Cenenoii. Ha ynuiie oH cxXBaTui €€ 3a pyKy U MOBEPHYII K ceoe.

- MHe yxe HauMHaeT HaJoearb, YTO KEHIIMHBI TIOCTOSHHO OT MeHd yOeratoT. B koro, yept
BO3bMU, B 3TOM MPOKJISITOM TOPOJAE NPEBPATUIIUCH JEAN ?

- Jlpoaiik, neno BoBce He B HoBom Opneane. Bee neno B tede. Thl UTO, HE MOXeEIb OBITh



JUKEHTIBMEHOM ?

OH HaxMypuJICs U OTSHYI ee 3a coboii B "Kade ne Monane".

- JlamHO, HEYEro MeHs BOCHUTHIBATh. Sl MPOCTO XOUy €1 IOMOYb U JIEJIAk0 3TO, KAK YMEIO.

Korna onu npoxoaunu mumo "JIr0oO00BHBIX CHa100Mi", OHA cXKajla ero pyKy U OCTaHOBHJIACK.

- Ilocnymaii, s moroBopuiia ¢ J>koit Mapu, u 3TO Bce, 4TO s Momia ciaenarb. S Oymy
MOJIICPKUBATH C HEW OTHOILEHUS U JTAJIbIIE. XOPOIIO?

- Cnacu6o. - OH TOX€ OCTAaHOBWJICS U MPOBEJ PYKOW MO CBOMM TyCThIM BojiocaM. S ¢ Hel
CJIMIIIKOM Tpy0?

- Tl rpy0 co Bcemu. 31eCh BCe-TaKW [IUBUIIU3AIMS, U )KU3Hb OTJIMYAETCS OT TOM, KOTOPYIO ThI
IIPUBBIK BUJECTh HA CBOEM PAHYO.

OH ynbIOHYIICS.

- Moxert 6bITh. Ho Bce e st cBoero 100b10ch. - B3siB ee 3a mom0opooK, OH MOBEPHYI JTULIOM
K ceoe. - Jlymaro, Tl B TOM HE COMHEBACIIbCS?

Kazanoch, ero maibIbl KTyT. YIIBIOKa CUJIBHO €ro HM3MEHWJIa, celiyac OH ObLI MOX0X Ha
ManmpaniKy. Takon [povik JpnTtoH en HpaBwics. Odenp HpaBwicsa. Ho npuumHa sTomMy -
mo00BHOE cHanoObe. M Het?

HaknmonuBumch, oH monenoBad ee B ryobl. Ckopee BIacTHO, Y€M C YYBCTBOM. 3areM
MPUCTAIBHO TTOCMOTpen Ha Hee. Ero kapue ria3a Obutn TeribiMu. U cTpacTHBIMA.

- YBUAUMCS BEUEPOM.

OH MOBEpHYJICS W 3a1araji no yiaule.

I'naBa 6

- C xem 3t10 THI Ob1a? C paiikom [IsnTtonom? S Bunena Bac yepe3 okHO. - Po3a mogHsiia
rJia3a Ha BOILIEAIIYIO B anTeky Celeny.

- Eciiu ThI X0uenb crenarb Kakue-To BbIBOJBI, TO HE cnemm. S 3Hana, 4to [p3uk npuaer Ha
aend. OH xoTen moroBoputh ¢ Jxoit Mapu, Ho ['yctaB JloMuHUK €ro U OJIM3KO HE MOMMYCKAET. -
Cenena omycTuiiach Ha CTYI. - S 0ujana 4yero yrogHo, HO TOJIbKO He pyranu ¢ Jpaiikom. Ilo-
MOEMY, MO€ JIF000BHOE CHAJI00be HE IEUCTBYET.

- 910 1I10X0?

- JI>xoi1 Mapu He xoueT ero BuaeTb. OHM MOPYraJIMCh, M OHA YIIUIA.

- A xak ena?

- Cnacu60, Bce ObLIO OUEHB BKYCHO. Po3a paccMesiiace.

- Pa3Be Bce 3T0 cMemmHO?

- 5l roBopuiia Tede, UTO ATOT PECTOPaH Bpsij ik moHpaButTcs Jxoit Mapu.

- Jla Het, oH eit moHpaBuiics. OHa HUKOTJA HE TTpoOoBaia YepemnaxoBbii cym. A BoT Jpaiik
CKaszajl, 4To Jiydle Obl Chell KYCOK kapeHoro msica. IIpencramnseinmb, Mbl CUIUM B OJHOM W3
ayuynmx pecropanoB HoBoro Opiieana, a OH Xo4ueT, 4TOOBI 3/1eCh €My MOAaBaJId TO, UTO OH €CT Ha
cBoeM paHyo. - CelleHa TOMOPIIMIACh. - Sl HUKAK HE MOTY HAWTH MOAXOA K ATOMY YEJIOBEKY. S
MBITAJIACH IOTOBOPUTH C HUM O JIeJIe, HO HUYETO HE BhIIUI0. OH CTPAIHO YIIPSIM.

- OH KO€-KOro MHE HalTOMHUHAET.

- Koro?

B otBeT Po3a TonpKO mocMoTpena Ha Hee.

- Ecnu Th1 nmeenb B BULy MeHs, s... [IpocTo ecTh Bemm, 3a KOTOpPbIE MPUXOTUTCS OOPOTHCH.
Bor u Bce.

Po3a nokauasna rosoBou.

- Ilokxa Te0s He OBUTO, 3aX0IMJI KIIMEHT.



- Xopomo. Ceiyac HEe MeEIIAeT COCPEIOTOYUTHCS Ha padore. Sl mpocTO HE MO3BOIIO 3TOMY
TE€XaCIy BMEIIMBATHCS B MO0 KU3Hb.

- [lo-Moemy, OH yxe 3TO caenal.

- Cnacu60! Moria 661 1 He pa3pyliarh MouX WiUTto3ui. - Cenena 3abapabanuia najablaMmu Mo
CTOIY.

- 3arJisiHU B Kaccy.

OHU XpaHWIU JCHBIM B KBAJApPATHOW JEPEBSIHHOW IIKATyJIKe, OOUTOM HM3HYTPU TOIYOBIM
menkoM. [lIkarynka BbIVIsiZIEa OYeHb CUMIIATUYHO W ObUTa CIOBHO CHENHAIBHO MpeJAHa3HaueHa
st neder. OTKpbIB KpbIlKy, CelleHa yBUIela JIEkKAIIyI0 OBEPX MEJIOYH MauyKy OaHKHOT.

- To1 4TO, B MOE OTCYTCTBHUE ycTiea orpadbuTh OaHK?

- Her. IlpocTo 31ech Obu1 muctep Jlomunuk. EMy oueHb nmoHpaBmiachk Haia anteka. CeyneHa
PE3KO BBITPSMUIACE.

- Uto oH 3aech aenan? OH Beap 3HANI, 4TO MBI ¢ [[>koil Mapu ornpaBuiuchk Ha jieHd. Mckan
Hac? Bugen, yro x Ham mpucoeguHuica [pauk? - OHa 3axj0mHYJIa KpPBIIKY W 3amarajia 1o
koMmHare. - He HpaButTcs MHe Bce 3T0. Po3a.

- Mue Toxe. ['ycras Jlomnnuk onacen, CeneHa.

- Yto oH kynui?

- Koe-uro qns J>xoit Mapu. Kpemsl 15 tnua u teina, momMaay, aMIlyHb U 4TO-TO €€ B TOM
Ke Iyxe.

- Yro? JIroboBHBIE CHA100bs1? TpaBbI?

- Her. Huuero takoro. Ho oH cnpanmBan o Tedbe u ckasai, 4yto emie 3aiiaer. CeneHa cena 3a
CTOJI.

- [Toxoxe, Bce OyzeT cliokHEee, 4YeM 5 Jymara.

- Hageroch, 3TUM ThI XOU€lllb CKa3aTh, UTO OyJElb OCTOpPOXKHEE?

- Koneuno, moxer ObITh, MUCTEP JJOMUHHUK MPOCTO PEBHUBEL] U XOUET YOEIUTHCS, YTO €T0
JaMa JEWCTBUTEIBHO MONUIa KO MHE, a He K Jpauky 3nTonYy.

- Bo3moxkno. - Po3a akkyparHo oOmmBasia po30BbIi IHIETKOBBINA JIOCKYTOK. - Ho mymato, Bce
CJIOJKHEE.

- S Toxe, - B3aoxayna Cenena. - [Ipoctu, s moutu Tede HE TOMOTralo.

- Huuero crpammoro. 1o 3aka3zy magam /[naHbl 1 MOYTH BCE Caemaa.

- Cracu60. S Tak BOJTHYIOCh, YTO AK€ HE MOTY COCPEIOTOUUTHCS.

- Huuero. C paboToii s cripaBiitoch. A Thl XK MoOcTapaics cenarh Tak, 4YTOObl OHA BCErna y
Hac ObLia.

- J1orOBOpHIIUCH.

Cenena B3s1a cO CTOJIa CKJISHKY ¢ uagkoBbiM KOopHeM. Ho ellBa oHa OTKphLIa KPBIIIKY, HaT
BXO/IHOW JIBEPHIO 3BSIKHYI KOJOKOJMHKIMK. B Marasun Bomen I'ycraB Jlomunuk. ['myOoko B310XHYB,
4TOOBI YCIIOKOUTHCS, CelieHa oCTaBuIa CKIISTHKY Ha MECTO.

- Bonjour, noporue neau, - yapiOHysnca ['yctaB, HanpaBIsisiICh K HUM.

Po3a tonkuyna noktem CelieHy, U Ta, pacTepsABIMCH, BcTajna. DpaHily3 ObLI, Kak BCEr/a,
0e3ynpedyHo onieT. Brrommecs: BOJIOCH aKKypaTHO 3a4€CaHbl, U3 KUJIETHOTO KapMallka BUHEICS
KPHUCTaJIJI, KOTOPhIM, KaK OHa TeNepb 3Hajla, OH MOJIb30BaJICS Mpu TUNHO3e. OH ObUI OYEHB
MIPUBJIEKATENICH: CUJIbHBIN, BEKJIUBBIM, YMEIONMUA XOpoIio ToBOpuTh. kot Mapu ero mroOuina.
Hpoatik HeHaBuael. Po3a emy He noBepsina. A CeneHa mpoCcTo HE 3Haja, KaK K HEMY OTHOCHUTBCS.

- Bl yauBieHbl MouM nipuxogom? - JloMuHUK ocTaHOBUICSA niepen CeneHou.

- Her, - ona 3amsnace, mogbupas cioBa. - Po3a ckazasna, 4To Bbl 3aX0UIH.



- a. XKanb, 4To 4 Bac HE 3acTall.

- i yxonuna Ha JeHUY.

OH ynbpIOHYIICS U 0OBEN B3IJISAOM allTeKy.

- S1 mpocTO BOCXMIIEH, Y Bac TYT Bce MpeKkpacHo. M ToBapsl caMoro BbICIIETO KadecTBa. J[xoi
Mapu Obula poOCTO B BOCTOPIe OT TOTO, UTO 51 KYIUJ y Bac.

- Ouenb paga. MslI cTapaemcs.

- Kak s nonnMaro, Bbl TakK€ HEMHOT'O 3aHMMAETECh BpaueOHOM MPAKTUKOM.

- Ha, HemHoro. S ne4y TpaBaMu.

- HaBepHoe, y Bac, kak u y MeHs, TPOOJIEMBbI C MECTHBIMH JTIOKTOPaAMH ?

- OHHM CYHTAIOT, YTO JIFOACH MOKHO JICYUTh TOJIBKO OJHUM CITIOCOOOM: UX COOCTBEHHBIM.

- A aT0T cnocob He Bcerna cambiil 3¢ dexTuBHb. Tak Bens? - OH B3sUT AyXH, MOHIOXAT U
MTOCTABUJI HAa MECTO.

- Bol mpaBbl. Ko MHE oOpatanuce ene KuBbIe JIIOH, NPOIIEANME YEPE3 UX PYKH. DTO MPOCTO
U3/1€BaTEIbCTBO.

- 3peBarenscTBO! Jla, camMoe MoaxoAsIiiee CJIOBO AJIs ONMMCAaHUs Halel MeauiuHbl. OHA WiIn
cpa3y Te0s1 yOMBaeT, Wilv MPEJOCTABISET BbI3A0OPABINBATH CAMOMY.

- 4 cnplnana, 1OKTOpa 3aMHTEPECOBANMCH BAIIIMMH JIEKIIUSAMU 10 TUITHO3Y.

- Ma. - OH cHOBa BHUMATEIbHO MOCMOTpPEN HA Hee. - Sl TOBOpWII cO MHOTUMU MeaukaMu. Bee
OHM 3aMHTEPECOBAIUCH T€M, UYTO 5 Aenaro. Ho 4ToOb1 00y4nThCS TUITHO3Y, HAJ0 TOTPATUTh MHOTO
BPEMEHU U CUJL.

A TIOKa HCHONB3YIOT SAOBUTHIA XiopodopM. OH HaMHOIrO OMNACHEH, 3aTo MM IMpOIIe
MOJIb30BATHCH.

- A MOXHO JHM C TOMONIBI TUIHO3a H3YYUTh pabory wmosra? - CejeHa HEMHOTO
pacciadunack, HOYyBCTBOBAB, UTO OHM HALUIM MHTEPECHYIO JUIsl HUX 000UX TEMY.

- J{a. 3nece, s nymaro, TMITIHO3 NPOU3BEIAET HACTOALMM NEPEBOPOT. S MPOBOIMI UCCIEIOBAHUS
B 9TOM 00J1acTH, HO TpeOyeTCs eIlie OYeHb U OY€Hb MHOTO padOThI, TOKAa MBI pa3dbepemMcs 0 KOHIIA,
YTO K€ TAKOE MO3T.

CesieHa KUBHYIIA.

- 5 xotena ObI y3HAaTh 00 3TOM OOOJIBIIIE.

- Byay ouenb paj noroBoputh ¢ BamMu 00 3TOM. MOXeT ObITh, 3a JeHYeM?

- la, cmacu6o. U emie s xoTena noOoblle y3HATh O CeaHcax.

- OTO TOX€ O4YEHb MHTEPECHBIE AKCIEPUMEHTHL. S Bcerma ¢ pajgoCTbi0 FOTOB IMOAEIUTHCS
CBOMMH 3HaHHUSMHU C KoJuierod. Korma Bel HEMHOTO Ooiibilie 00 3TOM y3HaeTe, 51 Oymy paj BUACTH
Bac B KaU€CTBE TMITHOTU3UPYeMOii. Toraa Bel caMu MOYYBCTBYETE, UTO TAKOE TUITHO3.

- Sl mogymato 06 >3TOM.

- Xopomo. B Takom ciydae s kak-HUOyOb 3a BaMH 3aiily M npuniamly Ha JieHd. OH
HamnpaBuics K aABepu, CeneHa - 3a HUM. B n1Bepsix oH BApPYr 0OEpHYJCS, U OHM OKa3ajJucCh HOC K
HOCy. OH ynbIOHYIICS 1 BHUMATEJbHO OIVISACI €€. - S XxoTesn Obl MO3HAKOMUTBCS C BaMH MOOJIMIKE.
MHe kaxkeTcs, y HaC MHOTO OOILIETO, U €CTh YeM APYT C APYrOM MOAEITUTHCS.

CeneHa MoyyBCTBOBaJIa, YTO KPACHEET.

- 4.

- Cenena! - kpukHyn cremanmii uepe3 ynuiy pauk. [logolins, oH B3riisiHy1 Ha [JoMUHUKA:

- 51 ne mo3Boto Tebe 0omxkaTh kot Mapw.

JlIoMuHMK 1OXaJj riedamMu U, Opocu Ha CelleHy yAMBICHHBIN B3I, TOBEPHYICA K Jpaliky.

- [Ipoctute, BbI MOaraete, 4ToO Ballla HEBECTKA HecuacTHa? YBEPSIO Bac, €l CO MHOM XOpOIIIO.



- On xuBHyn Cenene. - Jlo ckoporo, Ta chere. - OH OBICTpO 3amarai mpoJb.

- 3agemM A3TOT Oypak mpuxomui K Tede? - JIpaiik, HaXMypHBIIMCh, BCE €IIe CMOTpEeN Ha
JloMmuHUKA.

- [To-mMoemy, OH B ME€HS BIIOOUJICS.

- Yro?! - Jlpaiik pe3ko odepHyics. - C 4ero Thl 3TO B3suia?

- IIpocTo MHE Tak OKa3aaoch.

- 5l He Xouy, 4TOOBI THI BCTPEUYAIACh C HUM HaEJIMHE.

Cenena BoILIa B aliTEKy U XOTeJa 3aKPBITh 3a COO0M JIBepb, HO [[paliK MOJICTaBUI HOTY.

- He Toponuce.

- Ham He o yem Gosnblinie pasroBapuBath. OH BOIIET BCJIE 3a HEH.

- 51 xouy npurnacuthk Te0s Ha 06en. OHa 0O6epHyIach.

- Tlocne Takoro mpexkpacHoro jeHya? Tel, HaBepHOE, M caM AOrajbIBaclIbCs, YTO i Tebe
OTBEYY, - B €€ T0JIOCE MPO3BYYaJl CapKa3M.

JpaUiK yAuBUIICS.

- Jlenu ObLT O4€HBb BKYCHBIM. JKajib TOIBKO, YTO MAJIo.

- ITouemy ObI TeOe He BepHyThCS B Texac? J[>xoit Mapu cuactiuBa, MO OW3HEC MPOLBETAET, a
['ycraB JIoMUHUK AeaeT Bce, YTOOBI MOKA3aTh JIOASIM JOCTOMHCTBA TUITHO3A.

- Teneps OH caenan 3To U ¢ ToO0o. - JIpatik cxBarui CeneHy 3a PyKH H: BCTPSAXHYN €€. - ITO
cTpamHbii yenoBek! Ho Te0s s emy He oTaaM.

- Ybepu ceiiuac xe pyku. - B rimazax CesneHbl BCIBIXHYJI 3€JICHBIN OTOHEK.

- 5l He M03BOJII0 3TOMY (PpaHITY3y OKOJIJIOBATH 3/I€Ch BCEX KEHIIMH CBOUMU CJIAJIKUMHU PEYaMH.
- OH HEXHO MOTJIAJIUII €€ PYKH, CIOBHO M3BUHSACH 32 CBOIO IPYyOOCTb.

Cenena BeIpBaJIaCh, YyBCTBYS, YTO BOT-BOT 33IPOKUT OT €r0 MPUKOCHOBECHUS.

K HuMm nononwa Po3a.

- MeHs OH HE OKOJIJIOBBIBAJ CBOMMHU ClIafikuMu pedamu. He mymaro, uto6sl ['yctaB JloMuHUK
ObUT a0COJIFOTHO YECTHBIM, HO MBI HUYETO HE CMOXEM MPEeANPUHATh, TTOKa OH HE CJENIaeT 4ero-
HUOYIb TPEAOCYIUTEIBHOTO.

- Tel umeens B BUY, MOKa MBI HE 3aCTAHEM €r0 3a KaKUM-TO HEOJIarOBUIAHBIM 3aHSITHEM? -
HaxMmypuics Jpiuk.

- MoxHO cka3arb U Tak. - Po3a ynplOHynace, HO He cMomia ciaepxarbcs. - Kak s BUxy,
muctep Jpaiik, y BaC HE OUEHb IMOJYy4aeTCsl C KEHIMMHAMU. BO3MOXHO, JIeJ0 MOouuio Obl JIydile,
Oy/b Balla peyb IMajikol, kak y JlomuHuka.

Hpoatik moBepHyscst k CeneHe U OKUHYI €€ ObICTPBIM B3IJISIOM.

- 3nech, Po3a, Thl momasna B TOUKy. B 1eTcTBE MEHS 3TOMY HE HAy4YUJIN.

- Orto 3ameTHO. - CelieHa OTOIIIa OT HEro, Jymas, HE CTOUT JIn 3a0paTh 00paTHO JIFOOOBHOE
cHaso0be. Bece paBHO OHO, TOX0XKE, HE IEHCTBYET.

Brapyr B anTeky OykBajdbHO BJETENl MaJIeHbKHH CBETJIOBOJOCKHIM MajIbdMK B YHUCTOM, HO B
CTapOW 3amnIaTaHHOU OJEKIE.

- Mucc Cenena! C JIxxo Oena!l

- Yro ciyunnock, xxummu? - CeneHa MOAOLLIA K CTOJY M BBITAIMJIA U3 HUXKHETO SIMKA
TOKTOPCKYIO CYMKY.

- Ceromusa [{xo padotan B noke. CBepXy copBaniach 0anka. OHa ymana eMy Ha TOJIOBY.

- Ox! - Cenena B3riisiHyna Ha Po3y.

- Umu. S 3nece npucmotpro. CeneHa ObICTpo OOHsU1a ee W, oOoias Jlpaiika, HampaBUIIach
BMecCTE ¢ [[>KUMMU K IBEPSIM.



- Iomoxxmm. - Jlpa#ik momen 3a HUMHU. - MoxeTr, Bam motrpeOyercs momorips? CereHa
OTJIAHYJIACh.

- be3 TBOEH MoMoIM MBI Kak-HUOYIb 000 AEMCS.

- OTKyna Thl 3Haellb, 4epT BO3bMH!

Cenena penmiia He oOpamars Ha JIpaiika BHUMaHUs, HaJlesICh, 9YTO OH yitaeT. OHu ¢ Jxummu
nepenuvim yauny Jlekatyp u HanpaBWJIMCh B CTOPOHY MHCCHCUTIH K JIOKY.

PaccnpanmBars J[>kuMMmu OHa He cTaya. BClo CBOIO KM3Hb OH MPOXWUJI B JoKe. OH HE 3HAaJI,
KTO €ro poauTenud, s ObUl TaMm JJisi BCEX M CHIHOM, W aHreJoM-xpaHuteneM. HemHoro
nonpadarbeiBajl, TO TaM, TO 3/IECh €My YyIaBalOCh MEPEXBAaTUTh KycOoK. OH Bcerma CMOTpEIN IO
CTOpPOHaM, Bcerya ObUT B Kypce IPOMCXOASAINETO B JOKE U, CIIYIHUCH TJIe Oema, 3Hal, Kyaa 0exarh 3a
ITOMOIIBIO.

[Togymas o JI>x0, OHA OTHYAsTHHO TTOXKeJalia, YTOObI €r0 paHa okaszanach He onacHou. Mynara, y
KOTOPOTO CHJIbI ObUIO HaMHOTO OOJbIlle, YeM yMa, Opaju, Kak IpaBUJIO, HA CaMYIO TSDKEIYIO
pabory. g J>kummu oH Obul HacTosumM apyroM. CusbHbI [[0 U cooOpaszutenbHblid J>KUMMEU
MPEKPaCHO 3a00TUITUCH JIPYT O JIPYTE.

Ecau JIxxo paneHn, mioxo OyaeT um o0ouM.

- Bo1 BeuteunTe ero, mucc Cenena! Bol ero Beuteunte! - JIKUMMH CypOBO TOCMOTPEJT HA HEE.

- S cnenaro Bce, uTo cMmory. I'1e oH?

- Ilapau otHecnu ero k Kiro.

- Xopoio.

Ei1 3axotenoch nmoxars JP)KUMMH pyKy WM OOHATH €ro, HO OHAa HE 3Hala, 4To Jydie. OH
CUUTaJl ce0sl B3pOCIIbIM, KOTOPOMY HE HY)KHA HUKakas jiacka. Tak ¥ HE pPeIMB, OHA HE cJlielialia HU
TOT0, HU JIPYroro, HaJesCh, YTO OHU MPUIYT BOBPEMS, U OHA yCIIEET MOMOYb J[>KO.

OHuU cBepHYNIM CHayajia Ha OOKOBYIO YIUILY, TOTOM B mepeynok, u J>xummu nosen CeneHy K
"Vronky Kims", k cepomy AepeBIHHOMY 3JaHUIO B KOHIIE MIEPEYIKa, K KOTOPOMY C3ay TPUMBIKAI
CKJIaJl U3 KpacHOro kupnuya. Hukakux BeIBECOK HE OBLIO, HO 3/1eCh BCeTa ObLIO JIFOHO.

Kaxk Tonbko J[pa3iik Bce 3TO yBUAEN, OH Ha4yasl pyraTtbes U cxBaTuil CeleHy 3a pyKy.

- B Takoe mecTo s TeOst He mynly. B30OelienHas, oHa MOMBITANACh BHIPBATHCSL.

- [Iyctu meHns. TaM 4esioBek, KOTOPOMY HY»KHa MOSI TIOMOIIIb.

- Jlenn He noikHa... [JPKUMMU IOOHSIT PYKY.

- Ormyctute ee, Mucrep. Ito mucc CelieHa, €€ HUKTO HE TPOHET.

Jpaiik ynuBieHHO cMoTpesl Ha HuX. He xorenoch oOmxkarh [[PKMMMH, XOTsI 3TH CJOBa JAJIs
HETO POBHBIM CUETOM HUYEro He 3Hadar. Ho kak ormyctuth CelieHy B TUBHYIIKY JJII MOPSIKOB, TJI€
MOXET MPOU30UTH uepT 3HaeT uTo? OaHaKo, Cyas 0 BCEMY, OHA 3/IeCh HE BIepBble. MOXKET ObITH,
OHa HE TOJIbKO MOUIICHHUIIA, HO U 1wtoxa? [Iposepum. OH OTIyCTHII €€.

- 5l He cnymty ¢ TeO rias.

JI>KUMMU IarHYII K JBepU U OTKphUI ee nepen CeneHoil. OHa Bolwia U yBUJIEJIA JICKAIIETO B
yr1y Ha Trodske non oaesiiom J>ko. Ha ero yepHoe nuiio majaain >kelaThlii HEBEpHBIN cBET (hoHapsl.
Cenena omycTujiach Ha KoJieHU okoJio Jlxo. /[>kumMu momdexan u BCTal psiioM, [paiik Bomen u
3aKpbUI 32 CO00I1 ABEPE.

- JbxumMmu, ckaxku Kiro, 9To MHE HyKEH KUIIATOK. - BpeMeHu TepaTh ObUTO HENb34.

JI>KUMMM MOJIOKHWJI CBOKO MAJICHBKYIO JIAJOIIKY Ha rpyib Jxo.

- [lpunwia mucc Cenena. Ona 1e6s BbuieunT. - OH JOoTpoHYICs 110 Tuieda CeleHbl U modexan B
MMUBHOM 3aJ1 4epE3 3aKPHITYIO 3aHABECKOU JIBEPb.

Cenena ycnblmana, uto [{pavik nojoren oauxke. CKOpo OH 3aMasiaul HaJl HEH.



- Oroiiam oT cBeTa. - Ee ronoc ObUT TBEPABIM, KaK CTallb.

- JlaBaii s 4eM-HHOYIb TTIOMOTY.

Ona He otBetmia. Ee mbicnu yxe cHoBa BepHynuch K [[xo. [lonusas ¢ponaps, oHa ocMoTpena
ero rojoBy. Bonocel ciaumiauck oT kpoBu. ClieBa Ha JHIEe KoXka ObUIa pa3oapaHa, U OBICTPO
npoctynan cuHsk. OH Obul Oe3 co3Hanus. CeneHa mollynana MyIbC U IPOBEpUIIa JIbIXaHUE.
JlpIxaHue ObUIO MEJJICHHBIM, HO B MpeJiesiaX HOPMBI.

N3-3a 3aHaBeckn mokaszaicsa /[>KHUMMH, OCTOPOKHO HECS KacTpProjr C ropsyer Bomou. Ces
PAIIOM C HEM, OH TOXE CKIIOHUJICA Ha J[xko.

- Kak on?

- XKus. - OHa OTKpbUIa CBOIO IOKTOPCKYIO CYMKY. - BOJIBIIIETO 5 MOKa CKa3aTh HE MOTY.

BoelTaliB 3 CyMKH MapJii0, OHAa CMOYWJIa €€, TOMOPUMBIIKCH OT TOpsiYe BOABL, M Haydaja
OCTOPO>KHO CMBIBaTh KpOBb. [0 HE IIEBENHUIICS, M OHA MOPaJ0BAIACh, YTO OH HE YYBCTBYET OOJIH.
CKopo BOJIa B KaCTPIOJIE CTalla KPACHOM.

- Eme Boapl, JHKUMMU.

He roBopst H1 c10Ba, OH B35UI KACTPIOJIIO U BBIILE.

- Hy xak, ¢ HuM Oyzet Bce B nopsiike? - JIpaiik mocMoTpel e uepes Iieuo.

Ha pan4o oH Buzesn MHOrO JIroAed ¢ TpaBMaMH. Marp uX Jieunnia, ¥ MOCJE €€ CMEPTH TaKou
MOMOIIM UM O4YeHb He XBaraso. Ha MHorme munu ObUIO BCEro HECKOJHKO TOKTOPOB, U BCE OHHU
xuau nanexo. CereHa Ka3ainach U BIPABAY ONBITHOM, Kak ObUIO OBl 3J0POBO 3aMOIYYUTh B UX Kpast
XOT$1 Obl HECKOJIBKO TaKHX JJOKTOPOB.

- [Toka He 3Har0. Ecnu xouenh moModb, TOAHUMH (DOHAPH MOBBIIIE, 2 TO MHE IJIOXO BUJIHO.

Hpo3iik cnpenman, Kak OHa Ipocuia, M HAKOHEI paccMmoTpen jexasuiero. Kapruna Obuia
0e3paIoCTHOM.

Cenena ougynana J[>)ko rojioBy 1 oOHapyXWJia JIUMHHYIO ccaauHy. OHa Oblia HE CIMIIKOM
TyOOKOM M HE OCOOEHHO €€ TpeBOXkuia. [ opa3mo Xyke, 4TO Yepern Moj CCaAnHON MPOJIIOMIIEH U
BO3MOKEH YIIIMO MO3ra.

OtnepHyB 3aHaBecKy, cCHOBa Boweld J>kuMmu. OH MOCTAaBUII TOJHYIO JI0 KPaeB KacTPIOJIIO, HE
MIPOJIMB HU KAaIlIH.

- S Oyny oTkpoBeHHa ¢ ToOoi, J[>kummu, - mocMorpena Ha Hero CeneHa. - J[»ko MoxeT He
BBDKUTb.

JIKUMMHU TIJIOTHO CKaJjl TYObI, 3aKMYpHUJIICS U OPOCHUJIICS Ha YIUILY.

- He xoau 3a HuM, - octanoBuna [paiika CesneHa. - OH yMeeT CpaBIAThCSI CO CBOUMU OejaMu
B OJJMHOYECTBE.

- UepT nobepu! PeGeHKy HYKEH TIOM, CEMBbAI.

- Ero nqom - 310 nok. - OHa cTana BCTaBIATh HUTKY B MTOJKY, CIOBHO coOMpanach CIIMTh
MeloueK st 1I000BHOTO cHaM00bs. Ho celiuac peub 1uia o KU3HU U cMepTu. Eciin Obl HCUENUTh
YeJloBeKa ObUIO Tak e MPOCTO, KaK 3aCTaBUTh €ro BIIOOUTHCS, TO pad0Ta HUKOT/IAa HEe IPUHOCHIIA
ObI €l pazoyapoBaHUil.

- lokx! 910 HE HOM.

- Hpouk, ycnokoiicsa, noxanyiicra. [loroopum o Jxummu noroM. Cerdyac HaM HYKHO
3aHATHCS J[KO.

[Mputuxumii Jpaitk HaOMIOmam 3a TeM, Kak OHAa HaMO4YujIa Mapiio KaKOW-TO >KUJAKOCTHIO U3
OyTBUIKH, HECKOJIBKO pa3 MPUIIOKHUIA €€ K paHe U Hayalla 3allliBaTh.

- V 1e0s XOpOIIO MOJIydaeTcsl.

- OnpIT. - OHa MBITANIaCch MepecTarb AyMarh 0 JDKUMMU M COCPEOTOYUTHCS. XOPOIIO XOTh,



gT0 J[>KO HE UyBCTBYET OOJIH.

Ona pabotana OBICTPO, HO HE TOPOILUIMBO, W HaKOHeN paHa Obuia 3ammTa. OHa CHOBa
poTepiia €€ HACTOEM COOCTBEHHOTO MPHUTOTOBIEHUS, PEIENT KOTOPOTO 3Haja eie OT 0alyIKu.
3ameruB, yto y o0 Ha 70y BhICTyNMJIa MCHapUHA, OHA OOMBbUIa €My JUIO Terjaol Bomoi. Ero
KO’Ka ObLIa XOJIOIHOM U BIAXHOU. Ellle OIMH TI0X0H 3HAaK.

3akpbIB I71a3a, OHA MOAyMalia O TOM, KaKUM CHJIbHBIM ObLT J[)KO paHbIlie U 4YTO MOT Obl OBITH
TakuM U ceryac. M1 oH J0KEeH TaKUM CTaThb.

OTkpbUIaCh IBEPH, U BOLIE [[KUMMH. Y HEro B I1a3ax CTOSUIN CIIE3BbI.

- ITIpoctute, mucc Cenena, Ho MbI ¢ [[xo0...

- Huuero crpammnoro.

JI>KUMMM BCTAJI HA KOJICHU PSIZIOM C HEM.

- KpoBb Gombiiie Teus He OyneT. - OHa moBEpHYIACh K HEMY. - J[?)KO MOXKET MOMpaBUTHCA, HO
ATO MpoU30HJeT He ckopo. [loHuMaenb, s HEe 3HAKO, HE MOBPEXKICHO JU Yy HEro 4To-HUOYIh B
rojioBe. Jlait bor, Bce OymeTr XopoIlo, OH MOMPAaBUTCA, HO OCOOEHHO PAacCUMTHIBATh Ha 3TO HE
MPUXOJIATCSL.

- He npuxogurca? - ['omoc >kuMmu 3aaposxkannt.

- Twl Bce BpeMs JoJbKeH HaxoauThes psaaoM ¢ Jxko. Cinemu, 4ToObl OH HE 3amep3, CMOTPH,
9YTOOBI 37I€Ch OBUIO CBETJIO. A s IPUTOTOBIIIO JIJIsl HETO CIIeI[MAbHbIN Yail U3 Tpas.

- Ho...

- MBI npocTo HallbeM eMy U3 Yaliku B poT. CKOJIBKO-HHOYIb OH MPOMIOTUT. - OHa oOHsIa
JI>KUMMH 32 TUIedH ¥ IPUTsHYJa K cede. - Ho 3To HeMHoro norojis. Ceituac s HUKya HE YiIy.

[Toxoneb6aBumce, J>xkummu Toxke 00Hs1 Ceneny. OHa mpurKana ero eme Kpemye.

- A mory nepenectu [[xo Kyna-HHOynb, TA€ eMy OydeT Jjyuiie. - JIp3iiKk BCIOMHUII CBOETO
noru6miero mieMssHauka. OH Obul ipuMepHO ofgHOoro Bo3pacta ¢ xxummu. A Cenena? HasepHnoe,
3psi OH pelml, 4TO OHa Takas rioxas. OH Tskeno B3noxHyla. Cembda. Kazanocs, B HoBom Opiieane
Cenena - poACTBEHHHIA IJisi BceX. A y Hero He Obuto Hukoro. [laxe Jlxoit Mapu. Ho, yepr
BO3bMU, EMY HUKTO W HE HYKEH.

Cenena noassa miaza, a JKHMMH Ja)xe OTCTPaHWIICS OT HEE M YAUBIEHHO MOCMOTPEIN Ha
Hpoiika.

- Cnacu6o. - OHa cHoBa noiynana rojoBy Jlxo. - Ho ceiiuac ero nydiie He Tporars. HyxHbl
emie onesuta. Hamo, uTo0s! /[0 Obuto Terio, aa u JPKuMMH Hao Ha YEM-TO CIIaTh.

- 060 MHe He OecniokoiiTech, Mucce Cenena. Jlydie cmotpute 3a J[o0. OHa yabIOHYIaCk.

- Sl mpunecy. - OMycTUBIIMCH HA KOJIeHHU, J{palik moctaBui ¢GoHaph Ha TIONI. TOJIBKO CKaXuTe,
41O HYXHO. - OH yOpan ymaBumi Ha 00 CeneHbl BIaXHBIM JIOKOH. - W mpuHecy 4To-HUOYIb
ITOECTb.

- 5l He rononHa, HO JPKUMMU JEWCTBUTENBHO HYKHO IEPEKYCUTb.

JIKUMMH pactipaBUJI IJICUH.

- O cebe 51 cam MOTY T03a00TUThCH.

- 5 3Har0, 4yTO MOXKewsb. - paUK mOCMOTpEN HA HEro, Kak Ha B3pOocCaoro. - Ho mMbl TOIKHBI
nomorath CeJieHe, U €l HY’)KHO KaK CJIEYeT €CTh.

JI>KUMMU KHBHYII.

- Hpoiik, cxomu, moxainyiicta, kK Po3e u pacckaxu eil o cinydumieMcsi. OHa 3HaeT, 4TO MHE
HYy)XHO. W ena, KOHEYHO, HE TOMEIIAET.

JIpa1K KOCHYJICS €€ meya.

- S1 maiimy Bce, 4TO HaZ0, U CKOPO BEPHYCh. B ABEpsSX OH 0OEpHYIICS, HE JKelask OCTaBIsATh UX



OJIHUX.

- 51 o Hux mo3abo4ych, cIp. - JPKUMMM BBIIPSIMUIICS, YTOOBI Ka3aTbCsi KaK MOKHO BBIIIIE.
JIpaViK KUBHYJ U BBILIEIL.

['maBa 7

Tpu nus ciycts ko ymep y Cenenbl Ha pykax. OHa ciaenana BCce, UTO MOIJIa, HO BCE PaBHO
YyBCTBOBaJIa c€0s1 BUHOBATOM. JIPKUMMHM caM BCE TIOHSUI 10 €€ JIUITY U BbhIOEKa Ha YIUILY.

- JlorHats ero? - nocMOTpen Ha ABeph [{paiik.

- Her. Jlaii emy HeMHOro noObITh OJHOMY. OH HE 3aX04€T, YTOOBI MbI BUJEIH €r0 CIIE3bI.

3akpeiB uio J[ko omesuioM, oHa BcTaja. Bee Tenmo Oojeno. OTH JHH OHA COBEPINCHHO HE
criaya, Io4TH HUYEro He ena. Bce 3To BMecTe ¢ MOCTOAHHBIM HaIpsKEHUEM cervac ckaszainock. Ho
OHa Tak crapanach. OHa cTapanach Bcerja, HO MHOTJA €€ YCUIIU ObLT0 HEJOCTATOYHO.

Jpaiik oOxBaTwiI ee 3a IUieud, mpuBjiekas K cebe. OHa MPUCIOHUIIACH K €r0 CUJIBHOMY
TETJIOMY TeJly, XOTs U TOHUMaJla, 4To He JOJKHA 3TOTO JeiaTh, U MOYyBCTBOBaja ce0s CIIOKOMHEH.
OH eii Bpar, HO Kak XOpoIlIo B ero 00bAThaX. OHa 3a/ipoxkaia, U OH Kpemye MpuxKal ee K ceoe.

- TsI cenana Bce, 4TO MOIIIA, - TUXO CKA3aJl OH. - ¥ MOEW Marepu TOXKE MAIlMEHThl MHOTAA
ymupanu. Thl HE Bcerja MOXelllb N00eIUTh CMEPTh.

- 41 31a10, HO OT ATOrO HE Jerye. Teneps [[>KuMMU ocTancs OQUH.

- Hackounpko s y3Ha TeOs 3a 3TH HECKOJIBKO JTHEH, OH HE OJUH.

Ona mocMoTtpena Ha Hero. B mazax J{paiika Obuto BocxulieHne U 4To-To eile. XKenanue? Ona
OTBeJIa B3TJIAI, HO €€ CEeP/Ille HE CTaJIO OT 3TOTO OUTHCS MEIJICHHEE.

- Xouelllb, s OpraHu3yr MOXOPOHBI [[k0?

- Y HEro MHOTO JIpy3€il, OHU 3aXOTSAT CAENaTh 3TO CAMMU.

- MoxeT ObITh, UTO-TO caenaTh it [ pxkummu?

- 51 BO3pMY €ro K cele, - OHa 3aMsulach, BCIIOMHUB €r0 MaJIE€HbKOE YIPsMOE JIMUKKO. - Mnu, o
KparlHen Mepe, MOCTaparCh 3TO CEINIATh.

- Ero Henp3s 0CTaBIsATH OJTHOTO.

- A 3Hat0. - Tspkeno B3AOXHYB, OHA OTCTPAHWIACH OT J[paiika.

YyTh mokoJie0aBIMCh, OH OTIYCTHI €e. BhICBOOOMUBIIMCH, HE OITyIasi OOJIbINIE €r0 CUJIbI, OHa
TOTYAC e MOYyBCTBOBajIa ceOs 3aMep3iiieid 1 u3MoTaHHoM. Ho ecniu oHa U jasnbliie OyAeT Ha HEro
M0JIaraTbCs, TO UX OTHOIIEHHUSI MOTYT 3aTSHYThHCS.

- Cnacu6o 3a nomotib. Thl, HABEpHOE, TOXKE OUCHB ycTald. My moelb U OTAOXHU. 3]IeCh 5 CO
BCEM pa3lepych caMma.

- Trl noit e uckateh JkumMmun?

- la. Y mux ¢ J>ko 371€ech, 3a CKJIaJIOM, JIFOOMMOE MECTEUKO. S qyMaro, OH TaM.

- Onna ThI HE oK Tenb. Celyac yKe riryXast HOYb.

- Bce Oynet xopomo. M JxkuMMmu MHE JTOBEpSIET.

- Mue on noBepsiet Toxe. K Tomy k€ OH HalmOMUHAET MHE MIJIEMSHHUKA.

- Jlagno, xBatut, Jp3uk. - Ceiiyac OHa CIHWILKOM YCTaja JJId CIIOPOB. - 3aMMHCH JIy4lle
CBOHUMH JICJIaMH.

CxBaTuB 3a pyKy, OH IIPUBJIEK €€ K ceOe.

- [loka s B HoBoM Opieane, Bce Mou jiena - 3To Thl. Eciin Tl coOupaenibcsi uckarb JHkKumMmu,
s TIOM Ty ¢ TOOOM.

Ona nokavana rojoBoil. Yto oH roBoput? Beap oHa ero moutu He 3Hana. K Tomy ke OH
npuexan u3-3a xou Mapu.

- Jlanno, Jpa¥ik, uau. 1o HE TBOE Ae10. OH MpUkKall €€ K CBOEH IPyId U HEKHO MOMIaau 1o



CIIMHE.

- Kro TbI: aHren unu npsiBosi? Thl Jleunib JIFONE€W WM BbIMAHWBACUlb Y HUX JIEHBIH? -
JIBU>KEHMS €ro pyK cTtaiu cuiibHee. - KTo Obl Tl HU ObLIa, s XOUYy 3TO 3HATh.

Ona cHOBa BBICBOOOAMIIACH OT HETO.

- Kro s Takas, He umeer 3HaueHus. Celiuac HaM Hajao 1mo3zabotutbes o Jxummu. Ecnu
X04elllb, MONAEM CO MHOM.

Omna cnuikoM yctaja, 4ToObl mpepekarbest ¢ Jpaiikom. Ceityac oHa AOMXKHA yMarh JIUIIb O
TOM, KaK TOMOYb J[>KUMMH.

- Tonbko, moxkanyicra, ckaxu cHadana Kisro o J[xo. OH mo3aboTUTCS 0 TOXOpOHAX.

- XOpo1o, s MUTOM.

Jpalik ckpbUICs 3a 3aHaBeckor, u CeneHa MocMoTpena Ha 3akpbiToe onesuioMm teno [xo. Ha
1a3a HaBEpHYIHCh ciie3bl. OHa HaJesIach, 4TO €My XOPOIIO M CIIOKOWHO TaM, TAE€ OH ceivac
Haxogutcsa. "He Bomnyiics, dxo. S Oyny npucmarpusarh 3a J[XKUMMU, Tak ke, Kak 3TO BCeraa
nenan Tel', - npomentana oHa. Ho ee atu cinoBa He yreumun. OHa NMOBEpHYIach W BBIIUIA Ha
VIIULLY.

Houb Obuta Temnol W BIa)KHOW, HANOJHEHHOM apoMaraMu >XKUMOJIOCTH W MarHonui. U3
"Vronka Kims" moHOCHMINCH MYXCKHE Tojoca: paJoCTHBIe, 3JI00HBIe, mbsiHble. OHa CHOBa
nogymana o JDkuMMu U TIyOoko B3moxHyna. OHa HE 3Hala, KaK CMOXKET IMO03a00TUTBhCA O
MaJIBIUKE, yKe MPUBBIKIIEM KUTh CaMOCTOATeNIbHO. Ho mycTh y Hero OyfeT XoTsi Obl HOpMaJIbHBIN
ZIOM.

Ha ynmuuy Beien JIpauk.

- A s mymai, Thl yluia.

- U Th1 no1ies1 ObI MEHSI UCKATh?

- Jla. - OHn B3su1 ee of pyky. - Kinit mozabotutcs o J[xo.

Cenena He OTBeTWIA U TOBena J[p3lika B OKPYKaBIIyl0 CKJIaJbl TEMHOTY. OHa BCIIOMHHAJIA
JIx0, KakuM OH ObUI BBICOKMM W CHJIBHBIM, KakK cMesuics [[>kuMMu, pa3roBapuBasi CO CBOUM
OoapImM JpyroM. Terneps OHU Apyr Apyra noTepsuid. Ho *u3Hbp mpo1osnKanach.

OHU OCTaHOBWJIMCH Y MAaJ€HbKOW JIauyrd, MOCTPOCHHON U3 OOJIOMKOB JOCOK, mmdepa,
OOpBIBKOB KapTOHA M TKaHW. VI3HYTpU CKBO3b TPEIIMHBI U IIEIH MPOOUBAJICS TYCKJBIM CBET. DTO
BOBCE HE ObUIO MOX0ke Ha JoM, HO CeneHa 3Hajla, 4TO MUMEHHO 3Aech U xuin Jxkummu. OHa
ITOCTY4YaJIa B IBEPb.

Tuumna. [Toctyuana eme pas.

- Yiiaure, - pa3gaics rojoc [>kuMmmu.

- 910 Cenena u [poaiik. Ham Hamo0 ¢ TOO0OM MOTOBOPUTS.

- Ber He cmaciu JIxo.

- Ilpoctu mens. - Eme Hukorna Cenena He yyBCTBOBaJla ce0s Tak IJI0X0. - S clenana Bce, 4To
MOIJIA.

- Mb1 xoTuM nomoub TeOe, [kummu. - JIpaiik MogoXua pyky Ha JIBEpb, U JIa)K€ OT TaKOTO
JIETKOTO MPUKOCHOBEHHUS OHA MOIIATHYIACH.

- Yxonure!

CeneHa 4yTh HE 3amnJaKana.

- Jbkummu, BeIb MbI TOXKE otepsutu Jxo. M HaM Hago, 4TOOBI ceifyac Thl ObUT C HAMH.

Tunmna. 3aTeM IBEpb pacnaxHylach U Mepe] HUMH NOSBUIICS 3ariakaHHbIA [[KumMu.

- Sl nyxeH Bam?!

Kusnyg, CeneHa nomnbITanach yiabIOHYThCS, HO HE CMOTJIa.



- BbI ke ¢ JI’)ko Bcerma Bce Juisi MEHS Jiejiajid, CTOMJIO MHE TOJIBKO HONPOCUTh. M MHE 10o-
MpeXHEMY HY)KHa TBOsI TOMoIIb. K ToMy e TOJIBKO ThI 3HaEIIb 000 BCEM, YTO MPOUCXOIUT B JIOKE.
MBpb1 X0TUM, 94TOOBI THl TOMOT HaM HAaWTH MPOIABIIMX.

JIKUMMH TOAO3PUTEIBHO IOCMOTPEN Ha HUX.

- JIko koe-uto BuAea. OH KOE-4TO 3HAJ O HAIMX JpYy3baX. TeM BEeUYepoM OH KakK pa3s
coOupasncs MHE 00 3TOM paccka3arh.

- Thl Xouelb cKazarb, YTO OH YTO-TO 3HaJ 00 ITHUX HMCUE3HOBEHUSIX, HO YMEp JO0 TOro, KaK
ycnen Tede 00 3TOM pacckaszaTb?

JI>KUMMU KHBHYII.

Hpoatik u CeneHa neperiasHyIuCh.

- 51 xo4y, 4TOOBI THI TOXKKUJ Y MEHS XOTSI ObI HECKOJIBKO JTHEH.

JIKUMMH MOXET TPO3UTh OMACHOCTh. TOJBKO CE€lYac OHa MOAyMaya: TO, YTO CIYyYUIIOCH C
J1K0, MOTJIO OBITH HE CITy4alHBIM.

- Y MeHs €CTh CBOU JIOM, - PEIIMTEIbHO MOJIHUT M0I00pOI0K J>KUMMHU.

- S 3Ha10, HO...

- Ceituac CenieHe HYXHO, YTOOBI PSIOM C HEM ObUI MYXX4YWHA, - cKazan Jlp3¥K, cypoBO
nmocMoTpeB Ha JxuMmu. - Eii Hy)KeH 4enoBEK, KOTOPBIM OMOXKET €M HaUTH Jipy3en. A gymaro, Thl
KaK pa3 TOT, KTO €l HYKEH.

JIKUMMH TOpAO pacipaBuil IIJICUH.

- Xopouo, s moMory. - OH orsisiHyIncs. - ToabKO CHavana Hy»KHO 3al€PETH JIOM.

Korga Jl>xummu ckpeuics B cBoelt nauyre. Cenena yiasiOHynnachk Jpaiiky:

- Cnacu6o. S He cMmoria Obl €ro YTOBOPHTb.

- JIyuiie mo3aboThest 0 HEM Kak cieayeT. CejaeHa HaXMypUIach.

- Twl yMeenb fenaTh eilie 4YTo-HUuOY/b, @ HEe TOJIBKO KOMaHI0BaTh?

Ero B3rsig 3amep Ha ee rydax.

- Jla, elie HEKOTOPBIE BEIIM MOJIYHatOTCA Y MEHS XOpOLIO.

Ona nokavasua roJIoBoM:

- UTO-TO MHE B 3TO HE BEPUTCH.

- 'oToB moOUTKLCA 00 3aKjajl, 4To CMOTY TeOs mepeyoeuTh. - OH marHys OJImxe.

OT Hero BesyI0 HACTOSUIEW MYXKCKOM cuio. EM CHOBa 3ax0Tenoch NpUXarbCi K HEMY,
MOYYBCTBOBaTh €r0 CHIIY, €ro TEIUIO, €ro BiacTh. HO 3TO Bcero JuIib JIeMcTBHUE JTIOOOBHOTO
CHaJ00bs1.

- i roroB! - JI>KUMMM LIATHYNT U3 TEMHOTO JOMA, 3amep JIBEPb U OMYCTUJ YTO-TO B KapMaH.
2710 "4T0-TO" U3BMBANOCH KAK YEPBAK. - ITO - Mnaaumii /[>k0, Mos Jsrymika.

3acMmesBImch, parik mocMotpen Ha Ceseny.

- Xouelb n0TpoHyThca 10 Hee? Torma Tebe Oymer Be3Tu! - JKUMMHU MPOTAHYI JSATYILIKY
Cenene.

[Toxone0aBumch KaKoi-TO MOMEHT, OHA MOTJIauia €€ MaIbIEM.

- CuMnaTuyHas Jisrymka!

Cwmesich, panik B3si1 Mimaamero /o0, TOAHSJI €ro, paccMarpyBas CO BCEX CTOPOH, U OTJAJI
oOpaTHoO.

- 3n0poBbiid. I'11e ThI ero Hatesn?

- On 3abpaincs k HaMm B oM. Ero Hamen /[xo. - xxummu onyctun Mnamiero [[»o B kapmaH.
- Sl moxyman, uro moka Mmaaumii J[)xo OyAeT sKuTh ¢ HaMH.... - Ero ronoc o6opgascs.

- JlagHo, monuiu.



Cenena 3Haja, 4TO ropeBarh - HE CaMoO€ Jy4lllee 3aHITHUE, HO HY)KHO BpPEMsI, UTOOBI 3aKuja
pana J[xummu.

[Io nopore CeneHa BApPYr MOHsUIA, YTO €€ JKU3Hb OYEHb WM3MEHUJIACh C TE€X MOp, KaK B
MarasuHe BIepBble TOsBWICS J[paiik J[3TOoH. XOpoImo 3TO WM 1J10X0, HO 3TO (akT. Ho oHa He
roToBa HU K BCTpPEYE C TaKUM uesIoBeKoM, kak JIpaiik, Hu K 3a00Te o /[kummu u ero Miasiem
JHxo. Tenepb eil mpuaercs mogyMarb 00 OfeXae, €€ U Jaxke 00 00pa3oBaHUU MaJIBIUKA. A 4YTO,
KCTaTH, €IST JISATYIIKU?

Ho Bcityx cBoM cOMHEHUsI OHA HE BbicKaszana. Hanmportus, penmia npuaymarb YTo-HUOYb 715
yremenus J>xummu. Ho Bckope oTkaszamack u OT 3ToM Mbicau. OH co0Opa3uTenbHbIi peOCHOK, U
ero He oOMaHeIb, yOek1as, 9TO OH CUacTIMBEEe, YeM €CTh Ha CaMOM JIeJIE.

Onu uwu mosya. [lomoiins k anteke, CeneHa ObICTPO OTKpbUIA ABEph. Boiias BHYTph, 3axIia
JaMIy Ha HA3KOM CTOJIMKE W KuBHYNa J[>kummu. Korma oH Bollell, OHa CHOBa LIarHyla K JBEpH,
3aropoauB npoxoa Ipauky.

On HaxmypuJICs.

- Ceituac J[>KuMMU HYXHO, YTOOBI PSAOM C HUM ObLT MY)KUMHA.

- Her, emy Hy>XHa martb.

- OH NIPUBBIK K MYXYHUHAaM.

- Ho HyxHBI eMy XeHIMHbL. OHa TOMBITATaCh 3aKphITh JBEPb, HO OH HE Jajl €d 3TOro
CHETaTh.

- Hukorpa eme He BCTpeyasn Takod CIIOPUIULIBL.

- MHe Bce paBHO, 4TO Thl 000 MHE Aymaelb. S... CxBaTuB 3a pyKy, OH BBIIEPHYI €€ Ha YIUILY
Y 3aKpBUI JIBEPb.

- He nano, uroObI J>KUMMU BUJIEI, YTO MBI M3-32 HETO CCOPUMCH.

- Kro on te6e? Thi 31ech uyxoii. Ero pyka Obiia ropsiueii. Bapyr oHa moHsijia, 4To HE MOXET
HE BOCXMILATBCSA €r0 POCTOM, €r0 CUJIOM, €r0 YyBCTBEHHOCTBHIO, W MOHSJIA, YTO €€ OXBATHIBAECT
ctpacth. McmyraBumces 3T0ro, OHa XOT€JIa OTCTYIIUTh, HO OH €€ yIepKall.

- Cenena, mociegHUE HECKOJNbKO IHEW s mpoBen ¢ [kummu. OH HanOMHHAeT MHE
nJIeMsIHHUKA. Sl X04y ocTarbest U TOMOYb. - OHa BRICBOOONIMIIA PYKY. - S CX0XKY B Kape HAIPOTUB U
KYIUTIO TUPOKKOB U Koe. [To-moemy, ceituac onu OyayT HaM BeCbMa KCTaTH.

- Kak s Mmory noBepsiTh Te0e? Belb ThI KIISUICS, UTO pa3pyIMIIb MOE JIEJIO.

Hpaiik mocMmoTpesn Ha BbIBecKy "JIr0OOBHBIX cHanoOuii". OHa clerka MOCKpUIIbIBAjIa OT
JIETKOTO BETEPKa.

- MBI JOJIKHBI TTO O4eper MpucMaTpuBaTh 3a Jkummu. A Tebe ceiiuac Hy»KHO TTOCIIATh.

- Ho Poz3a...

- OHa moMokeT HaMm yTpoM. - OH marHyn Onmxke K Hel. - Ilepectanb GOPOThCS CO MHOWM,
Cenena. - B3s4B 3a mombopomoK, OH TOMHSJ €€ JIMIO, 3aCTaBUB CMOTPETh Ha Hero. - Tebe
00s13aTeIbHO HAJI0 OTJAOXHYTh, & SI C YJAOBOJILCTBHEM TMoOMOry. - OH MEIJIEHHO HaKJIOHUWJICA U
CTPacTHO MOIEJIOBAJI €€ B I'yObL.

OHa pe3ko JepHynach, MOYYBCTBOBAB, KAK €€ HAKpbhUIa TOpAYas BOIHA.

- 5l He Mory oBepsTh TEOE.

- JloBEpbCSt MHE CETOHS.

Omna 3aaporkaina, U, 00EpHYBIIMCH, 3aTISIHYJIa YEPE3 OKHO B KOMHATY. J[>KUMMU ciaji mpsiMO Ha
II0JIy, CBEPHYBIIMCh KaJJaYMKOM, CJIIOBHO IMOTEPSBIIMUCS WICHOK. bosblie CIIOpUTh OHA HE MOIIA.
Hpoiik ipaB. Eif HyxkHa ero moMolip. Beidopa He ObLT0.

- Xopoio.



- Trl He TIOkaneelb 00 3ToM. - [[oBepHYBIIMCH, OH TTOMYAJICS Yepe3 YIUILY.

- 51 yxe 00 3TOM *KaJjero.

Ho 310 oHa cka3ana Tuxo, Tak, 4TOObI OH HE MOT CJbIIaTh. Eil HE XOTeNOCh OBITH PSIAOM C
Hpoatikom [Ipntonom. JIto00BHOE CHa00bE 0Ka3aja0Ch CIUIIKOM CHIIBHBIM. OHa X0Tela, YTOOBI OHO
MO/ CTBOBAJIO TOJBKO Ha HETO, HO Ka)KeTCsl, cama rormnajia B CoOOCTBEHHYIO JIOBYIIKY. Ha ynunie e
CTaJI0 XOJOAHO, U OHA, IPOTHAB MBICJIH O [pa¥ike, BOLUIA B JOM.

BoiMoTanHbIl 3a mocneanue auu, [J>xkummu cnan. XKanko Obuto ero OyauTh, 1 OHA OCTaBUJIA
MaJIBiMKA TaM, IJI€ OH Jiexkasl. 3axmia Opa W HampaBWJIACh B JIAJIbHUM KOHEI| Mara3uHa. B3siB ¢
pabouero croia TOJCTYIO OJIeTHO-TOIYOYIO Iajib, OHA YKpbUIa J>KUMMHU.

Jlaxxe B pBaHbE, C IEPENAaYKaHHBIM JIMIIOM U B3JIOXMAa4Y€HHBIMH BOJIOCAMH, OH BBITJIAIEC] OYEHD
cumnarnuabiM. U Takum oguHokuM. Kak [paitik. Ona yneionynack. [loueMy oHa ceifyac momymasa
o HeM? JIpaiik, KOHEYHO ke, He Obul Oe33almMTHBIM pebeHkoM. Y Hero B Texace paHYo, OH
He3aBucuM. M HUKTO emy He HyxkeH. [Ipsamo kak /[xummu. Ho JIxxkuMMmu ObUT O4EHB YS3BUM, XOTS
Y CTapalics He MMOIaBaTh BUIY.

He crout ngymare o [paiike J[pJITOHE KaK O HYKIAIOLIEMCS YEJI0BEKE. TakOMy CUIIBHOMY, KaK
OH, HUKTO HE HYyXeH. 1 oHa B Tom unciie. OH Xo4eT pa3pylnmTh €e OM3HEC, U OHA JIOJKHA 00 3TOM
MOMHUTH. U TymaTh TOIBKO O ceOe U JIF0JISX, KOTOPhIM OHA HY)KHA.

3a aBeppto nocielmainca myMm. CelleHa yIMBIEHHO MOCMOTpENa B OKHO, YBHJAEIA B TEMHOTE
JIpaiika U OTKpbUIA ABEPD.

- Cnmacu6o0. A TO y MEeHA 3aHATHI pyKH. - JIpoHK Hec JBe Yallkul B OAHOM pyKe W YallKy U
OyMakHblii maker B japyrod. CeyneHa B3sla Yy HEro IaKeT, OOparuB BHUMAaHHE, KAaKUMU
MO3OJIUCTBIMU ObUTH ero pyku. OHa BAPYT MpEACTaBUiIa, KaK OH MPUKACAETCS STUMH MajbllaMU K
€€ HeXKHOM KOoXe. ITa MBICIIb €€ MOTPsCia, U OHA OBICTPO OTOrHAaja ee.

Hpoatik mocMmoTtpen Ha J[KuMMHU, yIbIOHYICA U noiien Bejaes 3a CeleHou.

- [Ipore cBsi3aTh TEJIEHKA, YEM TAIMTh BCE ATO.

- Cnacu6o0. - OHa B3siJla y HETO YalllKy ¥ TTOCTaBUJIa Ha CTOJ.

OH nmocTaBuJ OCTAJIBHBIE.

- HaBepHoe, Hano pazoyauts Kummu.

- 3amax NUPOKKOB YK€ ciesiall 3T0. MoXKeIb yOoeuThCsl.

Hpo3iik omsiHyncs. JKMMMH TOTSHYIICS, BBIOpalicd H3-MOI WAJTM W, NpPOTUpas Ivasa,
HAIPaBUJICA K HUM.

Cenena paszopBaja TIakeT, BOJIICOHBIM apomar cTajl e€Ile CUJIbHee, W BIPYr OHa
IMOYYBCTBOBAJIA, YTO YMHUPAET C rojoay. Jpauk nmpuHEC enie ABa CTyJa, U OHU CEJIH.

JI>KUMMH TIOTSHYJICS K Jaike ¢ kode, Ho J{paiik moABHHYI K HEMY APYTYIO.

- Bam M010K0O, MOJIOJIOM Y€IOBEK.

Jl>xumMu He Bo3pakai. OH MPUHSIICS 32 TUPOXKKHU, OCTAHABIMBASACH TOJIBKO JJI TOTO, YTOOBI
OTXJICOHYTh MOJIOKA. JIpaHiKk CMOTpEIT Ha HEero, ¥ Ha ero rydax mosiBUjiach JI0BOJIbHAsI YIIBIOKA.

- Xopomio, 4yTo Thl Aoraaaicsa B3sATh Moyoko. Ceiluac JIp3iik ObUT HE TaKuMM, Kak BHayaje:
nobpee, BHUMateabHee. OH el CIUIIKOM HPaBUJICS.

- Jlxxkummu Haso pactu. Ha panuo Mbl mouiu Obl €ro MOJIOKOM U YTpoM U BeuepoM. OH BBIpOC
OBl BBICOKHMM 1 CUJIbHBIM.

- A Ha 4TO0 moxoxa kopoBa? - JILDKUMMH ¢ HHTEpECOM mocMoTpen Ha J[paiika.

- 3Haenb, koposa... Hy, oHu OBIBAaIOT pas3HBIE.

- C Humu omnacHO? - JI>KUMMM Jja’Ke mepecTal xKeBaTh.

- C HEKOTOPBIMHU - J1a. 3al|Inas CBOero pedeHKa, MaTh MOXKET HaMOTaTh TBOU KHUIIKH ceOe Ha



pora. IlosToMy Hamo €3AUTH Ha JIOMIAJAM M BO3UTH ¢ co00H jacco. UToObl moiiMarh KOPOBY, €€
CHayaJsa HaJ0 3aapKaHUTh U CBA3aTh.

Y JIKuMMU 3aropeiucs Iiiasza.

- Te1 HacTOsITIMIA KOBOOM? J[paliK KUBHYI:

- OT10 TspKEnas pabora.

- Koneuno, - orBetun J>xummu. - HaBepHoe, mo3ToMy KOBOOM Takue rpyobie. Moxer ObITb, 5
TOXE CTaHy KOBOOEM, KOT/la BhIPACTY.

- S mymana, 4TO XO4elllb CTaThb MOPSIKOM. - MaJIbiMKy HE CTOWJIO BBIOMpPATh JJI MOJIpaXKaHUs
YeJIOBEKA, KOTOPBIA CKOPO YEIET.

- D10 5 TOXKE X0uy. - ['ma3a J[>kuMMu BocxuIleHHO Onectenn. Jpaiik 3acmestics:

- [IpukanuunBait Mosioko, KoJsiera. Tede Hy)KHO ObITh CUIIbHBIM, YTOOBI CBSI3bIBATH OBIYKOB.

- Xoportio. - JIxKuMMH OBICTPO JTOTTUJI MOJIOKO. J[paiik XoTen 3akphITh "JIF000BHBIE CHan00bs".
Tenepsr BoT [[Pkummu uM Bocxuiaercs. CejeHa ObUla ys3BJIEHA 3TUM TeXaclleM U 0osulach €ro.
Ecnu ona He OyzneT ocTOpoXKHEH, y Hee MOTYT ObITh HEMPUATHOCTH. OHa MOAHSIACh U3-3a CTOJA.

- JIxummu, mo-moemy, tebe mopa cmarb. YTpOM Tbl Oyaemnlb ceOsi 4yBCTBOBATh HAMHOTO
Jy4lIIe.

- Mue yxe nyde. - JIxummu Beitanma Mimaamero /o u momtaauia ero. - J[)Ko xouer crarb
KOBOOEM.

- Mory nocnopuTh, U3 HETO BBIMJET TONK. - Jpaiik momHsuicsa. - Ho koBOOM TOXXe JTOKHBI
OT/ABIXATh.

JlxumMMu Bctan, mocMoTpenl Ha Jlpoiika, MemjieHHO KUBHYIT W yopan Mnammero J[xo B
KapMaH.

- Xopomio. 1 koBOOM Bceria moMoraroT Jeau, aa?

- Ja.

CeneHna cMoTpelia Ha HUX, M €M Ka3ajoch, 4TO B mm1azax Jpsiika crosT cie3bl. HeT, koHeuHO,
7T0 onmbka. OH ObUT BCETO JIMIIL TPYOBIM, Pa3BsI3HBIM KOBOOEM.

- Mucc Cenena, s TOMOTry BaM yTpoM. - JIXKUMMH CTOSIT IEpET HEW, TOPAO BBITPSIMHUBLIKCH.

- Cnacub6o, J>xummu. Kak pa3 Hajg HamMu - MajeHbKash KOMHara. Tam KpoBaTh, Ha KOTOPOMl
nHoraa crut Po3za. Jlymaro, Tam Tebe OyaeT yao0Ho.

JIPKUMMU KUBHYIL, I0-TIPE)KHEMY HE CBOJ v1a3 ¢ JIpouka.

- O kei, napenb. [lonum Teds yknaaeBath; - JIpaiik HOCMOTpEIT Ha IBEPb.

- A TBI TOXE OCTAaHEWILCA 3/IECh? - C HAAEKA0U cupocu JKUMMH.

Hpoiik B3rsHyn Ha Cereny.

- Her, Ipatiky ecTh, rJie HOUEBaTh. 3/1eCh HET OOJIBINE KOMHAT.

Ona B3s1a JaMy.

- Ho 31€eck cTonbko MecTa.

- 3aBTpa yTpOM s BEpHYCh. - [ 0onoc [paiika ctan XpUIibiM, CJIOBHO OH M MPaBaa JyMall O TOM,
HE MPOBECTH JIM HOUb ¢ CeNeHOM.

OHa nmojomnuia K BeAylIed Ha JICCTHUILY IBEPH, TAKOW HU3KOM U MAJIEHBKOM, UTO €€ IMOYTH HE
ObU10 3aMeTHO. [loAHsBIIMCH HaBEpX, OHA MOCTAaBUJIA JIAMITy Ha CTOJMK Yy KPOBaTu U paclpaBuiia
OZIeSJ10, CIIMTOE eIl 0a0yIKoii. DTOT PUCYHOK: O€ible TOYKH, 3BE3THOM IBUILIO pa30pOCaHHBIC 110
TeMHOMY (pOHY, OueHb HpaBuJics crapoi xkeHmmHe. Korma CeneHa 3axomuiia B 3Ty KOMHATy, i
Ka3aJIOCh, UTO 0a0yIka He3PUMO MPUCYTCTBYET PSIOM.

Ona omisiaena Mal€HbKYI0O KOMHATKy, B KOTOPOM XpaHHJIAa TPaBbl M YK€ BBIIOJIHEHHbBIC
3aKa3bl. 371eCh OBLIO MPOCTO U YIOTHO.



JI>KUMMU BOIIIENT CIIEIOM, OTISAMENCS M, OJOOPUTEIHLHO KHWBHYB, cel Ha KpoBaTh. CKUHYB
OOTHUHKH, OH TTOCMOTpPEN Ha B3POCIIBIX.

- YTpom MBI TeOs uckymaeMm. - OHa momymana, uyto Oalyiika cienana Obl 9TO B IMEPBYIO
o4Yepelib, HO Ha CETOJIHS C HETO M TaK JOCTATOYHO HOBBIX BIEYATICHUH.

JIKUMMU HaxXMypuwicsi U MOCMOTpEN Ha MPHUCIOHUBIIETOCS K CTE€HE WU Pa3mIsIbIBAIOILIETO
KOMHaTty JIpaiika.

- 5l e Oyny pazaeBaThes npu xeHumHe! [[paiik paccmestics.

- 5 moramy nammy, - cka3zana CeneHa, HallpaBJssACh K ABEPH.

- CriokoriHOM HOYH, /[>kruMMU. - OCTaBUB IBEPh NPUOTKPHITOM, OHA TTOBEPHYIACH K [[pauKy. -
51 Xouy IOTOBOPUTH C TOOOIA.

Jpaiik mpuskan majen K ryoam, MmokasbiBasi, YTO HE XOYeT, YTOObl MX cliblman [KuMmmu, u
yKa3aj Ha BEAYILYO BHU3 JIECTHHILY.

I'naBa 8

Hpouik omsiaen koMHary CeneHbl, CIYKUBIIEH € ONHOBPEMEHHO CIIabHEW M TOCTHHOM. Y
aBepu crosia coda, oOTaHyTas 3eieHbM enkoM. Han Heil B MacCHMBHOM 30JI0TOM paMe BHcella
HallMCaHHAs MaclioM KapTHHA, U300pakarolas 3akar HaJl OKEaHOM, a PAJOM C HEH - HECKOJIbKO
MaBIMHBUX MEPHEB. Y cOPbI, HA MAICHPKOM HOYHOM CTOJIMKE JieXkKada PacKpbhITas KHUTA. Y CTECHBI
mkad ¢ KHUTaMH.

B npyrom KoHIlE KOMHArbl - KpOBaTh IOJ aJbiM MOKPHIBAJIOM C 3E€JIEHBIMH M PO30BaTO-
JIMJIOBBIMU 1IBETAMH, PSJOM OKHO C Y30p4arbIMH 3aHABECKAMHU. Y IPYrod CTEHbI MOMEMIAIUCH
rapiepod ¥ MaJeHbKHH CTOJUK, MOKPBHITHIA IUIATKOM B TE€X K€ PO30BATO-JIMJIOBBIX TOHAX U C
O0axpomoii. Ha Hem nexanu pacuecka, HIETKa M Jpyrue HeoOXxoauMmble KeHUMHe Beum. Ha momy
LIBETACTBI KOBEP.

- CuMnaruyHo. - J{p3liKy BOBCE HE XOTEJIOCh 3TO MPU3HABATh, HO YeM OOJIbILE Y3HABAJ OH O
Cenene, Tem OOJbIIIE OHA €My HPaBUJIACH.

- Cnacu6o. 31ech He 0COOEHHO MPOCTOPHO, HO JUISi MEHS MECTa BIIOJHE JOCTaro4Ho. A 3a
ATOM JIBEPbI0 MAJICHbKAsl KyXHS U BaHHAS.

Ona HepBHHYANIa U3-3a TOrO, 4yTo JIp3lK okazalics B €€ cnaibHe. He cTonio npuBoguTh €ro
CIOJ1A.

- MoxHO 4 cany?

OH cell, a OHa yCTPOWJIACh B CTOSIBLICH PSIOM Kayajke, TAe Tak JIIoOWiIa cusieTh ee 0alylka.
Eil cpa3y BCHOMHWINCH UX JUIMHHBIE pa3roBopbl. OHA Tak CUJENa WM Jexana IpsaMo Ha MOy U
Clylayia, Kak MOCKpUIbIBaeT Kadanka. Eif oueHr He xBaranmo 0alyliku, HO OHA OTOTHama ATy
MBICIIb.

- Tax 0 uem xe MbI OyzieM TOBOPUTH? - OHA KPETKO CKajla PyKH.

- Hamo peunmtsb, uro mbl Oynem nenarb ¢ JkumMmu. S He xody, 4TOObI OH CIIBIIIAJ HAaIll
pasroBop.

- 34ech, [yMalo, y Hac HE BO3HUKHET HUKakux mpobiem. Teds 3To mpocto He Kacaercs. S
I[EHI0O TBOI IMOMOIIb, HO CKOPO ThI YyeJellb JOMOW, WU HE Hajuo, uyToObl J[>kummu k Tebe
npuBs3biBajca. Ero u tak yxe opocaiu.

- bpocanu! - [Ipsiik momHsics u 3amarani 1o KoMHare. - Sl Hukorga 3toro He caenar. Cenena
MMOKaYMBaJIach B Kpeclie.

- Ter He u3 HoBoro Opneana. Tol yenmemms momoit, a J>kummu ocranercs 3necb. O HeM
103a00TATCS €T0 JIPY3bsl.

- Twl uMeenb B BUY ce0s?



- Sl npucMOTpIO, YTOOBI C HUM BCE OBLIIO XOPOIIO.

- Yro xopomo? Kak Tbl 3a HUM nOpucMoTpulib? - JIp3WK BcTanm HanpoTuB Hee. - OH
HallOMHHAET MHE MOETO IUIeMsHHUKA. Sl He cMOTr ero yoepeub, HO TEMeph X0y M03a00TUTHCS O
JO>KUMMU.

Cenena nogasnack. OHHU CTOSUIM JIMIIOM K JIMIYy, 1 OHA MOYYBCTBOBAJIA TEIUIO €ro Tena. Ee
MBICJIM BAPYT 3aMETaJUCh, 3aXOTEJIOCh NMPUKOCHYThCS K Hemy. Pa3o3nuBumch Ha cebs, oHa
OTCTYIIHJIA.

- Tel MeHs oOmxaenb. Jlymaenps, 6€3 T€Os HUKTO HE CMOKET M03a00TUTHCS HU O cede, HU O
KOM-HUOyIb Japyrom? - OHa cxkajna Kylakd, paaysich, 4TO pa3o3iwiach. Tak BOT, JO TBOETO
npuesaa B Hoserit Oprean 31ech MpeKpacHO 00XOauIuch 6e3 Te0s!

OH marHyn K HEW, B3DISIHYB HAa HEE CY3UBIIMMHUCS OT 3JI0CTHM Dnazamu. Ho oHa He
HIETIOXHYJIACh.

- A J1Be II0KUHBI TBOMX MPONABLIKX JIpy3eii? O HUX ThI TOXE 3a00TUIIACH?

Ona oTcTynuiia U OTBEPHYJIACH.

- Cmotpu Ha MeHs! - mpukazan [paiik. [logoiias k kpoBaTH, OHA 00EPHYJIACH:

- MHe He3aueM Ha TeOsl CMOTpPETh, He3aueM TeOs ciymarh. Thl MHE COBEPIIEHHO HE HYKEH.
Vxomu!

Jpaiik ObICTpO MOAOIIET K HEeM, CXBATUJI 32 PYKHU U TTOBEPHYI K cele.

- ThI TBEpAUIIB 3TO C TEX ITOP, KAK MBI B IIEPBBIN Pa3 BCTPETUIIUCK.

Ona nonsITaIach BBICBOOOIUTHCS, HO OH JIMIIb YCUITUIT XBaTKY.

- Bce He Tak mpocto. Cenena. - 3aBest pykH €d 3a CIIHMHY, OH 3a)ajl UX TaM OJHOM PYKOM.
Jpyroii ke cTajg BbIHUMAarb Yy HEE H3 BOJOC 3aKOJKHU. KalrraHoBbIE BOJOCHI CTPYSILIMMCS
BOJIONAJIOM yIajid €i Ha ciiuHY. B3siB 32 moa00pOo/I0K, OH MOAHSII €1 TOJIOBY, YTOOBI OHA CMOTpEa
Ha HETO.

- IIpexpartu! - B30ecuBumch, OHa TONBITATACh COMMPOTUBIIATHCS, HO HE CMOIJIa BBIPBATHCH.

Jpaiik mpucTaibHO CMOTpen Ha Hee. Ero uyBCTBeHHBIE, ropsiure ry0bl KOCHYIHCH ee pTa. OHa
IOIIBITANAaCh OTBEPHYTHCS, HO OH €M He m03BoIWJI. He Ha myTKy pa303J1uBIIMCh, OHA YKYCHJIA €T0 32
ryOy u o0pajioBajiack, IOUyBCTBOBaB BKYC KpoBH. [10/1HSB rojioBY, OH 3arJIsIHYJ €i B ri1asa.

- Twl x0uenb kazaTbes Tpyooit?

- 51 xouy, 4TOOBI THI yIied. - OHa TSDKENO Jblaia, YyBCTBYs, KaK IIPU KaXKJIOM B3JI0XE €€ IPpylb
KacaeTcs ero Tea.

On 00Hsn ee. [IpepbIBUCTO B3JOXHYB, OHA IOMbBITATACh COOPATHCS C MBICISIMU, COBIAJATh C
sMmonusamu. OHa kajena, 9YTo pelmia IPUroTOBUTh JIF000BHOE CHano0be mis Jpaiika JlpaTona. Ilo
pacckazaMm OHa 3Hajla, KaKMe 4YyBCTBAa OBJIAJIEBAIOT YEJIOBEKOM, KOrja OH BiroOssieTcs. Bee ato
OYEHb OIACHO.

- 5l He cobuparoch yxoauTh. [Toka. - OH cHOBa HaKJIOHWIICS K HEl. - [lorenyii MeHs..

- 3aueM?

- i tak xouy. CKkaXu MHE, YTO ThI TOKE 3TOTO XOUYEIIb.

Cenena 3akonebanacs. OHa 0osu1ach MONACTh B JIOBYILKY, HO JOJIKHA ObLIa IOMHUTH O CBOEH
nenn. Jpavik mo-npexHeMy XO04eT MPUKPBITh €€ neto. M ecnm 3TuM morenyeM OHa 3aCTaBUT €r0
ce0s MoIIOOUTh, 3HAUUT, TOJKHA 9TO CIEIaTh.

Ona 3akpsuia m1aza, Ho [poiik ee He morenoBaj. BMecTo 3TOro OH OCTOPOXKHO TpHKaJl €€
JIMIIO K CBOEH Tpyau M Jiep>Kall TaK HECKOJIbKO JA0iTuX cekyHl1. OHa crbliliajia OMeHre ero cepaia,
YyBCTBOBaJIa €ro 3anax. OH cTajg MEIJIEHHO ITaJuTh €€ BOJIOCHL

Ona poOuBanach He 3Toro. I'HeB, 00ib - Bce 3TO OHa Momia cHectd. Ho or msrkocru,



HEKHOCTH €1 XOTeJIOCh yOexXaTh U CIpATaThCs. Jlanexo-aanexo.

Ona BBICBOOOIMIIA PYKH M TIOJIOKHIIA MX EMY Ha TIJICUH.

- OOHMMU MEHS, - MPOU3HECa OHa.

N cHoBa ee oxBaruia yxac. OHa myTuiia ¢ orieM. OH cTaHOBWICS Il Hee Bce omacHee. Ho
OHa Wrpajia B 3Ty UTPY, MOCKOJbKY CTaBKa ObLJIa CIUIIKOM BbicOKa. OHa IMpoBesia pyKoH IO ero
TYCTBIM BOJIOCAM M TYT K€ MOYYBCTBOBAJA, YTO €€, CIIOBHO HOX, MMPOH3UJIO KEJTaHUE.

OH cHOBa 3amisiHyA € B maza. OcTayicst JOBOJIEH TEM, UTO B HUX YBHUJEN, U, HAKJIOHUBIIUC,
KOCHYJICA ee rydamu. OH MOILIeIoBal €€ CHavajia OCTOPOKHO, MOTOM Kpemye.

- Kak sto mpekpacHo, - xpurmio mpoientan oH. OHa He A0KHA ero xoTeTh. OHa 00s3aHa
B3iTh ce0s B pyku. Ho OH mpoBen s3pIKOM 10 ee rydaM, U OHa, 3aCTOHAB, ellle CHIIbHEE MPUKalach

K HEMY.
- Jlait MHe monenoBaTh T€0s MO-HACTOSILEMY.
- 41... Xoporo.

N cpa3y ke ero sA3bIK OKaszajcs y Hee BO pry. Ee oxBarui xap, HOTU CHEJIAIUCh BaTHBIMU.
Tenepp el yke HUYEro He OCTABAJIOCh, KPOME KAaK CXBAaTUTHCA 3a HETO U OTBETUTH HA CTPACTHBIN
nonenyil. Ero si3pik nmpoHuKan e B poT Bce Myoxke, mydas ee. OHa Bcs mbuiana. Teneps yxxe oHa
HHUKOT/Ia €T0 He 3a0y/IerT.

JIroboBHOE CHa/OObE MOACHCTBOBAIO M Ha Hee. B KakoW-TO MOMEHT CTpax B3sUl BepX Hal
CTPacThblO, U OHA OTIPSHYJIA, HACKOJIBKO 3TO ObUIO B €€ CUjax.

- Cenena?

Omna npuxanach rojioBoM K €ro 1jiedy v momnbITagach coOpaThes C TyXOM.

[lornmaxuBas 1o CuHE, OH MPHXKaJ ee K ceoe.

- 5l He oOmxy TeOs.

3agpokaB, OHa OTCTynwjia. HO OH MO3BONMII € OTOMTH JIWIIb HA PACCTOSHUE BBITIHYTOU
PYKH.

- 51 xouy Te06s1, THI Xouenb MeHs. J[aBaii 3a0yaeM o "JI10O00BHBIX CHaTOObSX".

- A yrpom? - Eit 6110 Bce TpyziHEE POTUBOCTOATH EMY.

- He gymaii 00 aTom. /lymaii o Hac.

- Her. - Ona nepHynachk u BbICBOOOIUIIACK. - JIydie yxoau, Jpatik. OH 10JIro Moyall.

- Moxert, Thl U MpaBa, - Tpydo cKa3all OH. - XBaTUT C MEHS 0eCCEePICUHBIX KECHIIMH.

B36emenHas, oHa pe3ko 00epHYIIach U yBUJIEIA, KaK OH BBIXOIUT U3 KOMHAThL. OH CITyCTHIICS,
MpOIIET Yepe3 anTeKy, MOTOM XJIOMHYNa BXoaHast JBepb. Eil xoTenock modexarsb 3a HUM, BEPHYTD,
4TOOBI BHOBb OKYHYTHCS B €T0 TEILIO U CTPACTh, HO OHA HE CJieJialia HY 1ary.

Her, ona e HacTompko miyma. Celiuac oHa pasaeHeTcs U JisbKeT cmarh. Hayrpo Bce Oymer
npoie. OHa 3a0ygeT 000 BceM. PenmB Tak, oHa mojonuia K KpoBaTU U C YAUBICHUEM 3aMeETHUJIa,
YTO Y HEE IPOKAT PYKH.

PaccTpoenHas, kak HUKOT/a, OHA JIeTyIa, HEe pa3J/ieBasiCh, M, HATSHYB Ha CeOs Ollesio, 3aKphlia
rJ1asa.

ek

Cenena orcrynuiia ot [[>KUMMU U yIOBIETBOPEHHO YIbIOHYNAck. OH ObUT YHUCT, MOACTPUKEH,
Ha HEM OBUIM HOBBIE KOPUYHEBBIC OPIOKHM U pyOallka B TOJyOyl0 U KOpUYHEBYIO KieTKy. OH ke
BMECTO TOTO, YTOOBI paJI0BAThHCs, HA0OOPOT, XMYPHIICS.

- Hy kak, 3akoHumna meHs pachydsipuBars? - JLKMMMH BBITAIMII M3 KapMaHa Miasiero
JI0 ¥ TTOTJIainI €To.

CeneHa ynbIOHyaCh:



- Ha.

- Torma s moiiny mocMoOTpro, Kak TaM Jena, U MonpoOyro 4TO-HUOYAb BBISICHUTH O HaIMX
MpONaBIMX ApY3bsiX. - OH cHOBa nosioxkui Mnaamero /[>ko B KapMaH.

- bynb octopoxen! - Bbbuio Obl Jydille OCTaBUTh €ro 3jaech, B Oe3omacHocTu. Ho oHa
MIPEKPACHO 3HaJIa, YTO OH HE MOTEPIUT HUKAKOTO HAXKNUMa.

Han nBepbro 3BIKHYI KOJIOKOJBYUK, U B anTeKy Bouuu Jlxou Mapu u ['ycras.

- Jlobpoe yrpo! - JIxoit Mapu OwicTpo noiienoBana CelieHy B 1IEKy U 3ametwna JIKuMmu. -
KTo0 310 Takon?

JI>KUMMU HAaXMypHIICS.

- Jlbxkummu, s Xouy mo3HakoMuTh TeOs ¢ ot Mapu [paton u I'yctaBom JloMUHHKOM. -
Cenena mogomuia K MaJIbUHKY.

- IIpuser, xnummu. - Y kot Mapu Ha mia3a HaBEPHYIUCH CJIE3bl. - Thl HAIIOMHWJI MHE
MOETO ChIHA.

- Sl Mory B3sITh €10 ¢ CO0OM B JIOK, - orjsien ee JKuMmu.

- Het, oH He MoeT moiTu ¢ ToOOM. - J[>xoii Mapu BbIHYIIA TJIATOK U BBITEpIIa mias3a. - C HUM
IIPOU301IET HECYACTHBIN citydail. OH moruo.

- To e camoe cirydnItoch ¢ MOUM JIpyrom JIxo.

- MHe oueHb xainb. - [[>xoit Mapu ¢ coctpaganuem nocmotpena Ha Ceineny. - Mory s 1715 Bac
YTO-HUOY/b ClIeNaTh?

['ycraB marayn Brepe, BHUMATENBHO paccMoTpel [>)xummu u nepesen B3 Ha Ceneny.

- Me1 ObuTH OBI pajibl EMY IOMOYb. Y HEr0 €CTh POAUTENH?

CeneHa OTpULIATENBHO TTOKaYasa TOJI0BOM.

- Hexoropoe Bpems /[>xummu noOyaeT y MeHs..
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It seemed but moments later that a rock to my left shimmered and emitted a bell-like tone.
Without conscious intent my attention gathered itself at my ring, which Suhuy had referred to as a
spikard. I realized in that instant that I was preparing to use it to defend myself. Interesting, how
familiar I felt with it now, how adapted I seemed to have become to it in so short a time. I was on my
feet, facing the stone, left hand extended in its direction when Suhuy stepped through the shining
place, a taller, darker figure at his rear. A moment later and that figure followed him, emerging into
substantiality and shifting from an octopal ape form to that of my brother Mandor, humanized, wearing
black as when last I had seen him, though the garments were fresh and of a slightly different cut, his
white hair less tousled. He quickly scanned the area about us and gave me a smile.

"I see that all 1s well," he stated.

I chuckled as I nodded toward his arm in its sling.

"As well as might be expected," I replied. "What happened in Amber after I left?"

"No fresh disasters," he answered. "I stayed only long enough to see whether there was anything
I could do to be of assistance. This amounted to a little magical clearing of the vicinity and the
summoning of a few planks to lay over holes. Then I begged leave of Random to depart, he granted it,
and I came home."

"A disaster? At Amber?" Suhuy asked.

I nodded.

"There was a confrontation between the Unicorn and the Serpent in the halls of Amber Palace,
resulting in considerable damage."

"What could have occasioned the Serpent's venturing that far into the realm of Order?"

"It involved what Amber refers to as the Jewel of Judgment, which the Serpent considers its
missing eye."

"I must hear the entire tale."

I proceeded to tell him of the complicated encounter, leaving out my own later experiences in the
Corridor of Mirrors and Brand's apartments.

While I spoke, Mandor's gaze drifted to the spikard, to Suhuy, and back.

When he saw that I noted this he smiled.

"So Dworkin is himself once more ...?" Suhuy said.

"I didn't know him before," I replied. "But he seemed to know what he was about."

"... And the Queen of Kashfa sees with the Eye of the Serpent."

"I don't know that she sees with it," I said. "She's still recovering from the operation. But that's
an interesting thought. If she could see with it, what might she behold?"

"The clear, cold lines of eternity, I daresay. Beneath all Shadow. No mortal could bear it for too
long."

"She 1s of the blood of Amber," I said.

"Really? Oberon's?"

I nodded.

"Your late liege was a very active man," he observed. "Still, it would be quite a burden of
seeing, though I speak only from guesswork-and a certain knowledge of principles. I've no idea what
may come of this. Only Dworkin could say. Be he sane, there is a reason for it. I acknowledge his
mastery, though I've never been able to anticipate him."



"You know him, personally?" I asked.

"I knew him," he said, "long ago, before his troubles. And I do not know whether to rejoice or
despair in this. Recovered; he may be working for the greater good. Then again, his interests may be
totally partisan."

"Sorry I can't enlighten you," I said. "I find his actions cryptic, too."

"I'm baftled also," Mandor said, "by the disposition of the Eye. But it still sounds pretty much a
local matter, involving Amber's relations with Kashfa and Begma. I don't see that there 1s anything to
be gained at this point by speculation. It's better keeping most of our attention for more pressing local
matters."

I felt myself sigh.

"Such as the succession?" I suggested. Mandor quirked an eyebrow.

"Oh, Lord Suhuy has briefed you already?"

"No," I replied. "No, but I heard so much from my father of the succession in Amber, with all its
cabals, intrigues, and double crosses, that I almost feel an authority on the subject. I imagine it could
be that way here, too, among the Houses of Swayvill's descendants, there being many more
generations involved."

"You have the right idea," he said, "though I think the picture might be a bit more orderly here
than it was there."

"That's something, anyway," 1 said. "For me, I intend to pay my respects and get the hell out.
Send me a postcard telling me how it gets settled."

He laughed. He seldom laughs. I felt my wrist prickle where Frakir usually rides.

"He really doesn't know," he said, glancing at Suhuy.

"He's just arrived," Suhuy answered. "I hadn't the time to tell him anything."

I groped in my pocket, located a coin, withdrew it, and flipped it.

"Heads," I announced, on inspection. "You tell me, Mandor. What's going on?"

"You're not next in line for the throne," he said. It being my turn to laugh, I did.

"I already knew that," I said. "You told me not that long ago, over dinner, how long the line was
before me-if someone of my mixed blood could be considered at all."

"Two," he said. "Two stand before you."

"I don't understand," I said. "What happened to all the others?"

"Dead," he replied.

"Bad year for the flu?"

He gave me a nasty smile.

"There has been an unprecedented number of fatal duels and political assassinations recently."

"Which sort dominated the field?"

"The assassinations."

"Fascinating."

"... And so you three are under black watch protection of the Crown, and were given into the
care of your respective Houses' security."

"You're serious."

"Indeed."

"Was this sudden thinning of the ranks a matter of many people simultaneously seeking
advancement? Or was it a smaller number, removing roadblocks?"

"The Crown is uncertain."

"When you say ‘the Crown,' who, exactly, are you referring to, right now? Who's making



decisions in the interim?"

"Lord Bances of Amblerash," he replied, "a distant relative and longtime friend of our late
monarch."

"I sort of recall him. Could he have an eye on the throne himself, and be behind any of the-
removals?"

"The man's a priest of the Serpent. Their vows bar them from reigning anywhere."

"There are usually ways around vows."

"True, but the man seems genuinely uninterested in such a thing."

"That needn't preclude his having a favorite, and maybe helping him along a bit. Is anybody near
the throne particularly fond of his Order?"

"To my knowledge, no."

"Which doesn't mean someone mightn't have cut a deal."

"No, though Bances isn't the sort of man one would approach easily with a proposition."

"In other words, you believe he's above whatever's going on?"

"In the absence of evidence to the contrary."

"Who is next in line?"

"Tubble of Chanicut."

"Who's second?"

"Tmer of Jesby."

"Top of the line, your pool," I said to Suhuy.

He showed me his teeth again. They seemed to rotate. "Are we at vendetta with either Chanicut
or Jesby?" I asked.

"Not really."

"We're all just taking care then, huh?"

"Yes."

"How did it all come to this? I mean, there were a lot of people involved, as I recall. Was it a
night of the long knives, or what?"

"No, the deaths have been occurring steadily for some time. There wasn't a sudden bloodbath
when Swayvill took his turn for the worse-though a few did occur just recently."

"Well, there must have been some investigation. Do we have any of the perps in custody?"

"No, they either escaped or were killed."

"What of those who were killed? Their identities might indicate their political affiliations."

"Not really. Several were professionals. A couple of others were general malcontents, arguably
among the mentally ill1."

"You're saying there are no clues as to who might be behind it all?"

"That's right."

"What about suspicions then?"

"Tubble himself is of course suspect, though it is not a good idea to say it aloud. He stood to
benefit the most, and now he's in a position to do so. Also, there is much in his career of political
connivance, double-dealing, assassination. But that was long ago. Everyone has a few skeletons in the
cellar. He has been a quiet and conservative man for many years."

"Tmer, then-he's close enough to generate suspicion. Is there anything to connect him with the
bloody business?"

"Not really. His affairs are hardly open. He's a very private man. But he was never associated
with such extremes in the past. I do not know him all that well, but he has always struck me as a



simpler, more direct person than Tubble. He seems the sort who'd simply attempt a coup if he wanted
the throne badly enough, rather than spend a lot of time intriguing."

"There could, of course, be a number of people involved, each acting in his own interest-"

"And now that the matter is imminent they'll have to surface soon?"

"It would seem so, wouldn't 1t?"

A smile. A shrug.

"No reason for a coronation to end it all," he said.

"A crown does not automatically make a person daggerproof."

"But the successor would come to power with a lot of bad baggage."

"It wouldn't be the first time in history. And if you stop to think about it, some very good
monarchs have come to power under such a cloud. By the way, has it occurred to you that the others
might be speculating along these lines about you?"

"Yes, and it makes me uncomfortable. My father wanted the throne of Amber for a long time, and
it really messed up his life. He was only happy when he said the hell with it. If I learned anything
from his story, that's it. I have no such ambition."

But for a moment, I wondered. What would it feel like to control a massive state? Every time |
complained about politics, here, in Amber, back in the States on the Shadow Earth, there was the
automatic corollary of considering the way I'd manage situations if I were in charge.

"I wonder?" Mandor repeated.

I glanced downward.

"Perhaps the others are looking into their own saying pools just now," I said, "hoping for clues."

"Doubtless," he responded. "What if Tubble and Tmer did meet untimely ends? What would you
do?"

"Don't even think about it," I said. "It won't happen.

"Suppose."

"I don't know."

"You really should make some sort of decision, just to have it out of the way. You're never at a
loss for words when you know your own mind."

"Thanks. I'll remember that."

"Tell me more of your story, since last we met."

And so I did, Pattern ghosts and all.

Somewhere near the end the wailing sound began again. Suhuy moved toward the rock.

"Excuse me," he said, and the rock parted and he passed within.

Immediately, I felt Mandor's gaze heavy upon me. "We probably only have a moment," he said.
"Not enough time, really, to go into everything I wanted to cover with you."

"Very private, huh?"

"Yes. So you must arrange to dine with me before the funeral. Say, a quarter-turning hence,
bluesky."

"All right. Your place, or the Ways of Sawall?"

"Come to me at Mandorways."

The rock phased again as I nodded, and a lithe demonic figure entered, shimmering bluely within
a veil of cloud. I was on my feet in an instant, then bowing to kiss the hand she extended.

"Mother," I said. "I hadn't anticipated the pleasure-this soon."

She smiled, and then it went away in a swirl. The scales faded, the contours of her face and form
flowed. The blue went away into a normal though pale flesh color. Her hips and shoulders widened



as she lost something of height, though still remained tall. Her brown eyes grew more attractive as the
heavy brow ridges receded. A few freckles became visible across her now-human, slightly upturned
nose. Her brown hair was longer than when last I had seen her in this form. And she was still smiling.
Her red tunic became her, simply belted; a rapier hung at her left hip.

"My dear Merlin," she said, taking my head between her hands and kissing me upon the lips. "I
am pleased to see you looking so well. It has been quite a while since last you visited."

"I've had a very active existence of late."

"To be sure," she said. "I've heard some report of your various misadventures."

"I'd imagine you would have. It's not everyone has a ty'iga following him about, periodically
seducing him in various forms, and making life, in general, very complicated with unwanted efforts at
protection."

"It shows that I care, dear."

"It also shows that you have no respect for my privacy nor trust in my judgment."

Mandor cleared his throat.

"Hello, Dara," he said then.

"I suppose it must seem that way to you," she stated. Then, "Hello, Mandor," she went on. "What
happened to your arm?"

"A misunderstanding involving some architecture," he replied. "You've been out of sight, though
hardly out of mind, for some time."

"Thank you, if that's a compliment," she said. "Yes, I go a bit reclusive every now and then,
when the weight of society becomes troublesome. Though you're hardly the one to talk, sir, vanishing
far long stretches as you do in the labyrinths of Mandorways-if that be indeed where you take
yourself."

He bowed.

"As you say, lady, we appear to be creatures of a kind."

Her eyes narrowed, though her voice was unchanged, as she said, "I wonder. Yes, I can
sometimes see us as kindred spirits, perhaps even more than in our simplest cycles of activity. We've
both been out and about a lot of late, though, haven't we?"

"But I've been careless," said Mandor, indicating his injured arm. "You, obviously, have not."

"I never argue with architecture," she said.

"Or other imponderables?" he asked.

"I try to work with what is in place," she told him.

"Generally, I do, too."

"And if you cannot?" she asked. He shrugged.

"Sometimes there are collisions."

"You've survived many in your time, haven't you?"

"I can't deny it, but then it has been a long while. You seem made of very survivable stuff
yourself."

"So far," she responded. "We really must compare notes on imponderables and collisions one
day. Wouldn't it be strange if we were similar in all respects?"

"I should be very much surprised," he answered.

I was fascinated and slightly frightened by the exchange, though I could go only by feeling and
had no notion of specifics. They were somehow similar, and I'd never heard generalities delivered
with quite that precision and emphasis outside of Amber, where they often make a game of talking that
way.



"Forgive me," Mandor said then, to the company in general, "but I must absent myself to
recuperation. Thank you for your hospitality, sir." He bowed to Suhuy. "And for the pleasure of
crossing-paths with you"-this to Dara.

"You've barely arrived," Suhuy said, "and you've taken no refreshment. You make me a poor
host."

"Rest assured, old friend, there is none could perform such a transformation,”" he stated. He
looked at me as he backed toward the opening way. "Till later," he said, and I nodded.

He passed into the way, and the rock solidified with his vanishment.

"One wonders at his deliveries," my mother said, "without apparent rehearsal."

"Grace," Suhuy commented. "He was born with an abundance."

"I wonder who will die today?" she said.

"I am not certain the implication is warranted," Suhuy replied.

She laughed.

"And ifitis," she said, "they will certainly expire in good taste."

"Do you speak in condemnation or envy?" he asked.

"Neither," she said. "For I, too, am an admirer of grace-and a good jest."

"Mother," 1 said, "just what's going on?"

"Whatever do you mean, Merlin?" she replied.

"I left this place a long time ago. You sent a demon to find me and take care of me. Presumably,
it could detect someone of the blood of Amber. So there was some confusion between myself and
Luke. So it settled by taking care of both of us-until Luke began his periodic attempts to kill me. Then
it protected me from Luke and tried to determine which of us was the proper party. It even lived with
Luke for a time, and later pursued me. I should have guessed at something of this because it was so
eager to learn my mother's name. Apparently, Luke was just as closemouthed about his parentage."

She laughed.

"It makes a beautiful picture," she began. "Little Jasra and the Prince of Darkness-"

"Don't try to change the subject. Think how embarrassing that is for a grown man-his mother
sending demons to look after him."

"The singular. It was just one demon, dear."

"Who cares? The principle's the same. Where do you get off with this protective business? I
resent-"

"The ty'iga probably saved your life on more than one occasion, Merlin."

"Well, yes. But-"

"You'd rather be dead than protected? Just because it was coming from me?"

"That's not the point!"

"Then what 1s the point?"

"It seems you just assumed I couldn't take care of myself, and-"

"Well, you couldn't."

"But you had no way of knowing that. I resented your starting with the assumption that I needed
chaperoning in Shadow, that I was naive, gullible, careless-"

"I suppose it would hurt your flings if I said that you were going to a place as different from the
Courts as that Shadow is."

"Yes, I can take care of myself!"

"You weren't doing that great a job of it. But you are making a number of unwarranted
assumptions yourself. What makes you think that the reasons you gave are the only possible ones for



my taking such an action?"

"Okay. Tell me that you knew that Luke was going to try to kill me every April thirtieth. And if
the answer 1s yes, why didn't you just tell me?"

"I did not know that Luke was going to try to kill you every April thirtieth."

I turned away. I clenched my fists and relaxed them. "So you just did it for the hell of it?"

"Merlin, why do you find it so difficult to admit that other people might sometimes know things
you don't?"

"Start with their unwillingness to tell me these things."

She was silent a long moment. Then, "I'm afraid there is something to what you say," she replied.
"But there were strong reasons for not talking of such matters."

"Then start with the inability to tell me. Tell me now why you didn't trust me then."

"It wasn't a matter of trust."

"Is 1t okay to tell me now what it was?" Another, longer silence followed.

"No," she finally said "Not yet."

I turned toward her, keeping my features composed and my voice level.

"Then nothing has changed," I said, "nor ever shall. You still do not trust me."

"That is not true," she answered, glancing at Suhuy. "It is just that this is not the proper time or
the proper place to go into these matters."

"Might I fetch you a drink or something to eat, Dara?" Suhuy said immediately.

"Thank you no," she replied. "I cannot stay much longer."

"Mother, tell me, then, something about the ty'iga."

"What do you wish to know?"

"You conjured it from someplace beyond the Rim."

"That is cornect."

"Such beings are bodiless themselves, but capable of taking over a living host for their own
purposes."

"Yes."

"Supposing such a being took over the body of a person at or near the moment of death, making it
the sole animating spirit and controlling intelligence?"

"Interesting. Is this a hypothetical question?"

"No. It's really happened with the one you sent after me. It doesn't seem able to quit that body
now. Why not?"

"I am not really certain," she said.

"It is trapped now," Suhuy offered. "It can only come and go by reacting with a resident
intelligence."

"The body, with the ty' iga in control, recovered from the illness that killed its consciousness," |
said. "You mean it's stuck there now for life?"

"Yes. So far as [ know."

"Then tell me this: Will it be released when that body dies, or will it die with it?"

"It could go either way," he replied. "But the longer it remains in the body, the more likely it is
that it will perish along with it."

I looked back at my mother.

"There you have the end of its story," I stated. She shrugged.

"I've done with this one and released it," she said, "and one can always conjure another should
the need arise."



"Don't do it," I told her.

"I shan't," she said. "There is no need to, now."

"But if you thought there were, you would?"

"A mother tends to value her son's safety, whether the son likes it or not."

I raised my left hand, extending the forefinger in an angry gesture, when I noticed that I was
wearing a bright bracelet-it seemed an almost-hologramatic representation of a woven cord. |
lowered my hand, bit back my first response, and said, "You know my feelings now."

"I knew them a long time ago," she said. "Let us dine at the Ways of Sawall, half a turning hence,
purplesky. Agreed?"

"Agreed," I said.

"Till then. Good turning, Suhuy."

"Good turning, Dara."

She took three paces and was gone, as etiquette prescribed, out the same way by which she had
entered.

I turned and strode to the pool's edge, stared into its depths, felt the muscles in my shoulders
slowly unknot. Jasra and Julia were down there now, back in the citadel of the Keep, doing something
arcane in the lab. And then the strands were flowing over them, some cruel truth beyond all order and
beauty, beginning to form themselves into a mask of fascinating, frightening proportion.

I felt a hand on my shoulder.

"Family," Suhuy said, "intrigues and maddens. You are feeling the tyranny of affection at the
moment, are you not?"

I nodded.

"Something Mark Twain said about being able to choose your friends but not your relatives," 1
answered.

"I do not know what they are up to, though I have my suspicions," he said. "There is nothing to
do now but rest and wait. I would like to hear more of your story."

"Thanks, Uncle. Yeah," I said. "Why not?"

So I gave him all the rest of my tale. Partway through it, we adjourned to the kitchen for further
sustenance, then took another way to a floating balcony above a lime-colored ocean breaking upon
pink rocks and beaches under a twilit or otherwise indigo sky without stars. There, I finished my
telling.

"This 1s more than a little interesting," he said, at last.

"Oh? Do you see something in it all that I don't?" I asked.

"You've given me too much to consider for me to give you a hasty judgment," he said. "Let us
leave it at that for now."

"Very well."

I leaned on the rail, looked down at the waters.

"You need rest," he said after a time.

"I guess [ do."

"Come, I'll show you to your room."

He extended a hand and I took hold of it. Together, we sank through the floor.

And so I slept, surrounded by tapestries and heavy drapes, in a doorless chamber in the Ways of
Suhuy. It might have been in a tower, as I could hear the winds passing beyond the walls. Sleeping, I
dreamt...

I was back in the castle Amber, walking the sparkling length of the Corridor of Mirrors. Tapers



flickered in tall holders. My footsteps made no sound. The mirrors came in all manner of shapes.
They covered the walls at either hand, big ones, little ones. I passed myself within their depths,
reflected, distorted, sometimes re-reflected...

I was halted before a tall, cracked mirror to my left, framed in tin. Even as I turned toward it |
knew that it would not be me whom I regarded this time.

Nor was [ mistaken. Coral was looking at me from out of the mirror. She had on a peach-colored
blouse and was not wearing her eyepatch. The crack in the mirror divided her face down the middle.
Her left eye was the green I remembered, her right was the Jewel of Judgment. Both seemed to be
focused upon me.

"Merlin," she said. "Help me. This is too strange. Give me back my eye."

"I don't know how," I said. "I don't understand what was done."

"My eye," she went on, as if she had not heard. "The world is all swarming forces in the Eye of
Judgment, cold-so cold!-and not a friendly place. Help me!"

"T'll find a way," I said.

"My eye ..." she continued.

I hurried by.

From a rectangular mirror in a wooden frame carved at its base in the form of a phoenix, Luke
regarded me. "Hey, old buddy," he said, looking slightly forlorn, "I'd sure like to have my dad's
sword back. You haven't come across it again, have you?"

" ‘Fraid not," I muttered.

"It's a shame to get to hold your present for such a short period of time. Watch for it, will you?
I've a feeling it might come in handy."

"T'll do that," I said.

"After all, you're kind of responsible for what happened," he continued.

"Right," I agreed.

"... And I'd sure like to have it back."

"Yeah," I said, moving away.

A nasty chuckle emerged from a maroon-framed ellipse to my right.

Turning, I beheld the face of Victor Melman, the shadow Earth sorcerer I had confronted back
when my troubles were beginning.

"Son of perdition!" he hissed. " ‘Tis good to see you wander lost in Limbo. May my blood lie
burning on your hands."

"Your blood is on your own hands," I said. "I count you as a suicide."

"Not so!" he snapped back. "You slew me most unfairly."

"Bullshit," I answered. "I may be guilty of a lot of things, but your death is not one of them."

I began to walk away, and his hand emerged from the mirror and clutched at my shoulder.

"Murderer!" he cried.

I brushed his hand away.

"Bugger off!" I said, and I kept going.

Then, from a wide, green-framed mirror with a greenish haze to the glass, Random hailed me
from my left, shaking his head.

"Merlin! Merlin! What are you up to, anyway?" he asked. "I've known for some time that you
haven't been keeping me abreast of everything that's afoot."

"Well," I replied, regarding him in an orange T-shirt and Levi's; "that's true, sir. Some things I
just haven't had time to go into."



"Things that involve the safety of the realm-and you haven't had time?"

"Well, I guess there's something of a judgmental factor involved."

"If it involves our safety, I am the one to do the judging."

"Yes, sir. I realize that-"

"We have to have a talk, Merlin. Is it that your personal life is mixed with this in some way?"

"I guess that's true-"

"It doesn't matter. The kingdom is more important. We must talk."

"Yes, sir. We will as soon as-"

" ¢As soon as,' hell! Now! Stop screwing around at whatever you're up to and get your ass back
here! We have to talk!"

"I will, as soon as-"

"Don't give me that! It verges on the traitorous if you're withholding important information! I
need to see you now! Come home!"

"I will," I said, and I hurried away, his voice joining a continuing chorus of the others, repeating
their demands, their pleas, their accusations.

Out of the next one-circular, with a blue braided frame-Julia regarded me.

"And there you go," she said, almost wistfully. "You knew I loved you."

"I loved you, too," I admitted. "It took me a long time to realize it. I guess I messed up, though."

"You didn't love me enough," she said. "Not enough to trust me. And so you lost my trust."

I looked away.

"I'm sorry," I said.

"Not good enough," she responded. "Thus, we are become enemies."

"It doesn't have to be that way."

"Too late," she said. "Too late."

"I'm sorry," I repeated, and I hurried away.

Thus, I came to Jasra, in a red, diamond frame. Her bright-nailed hand reached out and caressed
my cheek. "Going somewhere, dear boy?" she asked.

"I hope so," I said.

She smiled crookedly and pursed her lips.

"I've decided you were a bad influence on my son," she said. "He lost his edge when he became
friends with you."

"Sony about that," I said.

"... Which may make him unfit to rule."

"Unfit or unwilling?" 1 asked.

"Whichever, it will be your fault."

"He's a big boy now, Jasra. He makes his own decisions."

"I fear you've taught him to make the wrong ones."

"He's his own man, lady. Don't blame me if he does things you don't like."

"And 1f Kashfa crumbles because you've softened him?"

"I decline the nomination," I said, taking a step forward. It was good that I was moving, for her
hand shot out, nails raking at my face, barely missing. She threw expletives after me as I walked
away. Fortunately, they were drowned amid the cries of the others.

"Merlin?"

Turning to my right again I beheld the face of Nayda within a silver mirror, its surface and
curled frame of a single piece.



"Nayda! What are you down on me for?"

"Nothing," the ty'iga lady replied. "I'm just passing through, and I need directions."

"You don't hate me? How refreshing!"

"Hate you? Don't be silly. I could never do that."

"Everyone else in this gallery seems irritated with me."

"It's only a dream, Merlin. You're real, 'mreal, and I don't know about the others."

"I'm sorry my mother put you under that spell to protect me-all those years ago. Are you really
free of it now? If you're not, perhaps I can-"

"I'm free of it."

"I'm sorry you had so much trouble fulfilling its terms-not knowing whether it was Luke or me
you were supposed to be guarding. Who'd have known there'd be two Amberites in the same
neighborhood in Berkeley?"

"I'm not sorry."

"What do you mean?"

"I came for directions. I want to know how I can find Luke."

"Why, in Kashfa. He was just crowned king the other day. What do you need him for?"

"Hadn't you guessed?"

"NO."

"I'm in love with him. Always was. Now that I'm free of the geas and have a body of my own, I
want him to know that [ was Gail-and how I feel. Thanks, Merlin. Good-bye."

"Wait! "

HYeS?H

"I never said thanks for your protecting me all those years-even if it was only a compulsion for
you, even if it got to be a big bother for me. Thanks, and good luck."

She smiled and faded away. I reached out and touched the mirror.

"Luck," I thought I heard her say.

Strange. It was a dream. Still-1 couldn't awaken, and: it feltreal. I ...

"You made it back to the Courts in time for all the scheming, I see"-this from a mirror three
paces ahead, black-bound and narrow.

I moved to it. My brother Jurt glared out at me.

"What do you want?" I asked.

His face was an angry parody of my own.

"I want you never to have been," he said. "Failing that, I'd like to see you dead."

"What's your third choice?" I asked.

"Your confinement to a private hell, I guess."

"Why?"

"You stand between me and everything [ want."

"TI'll be glad to step aside. Tell me how."

"There's no way you can or will, on your own."

"So you hate me?"

"Yes."

"I thought your bath in the Fountain destroyed your emotions."

"I didn't get the full treatment, and it only made them stronger."

"Any way we can forget the whole thing and start over again, be friends?"

"Never."



"Didn't think so."

"She always cared more about you than me, and now you're going to have the throne."

"Don't be ridiculous. I don't want it."

"Your desires have nothing to do with the matter."

"I won't have it:"

"Yes, you will-unless I kill you first."

"Don't be stupid. It's not worth this."

"One day soon, when you least expect it, you will turn and see me. It will be too late."

The mirror grew entirely black.

"Jurt!ﬂ

Nothing. Aggravating, having to put up with him in dream as well as waking.

I turned my head toward a fire-framed minor several paces ahead and to my left, knowing-
somehow-it was next on my route. I moved toward it.

She was smiling.

"And there you have it," she said.

" Aunty, what's going on?"

"It seems to be the sort of conflict generally referred to as ‘irreducible,' " Fiona replied.

"That's not the sort of answer I need."

"Too much is afoot to give you a better one."

"And you're a part of it?"

"A very small one. Not one who can do you much good just now."

"What am I to do?"

"Learn your options and choose the best one."

"Best for whom? Best for what?"

"Only you can say."

"Can you give me a hint?"

"Could you have walked Corwin's Pattern that day I took you to 1t?"

"Yes."

"I thought so. It was drawn under unusual circumstances. It can never be duplicated. Our Pattern
would never have permitted its construction had it not been damaged itself and too weak to prevent
its coming into being."

HSO?"

"Our Pattern is trying to absorb it, incorporate it. If it succeeds, it will be as disastrous as it
would have been were the Pattern of Amber destroyed at the time of the war. The balance with Chaos
will be totally upset."

"Isn't Chaos strong enough to prevent this? I'd thought they were equally potent."

"They were until you repaired the Shadow Pattern and Amber's was able to absorb it. This
increased its strength beyond that of Chaos. Now it is able to reach for your father's against the power
of the Logrus."

"I don't understand what 1s to be done."

"Neither do I, yet. But I charge you to remember what I have said. When the time comes you must
make a decision. I've no idea what it will involve, but it will be very important."

"She's right," came a voice from behind my back. Turning, [ saw my father within a shining black



frame, a silver rose set at its top.

"Corwin!" I heard Fiona say. "Where are you?"

"In a place where there 1s no light," he said.

"I thought you somehow in Amber, Father, with Deirdre," I said.

"The ghosts play at being ghosts," he answered. "I have not much time, for my strength is low. I
can tell you only this: Trust not the Pattern, nor the Logrus either, nor any of their spawn, till this
matter be settled."

He began to fade.

"How can I help you?" I asked.

The words "... in the Courts" came to me before he vanished.

I turned again.

"Fi, what did he mean by that?" I asked her.

She was frowning.

"I get the impression that the answer lies somewhere in the Courts," she replied slowly.

"Where? Where should I look?"

She shook her head and began to turn away.

"Who would know best?" she said.

Then she, too, was gone.

Voices were still calling to me, from behind, from ahead. There was weeping and laughter, and
my name being repeated. I rushed ahead.

"Whatever happens," Bill Roth said, "if you need a good lawyer, I'll handle it-even in Chaos."

And then there was Dworkin, squinting at me from out of a tiny mirror with a twisted frame.

"Nothing to be alarmed about," he remarked, "but all sorts of imponderables are hovering about

"What am I to do?" I cried.

"You must become something greater than yourself."

"I don't understand."

"Escape the cage that is your life."

"What cage?"

He was gone.

I ran, and their words rang around me.

Near the end of the hall was a mirror like a piece of yellow silk stretched upon a frame. The
Cheshire Cat grinned at me from within.

"It's not worth it. The hell with them all," he said. "Come to the cabaret, old chum. We'll tip a
few brews and watch the man paint."

"No!" I cried. "No!"

And then there was only a grin. This time I faded, too. Merciful, black oblivion and the sound of
the wind, somewhere, passing.

you.
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How long I slept, I do not know. I was awakened by Suhuy's repeating my name.

"Merlin, Merlin," he said. "The sky is white."

"And I've a busy day," I answered. "I know. I'd a busy night, too."

"It reached you, then."

V!What?ll

"A small spell I sent, to open your mind to some enlightenment. I hoped to lead you to answers
from within, rather than burden you with my guesswork and suspicions."

"I was back in the Corridor of Mirrors."

"I knew not what form it might take."

"Was it real ?"

"As such things go, it should have been."

"Well, thanks-I guess. It reminds me that Gryll said something about your wanting to see me
before my mother did."

"I wanted to see how much you knew before you faced her. I wanted to protect your freedom of
choice."

"What are you saying?"

"I'm sure she wants to see you on the throne."

I sat up and rubbed my eyes.

"I suppose that's possible," I said

"I don't know how far she's willing to go to effect this. I wanted to give you a chance to know
your own mind before you're exposed to her plans. Would you care for a cup of tea?"

"Yes, thanks."

I accepted a mug he proffered and raised it to my lips. "What are you saying about her beyond a
guess at her wishes?" I asked.

He shook his head.

"I don't know how active her program might be," he said, "if that is what you mean. And whether
she was connected with it or another, the spell you came wearing has faded now."

"Your doing?"

He nodded.

I took another swallow.

"I never realized how close I'd gotten to the head of the line," I added. "Jurt is number four or
five in the succession, 1sn't he?"

He nodded.

"I've a feeling it's going to be a very busy day," I said.

"Finish your tea," he told me, "and follow me when you would."

He walked away through a dragon tapestry on the far wall.

As I raised the mug again, the bright bracelet on my left wrist came free and drifted before me,
losing its braided outline, becoming a circle of pure light. It hovered above the steaming brew, as if
enjoying its cinnamony aroma.

"Hi, Ghost," I said. "Why'd you weave yourself about my wrist that way?"

"To look like that piece of rope you usually wear," came the reply. "I thought you must be fond
of the effect."



"I mean, what were you up to the whole time?"

"Just listening, Dad. Seeing how I might be of help. These people are all your relatives, too?"

"The ones we've met so far, yes."

"Is 1t necessary to go back to Amber to speak 11l of them?"

"No, it works here in the Courts, too." I took another sip of tea. "Any special ill you have in
mind? Or was that a general question?"

"I don't trust your mother or your brother Mandor, even if they are my grandmother and uncle. I
think they're setting you up for something."

"Mandor's always been good to me."

"... And your uncle Suhuy-he seems eminently stable, but he reminds me a lot of Dworkin. Might
he be sitting on all sorts of internal turmoils and ready to flip out anytime?"

"I hope not," I said. "He never has."

"Oh-oh, it's been building, and this is a time of stress."

"Where are you getting all this pop psychology, anyway?'

"I've been studying the great psychologists of the Shadow Earth. It's part of my ongoing attempt
to understand the human condition. I realized it was time I learned more about the irrational parts."

"What brought all this on?"

"The higher order edition of the Pattern I encountered in the Jewel, actually. There were aspects
of it I simply could not understand. This led to considerations of chaos theory, then to Menninger and
all the others for its manifestations in consciousness."

"Any conclusions?"

"I am wiser therefor."

"I mean, concerning the Pattern."

"Yes. Either it possesses an element of irrationality itself, like living things, or it is an
intelligence of such an order that some of its processes only seem irrational to lesser beings. Either
explanation amounts to the same thing from a practical standpoint."

"I never had the opportunity to apply some of the tests I'd designed, but can you say from self-
knowledge whether you fall into such a category yourself?"

"Me? Irrational? The notion never occurred to me. I can't see how it could be."

I finished my tea and swung my legs over the side of the bed.

"Too bad," I said. "I think some measure of it is what makes us truly human-that, and recognizing
1t in ourselves, of course."

"Really?"

I rose and began dressing myself.

"Yes, and controlling it within oneself may have something to do with intelligence and
creativity."

"I'm going to have to study this very closely."

"Do that," I said, pulling on my boots, "and let me know your findings."

As I continued dressing, he asked, "When the sky turns blue you will breakfast with your brother
Mandor?"

"Yes," I said.

"And later you will take lunch with your mother?"

"That's right."

"Later still, you will attend the late monarch's funeral?"

"T will."



"Will you need me to protect you?"

"I'll be safe with my relatives, Ghost. Even if you don't trust them."

"The last funeral you attended got bombed."

"That's true. But it was Luke, and he's sworn off. I'll be okay. You want to sightsee, go ahead."

"All right," he said. "I do."

I rose and crossed the chamber, to stand before the dragon.

"Can you tell me the way to the Logrus?" Ghost asked.

"Are you joking?"

"No," he stated. "I've seen the Pattern, but I've never seen the place of the Logrus. Where do they
keep 1t?"

"I thought I gave you better memory functions than that. In your last encounter with the thing, you
pissed it off in the max."

"I suppose I did. Do you think it would hold a grudge?"

"Ofthand, yes. Upon consideration, yes. Stay away from it."

"You just advised me to study the chaos factor, the irrational."

"I didn't advise you to commit suicide. I put a lot of work into you."

"I value myself, too. And you know I have a survival imperative, the same as organic beings."

"It's your judgment I wonder about."

"You know a lot about my abilities."

"It's true you're good at getting the hell out of places."

"And you owe me a decent education."

"Let me think about it."

"That's just stalling. I suppose I can find it myself."

"Fine. Go ahead."

"It's that hard to locate?"

"You gave up on omniscience, remember?"

"Dad, I think I need to see it."

"I haven't the time to take you there."

"Just show me the way. I'm good at concealing myself."

"TI'll give you that. All right. Suhuy is Keeper of the Logrus. It lies in a cavern-somewhere. The
only way I know to it begins in this place."

"Where?"

"There are something like nine turnings involved. I'll lay a seeing upon you, to lead you."

"I don't know whether your spells would work on something like me-"

I reached out through the ring-pardon me, spikard-superimposed a series of black asterisks upon
a map of the ways he must follow, hung it in the space of my Logrus vision before him, and I said, "I
designed you, and I designed this spell."

"Uh, yes," Ghost replied. "I feel as if I suddenly possess data that I can't access."

"It will be presented to you at the appropriate times. Form yourself into the likeness of a ring
upon my left index finger. We will quit this room in a moment and pass through others. When we are
near the proper way [ will indicate it by pointing. Proceed in that direction and you will pass through
something along your route which will conduct you into another place. Somewhere in that vicinity you
will find a black star indicating the next direction you must take-to another place and another star and



so on. Eventually, you will emerge in a cavern that houses the Logrus. Conceal yourself as completely
as you can and make your observations. When you wish to retreat, reverse the process."

He shrank himself and flew to my finger.

"Look me up later and let me know your experiences."

"I was planning to," came his tiny voice. "I would not wish to add to your probable present
paranoia."

"Keep it up," I said.

I crossed the room and entered the dragon.

I emerged in a small sitting room, one window looking out over mountains; the other, a desert.
There was no one about, and I stepped out into a long hallway. Yes, just as I recalled.

I moved along it, passing a number of other rooms, till I came to a door on my left, which I
opened to discover a collection of mops, brooms, buckets, brushes, a heap of cleaning cloths, a basin.
Yes, as | remembered. I pointed to the shelves on my right.

"Find the black star," I said.

"You're serious?" came the small voice.

"Go and see."

A streak of light proceeded from my index finger, grew distorted as it neared the shelves, folded
itself into a line so thin it was no longer present.

"Good luck," I breathed, and then I turned away.

I closed the door, wondering whether I had done the right thing, consoling myself with the
thought that he would have gone looking and doubtless located the Logrus eventually, anyway.
Whatever was to be on this front, would be.

And [ was curious as to what he might learn.

I turned and took myself back up the hallway to the little sitting room. It might be my last
opportunity at being alone for a time, and I was determined to take advantage of it. I seated myself on
a pile of cushions and withdrew my Trumps. A quick run through the deck turned up the one I had
hastily sketched of Coral on that recent hectic day back in Amber. I studied her features till the card
grew cold.

The image became three-dimensional, and then she slipped away and I saw myself, walking the
streets of Amber on a bright afternoon, holding her hand as I led her around a knot of merchants. Then
we were descending the face of Kolvir, sea bright before us, gulls passing. Then back in the cafe,
table flying against the wall....

I covered the card with my hand. She was asleep, dreaming. Odd, to enter another's dreams that
way. Odder, to find myself there-unless, of course, the touch of my mind had prompted unconscious
reminiscence... One of life's smaller puzzles. No need to awaken the poor lady, just to ask her how
she was feeling. I supposed I could call Luke and ask him how she was doing. I began searching for
his card, then hesitated. He must be pretty busy, his first few days on the job as monarch. And I
already knew she was resting. As I toyed with Luke's card, though, finally pushing it aside, the one
beneath 1t was revealed.

Gray and silver and black... His face was an older, somewhat harder version of my own.
Corwin, my father, looked back at me. How many times had I sweated over that card, trying to reach
him, till my mind tied itself into aching knots, with no result? The others had told me that it could
mean he was dead, or that he was blocking the contact. And then a funny feeling came over me. |
recalled his own story, in particular when he'd spoken of the times they had tried to reach Brand
through his Trump, being at first unable to because he had been imprisoned in such a distant shadow.



Then I remembered his own attempts to reach through to the Courts, and the difficulty imposed by the
great distance. Supposing that, rather than being dead or blocking me, he was greatly removed from
the places I had been when I had made the efforts?

But then, who was it had come to my aid that night in Shadow, bearing me to that peculiar place
between shadows and the bizarre adventures that befell me there?' And though I was totally uncertain
as to the nature of his appearance to me in the Corridor of Mirrors, I had later encountered indications
of his presence in Amber Castle itself. If he'd been in any of those places, it would seem he hadn't
really been too far off. And that would mean he'd simply been blocking me, and another attempt to
reach him would probably prove equally fruitless. Still, what if there were some other explanation
for all these occurrences and ...

The card seemed to grow cold beneath my touch. Was it just my imagination, or was the strength
of my regard beginning to activate it? [ moved forward in my mind, focusing. It seemed to grow even
colder as I did so.

"Dad?" I said. "Corwin?"

Colder still, and a tingling feeling in my fingertips that touched it.

It seemed the beginning of a Trump contact. It could be that he was much nearer to the Courts
than to Amber, within a more reachable range now...

"Corwin," I repeated. "It's me, Merlin. Hello."

His image shifted, seemed to move. And then the card went totally black.

Yet, it remained cold, and a sensation like a silent version of contact was present, like a
telephone connection during a long pause.

"Dad? Are you there?"

The blackness of the card took on the aspect of depth. And deep within it, something seemed to
be stirring.

"Merlin?" The word was faint, yet [ was certain it was his voice, speaking my name. "Merlin?"

The movement within the depth was real. Something was rushing toward me.

It erupted from the card into my face, with a beating of black wings, cawing, crow or raven,
black, black. "Forbidden!" it cried. "Forbidden! Go back! Withdraw!"

It flapped about my head as the cards spilled from my hand.

"Stay away!" it screeched, circling the room. "Forbidden place!"

It passed out the doorway and I pursued it. It seemed to have vanished, though, in the moments it
was lost to my sight.

"Bird!" I cried. "Come back!"

But there was no reply, no further sounds of beating wings. I peered into the other rooms and
there was no sign of the creature in any of them.

"Bird ...?"

"Merlin! What's the matter?"-this from high overhead.

I looked up to behold Suhuy, descending a crystal stair behind a quivering veil of light, a sky full
of stars at his back.

"Just looking for a bird," I replied.

"Oh," he said, reaching the landing and stepping through the veil which then shook itself out of
existence, taking the stair along with it. "Any particular bird?"

"A big black one," I said. "Of the talking sort." He shook his head.

"I can send for one," he said.

"This was a special bird," I said.



"Sorry you lost it."

We walked out into the hallway and I turned left and headed back to the itting room.

"Trumps all over the place," my uncle remarked.

"I was attempting to use one and it went black and the bird flew out of it, shouting, ‘Forbidden'! I
dropped them at that point."

"Sounds as if your correspondent is a practical joker," he said, "or under a spell."

We knelt and he helped me to gather them.

"The latter seems more likely," I said. "It was my father's card, I've been trying to locate him for
a long while now, and this was the closest I've come. I actually heard his voice, within the blackout,
before the bird interrupted and cut us off."

"Sounds as if he is confined to a dark place, perhaps magically guarded as well."

"Of course! " I said, squaring up the edges of my deck and recasing it.

One cannot shift the stuff of Shadow in a place of absolute darkness.

It is as effective as blindness in stopping one of our blood from escaping confinement. It added
an element of rationality to my recent experience. Someone wanting Corwin out of commission would
have to keep him in a very dark place.

"Did you ever meet my father?" I asked.

"No," Suhuy replied. "I understand that he did visit the Courts briefly, at the end of the war. But I
never had the pleasure."

"Did you hear anything of his doings here?"

"I believe he attended a meeting with Swayvill and his counselors, along with Random and the
other Amberites, preliminary to the peace treaty. After that, I understand he went his own ways, and |
never heard where they might have led him."

"I'd heard as much in Amber," I said. "I wonder... He'd killed a noble-a Lord Borel-near the end
of the final battle. Any chance Borel's relatives might have gone after him?"

He clicked his fangs twice, then pursed his lips.

"The House of Hendrake . , ." he mused. "I think not. Your grandmother was Hendrake..."

"I know," I said. "But I didn't have much to do with them. Some disagreement with Helgram... ,"

"Hendrake Ways is very much of the military sort," he went on. "Glory of battle. Martial honor,
you know. I can't see them as holding a peacetime grudge for a wartime happening."

Recalling my father's story, I said, "Even if they considered the killing less than honorable?"

"I don't know," he said to that. "It's hard to guess attitudes on specific questions."

"Who is head of the House of Hendrake now?"

"The Duchess Belissa Minobee."

"The duke, her husband-Larsus... What happened to him?"

"He died at Patternfall. I believe Prince Julian of Amber slew him."

"And Borel was their son?"

HYeS."

"Ouch. Two of them. I didn't realize."

"Borel had two brothers, a half brother and a half sister, many uncles, aunts, cousins. Yes, it's a
big House. And the women of Hendrake are as doughty as the men."

"Yes, of course. There are songs, such as ‘Never Wed a Hendrake Lass.' Any way of finding out
whether Corwin had any doings with Hendrake while he was here?"

"One could ask about a bit, though it's been a long while. Memories fade, trails grow cold. Not
easy."



He shook his head.

"How long till bluesky?" I asked him.

"Fairly soon," he said.

"I'd better be heading for Mandorways then. I promised my brother I'd breakfast with him."

"I'll see you later," he said. "At the funeral, if not before."

"Yes," I said. "I guess I'd better clean up and change clothes."

I headed back through the way to my room, where I summoned a basin of water, soap,
toothbrush, razor; also, gray trousers, black boots and belt, purple shirt and gloves, charcoal cloak,
fresh blade and scabbard. When I had made myself presentable, I took a way through a forested glade
to the receiving room. From there, I exited onto a thruway. A quarter mile of mountain trail later,
ending abruptly at a chasm, I summoned a filmy and crossed upon it. Then I bore right to
Mandorways, traveling a blue beach beneath a double sun for perhaps a hundred yards. I turned right,
passing through a remembered archway of stone, moving briefly past a bubbling lava field and
through a black obsidian wall, which took me to a pleasant cavern, over a small bridge, through a
corner of a graveyard, a few steps along the Rim and into the receiving area of his Ways.

The entire wall to my left was composed of slow flame; that to my right, a non-returnable way,
save for light, giving sight of some sea-bottom trench where bright things moved about and ate one
another. Mandor was seated human-formed before a bookcase directly ahead, wearing black and
white, feet propped on a black ottoman, a copy of Robert Hass's Praise, which I had given him, in his
hand.

He smiled as he looked up.

" ‘Death's hounds feared me,' " he said. "Nice line, that. How are you this cycle?"

"Rested, finally," I said. "Yourself?"

He placed the book upon a small, legless table that floated near just then, and rose to his feet.
The fact that he had obviously been reading it because I was coming in no way detracted from the
compliment. He had always been that way.

"Quite well, thank you," he replied. "Come, let me feed you."

He took my arm and steered me toward the wall of fire. It fell away as we drew near and our
footsteps sounded in a place of momentary darkness, succeeded almost immediately by a small lane,
sunlight filtered through arching branches overhead, violets blooming at either hand. The lane took us
to a flagged patio, a green and white gazebo at its farther end. We mounted a few stairs to a well-set
table within, frosted pitchers of juice and baskets of warm rolls near at hand. He gestured and I
seated myself. At his gesture a carafe of coffee appeared beside my setting.

"I see you recall my morning predeliction,” I said, "from the Shadow Earth. Thank you."

He smiled faintly as he nodded, seating himself across from me. Birdsongs I could not identify
sounded from the trees. A gentle breeze caused leaves to rustle.

"What are you up to these days?" I asked him as I poured a cup of coffee and broke a roll.

"Observing the scene, mainly," he replied.

"Political scene?"

"As always. Though my recent experience in Amber has led me to regard it as part of an even
larger picture."

[ nodded.

"And your investigations with Fiona?"

"Those, t0o," he answered. "These are shaping up into very unusual times."

"I've noticed."



"It seems almost as if the Pattern-Logrus conflict were making itself manifest in mundane affairs,
as well as on the cosmic scale."

"I feel that way, too. But then I'm prejudiced. I got caught up in the cosmic part early, and
without a scorecard. I've been run all over the place and manipulated every which way recently-to the
point where all of my affairs seemed part of their bigger picture. I don't like it a bit, and if I had some
way to make them back off I'd use it."

"Hm," he said. "And what if your whole life were a study in manipulation?"

"I wouldn't feel good about it," I said. "I guess I'd feel just the way I do now, only perhaps more
intensely."

He gestured and an amazing omelet appeared before me, followed, moments later, by a side dish
of fried potatoes, mixed with what appeared to be green chilies and onions.

"All of this 1s hypothetical," I said as I began eating, "isn't it?"

There followed a long pause as he took his first mouthful, then, "I think not," he said.

"I think the Powers have been moving madly for a long while now," he went on, "and we're
finally nearing endgame."

"What makes you privy to these matters?"

"It began with a careful consideration of events," he said. "Then followed the formulation and
testing of hypotheses."

"Spare me a lecture on the use of the scientific method in theology and human politics," I said.

"You asked."

"True. Go ahead."

"Do you not feel it somewhat odd that Swayvill expired just when he did, when so many things
are coming to fruition simultaneously, after having hung on for so long?"

"He had to go sometime," I said, "and all the recent stresses probably proved too much."

"Timing," Mandor said. "Strategic placement. Timing."

"For what?"

"To place you on the throne of Chaos, of course," he replied.



1V

Sometimes you hear an unlikely thing and that's all it is. Other times, you hear something
improbable and it strikes an echo. There is an immediate feeling of having known it, or known
something very like it, all along, and just not having bothered to pick it up and examine it. By rights, I
should have choked at Mandor's pronouncement, then snorted something such as "Preposterous!" Yet,
I'd a peculiar feeling about this business-whether his conclusion was right or wrong-as if there were
something more than conjecture involved, as if there just might be some overall plan moving me
toward the circle of power in the Courts.

I took a long, slow drink of coffee. Then, "Really?" I said.

I felt myself smiling as he sought my eyes, studied my face.

"Are you consciously party to the effort?"

I raised my coffee cup again. I had been about to say, "No, of course not. This is the first I've
heard of the notion." Then I recalled my father's telling me how he had duped Aunt Flora into giving
him vital information his amnesia had washed away. It was not the cleverness with which he had
done it that had impressed me so much as the fact that his mustrust of relatives transcended
consciousness, existed as a pure existential reflex. Not having been through all the family rivalries
Corwin had, I lacked responses of such intensity. And Mandor and I had always gotten along
particularly well, even though he was a few centuries older and had very different tastes in some
areas. But, suddenly, discussing such a high-stakes matter as we were, that small voice Corwin
referred to as his worse-if-wiser self suggested, "Why not? You could use the practice, kid," and as I
lowered the cup again I decided to try it out, just to see how it felt, for a few minutes.

"I don't know whether we both have the same thing in mind," I said. "Why don't you tell me about
the middle game-or perhaps even the opening-for what you see rushing to conclusion now."

"Both the Pattern and the Logrus are sentient," he said. "We've both seen evidence of that.
Whether they are manifestations of the Unicorn and the Serpent or the other way around makes no real
difference. Either way, we are talking about a pair of greater-than-human intelligences with vast
powers at their disposal. Whichever came first is also one of those useless theological points. We
need only concern ourselves with the present situation, as it affects us."

I nodded.

"A fair assessment," | agreed.

"The forces they represent have been opposed but fairly evenly matched for ages," he went on,
"and thus a kind of balance has been maintained. They have constantly sought small victories over
each other, each attempting to add to its own domain at the expense of the other. It appears to be a
zero-sum game. Both Oberon and Swayvill were their agents for a long while, with Dworkin and
Suhuy as their intermediaries with the powers themselves."

"So?" I said as he took a sip of juice.

"I believe that Dworkin had touched the Pattern too closely," he continued, "and so became
subject to manipulation. He was sufficiently sophisticated, however, that he realized this and resisted.
This resulted in his madness, with a reciprocal damaging effect on the Pattem itself because of their
close connection. This, in turn, caused the Pattern to leave him alone, rather than risk further trauma.
The damage was done, though, and the Logrus gained a small edge. This allowed it to act in the realm
of order when Prince Brand began his experiments to increase his personal abilities. I believe he laid
himself open to control and became an unwitting agent of the Logrus."



"That's a lot of supposition," I said.

"Consider," he responded, "that his aims seemingly became those of a madman. They make much
more sense when seen as the goal of something wanting to destroy all order, to restore the universe to
chaos."

"Continue," I said.

"At some point, the Pattern discovered-or perhaps possessed all along-the ability to create
‘ghosts,' short-lived simulacra of those who had negotiated it. Fascinating concept, that. I was very
interested to learn of it. It provided a major mechanism, supporting my thesis of the Pattern's and
possibly the Logrus's, direct action in the promotion of physical events. Might they have figured in the
setting up of your father as the Pattern's champion against Brand? I wonder."

"I don't follow," I said. "Setting him up, you say?"

"I've a feeling he was really the Pattern's choice as the next King of Amber, easy to promote, too,
as it seemed to coincide with his own wishes. I've wondered about his sudden recovery in that
Shadow Earth clinic, and particularly about the circumstances surrounding the accident that put him
there, when even with differing time streams it seemed possible that Brand might have had to be in
two places at the same time-imprisoned and looking down the sights of a rifle. Of course, Brand 1s no
longer available to clarify the matter."

"More supposition,” I said, finishing my omelet. "But not uninteresting. Please continue."

"Your father had second thoughts about the throne, however. Still, he was Amber's champion.
Amber did win the war. The Pattern was repaired. The balance was restored. Random was the
second choice as monarch-a good maintainer of the status quo-and that choice was made by the
Unicorn, not by the Amberites following any of their versions of the Rules of Succession."

"I never looked at it all that way," I said.

"And your father-inadvertently, I believe-provided a bonus. Afraid that the Pattern had not been
repaired, he drew another. Only, it had been repaired. Thus, there were two artifacts of order, rather
than one. Though, as a separate entity; it probably did not add to the Pattern's strength, it added to
order, as such, diminishing the effects of the Logrus. So your father set the balance right, then
proceeded to tip it again-in the other direction."

"This 1s your conclusion from the investigations you and Fiona made of the new Pattern?"

He nodded slowly, took a sip of juice.

"Hence, more Shadow storms than usual, as a mundane effect," he said, "bringing us up to
present times."

"Yes, present times," I said, pouring more coffee. "We've noted they've grown interesting."

"Indeed. Your story of the girl Coral, asking the Pattern to send her to an appropriate place, is a
case in point. What did it immediately do? It sent her to a Shadow Pattern and turned out the lights.
Then it sent you to rescue her, repairing that edition of itself in the process. Once it was repaired it
was no longer a Shadow Pattern, but another version of itself that it was then able to absorb. It
probably absorbed that entire shadow as well, adding considerably to its own energies. Its edge over
the Logrus increased even more. The Logrus would need a big gain to restore the balance after that.
So it risked an incursion into the Pattern's domain, in a desperate effort to obtain the Eye of Chaos.
That ended in a stalemate, though, because of the intervention of that bizarre entity you call
Ghostwheel. So the balance remains tipped in the Pattern's favor, an unhealthy state of affairs."

"For the Logrus."

"For everybody, I'd say. The Powers will be at odds, the shadows in turmoil and disorder in
both realms till things have been righted."



"So something should be done to benefit the Logrus."

"You already know that."

"I suppose [ do."

"It communicated with you directly, didn't it?"

I recalled my night in the chapel in the place between shadows, where I had been faced with a
choice between the Serpent and the Unicorn, the Logrus and the Pattern. Resenting the bullying in such
a forced format, I had refused to choose either.

"Yes, it did," I answered.

"It wanted you for its champion, didn't it?"

"I suppose it did," I said.

"And ... ?"

"... And here we are," I replied.

"Did it indicate anything that might support my thesis?"

I thought about that trek through the Undershadow, mixing menace with ghosts-Pattern, Logrus, or
both. "I suppose it did," I repeated.

But, ultimately, it had been the Pattern I had served at the end of that journey, albeit unwittingly.

"You are prepared to execute its design for the good of the Courts?"

"I'm prepared to seek resolution of this matter. For everybody's peace of mind."

He smiled.

"Is that a qualification or an agreement?"

"It's a statement of intent," I said.

"If the Logrus has chosen you, it has its reasons."

"I daresay."

"It almost goes without saying that having you on the throne would strengthen the House of
Sawall immensely."

"The thought had occurred to me, now you mention it."

"For one with your background, of course, it would become necessary to determine where your
ultimate loyalty lies-with Amber or with the Courts."

"Do you foresee another war?"

"No, of course not. But anything you do to strengthen the Logrus will arouse the Pattern and
provoke some response from Amber. Hardly to the point of war, but possibly to that of retaliation."

"Could you be more specific as to what you have in mind?"

"I'm only dealing in generalities at the moment, to give you opportunity to assess your reactions."

[ nodded.

"Since we're talking generalities I'll just repeat my statement: I'm prepared to seek a resolution-"

"All right," he said. "We understand each other to this extent. In the event you make it to the
throne, you want the same thing we do-"

" “We'?" I interrupted.

"The House of Sawall, of course. -But you don't want anyone dictating specifics to you."

"That says it nicely," I replied.

"But of course we're speaking hypothetically, there being a couple of others about with stronger
claims."

"So why argue contingencies?"

"If the House were able to see you crowned, however, do you acknowledge you would owe
consideration for this?"



"Brother," I said, "you are the House, for all major purposes. If you're asking for a commitment
before taking out Tmer and Tubble, forget it, I'm not all that eager to sit on a throne."

"Your wishes are not paramount in this," he said. "There is no reason for squeamishness when
you consider that we've long been at odds with Jesby, and Chanicut's always been a troublemaker."

"Squeamishness has nothing to do with it," I said. "I never said I wanted the throne. And, frankly,
I think either Tmer or Tubble would probably do a better job."

"They are not designates of the Logrus."

"And if I am, I should make i1t without any help."

"Brother, there is a big gap between its world of principles and ours of flesh, stone, and steel."

"And supposing I have my own agenda and it does not include your plan?"

"What is it, then?"

"We're speaking hypothetically, remember?"

"Merlin, you're being obstinate. You've a duty in this, to the House as well as to the Courts and
the Logrus."

"I can assess my own duties, Mandor, and I have-so far."

"If you've a plan to set things right, and it's a good one, we'll help you to effectuate it. What have
you in mind?"

"I do not require help at this point," I said, "but I'll remember that."

"What do you require right now?"

"Information," I said.

"Ask me. I have a lot."

"All right. What can you tell me about my mother's maternal side, the House of Hendrake?"

He pursed his lips.

"They're into soldiering, professionally," he said. "You know they're always off fighting in
Shadow wars. They love it. Belissa Minobee's been in charge since General Larsus's death. Hm." He
paused. Then, "Do you ask because of their rather odd fixation involving Amber?"

"Amber?" I said. "What do you mean?"

"I recall a social visit to the Ways of Hendrake one time," he said, "when I wandered into a
small, chapel-like room. In a niche in one wall there hung a portrait of General Benedict, in full battle
regalia. There was an altar-like shelf below it bearing several weapons, and upon which a number of
candles were burning. Your mother's picture was there, too."

"Really?" I said. "I wonder whether Benedict knows? Dara once told my father she was
descended from Benedict. Later, he figured this an out-and-out lie. ... Do you think people like that
would hold a grudge against my father?"

"For what?"

"Corwin slew Borel of Hendrake at the time of the Patternfall War."

"They tend to take such things philosophically."

"Still, T gather it was a somewhat less than kosher engagement from the way he described it-
though I don't believe there were any witnesses."

"So let sleeping wyverns lie."

"I've no intention of rousing them. But what I was wondering was that if they had somehow heard
details they might have been out to clear some debt of honor on his behalf. Do you think they could
have been behind his disappearance?"

"I just don't know," he replied, "how that would fit in with their code. I suppose you could ask
them."



"Just come out and say, ‘Hey, are you responsible for whatever happened to my dad?' "

"There are more subtle ways of learning a person's attitudes," he responded. "As I recall, you
had a few lessons in them in your youth."

"But I don't even know these people. I mean, I might have met one of the sisters at a party, now |
think of it-and I recall having seen Larsus and his wife in the distance a few times-but that's it."

"Hendrake will have a representative at the funeral," he said. "If I were to introduce you,
perhaps you could apply a little glamour to obtain an informal audience."

"You know, that may be the way to go," I told him.

"Probably the only way. Yes, do that, please."

"Very well."

He cleared the table with a gesture, filled it with another. This time, paper-thin crepes with a
variety of fillings and toppings appeared before us; and fresh rolls, variously spiced. We ate for a
time in silence, appreciating the balminess and the birds, the breezes.

"I wish I could have seen something of Amber," he said at length, "under less restricted
circumstances."

"I'm sure that can be arranged," I replied. "I'd like to show you around. I know a great restaurant
in Death Alley."

"That wouldn't be Bloody Eddies, would it?"

"It would, though the name gets changed periodically."

"I've heard of it, and long been curious."

"We'll do that one day."

"Excellent."

He clapped his hands and bowls of fruit appeared. I freshened my coffee and swirled a Kadota
fig in a bowl of whipped cream.

"I'll be dining with my mother later," I remarked.

"Yes. [ overheard."

"Have you seen much of her recently? How's sher been?"

"As she said, rather reclusive," he replied.

"Do you think she's up to something?"

"Probably," he said. "I can't recall a time when she hasn't been."

"Any idea what?"

"Why should I guess when she'll probably tell you outright?"

"You really think she will?"

"You have an advantage over everyone else, in being her son."

"Also a drawback, for the same reason."

"Still, she's more likely to tell you things than she would anyone else."

"Except, perhaps, Jurt."

"Why do you say that?"

"She always liked him better."

"Funny, I've heard him say the same thing about you."

"You see him often?"

"Often? No."

"When was the last time?"

"About two cycles ago."

"Where is he?"



"Here, in the Courts."

"At Sawall?" I had visions of him joining us for lunch. I wouldn't put something like that past
Dara either.

"One of its byways, I think. He's rather reticent concerning his comings and goings-and stayings."

There being something like eight byway residences to Sawall that [ knew of, it would be difficult
to run him down through byways that could lead well into Shadow. Not that I'd any desire to, at the
moment.

"What brings him home?" I asked.

"The same thing as yourself, the funeral," he said, "and all that goes with it."

All that goes with it, indeed! If there were a genuine plot to put me on the throne, I could never
forget that-willing or unwilling, successful or unsuccessful-Jurt would be a step or two behind me all
the way.

"I may have to kill him," I said. "I don't want to. But he's not giving me a whole lot of choice.
Sooner or later, he's going to force us into a position where it has to be one or the other."

"Why do you tell me this?"

"So you'll know how I feel about it, and so that you might use whatever influence you may still
have to persuade him to find a different hobby."

He shook his head.

"He moved beyond my influence a long time ago," he said. "Dara's about the only one he'll listen
to-though I suspect he's still afraid of Suhuy. You might speak to her concerning this matter, soon."

"It's the one thing neither of us can discuss with her-the other."

"Why not?"

"It's just the way it is. She always misunderstands."

"I'm certain she's not going to want her sons killing each other."

"Of course not, but I don't know how to put the matter to her."

"I suggest you make an effort to find a way. In the meantime, I would contrive not to be alone
with Jurt should your paths cross. And if it were me, in the presence of witnesses, I would make
certain that the first blow was not mine."

"Well taken, Mandor," I said.

We sat for a time in silence. Then, "You will think about my proposal," he said.

"As [ understand it," I replied.

He frowned.

"If you have any questions..."

"No. I'll be thinking."

He rose. I got to my feet, also. With a gesture, he cleared the table.

Then he turned away and I followed him out of the gazebo and across its yard to the trail.

We emerged after a stroll in his external study cum receiving room. He squeezed my shoulder as
we headed for the exit.

"T'll see you at the funeral then," he remarked.

"Yes," I said. "Thanks for the breakfast."

"By the way, how well do you like that lady, Coral?" he asked.

"Oh, pretty well," I said. "She's quite-nice.

Why?"

He shrugged.

"Just curious. I was concerned about her, having been present at the



time of her misadventure, and I wondered how much she meant to you."

"Enough that it bothers me a lot," I said.

"I see. Well, give her my good wishes if you should talk to her."

"Thanks, I will."

"We'll talk again later."

HYeS."

I strode into the way, making no haste. I still had considerable time before I was due by the
Ways of Sawall.

I paused when I came to a gibbet-shaped tree. A moment's reflection and I turned left, following
an ascending trail among dark rocks. Near its top, I walked directly into a mossy boulder, emerging
from a sandbank into a light rain. I ran across the field before me, till I came to the fairy circle
beneath the ancient tree. I stepped to its middle, made up a couplet with my name for the rhyme, and
sank into the ground. When I was halted and the moment's darkness went away, I found myself beside
a damp stone wall, looking downhill across a prospect of headstones and monuments. The sky was
fully overcast and a cool breeze wandered by. It felt to be one of the ends of a day, but whether
morning or twilight lay near, I could not tell. The place looked exactly as I remembered it-cracked
mausoleums hung with ivy, falling stone fences, wandering paths beneath high, dark trees. I moved
down familiar trails.

As a child, this had been a favored playground of mine, for a time. I met here almost daily, for
dozens of cycles, with a little shadow girl named Rhanda. Kicking through boneheaps, brushing by
damp shrubbery, I came at length to the damaged mausoleum where we had played house. Pushing
aside the sagging gate, I entered.

Nothing had changed, and I found myself chuckling. The cracked cups and saucers, tarnished
utensils, were still stacked in the corner, heavy with dust, stained with seepage. I brushed off the
catafalque we'd used as a table, seated myself upon it. One day Rhanda had simply stopped corning,
and after a time I had, too. I'd often wondered what sari of woman she had become. I'd left her a note
in our hiding place, beneath a loose floor stone, I recalled. I wondered whether she'd ever found it.

I raised the stone. My filthy envelope still lay there, unsealed. I took it out, shook it off, slid out
my folded sheet.

I unfolded it, read my faded childish scrawl: What happened Rhanda? 1 waited and you didn't
come. Beneath it, in a far neater hand, was written: I can't come anymore because my folks say you
are a demon or a vampire. I'm sorry because you are the nicest demon or vampire I know. I'd never
thought of that possibility. Amazing, the ways one can be misunderstood.

I sat there for a time, remembering growing up. I'd taught Rhanda the bonedance game in here. I
snapped my fingers then, and our old ensorcelled heap of them across the way made a sound like
stirring leaves. My juvenile spell was still in place; the bones rolled forward, arranged themselves
into a pair of manikins, began their small, awkward dance. They circled each other, barely holding
their shapes, pieces flaking away, cobwebs trailing; loose ones-spares-began to bounce about them.
They made tiny clicking sounds as they touched. I moved them faster.

A shadow crossed the doorway, and I heard a chuckle. "T'll be damned! All you need's a tin roof.
So this is how they spend their time in Chaos."

"Luke!" I exclaimed as he stepped inside, my manikins collapsing as my attention left them, into
little gray, sticklike heaps. "What are you doing here?"

"Could say I was selling cemetery lots," he observed. "You interested in one?"

He had on a red shirt and brown khakis tucked into his brown suede boots. A tan cloak hung



about his shoulders. He was grinning.

"Why aren't you off ruling?"

His smile went away, to be replaced by a moment of puzzlement, returned almost instantly.

"Oh, felt I needed a break. What about you? There's a funeral soon, isn't there?"

I nodded.

"Later on," I said. "I'm just taking a break myself. How'd you get here, anyway?"

"Followed my nose," he said. "Needed some intelligent conversation."

"Be serious. Nobody knew [ was coming here. I didn't even know it till the last minute. I-"

I groped about in my pockets.

"You didn't plant another of those blue stones on me, did you?"

"No, nothing that simple," he replied. "I seem to have some sort of message for you."

I got to my feet, approached him, studying his face.

"Are you okay, Luke?"

"Sure. As okay as I ever am, that is."

"It's no mean stunt, finding your way this near to the Courts. Especially if you've never been here
before. How'd you manage it?"

"Well, the Courts and I go back a long ways, old buddy. You might say it's in my blood."

He moved aside from the doorway and I stepped outside. Almost automatically, we began
walking.

"I don't understand what you're saying," I told him.

"Well, my dad spent some time here, back in his plotting days," he said. "It's where he met my
mother."

"I didn't know that."

"It never came up. We never talked family, remember?"

"Yeah," I said, "and no one I asked seemed to know where Jasra came from. Still, the Courts...
She's a long way from home."

"Actually, she was recruited from a nearby shadow," he explained, "like this one."

"Recruited?"

"Yes, she worked as a servant for a number of years-I think she was fairly young when she
started-at the Ways of Helgram."

"Helgram? That's my mother's House!"

"Right. She was a maid-companion to the lady Dara. That's where she learned the Arts."

"Jasra got her instruction in sorcery from my mother? And she met Brand at Helgram? That
would make it seem Helgram had something to do with Brand's plot, the Black Road, the war-"

"-and the Lady Dara going looking for your father? I guess so."

"Because she wanted to be a Pattern initiate as well as one of the Logrus?"

"Maybe," he said. "I wasn't present."

We moved down a gravelly trail, fumed at a huge cluster of dark shrubbery, passing through a
forest of stone and over a bridge that crossed a slow black stream that reflected high branches and
sky, monochrome. A few leaves rustled in a stray breeze.

"How come you never mentioned any of this later?" I asked.

"I intended to, but it never seemed urgent," he said, "whereas a lot of other things did."

"True," I said. "The pace did seem to keep picking up each time our trails crossed. But now- Are
you saying it's urgent now, that I suddenly need to know this?"

"Oh, not exactly." He halted. He reached out and leaned upon a headstone. His hand began to



grip it, growing white about the knuckles, across the back. The stone at his fingertips was ground to
powder, fell snowlike to the earth. "Not exactly," he repeated. "That part was my idea, just because |
wanted you to know. Maybe it'll do you some good, maybe it won't. Information is like that. You
never know." With a crunching, cracking sound, the top of the headstone suddenly gave way. Luke
hardly seemed to notice this, and his hand kept on squeezing. Small pieces fell from the larger one he
now held.

"So you came all this way to tell me that?"

"No," he answered, as we turned and began walking back the way we had come. "I was sent to
tell you something else, and it's been pretty hard holding off. But I figured if I talked about this first, it
couldn't let me go, would keep feeding me till I got around to the message. "

There came a huge crunch, and the stone he held turned to gravel, falling to mix with that on the
trail. "Let me see your hand."

He brushed it off and held it out. A tiny flame flickered near the base of his index finger. He ran
his thumb over it and it went out. I increased my pace, and he matched it.

"Luke, you know what you are?"

"Something in me seems to, but I don't, man. I just feel-I'm not right. I'd probably better tell you
what I feel I should pretty quick now."

"No. Hold off," I said, hurrying even more.

Something dark passed overhead, too quick for me to make out its shape, vanishing among the
trees. We were buffeted by a sudden gust of wind.

"You know what's going on, Merle?" he asked.

"I think so," I said, "and I want you to do exactly what I tell you, no matter how weird it might
seem. Okay?"

"Sure thing. If I can't trust a Lord of Chaos, who can I trust, eh?"

We hurried past the clump of shrubs. My mausoleum was just up ahead. "You know, there really
is something I feel obliged to tell you right now, though," he said.

"Hold it. Please."

"It is important, though."

I ran on ahead of him. He began running, too, to keep up.

"It's about your being here at the Courts, just now."

I extended my hands, used them to brake myself when I came up against the wall of the stone
building. I swung myself through the doorway and inside. Three big steps, and I was kneeling in the
corner, snatching up an old cup, using the corner of my cloak to wipe it out.

"Merle, what the hell are you doing?" Luke asked, entering behind me.

"Just a minute and I'll show you," I told him, drawing my dagger.

Placing the cup upon the stone where I had been seated earlier, I held my hand above it and used
the dagger to cut my wrist.

Instead of blood, flame came forth from the incision.

"No! Damn it!" I cried.

And I reached into the spikard, located the proper line, and found the flowing channel of a
cooling spell that I laid upon the wound. Immediately, the flames died and it was blood that flowed
from me. However, as it fell into the cup it began to smoke. Cursing, I extended the spell to control its
liquidity there, also.

"Yeah, it's weird, Merle. I'll give you that," Luke observed.

I laid the dagger aside and used my right hand to squeeze my arm above the wound. The blood



flowed faster. The spikard throbbed. I glanced at Luke. There was a look of strain upon his face. I
pumped my fist. The cup was more than half-full.

"You said you trust me," I stated.

"Afraid so," he answered.

Three-quarters...

"You've got to drink this, Luke," I said. "I mean it."

"Somehow, I suspected you were leading up to this," he said, "and, really, it doesn't sound like
such a bad idea. I've a feeling I need a lot of help just now."

He reached out and took the cup, raised it to his lips. I pressed the palm of my hand against the
wound. Outside, the winds were gusting regularly.

"When you've finished, put it back," I said. "You're going to need more."

I could hear the sounds of his swallowing.

"Better than a slug of Jameson," he said then. "Don't know why." He replaced the cup on the
stone.

"A little salty, though," he added.

I removed my hand from the incision, held the wrist above it again, pumped my fist.

"Hey, man. You're losing a lot of blood there. I feel okay now. Was just a little dizzy, that's all. 1
don't need any more."

"Yes, you do," I said. "Believe me. I gave a lot more than this in a blood drive once and ran in a
meet the next day. It's okay."

The wind rose to a gale, moaning past us now.

"Mind telling me what's going on?" he asked.

"Luke, you're a Pattern ghost," I told him.

"What do you mean?"

"The Pattern can duplicate anybody who ever walked it. You've got all the signs. I know them."

"Hey, I feel real. I didn't even do the Pattern in Amber. I did it in Tir-na Nog'th."

"Apparently, it controls the two images as well, since they're true copies. Do you remember your
coronation in Kashfa?"

"Coronation? Hell no! You mean I made it to the throne?"

"Yep. Rinaldo the First."

"God damn! Bet Mom's happy."

"I'm sure."

"This 1s kind of awkward then, there being two of me. You seem familiar with the phenomenon.
How does the Pattern handle 1t?"

"You guys tend not to last very long. It seems the closer you are to the Pattern itself the stronger
you are, too. It must have taken a lot of juice to project you this far. Here, drink this."

Hsure.ﬂ

He tossed off a half cupful and handed the cup back.

"So what's with the precious bodily fluids?" he asked.

"The blood of Amber seems to have a sustaining effect on Pattern ghosts."

"You mean I'm some kind of vampire?"

"I suppose you could put it that way, in a sort of technical sense."

"I'm not sure I like that-especially such a specialized one."

"It does seem to have certain drawbacks. But one thing at a time. Let's get you stabilized before
we start looking for angles."



"All right. You've got a captive audience."

There came a rattle, as of a rolled stone, from outside, followed by a small clanking noise.

Luke turned his head.

"I don't think that's just the wind," he stated.

"Take the last sip," I said, moving away from the cup and groping after my handkerchief. "It'll
have to hold you."

He tossed it off as I wrapped my wrist. He knotted it in place for me.

"Let's get out of here," I said. "The vibes are getting bad."

"Fine with me," he replied as a figure appeared at the doorway. It was backlighted, its features
lost in shadow.

"You're not going anywhere, Pattern ghost," came an almost-familiar voice.

I willed the spikard to about 150 watts illumination. It was Borel, showing his teeth in an
unfriendly fashion.

"You are about to become a very large candle, Patterner," he said to Luke.

"You're wrong, Borel," I said, raising the spikard.

Suddenly, the Sign of the Logrus swam between us.

"Borel? The master swordsman?" Luke inquired.

"The same," I answered.

"Oh, shit!" Luke said.



VI

There were candles all about the chapel, many of them as tall as I am, and nearly as big around.
Some were silver, some were gray; a few were white, a few black. They stood at various heights, in
artful disposition, on banks, ledges, pattern points on the floor. They did not provide the main
illumination, however. This obtained from overhead, and I first assumed it to proceed from a skylight.
When I glanced upward to gauge the height of the vault, though, I saw that the light emanated from a
large blue-white globe confined behind a dark metal grate.

I took a step forward. The nearest candle flame flickered.

I faced a stone altar that filled a niche across the way. Black candles burned at either hand
before it, smaller silver ones upon it. For a moment, I simply regarded it.

"Lookss like you," Glait remarked.

"I thought your eyes didn't register two-dimensional representations."

"I've lived a long time in a musseum. Why hide your picture up a ssecret way?"

I moved forward, my gaze on the painting,

"It's not me," 1 said. "It's my father, Corwin of Amber."

A silver rose stood within a bud vase before the portrait. Whether it was a real rose or the
product of art or magic, I could not tell.

And Grayswandir lay there before it, drawn a few inches from the scabbard. I'd a feeling this
was the real thing, that the version worn by the Pattern ghost of my father was itself a reconstruction.

I reached forward, raised it, drew it.

There was a feeling of power as I held it, swung it, struck an en garde, lunged, advanced. The
spikard came alive, center of a web of forces.

I looked down, suddenly self-conscious.

" . And this 1s my father's blade," I said, returning to the altar, where I sheathed it. Reluctantly, I
left it there.

As I backed away, Glait asked, "Thiss iss important?"

"Very," I said as the way caught hold of me and sent me back to the treetop.

"What now, Masster Merlin?"

"I must get on to lunch with my mother."

"In that case, you'd besst drop me here."

"I could return you to the vase."

"No. I haven't lurked in a tree for a time. Thiss will be fine."

I extended my arm. She unwound herself and flowed away across gleaming branches.

"Good luck, Merlin. Vissit me."

And 1 was down the tree, snagging my trousers only once, and off up the corridor at a quick
pace.

Two turns later I came to a way to the main hall and decided I'd better take it. I popped through
beside the massive fireplace-high flames braiding themselves within it-and turned slowly to survey
the huge chamber, trying to seem as if [ had been there a long while, waiting,.

I seemed the only person present. Which, on reflection, struck me as a bit odd, with the fire
roaring that way. I adjusted my shirtfront, brushed myself off, ran my comb through my hair. I was
inspecting my fingernails when I became aware of a flash of movement at the head of the great
staircase to my left.




She was a blizzard within a ten-foot tower. Lightnings danced at its center, crackling; particles
of ice clicked and rattled upon the stair; the banister grew frosted where she passed. My mother. She
seemed to see me at about the same time I saw her, for she halted. Then she made the turn onto the
stair and began her descent.

As she descended, she shifted smoothly, her appearance changing almost from step to step. As
soon as I realized what was occurring I relaxed my own efforts and reversed their small effects. I had
commenced changing the moment I had seen her, and presumably she had done the same on viewing
me. [ hadn't thought she'd go to that extent to humor me, a second time, here on her own turf.

The shift was completed just as she reached the bottommost stair, becoming a lovely woman in
black trousers and red shirt with flared sleeves. She looked at me again and smiled, moved toward
me, embraced me.

It would have been gauche to say that I'd intended shifting but had forgotten. Or any other remark
on the matter.

She pushed me out to arm's distance, lowered her gaze and raised it, shook her head.

"Do you sleep in your clothes before or after violent exercise?" she asked me.

"That's unkind," I said. "I stopped to sightsee on the way over and ran into a few problems." ¢

"That is why you are late?"

"No. I'm late because I stopped in our gallery and took longer than I'd intended. And I'm not very
late." She took hold of my arm and turned me.

"I will forgive you," she said, steering me toward the rose and green and gold-flecked pillar of
ways, set in the mirrored alcove across the room to the right.

I didn't feel that called for a response, so I didn't make one. I watched with interest as we
entered the alcove, to see whether she would conduct me in a clock- wise direction or its opposite
about the pillar.

The opposite, it turned out. Interesting.

We were reflected and re-reflected from the three sides. So was the room we had quitted. And
with each circuit we made of the pillar it became a different room.

I watched it change, kaleidoscopically, until she halted me before the crystal grotto beside the
underground sea. "It's been a long time since I thought of this place,"

I said, stepping forth upon the pure white sand into the crystal-cast light, variously reminiscent of
bonfires, solar reflections, candelabra, and LED displays, functions of size and distancing perhaps,
laying occasional pieces of rainbow upon the shore, the walls, the black water.

She took my hand and led me toward a raised and railed platform some small distance off to the
right. A table stood full set upon it. A collection of covered trays occupied a larger serving table
inland of 1t. We mounted a small stair, and I seated her and moved to check out the goodies next door.

"Do sit down, Merlin," she said. "I'll serve you."

"That's all right," [ answered, raising a lid. "I'm already here. I'll do the first round."

She was on her feet.

"Buffet style then," she said.

"Sure."

We filled our plates and moved to the table. Seconds after we had seated ourselves a brilliant
flash of light came to us across the water, illuminating the arching dome of the cavern vault like the
ribbed interior of some massive beast that was digesting us.

"You needn't look so apprehensive. You know they can't come in this far."

"Waiting for a thunderclap puts my appetite on hold," I said.



She laughed just as a distant roll of thunder reached us.

"And that makes everything all right?" she asked.

"Yes," I replied, raising my fork.

"Strange, the relatives life gives us," she said.

I looked at her, tried to read her expression, couldn't.

So, "Yes," I said.

She studied me for a moment, but [ wasn't giving anything away either.

So, "When you were a child you went monosyllabic as a sign of petulance," she said.

"Yes," I said.

We began eating. There were more flashes out over the still, dark sea.

By light of the last one I thought I caught sight of a distant ship, black sails full-rigged and
bellied.

"You kept your engagement with Mandor earlier?"

HYeS."

"How 1s he?"

"Fine."

"Something bothering you, Merlin?"

"Many things."

"Tell Mother?"

"What if she's a part of it?"

"I would be disappointed if I were not. Still, how long will you hold the business of the ty'iga
against me? I did what I thought was right. I still think it was."

I nodded and continued chewing. After a time, "You made that clear last cycle," I said.

The waters gave a small sloshing sound. A spectrum drifted across our table, her face.

"Is there something else?" she asked.

"Why don't you tell me?" I said.

I felt her gaze. I met it.

"I don't know what you mean," she answered.

"Are you aware that the Logrus is sentient? And the Pattern?" I said.

"Did Mandor tell you that?" she asked.

"Yes. But I already knew it before he did."

"How?"

"We've been in touch."

"You and the Pattern? You and the Logrus?"

"Both."

"To what end?"

"Manipulation, I'd say. They're engaged in a power struggle. They were asking me to choose
sides."

"Which did you choose?"

"Neither. Why?"

"You should have told me."

"Why?"

"For counsel. Possibly for assistance."

"Against the Powers of the universe? How well connected are you, Mother?"

She smiled.



"It is possible that one such as myself may possess special knowledge of their workings."

"One such as yourself... ?"

"A sorceress of my skills."

"Just how good are you, Mother?"

"I don't think they come much better, Merlin."

"Family is always the last to know, I guess. So why didn't you train me yourself, instead of
sending me off to Suhuy?"

"I'm not a good teacher. I dislike training people."

"You trained Jasra."

She tilted her head to the right and narrowed her eyes.

"Did Mandor tell you that, also?" she asked.

"No.

"Who, then?"

"What difference does it make?"

"Considerable," she replied. "Because I don't believe you knew it the last time we met."

I recalled suddenly that she had said something about Jasra back at Suhuy's, something implying
her familiarity with her, something to which I would ordinarily have risen save that I was driving a
load of animus in a different direction at the time and heading downhill in a thunderstorm with the
brakes making funny noises. I was about to ask her why it mattered when I learned it, when I realized
that she was really asking from whom I'd learned it, because she was concerned with whom I might
have been speaking on such matters since last we'd met. Mentioning Luke's Pattern ghost did not seem
politic, so, "Okay, Mandor let it slip," I said, "and then asked me to forget it."

"In other words," she said, "he expected it to get back to me. Why did he do it just that way? I
wonder. The man is damnably subtle."

"Maybe he did just let it slip."

"Mandor lets nothing slip. Never make him an enemy, son."

"Are we talking about the same person?"

She snapped her fingers.

"Of course," she said. "It was only as a child that you knew him. You went away after that. You
have seen him but a few times since. Yes, he is subtle, insidious, dangerous."

"We've always gotten along well."

"Of course. He never antagonizes without a good reason."

I shrugged and went on eating.

After a time she said, "I daresay he has made similar comments about me."

"I am unable to recall any," I answered.

"Has he been giving you lessons in circumspection, too?"

"No, though I've felt a need to teach myself, of late."

"Surely, you obtained a few in Amber."

"If I did, they were so subtle I didn't notice."

"Well, well. Can it be I need despair of you no more?"

"I doubt it."

"So, what might the Pattern or the Logrus want of you?"

"I already told you-a choice of sides."

"It is that difficult to decide which you prefer?"

"It 1s that difficult to decide which I dislike less."



"Because they are, as you say, manipulative of people in their struggle for power?"

"Just s0."

She laughed. Then, "While it shows the gods as no better than the rest of us," she said, "at least,
it shows them as no worse. See here the sources of human morality. It is still better than none at all. If
these grounds be insufficient for the choosing of sides, then let other considerations rule. You are,
after all, a son of Chaos."

"And Amber," I said.

"You grew up in the Courts."

"And I have dwelled in Amber. My relatives are as numerous there as they are here."

"It 1s really that close, then?"

"If it were not, it might have simplified matters."

"In that case," she said, "you must turn it around."

"What do you mean?"

" Ask not which appeals the most to you, but which can do the most for you,"

I sipped a fine green tea as the storm rolled nearer. Something splashed within the waters of our
inlet.

"All right," I said, "I'm asking."

She leaned forward and smiled and her eyes darkened. She has always had perfect control of her
face and form, shifting them to suit her moods. She is obviously the same person, but at times she may
choose to appear as little more than a girl, at other times becoming a mature and handsome woman.
Generally, she seems somewhere in between. But now, a certain timeless quality came into her
features-not age so much as the essence of Time-and I realized suddenly that I had never known her
true age. [ watched as something like a veil of ancient power came across it.

"The Logrus," she said, "will lead you to greatness."

I continued to stare.

"What sort of greatness?" I asked.

"What sort do you desire?"

"I don't know that I ever wanted greatness, on its own. It seems rather

like wanting to be an engineer, rather than wanting to design something-or wanting to be a
writer, rather than wanting to write. It should be a by-product, not a thing in itself. Otherwise, it's just
an ego trip."

"But if you earn it-if you deserve it-shouldn't you have it?"

"I suppose. But so far I've done nothing"-my eyes fell to a bright circle of light beneath the dark
waters, moving as if running before a storm-"except perhaps for an odd piece of equipment, which
might fall into that category."

"You are young, of course," she said, "and the times for which you were meant to be uniquely
qualified have come sooner than I'd anticipated."

If I were to use magic to summon a cup of coffe, would she resent that? Yes, I believed. She
would. So I decided on a glass of wine. As I poured it and took a sip, I said, "I'm afraid I don't
understand what you're talking about."

She nodded.

"It is hardly something you could learn from introspection," she said slowly, "and no one would
be so rash as to mention the possibility to you."

"What are you talking about, Mother?"

"The throne. To reign in the Courts of Chaos."



"Mandor had sort of suggested I think about it," I said.

"All right. No one, excepting Mandor, would be so rash as to mention it."

"I gather mothers get a certain kick out of seeing their sons do well, but unfortunately you've
named a job for which I lack not only skill, aptitude, and training but also any desire."

She steepled her fingers and regarded me from just above them.

"You are better qualified than you think, and your desires have nothing to do with the matter."

"As an interested party, I must beg to differ with you."

"Even if it were the only way to protect friends and relatives both here and in Amber?"

I took another sip of wine.

"Protect them? Against what?"

"The Pattern is about to try redefining the middle regions of Shadow in its own image. It is
probably strong enough to do it now."

"You were talking of Amber and the Courts, not of Shadow."

"The Logrus will have to resist this incursion. Since it would probably lose in a direct
confrontation with its opposite, it will be forced to employ agents strategically, in a strike against
Amber. The most effective agents would, of course, be champions of the Courts-"

"This 1s mad!" I said. "There must be a better way!"

"Possibly," she replied. "Accept the throne and you'll be giving the orders."

"I don't know enough."

"You will be briefed, of course."

"What about the proper order of succession?"

"That's not your problem."

"I rather think I'd have an interest in how it's achieved-say, whether I'd owe you or Mandor for
the majority of deaths."

"In that we're both Sawall, the question becomes academic."

"You mean you're cooperating on this?"

"We have our differences," she said, "and I draw the line at any discussion of methods."

I sighed and took another drink. The storm had grown worse over the dark waters. If that strange
light effect beneath their surface were indeed Ghostwheel, I wondered what he was up to. The
lightings were becoming a steady backdrop, the thunder a continuing soundtrack.

"What did you mean," I said, "when you spoke of the times for which I was meant to be uniquely
qualified?"

"The present and the immediate future," she said, "with the conflict that will come."

"No," I responded. "I was referring to the business about my being ‘meant to be uniquely
qualified.' How so?"

It must have been the lightning, for I had never seen her blush before.

"You combine two great bloodlines," she said. "Technically, your father was King of Amber
briefly-between the reign of Oberon and that of Eric"

"Since Oberon was still alive at the time and had not abdicated, neither reign should be
considered valid," I responded. "Random is Oberon's proper successor."

"A case can be made for an implied abdication," she said.

"You prefer that reading, don't you?"

"Of course."

I watched the storm. I swallowed some wine.

"That 1s why you wished to bear Corwin's child?" I asked.



"The Logrus assured me that such a child would be uniquely qualified to reign here."

"But Dad never really meant that much to you, did he?"

She looked away, out to where the circle of light was now racing toward us, lightnings falling
behind it. "You have no right to ask that question," she said.

"I know that. But it's true, isn't 1t?"

"You are mistaken. He meant a great deal to me."

"But not in any conventional sense."

"I amnot a conventional person."

"I was the result of a breeding experiment. The Logrus selected the mate who would give you-
what?"

The circle of light swam nearer. The storm followed it, coming closer in to the shore than I'd
ever seen one reach here before.

"An ideal Lord of Chaos," she said, "fit to rule."

"Somehow 1 feel there's more to it than that," I said.

Dodging lightning bolts, the bright circle came up out of the water and flashed across the sand
toward us. If she responded to my last remark, I couldn't hear it. The ensuing thunders were deafening,

The light came onto the decking, paused near to my foot.

"Dad, can you protect me?" Ghost asked in a lull between thunderclaps.

"Rise to my left wrist," I bade.

Dara stared as he found his place, taking on the appearance of Frakir.

In the meantime, the final flash of lightning did not depart, but stood for a time like a sizzling
stalk at the water's edge. Then it collapsed into a ball that hovered in the middle air for several
moments before drifting in our direction. As it came on, its structure began to change.

When it drifted to a position beside our table it had become a bright, pulsing Sign of the Logrus.

"Princess Dara, Prince Merlin," came that awful voice I had last heard on the day of the
confrontation at Amber Castle, "I did not wish to disturb your repast, but that thing you harbor makes
it necessary." A jagged branch of the image was flipped in the direction of my left wrist.

"It's blocking my ability to shift away," Ghost said.

"Give it to me!"

"Why?" I asked.

"That thing has traversed the Logrus," came the words, differing at seeming random in pitch,
volume, accent.

It occurred to me that I might defy it now if I were really as valuable to the Logrus as Dara had
indicated. So, "It's theoretically open to all comers," I responded.

"I am my own law, Merlin, and your Ghostwheel has crossed me before. I'll have it now."

"No," I said, moving my awareness into the spikard, seeking and locating a means of instant
transport to an area where the Pattern ruled. "I'll not surrender my creation so readily."

The brightness of the Sign increased.

At this, Dara was on her feet, moving to interpose herself between it and myself.

"Stay," she said. "We've more important matters tc deal with than vengeance upon a toy. I have
dispatched my cousins Hendrake for the bride of Chaos. If you wish this plan to succeed, I suggest
you assist them."

"I recall your plan for Prince Brand, setting the lady Jasra to snare him. It could not fail, you told
me."

"It brought you closer than you ever came, old Serpent, to the power you desire."



"That is true," it acknowledged.

"And the bearer of the Eye 1s a simpler being than Jasra."

The Sign slid past her, a tiny sun turning itself into a succession of ideograms.

"Merlin, you will take the throne and serve me when the time comes?"

"I will do what is necessary to redress the balance of power," I replied.

"That 1s not what I asked! Will you take the throne under the terms I set?"

"If that is what is needed to set things right," I answered.

"This pleases me," it said. "Keep your toy."

Dara moved aside, and it passed near to her before fading.

"Ask him of Luke and Corwin and the new Pattern," it said, and then it was gone.

She turned toward me and stared.

"Pour me a glass of wine," she said.

I did this. She raised it and took a swallow.

"So tell me of Luke and Corwin and the new Pattern," she said.

"Tell me of Jasra and Brand," I countered.

"No. You will go first in this," she said.

"Very well," I said. "It neglected to mention that they were Pattern ghosts. Luke's appeared to me
on the way over here, sent by the Pattern to persuade me to depart this realm. The Logrus sent Lord
Borel's to dispose of Luke."

"Luke being Rinaldo, the son of Jasra and Brand, husband of Coral and King of Kashfa?"

"Very good. Now tell me of all that business at the end. You set Jasra to snare Brand, to guide
him down the path he took?"

"He would have taken it anyhow. He came to the Courts seeking power to further his ends. She
merely made things a little easier for him."

"That's not how it sounded to me. But does that mean my father's curse was not really a factor?"

"No, it helped-in a metaphysical way-making it easier to extend the Black Road to Amber. Why
is it you are still here, when King Rinaldo bade you depart? Is it loyalty to the Courts?"

"I had a date with you for lunch, and it's been a while. Hated to miss it."

She smiled, very slightly, and took a small sip of wine.

"You change the subject well," she stated. "Let us return to it now.

The ghost of Borel dispatched that of Rinaldo, I take it?"

"Not exactly."

"What do you mean?"

"My father's ghost showed up about then and dealt with Borel, permitting us to depart."

"Again? Corwin bested Borel again?" I nodded.

"Neither remembered their first encounter, of course. Their memories only go back to the time of
their recording, and-"

"I understand the principle. Then what happened?"

"We fled," I answered, "and I subsequently came here."

"What did the Logrus mean in referring to the Pattern?"

"My father's ghost was apparently generated them; rather than by the old one."

She sat upright, eyes suddenly wide.

"How do you know this?" she demanded.

"He told me," I answered.

She stared past me then at the now-silent sea. "So the third power is actually taking a part in



things," she mused. "This is fascinating, as well as disconcerting. Damn the man for having drawn it!"

"You really hate him, don't you?" I said.

Her eyes focused again upon my own.

"Let that subject be!" she ordered. "Save for this," she amended a moment later. "Did he give
you any indication as to the new Pattern's allegiance-or its plans? The fact that .it sent him to protect
Luke might be seen as a seconding of the old Pattern's action. On the other hand-either because it was
created by your father, or because it has its own uses for you-I can see it simply as an effort at your
protection. What did he say?"

"That he wanted to get me away from where [ was."

She nodded.

"Which he obviously did," she said. "Did he say anything else? Did anything else happen that
might be important?"

"He asked after you."

"Really? And that was all?"

"He had no special message, if that's what you mean."

"I see."

She looked away, was silent for a time. Then, "Those ghosts don't last very long, do they?" she
said.

"No," I replied.

"It's infuriating," she said at last, "to think that, despite everything, he is still able to play a hand
in this."

"He's alive, 1sn't he, Mother?" I said. "And you know where he is."

"I'm not his keeper, Merlin."

"I think you are."

"It 1s impertinent to contradict me this way."

"Yet I must," I responded. "I saw him off on his way to the Courts. Certainly, he wanted to be
here with the others for the peace settlement. Even more, though, he must have wanted to see you.
There were so many unanswered questions in his mind-where you came from, why you came to him,
why you parted as you did-"

"Enough!" she cried. "Let it be!"

I ignored her.

"And I know he was here in the Courts. He was seen here. He must have looked you up. What
happened then? What sort of answers did you give him?"

She rose to her feet, glaring at me now.

"That will be all, Merlin," she said. "It seems impossible to conduct a civilized conversation
with you."

"Is he your prisoner, Mother? Do you have him locked away somewhere, someplace where he
can't bother you, can't interfere with your plans?"

She stepped quickly away from the table, almost stumbling.

"Wretched child!" she said. "You're just like him! Why did you have to resemble him so?"

"You're afraid of him, aren't you?" I said, suddenly realizing this could well be the case. "You're
afraid to kill a Prince of Amber, even with the Logrus on your side. You've got him locked away
somewhere, and you're afraid he'll come loose and blow your latest plans. You've been scared for a
long time now because of what you've had to do to keep him out of action."

"Preposterous!" she said, backing away as I rounded the table. There was a look of genuine fear



on her face now. "You're just guessing!" she went on. "He's dead, Merlin! Give up! Leave me alone!
Never mention his name in my presence again! Yes, [ hate him! He would have destroyed us all! He
still would, if he could!"

"He is not dead," I stated.

"How can you say that?"

I bit down on the desire to tell her I'd spoken with him, held it back.

"Only the guilty protest so strongly," I said. "He's alive. Where is he?"

She raised her hands, palms inward, and crossed them upon her breast, elbows low. The fear
was gone, the anger was gone. When she spoke again, something like mockery seemed her main
humor: "Then seek him, Merlin. By all means, seek him."

"Where?" I demanded.

"Look for him in the Pit of Chaos."

A flame appeared near her left foot and began orbiting her body in a counterclockwise direction,
spiraling upward, leaving a line of fire to blaze redly behind it. By the time it reached the crown of
her head she was entirely concealed. It went out with a faint whooshing sound then, taking her along
with it.

I moved forward and knelt, feeling the area on which she'd stood. It was a little warm, that's all.
Nice spell. Nobody'd ever taught me that one. Thinking back on it then, I realized that Mom had
always had a flair when it came to entrances and exits.

"Ghost?"

He danced away from my wrist to hover in the air before me.

HYeS?H

"Are you still barred from transporting yourself through Shadow ?"

"No," he replied. "That was lifted when the Sign of the Logrus departed. I can travel-in or out of
Shadow. I can provide transportation for you. Would you like me to?"

"Yes. Take me into the gallery upstairs."

"Gallery? I plunged directly from the place of the Logrus into the dark sea, Dad. I'm not quite
sure as to the lay of the land here."

"Never mind," I said. "I'll manage it myself."

I activated the spikard. Energies spiraled from six of its tines, encaging Ghost and myself,
swirling us upward to the place of my desire in the Maze of Art. I tried for a flash of fire as we went,
but had no way of knowing whether I'd achieved it. Makes you wonder how the really good ones get
their practice.



VII

I delivered us into that eerie hall that had always been old Sawall's chief delight in the maze. It
was a sculpture garden, with no outside light sources and small base lighting only about the huge
pieces, making it several times darker than my favorite lounge. The floor was uneven-concave,
convex, stepped, ridged-with concavity being the dominant curve. It was difficult to guess at its
dimensions, for it seemed of different size and contour depending upon where one stood. Gramble,
Lord Sawall, had caused it to be constructed without any plane surfaces-and I believe the job
involved some unique shadowmastery.

I stood beside what appeared to be a complicated rigging in the absence of its ship-that, or an
elaborate musical instrument fit to be strummed by Titans-and the light turned the lines to silver,
running like life from darkness to darkness within some half seen frame. Other pieces jutted from
walls and hung like stalactites. As I strolled, what had seemed walls became floor to me. The pieces
that had seemed floored now jutted or depended.

The room changed shape as I went, and a breeze blew through it, causing sighs, hums, buzzes,
chimes. Gramble, my stepfather, had taken a certain delight in this hall, whereas for me it had long
represented an exercise in intrepidity to venture beyond its threshold. As I grew older, however, 1,
too, came to enjoy it, partly for the occasional frisson it provided my adolescence. Now, though-now
I just wanted to wander it a few moments, for old times' sake, as I sorted through my thoughts. There
were so damned many of them. Things that had tantalized me for much of my adult life seemed near to
explanation now. I was not happy with all of the possibilities that tumbled through my mind. Still, no
matter which ones came out on top, it would beat ignorance.

V!Dad?ll
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"What is this place, anyway?" Ghost asked.

"It's a part of the big art collection here at the Ways of Sawall," I explained. "People come from
all over the Courts and nearby Shadow to see it. It was a passion with my stepfather. I spent a lot of
time wandering these halls when I was a kid. There are many hidden ways 1n this place."

"And this particular room? There's something wrong with it."

"Yes and no," I said. "I guess it depends on what you mean by ‘wrong.""

"My perceptions are strangely affected just now."

"That is because the space itself is folded in here, like some odd origami figure. The hall is
much larger than it seems. You can wander through many times and witness a different array of
displays on each occasion. There may even be some internal movement involved. I was never sure.
Only Sawall knew for certain."

"I was right. Something's wrong with it."

"I rather like it this way."

I seated myself on a silver stump beside a sprawled silver tree.

"I want to see how it folds," he said at last.

"Go ahead."

As he drifted off, I thought of my recent interview with my mother. I was reminded of everything
Mandor had said or implied, of the conflict between the Pattern and the Logrus, of my father as the
champion of the Pattern and intended king in Amber. Had she known this, known it as fact rather than
speculation? I imagined she could have, for she seemed to enjoy a special relationship with the




Logrus, and it would surely have been aware of its adversary's more prominent decisions. She'd
admitted that she did not love the man. It seemed as if she had sought him for whatever genetic
material had so impressed the Pattern. Had she really been trying to breed a champion for the Logrus?

I chuckled as I considered the result. She had seen me trained well in arms, but I was nowhere
near Dad's league. I'd preferred sorcery, but sorcerers were a dime a dozen in the Courts. Finally,
she'd shipped me off to college on that Shadow Earth the Amberites favor. But a degree in Computer
Science from Berkeley didn't much qualify me to uphold the banner of Chaos against the forces of
Order either. I must have been a disappointment to her.

I thought back to my childhood, to some of the strange adventures for which this place had
served as a point of departure. Gryll and I would come here, Glait slithering at our feet, coiled about
a limb or riding somewhere amid my garments. I would give that odd ululant cry I had learned in a
dream, and sometimes Kergma would join us, come skittering down the folds of darkness, out some
frayed area of twisted space. I was never sure exactly what Kergma was, or even of what gender, for
Kergma was a shapeshifter and flew, crawled, hopped, or ran in a succession of interesting forms.

On an impulse, I voiced that ancient call. Nothing, of course, happened, and I saw it moments
later for what it was: a cry after a vanished childhood, when I had at least felt wanted. Now, now I
was nothing-neither Amberite nor Chaosite, and certainly a disappointment to my relatives on both
sides. I was a failed experiment. I'd never been wanted for myself, but as something that might come
to pass. Suddenly my eyes were moist, and I held back a sob. And I'll never know what sort of mood I
might have worked myself into because I was distracted then.

There came a flare of red light from a point high on the wall to my left. It was in the form of a
small circle about the feet of a human figure.

"Merlin!" called a voice from that direction, and the flames leapt higher. By their light, I saw
that familiar face, reminding me a bit of my own, and [ was pleased with the meaning it had just given
to my life, even if that meaning was death.

I raised my left hand above my head and willed a flash of blue light from the spikard.

"Over here, Jurt!" I called, rising to my feet. I began forming the ball of light that was to be his
distraction while I readied the strike that would electrocute him. On reflection, it had seemed the
surest way of taking him out. I'd lost count of the number of attempts he'd made on my life, and I'd
resolved to take the initiative the next time he came calling. Frying his nervous system seemed the
surest way to ice him, despite what the Fountain had done for him. "Over here, Jurt!"

"Merlin! I want to talk!"

"I don't. I've tried it too often, and I've nothing left to say. Come on over and let's get this done-
weapons, hands, magic. I don't care."

He raised both hands, palms outward.

"Truce!" he cried. "It wouldn't be right to do it here in Sawall."

"Don't give me that scruples shit, brother! " I cried, but even as I said it I realized there might be
something to it. I could remember how much the old man's approval had meant to him, and I realized
that he'd hate to do anything to antagonize Dara here on the premises. "What do you want, anyway?"

"To talk. I mean 1t," he said. "What do I have to do?"

"Meet me over there," I said, casting my ball of light to shine above a familiar object that looked
like a giant house of cards made of glass and aluminum, bouncing light from hundreds of planes.

"All right," came the reply.

I began walking in that direction. I saw him approaching from his, and I angled my course so that
our paths would not intersect. Also, I increased my pace so as to arrive ahead of him.



"No tricks," he called out. "And if we do decide we can only take it to the end, let's go outside."

"Okay."

I entered the structure at a point around the corner from his approach.

Immediately, I encountered six images of myself.

"Why here?" came his voice from somewhere near at hand.

"I don't suppose you ever saw a movie called Lady from Shanghai?"

"NO."

"It occurred to me that we could wander around in here and talk, and the place would do a lot to
keep us from hurting each other."

I turned a corner. There were more of me in different places. A few moments later, I heard a
sharp intake of breath from somewhere near at hand. It was followed almost immediately by a
chuckle.

"I begin to understand," I heard him say.

Three steps and another turn. I halted. There were two of him and two of me. He was not looking
at me, though. I reached out slowly toward one of the images. He turned, he saw me. His mouth
opened as he stepped back and vanished.

"What did you want to talk about?" I asked, halting,

"It's hard to know where to begin."

"That's life."

"You upset Dara quite a bit..."

"That was quick. I only left her ten, fifteen minutes ago. You're staying here at Sawall?"

"Yes. And I knew she was having lunch with you. I just saw her briefly a little while ago."

"Well, she didn't make me feel too good either."

I turned another corner and passed through a doorway in time to see him smile faintly.

"She's that way sometimes. I know," he said. "She tells me the Logrus came by for dessert."

"Yes."

"She said it seems to have chosen you for the throne."

I hoped he saw my shrug.

"It seemed that way. I don't want it, though."

"But you said you'd do it."

"Only if there's no other way to restore a certain balance of forces. It's a last resort sort of thing.
It won't come to that, I'm sure."

"But it chose you."

Another shrug.

"Tmer and Tubble precede me."

"That doesn't matter. I'd wanted it, you know."

"I know. Seems a pretty dumb career choice."

Suddenly, he surrounded me.

"It does now," he admitted. "It was getting that way some time, though, before you got
designated. I thought I had the edge each time we met, and each time a came a little closer to killing
me."

"It did keep getting messier."

"That last time-in the church-in Kashfa, I was certain I could finally take you out. Instead, you
damn near did me in."

"Say that Dara or Mandor removed Tmer and Tubble. You knew you'd have to take care of me



yourself, but what about Despil?"

"He'd step aside for me."

"You asked him?"

"No. But I'm sure."

I moved on.

"You always assumed too much, Jurt."

"Maybe you're right," he said, appearing and vanishing again. "Either way, it doesn't matter."

"Why not?"

"I quit. I'm out of the running. The hell with it."

"How come?"

"Even if the Logrus hadn't made its intentions clear, I was beginning to feel nervous. It was not
just that I was afraid you'd kill me either. I got to thinking about myself, and the succession. What if |
made it to the throne? I'm not so sure as I once was that I'm competent to hold it." I turned again,
caught a glimpse of him licking his lips, brows knotted.

"I could mess up the realm severely," he went on, "unless I had good advice. And you know that,
ultimately, it would come from Mandor or Dara. I'd wind up a puppet, wouldn't 17"

"Probably. But you've gotten me very curious. When did you start thinking this way? Might it
coincide with your treatment in the Fountain? What 1f my interruption made yours closer to the correct
course there?"

"It's possible there's something to that," he said.

"I'm glad now I didn't go the full route. I suspect it might have driven me mad, as it did Brand.
But it may not have been that at all. Or-I don't know."

There was silence as I sidled along a passageway, my puzzled images keeping pace in the
mirrors at either hand.

"She didn't want me to kill you," he finally blurted from somewhere off to my right.

"Julia?"

"Yes."

"How 1is she?"

"Recovering. Pretty rapidly, actually."

"Is she here at Sawall?"

HYeS.H

"Look, I'd like to see her. But if she doesn't want to, I understand. I didn't know it was her when I
stabbed Mask, and I'm sorry."

"She never really wanted to hurt you. Her quarrel was with Jasra. With you, it was an elaborate
game. She wanted to prove she was as good as-maybe better than-you. She wanted to show you what
you'd thrown away."

"Sorry," I muttered.

"Tell me one thing, please," he said. "Did you love her? Did you ever really love her?"

I didn't answer him immediately. After all, I'd asked myself that question many times, and I'd had
to wait for the answer, too.

"Yes," I finally said. "I didn't realize it till it was too late, though. Bad timing on my part."

A little later I asked, "What about you?"

"I'm not going to make the same mistake you did," he replied. "She's what got me to thinking
about all these things..."

"I understand. If she won't see me, tell her that I said I'm sorry-about everything."



There was no reply. I stood still for a time, hoping he'd catch up with me, but he didn't.

Then, "Okay," I called out. "Our duel's ended, so far as I'm concerned."

I began moving again. After a time, I came to an exit and I stepped through it.

He was standing outside, looking up at a massive porcelain face.

"Good," he said.

I drew near.

"There's more," he said, still not looking at me.

"Oh?"

"I think they're stacking the deck," he stated.

"Who? How? What for?"

"Mom and the Logrus," he told me. "To put you on the throne. Who's the bride of the Jewel?"

"I guess that would be Coral. It seems I did hear Dara use that term at some point. Why?"

"I overheard her giving orders last cycle, to some of her Hendrake kin. She's sending a special
team to kidnap this woman and bring her here. I got the impression she's intended as your queen."

"That's ridiculous," I said. "She's married to my friend Luke. She's Queen of Kashfa-"

He shrugged.

"Just telling you what I heard," he said. "It had to do with this balancing of forces thing."

Indeed. I hadn't thought of that possibility, but it made perfect sense. With Coral, the Courts
would automatically obtain the Jewel of Judgment, or the Eye of the Serpent as it was known
hereabout, and that balance would certainly be affected. A loss for Amber, a gain for the Courts. It
could be sufficient to achieve what I wanted, the harmony that might postpone catastrophe
indefinitely.

Too bad I couldn't let it occur. The poor girl had been jerked around too much, because she
happened to be in Amber at the wrong time, because she happened to take a liking to me. I can recall
once feeling philosophical in the abstract and deciding, yes, it would be okay to sacrifice one
innocent for the good of the many. That was back in college, and had something to do with principles.
But Coral was my friend, my cousin, and technically my lover-though under a set of circumstances
that should hardly count; and a quick check of my feelings, so as not to be caught up short again,
indicated that I could fall in love with her. All of which meant that philosophy had lost yet another
round in the real world.

"How long ago did she send these people off, Jurt?"

"I don't know when they left-or even if they've left yet," he replied. "And with the time
differential, they could be gone and back already for that matter."

"True," I said, and, "Shit!"

He turned and looked at me.

"It's important in all sorts of other ways, too, I suppose?" he said.

"It 1s to her, and she is to me," I answered.

His expression changed to one of puzzlement.

"In that case," he said, "why don't you just let them bring her to you? If you have to take the
throne, it will sweeten things. If you don't, you'll have her with you, anyhow."

"Feelings are hard enough to keep secret, even around non-sorcerers," I said. "She could be used
as a hostage against my behavior."

"Oh. I hate to say this pleases me. What [ mean is ... I'm pleased you care about someone else."

I lowered my head. I wanted to reach out and touch him, but I didn't.

Jurt made a little humming noise, as he sometimes had when pondering things as a kid. Then,



"We've got to get her before they do, and move her to someplace safe," he said. "Or take her away
from them if they've already got her."

" ‘We!?"

He smiled, a rare event.

"You know what I've become. I'm tough."

"I hope so," I said. "But you know what'll happen.; if there are any witnesses to say it was a
couple of the Sawall brothers behind this? Most likely a vendetta with Hendrake."

"Even if Dara talked them into it?"

"It'll look like she set them up."

"Okay," he said. "No witnesses."

I could have said that averting vendetta would save a lot of other lives, but that would have
sounded hypocritical even if I didn't mean it that way. Instead, "That power you gained in the
Fountain," I said, "gives you something I've heard referred to as a ‘living Trump' effect. Seems to me
you were able to transport Julia as well as yourself with it."

He nodded.

"Can it get us from here to Kashfa in a hurry?" The distant sound of an enormous gong filled the
air. "I can do anything the cards can do," he said, "and I can take someone along with me. The only
problem is that the Trumps themselves don't have that range. I'd have to take us there in a series of
jumps."

The gong sounded again.

"What's going on?" I asked.

"The noise?" he said. "That's notice that the funeral is about to begin. It can be heard throughout
the Courts."

"Bad timing."

"Maybe, maybe not. It's giving me an idea."

"Tell me about it."

"It's our alibi1 if we have to take out some Hendrakes."

"How so?"

"The time differential. We go to the funeral and get seen. We slip out, run our errand, come back,
and attend the rest of the service."

"You think the flow will allow that?"

"I think there's a good chance, yes. I've done a lot of jumping around. I'm starting to get a real
feel for flows."

"Then we'll give it a try. The more confusion the better."

Again, the gong.

Red, the color of the fire of life that fills us, is the color of mourning garments in the Courts. |
used the spikard rather than the Sign of the Logrus to summon suitable clothing for myself. I'd a desire
to avoid any commerce, even the most mundane, with that Power, for now.

Jurt then trumped us to his quarters, where he had suitable garments of his own from the last
funeral he'd attended. I'd a small desire to see my old room, too. Sometime, perhaps, when I wasn't
rushed...

We washed up, combed, trimmed, dressed quickly. I took on a changed form then, as did Jurt,
and we went through the ritual again at this level, before garbing ourselves for the occasion. Shirt,
breeches, jacket, cloak, anklets, bracelets, scarf, and bandanna-we looked incendiary. Weapons had
to be left behind. We planned to return for them on the way out.



"Ready?" Jurt asked me.

"Yes."

He caught hold of my arm and we were transported, arriving at the inward edge of the Plaza at
the End of the World, where a blue sky darkened above a conflagration of mourners milling along the
route the procession would take. We passed among them, in hope of being seen by as many as
possible. I was greeted by a few old acquaintances. Unfortunately, most wanted to stop and talk, not
having seen me for some time. Jurt had similar problems. Most also wondered why we were here,
rather than back at the Thelbane, the massive, glassy needle of Chaos far to our rear. Periodically, the
air would vibrate as the gong continued its slow sounding. I felt it in the ground, also, as we were
very near to its home. We made our way slowly across the Plaza, toward the massive pile of black
stone at the very edge of the Pit, its gate an archway of frozen flame, as was its downward stair, each
tread and riser time-barred fire, each railing the same. The rough amphitheater below us was also
fire-furnished, self-illumed, facing the black block at the end of everything, no wall behind it, but the
open emptiness of the Pit and its singularity whence all things came.

No one was entering it yet, and we stood near the gates of fire and looked back along the route
the procession would follow. We nodded to friendly demonic faces, quivered to the note of the gong,
watched the sky darken a little further. Suddenly, my head was filled with a powerful presence.

"Merlin!"

I immediately had an image of Mandor in a changed form, looking down his red-clothed arm,
hand invisible, presumably regarding me through my Trump, wearing the closest thing I'd seen in a
long while to an irritated expression.

"Yes?" I said.

His gaze moved past me. His expression suddenly changed, eyebrows rising, lips parting.

"That's Jurt you're with?" he asked.

"That's right."

"I'd thought you not on the best of terms," he said slowly, "as of our last conversation."

"We agreed to put aside our differences for the funeral."

"While it seems very civilized, I'm not certain how wise it is," he said.

I smiled.

"I know what I'm doing," I told him.

"Really?" he said. "Then why are you at the cathedral rather than here at Thelbane?"

"Nobody told me I was supposed to be at Thelbane."

"Odd," he responded. "Your mother was supposed to have informed both you and Jurt that you
were to be part of the procession."

I shook my head and turned away.

"Jurt, did you know we were to be in the procession?" I asked.

"No," he said. "On the one hand, it makes sense. On the other, there's the black watch, which
might recommend we maintain a low profile. Who's telling you this?"

"Mandor. He says Dara was supposed to let us know."

"She didn't tell me."

"You catch that?" I said to Mandor.

"Yes. It doesn't matter now. Come on through, both of you."

He extended his other hand.

"He wants us now," I said to Jurt. "Damn!" Jurt mouthed, and came forward.

I reached out and clasped Mandor's hand just as Jurt came up and caught hold of my shoulder.



We both moved forward then into the slick and gleaming interior of Thelbane's main hall at ground
level, a study in black, gray, mossy green, deep red, chandeliers like stalactites, fire sculptures about
the walls, scaly hides hung behind them, drifting globes of water in the middle air, creatures
swimming within them. The place was filled with no-tiles, relatives, courtiers, stirring like a field of
flame about the catafalque at the hall's center. The gong sounded again just as Mandor said something
to us.

He waited till the vibrations subsided, then spoke again: "I said Dara hasn't arrived yet. Go pay
your respects, and let Bances assign you places in the procession."

Glancing toward the catafalque, I caught sight of both Tmer and Tubble in the vicinity. Tmer was
talking to Bances, Tubble to someone who had his back turned this way. A horrible thought suddenly
struck me.

"What," I asked, "is the security situation for the procession?"

Mandor smiled.

"There are quite a few guardsmen mixed in with the group here," he said, "and more spotted
along the way. Someone will be watching you every second."

I glanced at Jurt to see whether he'd heard, that. He nodded.

"Thanks."

Keeping my litany of obscenities subvocal, I moved toward the casket, Jurt at my back. The only
way I could think to produce a double would be to talk the Pattern into sending in a ghost of myself to
take my place. But the Logrus would detect the ringer's projected energies in no time. And if I just
left, not only would my absence be noticed, but I'd probably be tracked-possibly by the Logrus itself
once Dara called a conference. Then it would be learned that I'd gone off to thwart the Logrus's
attempt to rebalance order, and the headwaters of Shit Creek are a cruel and treacherous expanse. I
would not make the mistake of fancying myself indispensable.

"How are we going to do this, Merlin?" Jurt said softly as we found our way to the end of the
slow-moving line.

The gong sounded again, causing the chandeliers to vibrate.

"I don't see how we can," I answered. "I think the best I can hope for is to try getting a message
through as I walk along."

"It can't be done by Trump from here," he answered. "Well, maybe under perfect conditions," he
amended, "but not with all these distractions."

I tried to think of some spell, some sending, some agent to serve me in this. Ghost would have
been ideal. Of course; he'd drifted off to explore the spatial asymmetries of the Sculpture Hall. That
could keep him occupied for a long while.

"I could get there pretty quickly," Jurt volunteered, "and with the time differential I might make it
back before anyone noticed."

"And you know exactly two people in Kashfa you might tell," I said. "Luke and Coral. They both
met you in church, when we were trying to kill each other-and you stole Luke's father's sword.
Offhand, I'd say he'd try to kill you on sight and she'd scream for help."

The line advanced somewhat.

"So I don't ask for help," he said.

"Un-uh," I told him. "I know you're tough, but Hendrakes are pros. Also, you'd be faced with a
very uncooperative rescuee in Coral."

"You're a sorcerer," Jurt said. "If we find out who the guards are, couldn't you lay a spell on
them so that they think they see us for this whole affair? Then we disappear and no one's the wiser."



"I've a hunch either Mom or our big brother has laid protective spells on the guards. At such an
ideal time for an assassination, I would. I wouldn't want anyone able to mess with my people's heads
if I were running security here."

We shuffled a little farther along. By leaning to one side and stretching my neck I was able to get
a few glimpses of the wasted demonic form of old Swayvill, resplendently garbed, serpent of red-
gold laid upon his breast, there in the flame-formed coffin, Oberon's ancient nemesis, going to join
him at last.

As I moved nearer, it occurred to me that there was more than one a roach to the problem.
Perhaps I'd dwelled too long among the magically naive. I'd gotten out of the habit of thinking of
magic against magic, of multiple mixed spells. So what if the guards were protected from any fiddling
with their perceptions? Let it be. Find a way to work around it.

The gong sounded again. When the echoes died, Jurt leaned near.

"There's more to it than everything I said," he whispered.

"What do you mean?" I asked.

"Another reason I came to you back at Sawall was because I was scared," he replied.

"Of what?"

"At least one of them-Mandor or Dara-wants more than a balance, wants a total victory for the
Logrus, for Chaos. I really believe that. It's not just that I don't want to be patty to it. I don't want it to
happen. Now that I can visit Shadow I don't want to see it destroyed. I don't want a victory for either
side. Total control by the Pattern would probably be just as bad."

"How can you be sure one of them really wants this?"

"They tried it before with Brand, didn't they? He was out to destroy all order."

"No," I said. "He planned to destroy the old order, then replace it with his own. He was a
revolutionary, not an anarchist. He was going to create a new Pattern within the Chaos he brought
forth-his own, but still the real thing."

"He was duped. He couldn't have managed a thing like that."

"No way of knowing till he tried, and he didn't get the chance."

"Either way, I'm afraid someone's going to pull the plug on reality. If this kidnapping takes place,
it'll be a big step in that direction. If you can't manage something to cover our absence, I think we
should just go anyway and take our chances."

"Not yet," I said. "Hang on. I'm working something out. How's this sound? I don't locate the
guards and hallucinate them. Instead, I do a transformation. I cause a couple of other people to look
like us. You trump us out as soon as I do. That won't be a hallucination for anyone. Everyone will see
them as us; we can go about our business-and check back if we have to."

"You do it and I'll get us out of here."

"Okay, I'll do it to the two guys in front of us. As soon as I've finished I'll gesture like this," I
said, lowering my left hand from shoulder-height to waist-level, "and we both stoop as if one of us
had dropped something. Then you take us away."

"TI'll be ready."

The spikard made it easier than working out a transform spell. It was like a spell processor. 1
fed it the two end products, and it ran thousands of variations in a trice and handed me the finished
products-a pair of spells it would have taken me a long while to work out along classical lines. I
raised my hand as I hung them and accessed one of the many power sources the thing commanded oft
in Shadow. I fed juice into the constructs, watched the change commence, dropped my hand, and
leaned forward.



There followed a moment's vertigo, and when I straightened we were back in Jurt's apartment. |
laughed and he slapped my shoulder.

Immediately then, we were changing back into our human forms and garments. As soon as that
was done, he caught hold of my arm again and trumped us to Fire Gate. A moment later, and he'd
jumped us again, this time to a mountaintop overlooking a blue valley beneath a green sky. Then
again, to the middle of a high bridge above a deep gorge, the sky putting away stars or taking them on.

"Okay, now," he said, and we stood atop a gray stone wall damp with dew, possibly even the
remains of a v storm. Clouds were taking fire in the east. There was a light breeze out of the south.

This was the wall that surrounded the innermost zone of Jidrash, Luke's capital in Kashfa. There
were four huge buildings below us-including the palace and the Temple of the Unicorn directly across
the Plaza from it-as well as a number of smaller buildings. Diagonally across the way from where we
stood was the wing of the palace from which Gryll had fetched me (how long ago?) from my
rendezvous with the queen. I could even make out the broken shutter of our window amid an expanse
of ivy.

"Over there," I said, gesturing. "That's where I last saw her."

An eyeblink later we stood within the chamber, its only inhabitants.

The place had been straightened, the bed made up. I withdrew my Trumps and shuffled out
Coral's. Staring then till it grew cold, I felt her presence and reached for it.

She was there yet she wasn't. It was the disjointed sense of presence one encounters in dream or
stupor. I passed my hand over the card and ended our tenuous contact.

"What happened?" Jurt asked.

"I think she's drugged," I replied.

"Then it would seem they've already got her," he said. "Any way you can trace her in that state?"

"She could also be in the next building, on medication," I said. "She wasn't well when I left."

"What now?"

"Either way, we've got to talk to Luke," I said, searching for his card.

I reached him in an instant on uncovering it. "Merlin! Where the hell are you?" he asked.

"If you're in the palace, I'm next door," 1 said.

He rose to his feet from what I now realized to be the edge of a bedstead, and he picked up a
long-sleeved green shirt and drew it on, covering his collection of scars. I thought that I glimpsed
someone in the bed behind him. He muttered something in that direction, but I could not overhear it.

"We've got to talk," he said, running his hand through his rusty hair.

"Bring me through."

"Okay," I said. "But first, you'd better know that my brother Jurt is here."

"Has he got my dad's sword?"

"Uh'NO.”

"Guess I won't kill him right now," he said, tucking his shirt into his waistband.

Abruptly, he extended his hand. I clasped it. He stepped forward and joined us.



VIII

Luke grinned at me, scowled at Jurt.

"Where've you been, anyway?" he asked.

"The Courts of Chaos," I replied. "I was summoned from here at the death of Swayvill. The
funeral's in progress right now. We sneaked away when I learned that Coral was in danger."

"I know that-now," Luke said. "She's gone. Kidnapped, I think."

"When did it happen?"

"Night before last, I'd judge. What do you know of it?"

I glanced at Jurt. "Time differential," he said.

"She represented a chance to pick up a few points," I explained, "in the ongoing game between
the Pattern and the Logrus. So agents of Chaos were sent for her. They wanted her intact, though. She
should be okay."

"What do they want her for?"

"Seems they feel she's specially suited to be queen in Thelbane, what with the Jewel of Judgment
as a piece of her anatomy and all."

"Who's going to be the new king?"

My face felt warm of a sudden.

"Well, the people who came for her had me in mind for the job," I replied.

"Hey, congratulations!" he said. "Now I don't have to be the only one having all this fun."

"What do you mean?"

"This king business ain't worth shit, man. I wish I'd never gotten sucked into the deal in the first
place. Everybody's got a piece of your time, and when they don't someone still has to know where you
are."

"Hell, you were just crowned. Give it a chance to shake down."

" ‘Just'? It's been over a month!"

"Time differential," Jurt repeated.

"Come on. I'll buy you a cup of coffee," Luke said.

"You've got coffee here?"

"I require it, man. This way." He led us out the door, turned left, headed down a stair.

"I had a funny thought," he said, "while you were talking back there-about you reigning, and
Coral a desirable queen. I could get the marriage annulled pretty damn quick, since I'm in charge here.
Now, you want her for your queen and I want that Golden Circle Treaty with Amber. I think I see a
way to make everybody happy."

"It's a lot more complicated than that, Luke. I don't want the job, and it would be very bad for us
if my kinsmen back in the Courts got custody of Coral. I've learned a lot of things recently."

"Such as?" Luke said, opening a postern that let upon a walkway to the rear of the palace.

I glanced back at Jurt.

"He's scared, too," I said. "That's why we're a little more cordial these days."

Jurt nodded.

"It's possible Brand could have been partly victim of a plan originated in the Courts," he said,
"part of an idea that's still alive there."

"We'd better go for the whole breakfast," Luke said. "Let's swing around back and take it in the
kitchen." We followed him down a garden path.



And so we ate and talked as the day brightened about us. Luke insisted I try Coral's Trump again,
which I did with the same result. Then he cursed, nodded, and said,' "Your timing's actually pretty
good. The guys who grabbed her were reported to have taken off along a black trail into the west."

"It figures," I said.

"I've reason to believe they didn't make it back to the Courts with her."

HOh?H

"I understand these black thoroughfares you guys use are dangerous to outsiders," he observed.
"But I can show you what's left of this one-it's a black pathway now, actually. I'd like to follow it, but
I don't know that I can, get away for long. Also, is there a way to protect me from the trail itself?"

"Just being in our company would keep you from harm as we traveled it," Jurt said.

I stood. The cook and two dishwashers glanced in our direction.

"There is somebody you have to meet, Luke," I told him. "Right now."

"Why not?" he said, rising. "Where is he?"

"Let's take a walk," I said.

"SUI'C."

We got to our feet, headed back to the servants' door. "So, whether she was a willing
accomplice or a magical time bomb, Mom might have conned Dad into his efforts to take over in
Amber-and, ultimately, to change the world," Luke said.

"Well, I gather he didn't exactly come to her with clean hands," I said.

"True, but I wonder how elaborate his plans really were, to begin with," Luke mused. "This is
the most cheerful thing I've heard all month."

We exited into the little covered walkway that ran along the side of the palace. Luke halted and
looked around.

"Where 1s he?" he asked.

"Not here," I said. "I just needed a point of departure with no witnesses to say I'd kidnapped the
king."

"Where are we going, Merlin?" Jurt asked, as I swirled a spiral from the center of the spikard,
drawing upon sixteen different power sources.

"Good idea. Kidnap away," Luke was saying as he was caught up along with Jurt.

I used it as I had when I'd transported myself from Amber to Kashfa, forming the target from
memory rather than discovered vision. Only this time there were three of us and a long, long way to
go.

"Have I got a deal for you," I said.

It was like stepping into a kaleidoscope, and passing through about 120 degrees of cubist
fragmentation and reassembly, before emerging on the other side beneath a towering tree, its top lost
in the fog, in the vicinity of a red and white ‘57 Chevy, its radio playing Renbourn's "Nine Maidens."

Luke's ghost emerged from the front seat and stared at the original.

Luke stared back.

"Hi," I said. "Meet each other. You hardly need an introduction, though. You have so much in
common." Jurt stared at the Pattern.

"That's my dad's edition," I said.

"I could have guessed that," Jurt told me. "But what are we doing here?"

"An idea I had. But I thought Corwin would be here, and I might discuss it with him."

"He came back, and he left again," said the resident Luke, overhearing me.

"Did he leave a forwarding address, or say when he might return?"



"Nope."

"Damn! Look, something that got said just a little while ago gave me the idea that you Lukes
might want to change places for a time-if this Pattern could be persuaded to approve some leave."

Luke, whom I decided to continue calling Luke when his ghost was around, brightened suddenly.
I resolved to think of his double as Rinaldo, to keep things sorted.

"It's an experience no man should do without," he said.

"Then why are you so anxious to get away from it?" Rinaldo replied.

"To help Merle find Coral," Luke said. "She's been kidnapped."

"Really? By whom?"

"Agents of Chaos."

"Hm." Rinaldo began to pace. "Okay, you know more about it than I do," he finally said. "If
Corwin gets back soon and the Pattern excuses me, I'll help you any way I can."

"The trail will be getting colder while we wait," Luke observed.

"You don't understand," Rinaldo said. "I've got a job to do here, and I can't just take off-even if
it's to go and be a king somewhere. What I do 1s more important."

Luke glanced at me.

"He's right," 1 said. "He's a guardian of the Pattern. On the other hand, nobody's about to hurt
Coral. Why don't Jurt and I pop on back to the Courts for a few minutes, to check on the progress of
the funeral? Corwin might show up while we're about it. I'm sure you two will find something to talk
about."

"Go ahead," Luke told me.

"Yeah," said Rinaldo. "I'd like to know what we've been doing."

I looked at Jurt, who nodded. I went and stood beside him.

"Your turn to drive," I said.

"Back soon," I remarked as we faded into the first jump.

... And so again to the Ways of Sawall, and back into our ruddy garb over demon-form. I also
changed our facial appearance to the nondescript before Jurt returned us to the funeral party, not
wanting a matching set marching along.

The Thelbane proved deserted. A quick check outside, however, showed us the procession,
perhaps a quarter way across the Plaza, halted and in a state of confusion.

"Uh-oh," Jurt remarked. "What should I do?"

"Take us down there," I told him.

Moments later, we were at the outer edge of the crowd. Swayvill's blazing casket had been
lowered to the ground, a guard posted about it. My attention was immediately attracted to a knot of
figures perhaps twenty feet off to the right of it. There was some shouting going on, something lay
upon the ground, and two demonic forms were being held tightly by several others. My stomach
tightened as I saw that the two were the pair I had ensorcelled to resemble Jurt and myself. Both were
protesting something.

As I pushed my way forward, I withdrew my spells, causing the two to revert to their own
appearance. There were more shouts as this occurred, including an "I told you!" from the nearest. The
response to this was a "Yes, they are!" from someone I suddenly realized to be Mandor. He stood
between them and the thing on the ground.

"It was a trick!" Mandor said. "A distraction! Release them!"

I decided the moment was propitious for dropping the spells that masked Jurt and myself.
Glorious confusion! Moments later, Mandor saw me and signaled for me to approach. Jurt, I saw, oft



to my right, had stopped to talk to someone he knew.

"Merlin!" he said as soon as I was near. "What do you know of this?"

"Nothing," I said. "I was way to the rear, with Jurt. I don't even know what happened."

"Someone gave two of the security guards your appearance and Jurt's. This was obviously
intended to create confusion when the assassin struck. They rushed forward insisting they were
guards. Obviously, they weren't. Clever-especially with you and Jurt on their black watch list."

"I'see," I agreed, wondering whether I had helped an assassin to escape. "Who got hit?"

"Tmer, with a very professional dagger stroke," he explained, left eyelid twitching. A faint
wink? Meaning? "And he was gone in an instant."

Four mourners, having made a stretcher of cloaks, raised the fallen body. After they'd moved
only a few paces with it, I saw another knot of people beyond them.

Seeing my puzzled expression, Mandor glanced back.

"More security," he said. "They're surrounding Tubble. I think I'll order him out of here for now.
You and Jurt, too. You can come to the temple later. I'll see that security's even heavier there."

"Okay," I said. "Is Dara here?" He glanced about.

"I haven't seen her. Don't now, either. You'd better go."

I nodded. As I turned away, | saw a half-familiar face off to my right.

She was tall and dark-eyed, shifting from a swirl of multicolored jewels to a swaying flowerlike
form, and she had been staring at me. I had been trying to recall her name earlier, and had failed.
Seeing her brought it back, though. I approached her.

"I have to leave for a time," I said. "But I wanted to say hello, Gilva."

"You do remember. I was wondering."

"Of course."

"How are you, Merlin?"

I sighed. She smiled her way into furry, half-human solidity.

"Me, too," she said. "I'll be so glad when this is all settled."

"Yes. Listen, [ want to see you for several reasons. When would be a good time?"

"Why, anytime after the funeral, I guess. What about?"

"No time now. Mandor's giving me angry looks. See you later."

"Yes. Later, Merlin."

I hurried back to Jurt and caught him by the elbow. "We're ordered to leave," I said. "Security
reasons."

"All right." He turned to the man he'd been talking with. "Thanks. I'll see you later," he told him.

The world slipped away. A new one dawned: Jurt's apartment, our clothes strewn about it.

"Good timing for us. Bad for Tmer," he remarked.

"True."

"How's it feel to be number two?" he asked as we changed again-both clothing and form.

"It advances your case, too," I said.

"I've a feeling he died on your account, brother, not mine."

"I hope not," I said.

He laughed.

"It's between Tubble and you."

"If it were, I'd be dead already," I said. "If you're right, it's really between Sawall and
Chanicut."

"Wouldn't it be funny, Merlin, if [ were sticking with you because it's the safest place to be just



now?" he asked. "I'm sure our guards and assassins are better than Chanicut's. Supposing I'm just
waiting, saving my final effort till Tubble's out of the way? Then, trusting me and all, you turn your
back-Coronation!"

I looked at him. He was smiling, but he also seemed to be studying me.

I was about to say, "You can have it, without the trouble," in a joking way. But I wondered just
then: Even in jest, if it were a choice between the two of us ... It occurred to me that if we were the
only options, this was a circumstance under which I'd agree to take the throne. I'd resolved to give
him the benefit of the doubt, to meet him more than halfway. But I couldn't help it. For all his
conciliatory talk and apparent cooperation, a lifelong habit is a hard thing to break. I couldn't bring
myself to trust him anymore than I had to.

"Tell it to the Logrus," I said.

A look of fear-the widening of the eyes, the shifting of the gaze downward, a small forward
tightening of the shoulders-then, "You really do have an understanding with it, don't you?" he asked.

"There seems to be an understanding, but it only works one way," I said.

"What do you mean?"

"I'm not about to help either side wreck our world."

"Sounds like you're prepared to double-cross the Logrus."

I raised a finger to my lips.

"It must be your Amber blood," he said then. "I've been told they're all a little crazy."

"Maybe so," I said.

"Sounds like something your father would do."

"What do you know of him?"

"You know, everybody has a favorite Amber story."

"Nobody around here ever told any to me."

"Of course not-considering."

"Me being a half breed and all?" I said.

He shrugged. Then, "Well, yes."

I pulled on my boots.

"Whatever you're doing with that new Pattern," he said, "it probably won't make the old one too
happy."

"Doubtless you're right," I agreed.

"So you won't be able to run to it for protection if the Logrus is after you."

"I guess not."

"... And if they're both after you, the new one won't be able to stand against them."

"You think they'd really get together on anything?"

"Hard to say. You're playing a wild game. I hope you know what you're doing."

"Me, too," I said, rising. "My turn."

[ unwound the spikard at a level I'd never attempted before, and I got us there in a single jump.

Luke and Rinaldo were still talking. I could tell them apart by their garments. Corwin was
nowhere 1n sight. Both waved as we made our appearance.

"How's everything in the Courts?" Luke asked.

"Chaotic," Jurt replied. "How long have we been away?"

"Six hours, I'd guess," Rinaldo replied.

"No sign of Corwin?" I asked.

"No," Luke said. "But in the meantime, we've worked out a deal with each other-and Rinaldo's



been in touch with the Pattern here. It will release him and continue his maintenance as soon as
Corwin returns."

"Regarding that ..." Jurt said.

"Yes?" Rinaldo asked. "

"I'll stay here and cover for Rinaldo while you go find the lady with the glass eye."

"Why?" Rinaldo asked.

"Because you'll do a better job together and I'll feel a lot safer here than I would most other
places."

"I'd have to see whether that's acceptable," Rinaldo said.

"Do it," said Jurt.

He moved off toward the Pattern. I searched the fog in all directions, hoping to see my father
returning. Jurt studied the car, its radio now playing a Bruce Dunlap number from "Los Animales."

"If your father comes back and relieves me," Jurt said, "I'll return to the funeral and make
excuses for you if you're not there. If you get back and I'm not there, you do the same. All right?"

"Yes," I said, wisps of mist rising like smoke between us. "And whichever of us is free first and
has something worth saying ..."

"Yes," he agreed. "I'll come looking if you don't get to me."

"Didn't happen to pick up my sword while you were back in the Courts, did you?" Luke asked.

"Didn't have time," Jurt replied.

"Next time you're back, I wish you'd make time."

"T'will, I will," Jurt said.

Rinaldo moved away from the Pattern, returned to us. "You're hired," he said to Jurt. "Come
with me. There's a spring [ want to show you, and a store of food, some weapons."

Luke turned and watched them move off to our left.

"I'm sorry," he said softly, "but I still don't trust him."

"Don't be sorry. I don't either. I've known him too long. But we have better reasons for trusting
each other now than we've had for a long time."

"I'm wondering whether it was wise to let him know where this Pattern is, and now to leave him
alone with it."

"I'm pretty sure the Pattern knows what it's doing, and that it can take care of itself."

He raised a pair of crossed fingers.

"I'd've argued against it," he said, "save that [ need my double."

When they returned, a deejay's baritone suddenly rolled forth, saying,

"It all goes to show, timing is everything. Road conditions are fine. It is a good day for travel."
Immediately, there followed a drum solo I'd have sworn was something I once heard Random play.

"You're on duty as of now," Rinaldo said to Jurt. To us, he nodded.

"Anytime."

I caught us up with the spikard and spun us back to Kashfa, bringing us into Jidrash near twilight,
to the same wall-top vantage I had enjoyed earlier with my brother.

"And so at last," Rinaldo said, looking out over the town.

"Yes," Luke replied. "It's all yours-for a time." Then, "Merle, how's about jumping us to my
apartment?"

I turned to the west where clouds had gone orange, glanced upward to where several hung
purple.

"Before we do that, Luke," I said, "I'd like to use what daylight's left for a look at that black



trail."

He nodded.

"Good idea. Okay, take us over there."

His gesture indicated a hilly area to the southwest. I caught us up and spikarded us to it, creating
a verb for which I felt a need in the same act.

Such is the power of Chaos.

Arriving on a small hilltop, we followed Luke down its far side.

"Over this way," he said.

Long shadows lay all about us, but there is a difference between their dimness and the blackness
of a travel-thread from the Courts.

"It was right here," Luke finally said when we came to a place between a pair of boulders.

I moved forward into the area but I felt nothing special.

"You sure this is the place?" I asked.

HYeS."

I advanced another ten paces, twenty.

"If this is really where it was, it's gone now," I told him. "Of course ... I wonder how long we've
been ¢ away?"

Luke snapped his fingers.

"Timing," he observed. "Take us back to my apartments."

We kissed the day good-bye as I sent forth a lead and opened our way through the wall of dark.
We stepped through into the room I had occupied earlier with Coral.

"Close enough?" I asked. "I'm not sure where your rooms are."

"Come on," he said, taking us out, to the left and down the stair.

"Time to consult the resident expert. Merle, do something about this guy's appearance. Too much
of a good thing might cause comment."

It was easy, and the first time I'd made anyone look like the big portrait of Oberon back home.

Luke knocked on a door before entering. Somewhere beyond it, a familiar voice spoke his name.

"I have some friends with me," he said.

"Bring them in," came her reply.

He opened the door and did so.

"Both of you know Nayda," Luke announced. "Nayda, this is my double. Let's call him Rinaldo
and me Luke while we're together. He's going to run things for me here while Merle and I are off
looking for your sister."

I changed Rinaldo back then, in response to her puzzled look.

She had on black trousers and an emerald blouse, her hair bound back by a matching green scarf.
She smiled as she greeted us, and when she regarded me she touched her lips lightly, almost casually,
with a fingertip. I nodded immediately.

"I trust you are recovered from any misadventures in Amber," I said. "You were, of course, there
at a bad time."

"Of course," she responded. "Fully recovered, thank you. Kind of you to ask. Thanks, too, for the
recent directions. It was you, I take it, who spirited Luke away these two days past?"

"It's really been that long?" I said.

"It has, sir."

"Sorry about that, my dear," Luke said, squeezing her hand and looking long into her eyes.

"That explains why the trail's faded," I said.



Rinaldo seized her hand and kissed it, while executing an elaborate bow.

" Amazing how much you've changed from the girl I knew," he stated.

"Oh‘?"

"I share Luke's memories as well as his appearance," he explained.

"‘I could tell there was something not quite human about you," she remarked. "I see you as a man
whose very blood s fire."

"And how might you see that?" he inquired.

"She has her means," Luke said, "though I thought it only a psychic bond with her sister.
Apparently it goes somewhat further."

She nodded.

"Speaking of which, I hope you can use it to help us track her," he continued. "With the trail gone
and a drug or a spell barring a Trump call, we'll be needing assistance."

"Yes," she answered, "though she is in no danger at the moment."

"Good," he said. "In that case, I'll order us all food and set to briefing this good-looking fellow
on what's going on in Kashfa these days."

"Luke," I said. "It sounds like an ideal time for me to head back to the Courts for the rest of the
funeral."

"How long would you be gone, Merle?"

"I don't know," I replied.

"Back by morning, I trust?"

"Me, too. What if I'm not, though?"

"T've a feeling I should go looking without you."

"Try reaching me first, though."

"Sure. See you later."

I drew my cloak of space about me, shrugging Kashfa away. When I opened it again I was back
in Jurt's quarters at Sawall.

I stretched, I yawned. I did a quick turn about the room, making certain [ was alone. I unfastened
my cloak and tossed it upon the bed. I paced as I unbuttoned my shirt.

Halt. What was 1t? Also, where?

I retraced a few paces. I had never spent a great deal of time in my younger brother's rooms, but
I would have recalled what I was feeling.

There was a chair and table in the corner formed by the wall and an armoire of dark, almost
black wood. Kneeling on the chair and reaching over the table, I could feel it-the presence of a way,
not quite strong enough for transport, though. Ergo...

I moved off to my right, opened the armoire. It had to be inside, of course. I wondered how
recently he had installed it. I also felt slightly funny about poking about in his quarters this way. Still,
he owed me for a lot of misery and inconvenience. A few confidences and a little cooperation hardly
cleaned the slate. I hadn't learned to trust him yet, and it was possible he was setting me up for
something, Good manners, I decided, would have to be sacrificed to prudence.

I pushed garments aside, making a way clear to the back of the thing. I could feel it strongly. A
final shove at the garments, a quick shuffle to the rear, and I was at the focus. I let it take me away.

Once there was a forward yielding, the pressure of the garments at my back gave me a small
push. That, plus the fact that someone (Jurt, himself?) had done a sloppy shadowmastering job
resulting in mismatched floor levels, sent me sprawling as I achieved destination.

At least, I didn't land in a pit full of sharpened stakes or acid. Or the lair of some half-starved



beast. No, it was a green-tiled floor, and I caught myself as I fell. And from the flickering light all
about me I guessed there was a mess of candles burning.

Even before I looked up I was sure they'd all be green.

Nor was I incorrect. About that or anything else. The setup was similar to that of my father, with
a groined vault containing a light source superior to the candles. Only there was no painting above
this altar. This one featured a stained-glass window, lots of green in it, and a little red.

Its principal was Brand.

I rose and crossed to it. Lying upon it, drawn a few inches from its sheath, was Werewindle.

I reached out and took hold of it, my first impulse being to bear it away with me for eventual
restoration to Luke. Then I hesitated. It wasn't something I could wear to a funeral. If I took it now I'd
have to hide it somewhere, and it was already well-hidden right here. I let my hand rest upon it,
though, as I thought. It contained a similar feeling of power to that which Grayswandir bore, only
somehow brighter, less tragedy-touched and brooding. Ironic. It seemed an ideal blade for a hero.

I looked about. There was a book on a reading stand off to my left, a pentagram upon the floor
behind me, worked in different shades of green, a smell-as of a recent wood fire-hung in the air. Idly,
I wondered what I might find if I were to knock a hole in the wall. Was this chapel located upon a
mountaintop? Beneath a lake? Underground? Was it drifting somewhere in the heavens?

What did it represent? It looked to be religious in nature. And Benedict, Corwin, and Brand
were the three I knew about. Were they admired, respected-venerated-by certain of my countrymen
and relatives? Or were these hidden chapels somehow more sinister?

I removed my hand from Werewindle, stepped to the vicinity of the pentagram.

My Logrus vision revealed nothing untoward, but an intense scan with the spikard detected the
residue of a long-removed magical operation. The traces were too faint to tell me anything of its
nature, however. While it seemed possible I might probe further after this and come up with a clearer
picture, I also realized I hadn't the time such an operation would require.

Reluctantly, I retreated to the vicinity of the way. Could these places have been used to try to
influence the individuals involved?

I shook my head. This was something I would have to save for another day. I located the way
and gave myself to it.

I stumbled on my return, also.

Catching hold of the frame with one hand, I seized a garment with another, kept myself upright,
straightened, and stepped out. Then I shifted the clothing back into place and shut the doors.

I stripped quickly, altering my form as I was about it, and I donned my mourning garb once
again. | felt some activity in the vicinity of the spikard, and for the first time I caught it drawing upon
one of the many sources it commanded to alter its shape, accommodating the changing size of my
finger. It had obviously done this several times before, though this was the first time I had noted the
process. This was interesting, in that it showed the device capable of acting independent of my will.

I didn't really know what the thing was, what its origin might have been. I kept it because it
represented a considerable source of power, an acceptable substitute for the use of the Logrus, which
I now feared. But as I watched it change shape to remain snug upon my changing finger, I wondered.
What if it were somehow boobytrapped to turn upon me at exactly the wrong moment?

I turned it a couple of times upon my finger. I moved into it with my mind, knowing this to be an
exercise in futility. It would take ages for me to run down each line to its source, to check out hidden
spells along the way. It was like taking a trip through a Swiss watch-custom-made. I was impressed
both with the beauty of its design, and with the enormous amount of work that had gone into its



creation. It could easily possess hidden imperatives that would only respond to special sets of
circumstances. Yet It had done nothing untoward, yet. And the alternative was the Logrus. It struck me
as a genuine instance of the preferability of the devil one didn't know.

Growling, I adjusted my apparel, focused my attention on the Temple of the Serpent, and bade
the spikard deliver me near its entrance. It performed as smoothly and gently as if I had never doubted
it, as if  had not discovered in it yet another cause for paranoia.

And for a time, I simply stood outside the doors of frozen flame, there at the great Cathedral of
the Serpent at the outer edge of the Plaza at the End of the World, situated exactly at the Rim, opened
to the Pit itself- where, on a good day, one can view the creation of the universe, or its ending-and I
watched the stars swarm through space that folded and unfolded like the petals of flowers; and as it
my life were about to change, my thoughts returned to California and school, of sailing the Sunburst
with Luke and Gail and Julia, of sitting with my father near the end of the war, of riding with Vinta
Bayle through the wine country to the east of Amber, of a long, brisk afternoon spent showing Coral
about the town, of the strange encounters of that day; and I turned. and raised my scaly hand, stared
past it at the spire of Thelbane, and "they cease not fighting, east and west, on the marches of my
breast," I thought. How long, how long ... ?-irony, as usual, a three-to-one favorite whenever
sentimentality makes its move.

Turning again, [ went in to see the last of the King of Chaos.



X

Down, down into the pile, into the great slag heap, window onto the ends of time and space,
where nothing is to be seen at the end, I went, between walls forever afire, never burnt down,
walking in one of my bodies toward the sound of a voice reading from the Book of the Serpent Hung
upon the Tree of Matter, and at length came into the grotto that backed upon blackness, widening
semicircles of red-clad mourners facing the reader and the grand catafalque beside which he stood,
Swayvill clearly in view within it, half-covered with red flowers dropped by mourners, red tapers
flickering against the Pit, but a few paces behind them; across the rear of the chamber then, listening
to Bances of Amblerash, High Priest of the Serpent, his words sounding as if spoken beside me, for
the acoustics of Chaos are good; finding a seat in an otherwise empty arc, where anyone looking back
would be certain to notice me; seeking familiar faces, finding Dara, Tubble, and Mandor seated in
frontal positions that indicated they were to assist Bances in sliding the casket past the edge into
forever when the time came; and in my divided heart I recalled the last funeral 1 had attended before
this.

Caine's, back in Amber, beside the sea, and I thought again of Bloom and the way the mind
wanders on these occasions.

I sought about me. Jurt was nowhere in sight. Gilva of Hendrake was only a couple of rows
below me. I shifted my gaze to the deep blackness beyond the Rim. It was almost as if [ were looking
down, rather than out-if such terms had any real meaning in that place. Occasionally, I would
perceive darting points of light or rolling masses. It served me as a kind of Rorschach for a time, and
I half-dozed before the prospect of dark butterflies, clouds, pairs of faces I sat upright with a small
start, wondering what had broken my reverie.

The silence, it was. Bances had stopped reading.

I was about to lean forward and whisper something to Gilva when Bances began the
Consignment. I was startled to discover that I recalled all of the appropriate responses.

As the chanting swelled and focused, I saw Mandor get to his feet, and Dara, and Tubble. They
moved forward, joining Bances about the casket-Dara and Mandor at its foot, Tubble and Bances at
its head. Service assistants rose from their section and began snuffing candles, until only the large
one, at the Rim, behind Bances, still flickered. At this point we all stood.

The ever-eerie light of flame mosaics, worked into the walls at either hand, granted additional
illumination to the extent that I could detect the movement below when the chanting ceased.

The four figures stooped slightly, presumably taking hold of the casket's handles. They
straightened then and moved toward the Rim. An assistant advanced and stood beside the candle just
as they passed it, ready to snuff the final flame as Swayvill's remains were consigned to Chaos.

A half dozen paces remained... Three. Two... Bances and Tubble knelt at the verge, positioning
the casket within a groove in the stone floor, Bances intoning a final bit of ritual the while, Dara and
Mandor remaining standing.

The prayer finished, I heard a curse. Mandor seemed jerked forward.

Dara stumbled away to the side. I heard a clank as the casket hit the floor. The assistant's hand
had already been moving, and the candle went out at that moment. There followed a skidding sound as
the casket moved forward, more curses, a shadowy figure retreating from the Rim...

Then came a wail. A bulky outline fell and was gone. The wail diminished, diminished,
diminished...



I raised my left fist, caused the spikard to create a globe of white light as a bubble pipe does a
bubble. It was about three feet in diameter when I released it to drift overhead. Suddenly, the place
was filled with babbling. Others of sorcerous background having exercised their favorite illumination
spells at about the same time I had, the temple was now over-illuminated from dozens of point-
sources.

Squinting, [ saw Bances, Mandor, and Dara in converse near the Rim.

Tubble and the remains of Swayvill were no longer with us.

My fellow mourners were already moving. I did, too, realizing that my time here was now
extremely limited. I stepped down over the empty row, moved to the right, touched Gilva's still
humanized shoulder. "Merlin!" she said, turning quickly. "Tubble-went over-didn't he?"

"Sure looked that way," I said.

"What will happen now?"

"I've got to leave," I said, "fast!"

V!Why?"

"Somebody's going to start thinking about the succession in a few moments, and I'm going to be
smothered with protection," I told her. "I can't have that, not just now."

"Why not?"

"No time to go into that. But I'd wanted to talk to you. May I borrow you now?"

There were milling bodies all about us.

"Of course-sir," she said, apparently having just thought about the succession.

"Cut that out," I said, spikard spiraling the energies that caught us and took us away.

I brought us to the forest of metal trees, and Gilva kept hold of my arm and looked about her.

"Lord, what is this place?" she asked.

"I'd rather not say," I replied, "for reasons that will become apparent in a moment. I only had one
question for you the last time I spoke with you. But now I have two, and this place figures in one of
them, in a way, besides being fairly deserted most of the time."

"Ask," she said, moving to face me. "I'll try to help. If it's important, though, I may not be the best
person-"

"Yes, it's important. But I haven't time to make an appointment with Belissa. It concerns my
father, Corwin."

V'Yes?ﬂ

"It was he who slew Borel of Hendrake in the war at Patternfall."

"So I understand," she said.

" After the war, he joined the royal party that came here to the Courts to work out the Treaty."

"Yes," she said. "I know that."

"He disappeared shortly thereafter, and no one seemed to know where he'd gotten off to. For a
time, I thought he might be dead. Later, however, I received indications that he was not, but rather
was imprisoned somewhere. Can you tell me anything about this?"

She turned away suddenly.

"I am offended," she said, "by what I believe you imply."

"I'm sorry," I said, "but I had to ask."

"Ours is an honorable House," she said. "We accept the fortunes of war. When the fighting is
ended, we put it all behind us."

"I apologize," I said. "We're even related, you know, on my mother's side."

"Yes, I know," she said, turning away. "Will that be all, Prince Merlin?"



"Yes," I answered. "Where shall I send you?"

She was silent for a moment, then, "You said there were two questions," she stated.

"Forget it. I changed my mind about the second one."

She turned back.

"Why? Why should I forget it? Because I maintain my family's honor?"

"No, because I believe you."

V'And?"

"T'll trouble someone else for an opinion."

"Do you mean it's dangerous, and you've decided against asking me?"

"I don't understand it, so it could be dangerous."

"Do you want to offend me again?"

"Heaven forbid!"

"Ask me your question."

"TI'll have to show you."

"Do it."

"Even if it means climbing a tree?"

"Whatever it means."

"Follow me."

So I led her to the tree and climbed it, an enormously simple feat in my present form. She was
right behind me.

"There's a way up here," I said. "I'm about to let it take me. Give me a few seconds to move
aside."

I moved a little farther upward and was transported. Stepping aside, I surveyed the chapel
quickly. Nothing seemed changed.

Then Gilva was at my side. I heard a sharp intake of breath.

"Oh, my! " she said.

"I know what I'm looking at," I said, "but I don't know what I'm seeing, if you follow me."

"It is a shrine," she said, "dedicated to the spirit of a member of the royal house of Amber."

"Yes, it's my father Corwin," I agreed. "That's what I'm looking at. But what am I seeing? Why
should there be such a thing here in the Courts, anyway?"

She moved forward slowly, studying Dad's altar.

"I might as well tell you," I added, "that this 1s not the only such shrine I've seen since my
return."”

She reached out and touched the hilt of Grayswandir. Searching beneath the altar, she found a
supply of candles. Removing a silver one and screwing it into the socket of one of a number of
holders, she lit it from one of the others and placed it near Grayswandir. She muttered something
while she was about it, but I did not make out the words.

When she turned back to me again she was smiling. "We both grew up here," I said. "How is it
that you seem to know all about this when I don't?"

"The answer is fairly simple, Lord," she told me. "You departed right after the war, to seek an
education in other lands. This is a sign of something that came to pass in your absence."

She reached out, took hold of my arm, led me to a bench.

"Nobody thought we would actually lose that war," she said, "though it had long been argued that
Amber would be a formidable adversary." We seated ourselves. "Afterward, there was considerable
unrest," she continued, "over the policies that had led to it and the treaty that followed it. No single



house or grouping could hope for a deposition against the royal coalition, though. You know the
conservatism of the Rim Lords. It would take much, much more to unite a majority against the Crown.
Instead, their discontent took another form. There grew up a brisk trade in Amber memorabilia from
the war. People became fascinated by our conquerors. Biographical studies of Amber's royal family
sold very well. Something like a cult began to take shape. Private chapels such as this began to
appear, dedicated to a particular Amberite whose virtues appealed to someone."

She paused, studying my face.

"It smacked too much of a religion," she went on then, "and for time out of mind the Way of the
Serpent had been the only significant religion in the Courts. So Swayvill outlawed the Amber cult as
heretical, for obvious political reasons. That proved a mistake. Had he done nothing it might have
passed quickly. I don't really know, of course. But outlawing it drove it underground, made people
take it more seriously as a rebellious thing. I've no idea how many cult chapels there are among the
Houses, but that's obviously what this is."

"Fascinating sociological phenomenon," I said, "and your cult figure is Benedict."

She laughed.

"That wouldn't have been hard to guess," she said.

"Actually, 1 had the chapel described to me by my brother Mandor. He claimed to have
wandered into it at a party at Hendrake, not knowing what it was."

She chuckled.

"He must have been testing you," she said. "The practice has been common knowledge for a long
while: And I happen to know he's a cultist himself."

"Really? How do you know this?"

"He made no secret of it in the old days, before the general proscription."”

"And who might his personal patron be?" I said.

"The Princess Fiona," she replied.

Curiouser and curiouser...

"You've actually seen his chapel to her?" I asked.

"Yes. Before the ban it was not uncommon to have your friends over for a service whenever you
were feeling particularly disgruntled with royal policy."

"And after the ban?"

"Everyone claimed publicly that their shrines had been destroyed. Many were simply relocated,
I think, up hidden ways."

"And the business of having friends over for services?"

"I'd guess it would depend on how good a friend you're talking about. I don't really know how
organized the Amber cult is." She gestured widely. "A place like this is illegal, though. Good thing I
don't know where we are."

"I guess so," I said. "What about the relationship between the cult figure and the real thing? I'd
say that Mandor really does have a thing about Fiona. He's met her, you know, and I've been present
and seen it. Someone else I know stole something belonging to his-patron?-and keeps it in his shrine.
And that"- I rose, crossed the altar, and picked up Corwin's sword-‘ ‘is the real thing. I'd seen
Grayswandir close-up, touched it, held it. This is it. But what I'm getting at is that my father is
missing, and the last time I saw him he was wearing that blade. Would it be in keeping with the tenets
of this cult to keep your patron prisoner?"

"I never heard of such a thing," she said. "But I don't see why not. It is really the spirit of the
person that is being venerated. There is no reason the person could not be imprisoned."



"Or dead?"

"Or dead," she agreed.

"Then fascinating as all this is," I said, turning away from the altar, "it doesn't really help me to
find my father."

I moved back to her, across what must have been a representation of Amber, stylized as the
pattern on a Caucasian rug, there in the dark and light tile, the Chaotic one far off to my right.

"You would have to ask the person responsible for his blade's being there," she said, rising.

"I already asked the person I believed responsible. The response was not satisfactory."

I took her arm to steer her back toward the way to the tree, and she was suddenly standing very
close.

"I would like to serve our next king any way I might," she said. "Though I may not normally
speak for our House, I am certain Hendrake would agree to help you bring pressure upon the person
responsible."

"Thanks," I said as we embraced. Her scales were cool. Her fangs would have shredded my
human ear, but it was only a nibble in demon-form. "I will talk to you again if I need help along those
lines."

"Talk to me again, anyway."

It was good to hold and be held for a time, and that is what we did, till I saw a shadow move in
the vicinity of the way.

"Masster Merlin."

"Glait!"

"Yess. I ssaw you come thiss way. Manform, demonform, grown or ssmall, I know you."

"Merlin, what 1s it?" Gilva asked.

"An old friend," I told her. "Glait, meet Gilva. And vice versa."

"Pleassed. I came to warn you that ssomeone approachess."

"Who?"

"Princess Dara."

"Oh, dear!" Gilva remarked.

"You suspect where we are," I said to her. "Keep it to yourself."

"I value my head, Lord. What do we do now?"

"Glait, to me," I said, kneeling and extending an arm. She flowed up it and made herself
comfortable. I rose and caught hold of Gilva with the other. I sent my will into the spikard.

Then I hesitated

I didn't know where the hell we were-really, physically, in terms of geography. A way can
deliver you next door, or somewhere thousands of miles distant from its point of origin, or
somewhere off in Shadow. It would take a while to have the spikard figure where we were and then
work out the way back, if we were going to bypass the way. Too long, I was certain.

I could simply use it to render us invisible. But I feared my mother's sorcerous sensitivity would
be sufficient to detect our presence at levels beyond the visual.

I faced the nearest wall and extended my senses past it on a line of the spikard's force. We were
not underwater or drifting on a sea of lava or quicksand. We seemed to be in a wooded spot.

So [ walked toward the wall and passed us through it when we got there.

Several paces later, in the midst of a shaded glade, I looked back and beheld a grassy hillside,
with no singing coming from beneath it. We stood under a blue sky, orange sun nearing its top. There
were bird and insect sounds about us.



"Marrow!" Glait exclaimed, unwound herself from my arm and vanished into the gasses.

"Don't stay away long!" I hissed, trying to keep my voice low; and I led Gilva away from the
hill.

"Merlin," she said, "I'm frightened at what I've learned."

"I won't tell anyone if you won't," I said. "If you'd like, I can even remove these memories before
I send you back to the funeral."

"No, let me keep them. I can even wish there were more."

"TI'll figure our location and get you back before you're missed."

"TI'll wait with you while your friend hunts."

I half expected her to continue, "...in case I never see you again," what with the near
skateboarding of Tmer and Tubble off this ever-mortal helix. But no, she was a demure and well-bred
battle-maid-with over thirty notches on the haft of her broadsword, I later learned-and she was above
stating the distasteful obvious in the presence of her possible future liege.

When Glait returned after an appropriate time, I said, "Thanks, Gilva. I'm going to send you back
to the funeral now. If anyone saw us together and wants to know where I am, tell them I said I was
going into hiding."

"If you do need a place to hide ..."

"Talk to you sometime later perhaps," I said, and I sent her back to the temple at the edge of
everything.

"Good vermin," Glait remarked, as I commenced my shift human-ward. (It's always easier that
way for me than the demon-shift.)

"I'd like to send you back to Sawall's sculpture garden," I said.

"Why there, Masster Merlin?"

"To wait for a time, to see whether you behold a sentient circle of light. And if you do, to
address it as Ghostwheel and tell it to come to me."

"Where shall I tell it to sseek you?"

"That I do not know, but it is good at that sort of thing."

"Then ssend me. And if you are not eaten by ssomething bigger, come tell me your sstory one
night."

"I shall."

It was the work of but a moment to hang the serpent back in her tree.

I've never been sure when she's joking, reptilian humor being more than a little strange.

I summoned fresh garments and garbed myself in gray and purple. Fetched me blades long and
short then, also. I wondered what my mother might have been up to in her chapel, but decided against
trying to spy on her. I raised the spikard and regarded it for a moment, then lowered it. It seemed
possibly counterproductive to transport myself to Kashfa when I was uncertain how much time had
passed and whether Luke was actually still there. I took out my Trumps, which I had had along in my
mourning garb, uncased them.

I located Luke's, focused upon it. Before too long it went cold and I felt Luke's presence.

"Yes?" he said. "That you, Merle?" at about the same time as his image swam and altered,
causing me to see him mounted and riding through a part-blasted, part-normal countryside.

"Yeah," I answered. "I gather you're no longer in Kashfa."

"Right," he said. "Where're you?"

"Somewhere in Shadow. How's about yourself?"

"Damned if I know for sure," he responded. "We've been following this black path for days-and



I can only say ‘somewhere in Shadow,' t0o."

"Oh, you located it?"

"Nayda did. I didn't see anything, but she just led me on. Eventually, the trail got clear to me.
Hell of a tracker, that gal."

"She's with you now?"

"That's right. She says we're gaining on them, too."

"Better bring me through then."

"Come ahead."

He extended a hand. I reached forward, clasped it, took a step, released his hand, began walking
beside him, a pack horse to the rear.

"Hi, Nayda!" I called, to where she rode at his other side. A grim figure was mounted upon a
black horse ahead and to her right.

She smiled.

"Merlin," she said. "Hello."

"How about Merle?" I said.

"If you wish."

The figure on the dark horse turned and regarded me.

I halted a death strike that ran from reflex to the spikard so fast that it scared me. The air
between us was smudged and filled with a screeching note, as of a car grabbing pavement to avert
collision.

He was a big, blond-haired son of a bitch, and he had on a yellow shirt and black trousers, black
boots, lots of cutlery. The medallion of the Lion rending the Unicorn bounced upon his broad chest.
Every time I'd seen or heard of the man, he'd been about something nasty, damn near killing Luke on
one occasion. He was a mercenary, a Robin Hood figure out of Eregnor, and a sworn enemy of
Amber-illegitimate son of her late liege Oberon. I believed there was a price on his head within the
Golden Circle. On the other hand, he and Luke had been buddies for years, and Luke swore he wasn't
all that bad. He was my uncle Dalt, and I'd a feeling that if he moved too quickly the flexing of his
muscles would shred his shirt.

"... And you remember my military adviser, Dalt," Luke said.

"I remember," I stated.

Dalt stared at the black lines in the air that faded, smoke-like, between us. He actually smiled
then, a little.

"Merlin," he said, "son of Amber, Prince of Chaos, the man who dug my grave."

"What's this?" Luke asked.

"A little conversational gambit," I replied. "You've a good memory, Dalt-for faces."

He chuckled.

"Hard to forget something like a grave opening itself," he said. "But I've no quarrel with you,
Merlin."

"Nor I you-now," I said.

He grunted then and I grunted back and considered us introduced. I turned back toward Luke.

"Is the path itself giving you any trouble?" I asked.

"No," he replied. "It's nothing at all like those stories I'd heard about the Black Road. It looks a
little bleak at times, but nothing's really threatened us." He glanced downward and chuckled. "Of
course it's only a few yards wide," he added, "and this is the broadest it's been, so far."

"Still," T said, opening my senses and studying its emanations with my Logrus sight, "I'd think



something might have threatened."

"I guess we've been lucky," he said.

Again, Nayda laughed, and I felt foolish. The presence of a ty'iga would count as surely as my
own in offsetting the dire effects of a Chaos roadway in the realm of Order.

"Guess you had a little luck coming," I said.

"You're going to need a horse, Merle," he said then.

"I suppose you're right," I agreed.

I was afraid to use Logrus magic and call attention to my location. Still, I had already learned
that the spikard could be used in a similar fashion, and I entered it with my will, extended, extended,
made contact, summoned...

"It'll be along any minute," I said. "Did you say something about our gaining on them?"

"That's what Nayda tells me," he explained. "She has an amazing rapport with her sister-not to
mention a high sensitivity to this pathway itself.

"Knows a lot about demons, too," he added.

"Oh, are we likely to encounter any?" I asked her.

"It was demon-formed warriors from the Courts who abducted Coral," she said. "They seem
headed toward a tower up ahead."

"How far ahead?" I asked.

"Hard to say, since we're cutting through Shadow," she answered.

The trail, which consisted of blackened grasses and which produced the same effect on any tree
or shrub that so much as overhung it, wound its way through a hilly area now; and as I stepped onto
and off of it I noted that it seemed brighter and warmer each time I departed. It had reached this point
now after having been virtually undetectable in the vicinity of Kashfa-an index of how far we were
into the realm of the Logrus.

A little past the next bending of the trail, I heard a whinny from off to the right.

"Excuse me," I said. "Delivery time," and I departed the trail and entered a grove of oval-leafed
trees.

Snorting and stamping sounds reached me from ahead, and I followed them down shaded ways.
"Wait up!" Luke called. "We shouldn't separate."

But the wood was fairly dense, not at all easy going for someone on horseback, so I hollered
back, "Don't worry!" and plunged ahead.

... And that, of course, was why he was there.

Fully saddled and bridled, his reins tangled in the dense foliage, he was cursing in horse-talk,
shaking his head from side to side, pawing at the earth. I halted stared.

I may have given the impression that I would rather pull on a pair of Adidas and jog through
Shadow than plunge through on the back of a beast driven half-mad by the changes going on about it.
Or ride a bicycle. Or hop through on a pogo stick.

Nor would this impression be incorrect. It is not that I don't know how to drive the things. It is
just that I'd never been particularly fond of them. Admitted, I never had the use of one of those wonder
horses, such as Julian's Morgenstern, Dad's Star, or Benedict's Glemdenning, which stood to mortal
horses in terms of life span, strength, and endurance as did Amberites to the inhabitants of most
shadows.

I looked all about, but could detect no injured rider...

"Merlin!" I heard Luke call, but my attention was nearer at hand. I advanced slowly, not wanting
to upset him further. "Are you all right?"



I had simply put in an order for a horse. Any old hay burner would have served, for purposes of
keeping up with my companions.

I found myself looking at an absolutely lovely animal-black and orange-striped like a tiger. In
this, he resembled Glemdenning with his red and black striping. In that I didn't know where
Benedict's mount came from either, [ was glad to let it be the place of magic.

I advanced slowly.

"Merle! Anything wrong?"

I didn't want to shout back a reply and frighten the poor beast. I placed my hand gently upon his
neck.

"It's okay," I said. "I like you. I'll undo it and we'll be friends, all right?"

I took my time untangling the reins, using my other hand to massage his neck and shoulders.
When he was free he did not pull away, but seemed to study me.

"Come on," I said, taking up the reins, "this way."

I led him back the way I had come, talking the while. I realized by the rime we emerged that I
actually liked him. I met Luke about then, a blade in his hand.

"My God!" he said. "No wonder it took you so long! You stopped to paint it!"

"You like, huh?"

"You ever want to get rid of that one, I'll make you a good offer."

"I don't think I'll be getting rid of him," I said.

"What's his name?"

"Tiger," I said without premeditation, and then I mounted.

We headed back to the trail, where even Dalt eyed my mount with something like pleasure.
Nayda reached out and stroked the black and orange mane.

"Now we may be able to make it in time," she said, "if we hurry."

I mounted, and I guided Tiger over onto the trail. I anticipated all manner of reactions to the trail,
as I recalled from my father's story the possibly intimidating effects of the thing upon animals. It didn't
seem to bother him, though, and I released the breath I hadn't realized I was holding.

"In time for what?" I asked as we found a formation-Luke in the lead, Dalt behind him and to the
right, Nayda to the left of the trail, rear, me to her right and somewhat back.

"I cannot tell for certain," she said, "because she is still sedated. However, I do know that she 1s
no longer being moved; and I have the impression that her abductors have taken refuge in the tower,
where the trail is much wider."

"Hm," I said. "You wouldn't have happened to notice the rate of change in width per unit of
distance traveled on this trail, would you?"

"I was in liberal arts," she said, smiling. "Remember."

She turned suddenly then, glancing in Luke's direction. He was still an entire horse's length
ahead, eyes front-though he had looked back moments before.

"Damn you!" she said softly. "Being with you both this way gets me to thinking about school.
Then I start talking that way-"

"In English," I said.

"Did I say that in English?"

"Yes."

"Shit! Help me if you catch me at it, will you?"

"Of course," I said. "It seems to show you'd enjoyed it somewhat, despite its being a job Dara'd
laid on you. And you're probably the only ty'iga with a degree from Berkeley."



"Yes, I enjoyed it-confused as I was over which of you was which. Those were the happiest
days in my life, with you and Luke, back in school. For years I tried to learn your mothers' names so
I'd know who I was supposed to be protecting. You were both so cagey, though."

"It's in the genes, I guess," I observed. "I enjoyed your company as Vinta Bayle-appreciated your
protection as others, too."

"I suffered," she said, "when Luke began his yearly attempts on your life. If he were the son of
Dara [ was supposed to protect, it shouldn't have mattered. But it did. I was already very fond of both
of you. All I could tell was that you were both of the blood of Amber. I didn't want either of you
harmed. The hardest thing was when you went away, and I was sure Luke had lured you into the
mountains of New Mexico to kill you. By then, I suspected very strongly that you were the one, but I
was not certain. I was in love with Luke, I had taken over the body of Dan Martinez, and I was
carrying a pistol. I followed you everywhere I could, knowing that if he tried to harm you the geas I
was under would force me to shoot the man I loved."

"You shot first, though. We were just standing talking, by the side of the road. He shot back in
self-defense."

"I know. But everything seemed to indicate that you were in peril. He'd taken you to a perfect
spot for an execution, at an ideal time-"

"No," I said. "Your shot went wide, and you left yourself open for what followed."

"I don't understand what you're saying."

"You solved the problem of possibly having to shoot Luke by setting up a situation where he shot
you."

"I couldn't do that, under a geas."

"Maybe not consciously," I said. "So something stronger than the geas found a way."

"You really believe that?"

"Yes, and it's all right for you to admit it now. You're released from the geas. My mother told
me. You told me-I think."

She nodded. "I don't know exactly when it came undone, or how," she said. "But it's gone-though
I'd still try to protect you if something threatened. It's good that you and Luke are really friends, and-"

"So why the secret?" I interrupted. "Why not just tell him you were Gail? Surprise the hell out of
him-pleasantly."

"You don't understand," she said. "He broke up with me, remember? Now ['ve another chance.
It's like 1t was, all over again. He-likes me a lot. I'm afraid to say, ‘I'm really the girl you once broke
up with.' It might get him to thinking of all the reasons why, and make him decide he was right the first
time."

"That's silly," I said. "I don't know what reasons he gave. He never told me about it. Just said
there'd been an argument. But I'm sure they were specious. I know he liked you. I'm sure he really
broke up with you because he was a son of Amber about to come home on some very nasty business,
and there was no room for what he thought was a normal shadow girl in the picture. You'd played
your part too well."

"Is that why you broke up with Julia?" she asked.

"No," I said.

"Sorry."

I noticed the black trail had widened about a foot since we'd begun talking. I was in the market
for a mathematical problem just then.



X

And so we rode-six paces along a city street, amid the blare of horns, our black way edged by
skid marks; a quarter mile along a black sand beach, beside a soft green sea, stirring palms to our left;
across a tarnished snowfield; beneath a bridge of stone, our way a dead and blackened streambed;
then to prairie; back to wooded way-and Tiger never flinched, even when Dalt put a booted foot
through a windshield and broke off an antenna.

The way continued to widen, to perhaps twice its width when I had first come upon it. Stark
trees were more common within it now, standing like photographic negatives of their bright mates but
a few feet off the trail. While the leaves and branches of these latter were regularly stirred, we felt no
wind at all. The sounds of our voices, of our mounts' hooves-came somehow muted now, also. Our
entire course had a constant, wavery twilight atmosphere to it, no matter that a few paces away-which
brief excursion we essayed many times-it might be high noon or midnight. Dead-looking birds were
perched within the blackened trees, though they seemed on occasion to move, and the raspy, croaking
sounds that sometimes came to us may well have been theirs.

At one time, a fire raged to our right; at another, we seemed to be passing near the foot of a
glacier on the left. Our trail continued to widen-nothing like the great Black Road Corwin had
described to me from the days of the war, but big enough now for us all to ride abreast.

"Luke," I said, after a time.

"Yeah?" he answered, from my left. Nayda rode to my right now, and Dalt to her right. "What's
up?"

"I don't want to be king."

"Me neither," he said. "How hard they pushing you?"

"I'm afraid they're going to grab me and crown me if I go back. Everybody in my way died
suddenly. They really plan to stick me on the throne, to marry me to Coral-"

"Uh-huh," he said, "and I've two questions about it. First, will it work?"

"The Logrus seems to think it will, at least for a time-which is all politics is about, anyhow."

"Second," he said, "if you feel about the place the way I feel about Kashfa, you're not going to let
it go to hell if you can help it-even if it means some personal misery. You don't want to take the
throne, though, so you must have worked out some alternative remedy. What is 1t?"

I nodded as the trail turned sharply to the left and headed uphill.

Something small and dark scuttled across our path.

"I've a notion-not even a full idea," I said, "which I want to discuss with my father."

"Tall order," he said. "You know for sure that he's even alive?"

"I talked to him not all that long ago-very briefly. He's a prisoner, somewhere. All I know for
sure 1is that it's somewhere in the vicinity of the Courts-because I can reach him by Trump from there,
but nowhere else."

"Tell me about this communication," he said.

And so I did, black bird and all.

"Sounds like busting him out's going to be tricky," he said. "And you think your mom's behind
it?"

"Yep."

"I thought I was the only one with these maternal problems. But it figures, seeing as yours trained

"

mine



"How come we turned out so normal?" I said.

He just stared at me for several seconds. Then he started to laugh.

"Well, I feel normal," I said.

"Of course," he said quickly then, "and that's what counts. Tell me, if it came to an out-and-out
crossing of powers, do you think you could beat Dara?"

"Hard to say," I told him. "I'm stronger now than I ever was before, because of the spikard. But
I'm beginning to believe she's very good."

"What the hell's a spikard?" So I told him that story, too.

"That's why you were so flashy back in the church when you were fighting with Jurt?" he said.

"That's right."

"Let's see it."

I tried to pull it off, but it wouldn't pass the knuckle.

So I simply extended my hand. Luke reached for it. His fingers halted a couple of inches above
it.

"It's holding me off, Merle. Protective little devil."

"Hell," I said, "I'm not a shapeshifter for nothing." I took hold of it then, slimmed my finger
suddenly, and slid it off. "Here."

He held it in the palm of his left hand as we bounced along, regarding it through narrowed eyes.
Suddenly, I felt dizzy. Withdrawal symptoms from the thing? I forced myself upright, reversed my
breathing, refused to let it show.

"Heavy," Luke said at last. "I can feel the power there. Other things, too. It won't let me in,
though."

I reached for it and he drew his hand away.

"I can feel it in the air all around us," he said. "Merle, this thing lays a spell on anybody who
wears it.

I shrugged.

"Yes," I said. "A benign one, though. It's done nothing to harm me, and it's helped me a number
of times."

"But can you trust anything that came to you in such an odd way-almost by trickery, caused you to
abandon Frakir when she tried to warn you about it, and for all you know has been influencing your
behavior ever since you put it on?"

"I admit to a kind of disorientation at first," I said, "but I think that was just in the way of
accommodation to the levels of voltage it draws. I've been back to normal for some time now."

"How can you tell for sure? Maybe it's brainwashed you."

"Do I seem brainwashed to you?"

"No. I was just trying to say that I wouldn't completely trust anything with such questionable
credentials."

"Well taken," I agreed, holding forth my hand. "But so far the benefits have outweighed any
hypothetical dangers. Consider me warned, and I'll take my chances."

He handed it back.

"If I think it's making you act weird I'm going to hit you over the head and pull it off, though."

"Fair enough," 1 said, slipping it back on. Immediately, I felt a rush of energy throughout my
system as the lines of control were reestablished.

"If you're not sure you can force the information out of your mother," he said, "how do you
propose finding Corwin and freeing him?"



"Several things suggest themselves," 1 said. "The simplest way may be a foot in the door
technique. That is, I'd open all of the channels on the spikard and go for another Trump contact. As
soon as there's any sort of opening I'd just push ahead with full force, jamming any spells that try to
stop me and burning them out."

"Sounds as if it could be dangerous."

"I can't think of any way to go about this that wouldn't be."

"Then why haven't you tried it?"

"It only occurred to me recently, and I haven't had the time since then."

"However you go about it, you're going to need some help," he said. "So count me in."

"Thanks, Luke. I-"

"Now, about the king business," he said. "What happens if you simply refuse to take the throne?
Who's next in line?"

"It's a bit tangled when you come to Sawall," I said. "By rights, Mandor should be first in line of
succession from our House. He'd removed himself from the line years ago, though."

V'Why?"

"I believe he claimed he was unfit to rule."

"No offense, Merle. But he seems like the only one of you who is fit for the job."

"Oh, without a doubt," I responded. "Most of the Houses have someone like him, though. There's
usually a nominal head and a de facto one, someone for show and someone for scheming. Mandor
likes the climate behind the scenes."

"Sounds as if your House has two," he said.

"I'm not really clear on it," I said. "I don't know Dara's status right now in her father's House-
Helgram-or her mother's-Hendrake. But it might be worth a power struggle within Sawall if that's
where the next king is coming from. Still, the more I learn of Mandor the more intimidating such a
struggle would seem. I'd guess they're cooperating."

"I take it you're next in line, and then Jurt?"

"Actually, our brother Despil is next after me. Jurt said that Despil would probably step aside
for him, but I think that was wishful thinking. I'm not at all sure he would. Anyhow, Jurt says now that
he isn't interested."

"Ha! I think he's just taking a different approach. You whipped him too many times, and he's
trying to get in good with you. Hope that spikard can protect your back."

"I don't know," I said. "I'd like to believe him. He spent a lot of time making sure that it wouldn't
be easy, though."

"Supposing you all decline. Who's next?"

"I'm not certain," I said, "but I think it would go to Hendrake then."

"Damn," Luke said. "It's as twisted a place as Amber, isn't i1t?"

"Neither one's twisted, exactly. Just a little complicated, till you've learned the ropes."

"What say I just listen, and you fill me in on everything that you haven't so far?"

"Good idea."

So I talked for a long while, breaking to summon food and water. We halted twice during that
time, causing me to realize just how tired I had become. And briefing Luke reminded me yet again that
I should be telling all of this to Random. But if I got in touch and tried it I was certain he would order
me back to Amber. And I couldn't disobey a direct order from the king, even if I was almost his
opposite number.

"We're getting nearer," Nayda announced somewhat later, and I noted that our roadway had



widened even more, almost to the point she'd described. I drew a jolt of energy into my system,
digested it, and kept going.

Shortly thereafter, she remarked, "Much nearer."

"Like just around the corner?" Luke asked.

"Could be," she answered. "I can't be more precise, the condition she's in."

But a little later, we heard distant shouts.

Luke drew rein.

"Something about a tower," he said.

She nodded.

"Were they heading for it, holing up in it, or defending themselves there?"

"All of the above," she said. "I understand now. Her captors were pursued, headed for a place of
refuge, reached it, are there now."

"How come you're suddenly that precise?"

She gave me a quick look that I took as a request for an explanation other than ty'iga powers.

"I was using the spikard," I offered, "trying to see whether I could give her a clearer vision."

"Good," Luke said. "Can you boost it even more, so we can see what we're up against?"

"I can try," I said, narrowing my eyes at her in inquiry. She responded with a very slight nod.

I wasn't certain how to go about it, so I just fed her energy in the way of that jolt I'd given myself
a while back.

"Yes," she said after a few moments, "Coral and her captors-six of them, I believe-have taken
refuge in a tower near here. They are under attack."

"How large is the party of attackers?" Luke asked.

"Small," she said. "Quite small. I can't give you a number."

"Let's go and see," Luke said, and he led the way,: Dalt behind him.

"Three or four," Nayda whispered to me, "but they're Pattern ghosts. That's probably all it can
maintain this far from home, on a Black Road."

"Ouch," I said. "This makes it tricky."

"How so?"

"It means I have relatives on both sides."

"It also looks as i1f Amber's ghosts and the Court's demons are only agents, and that it's really a
confrontation between the Logrus and the Pattern."

"Damn! Of course!" I said. "It could easily escalate into another of those. I'm going to have to
warn Luke what we're riding into."

"You can't! Not without telling him what I am!"

"TI'll tell him I learned it myself-that [ had a sudden insight into a new spell."

"But what then? Which side are you on? What do we do?"

"Neither," I said. "We're on our own, and against both of them."

"You're crazy! There's no place you can hide, Merle! The Powers divide the universe between
them!"

"Luke! " I cried. "I just probed ahead, learned the attackers are Pattern ghosts!"

"You don't say?" he called back. "Think we should be taking their side? It's probably better for
the Pattern to take her back than for the Courts to get her, wouldn't you think?"

"She shouldn't be used that way," I said. "Let's take her away from both of them."

"I agree with your feelings," he stated. "But what if we succeed? I don't really care to be struck
by a meteor or transported to the bottom of the nearest ocean."



"As near as I can tell, the spikard doesn't draw its power from the Pattern or the Logrus. Its
sources are scattered through Shadow."

"So? I'm sure it's not a match for either one, let alone both."

"No, but I can use it to start an evasion course. They'll be getting in each other's way if they
decide to pursue us."

"But eventually they'd find us, wouldn't they?"

"Maybe, maybe not," I said. "I have some ideas, but we're running out of time."

"Dalt, did you hear all that?" Luke asked.

"I did," Dalt replied.

"If you want out, now's your chance."

"And miss an opportunity to twist the Unicorn's tail?" he said. "Keep riding!"

We did, and the shouts grew louder as we raced ahead. There was a certain timeless feeling to
it, though-with the muffled sounds and the dimness-as if we had always been riding here and always
would be....

Then we rounded a bend and I saw the top of the tower in the distance, heard more shouts. We
slowed as we came to the next turn, advancing more cautiously, working our way through a small
stand of black saplings.

Finally, we halted, dismounted, worked our way forward on foot. We pushed aside the final
screening branches and looked down a slight slope to a blackened, sandy plain beside a three-story
gray tower with slit windows and a narrow entranceway. It took a while to sort out the tableau at its
base.

There were two demon-formed individuals standing to either side of the tower's entrance. They
were armed and their attention seemed focused upon the contest taking place on the sands before
them. Familiar figures stood at the far end of this impromptu arena and at either side: Benedict
stroked his chin, expressionless; Eric hunkered and smiled; Caine juggled, flipped, palmed, and
passed a dagger, reflexively, through some private routine, an expression of amused fascination on his
face. From the tower's top, I suddenly noted, two horned demons leaned forward, their gazes as intent
as those of Amber's Pattern ghosts.

At the circle's center Gerard faced a demon-formed son of Hendrake, of his own height and
greater girth. It looked to be Chinaway himself, who was said to have a collection of over two
hundred skulls of those he'd dispatched. I preferred Gerard's collection of a thousand or so mugs,
steins, and drinking horns, but your ghost will walk, you lover of trees, in an English lane, if you
know what I mean.

Both were stripped to the waist, and from the scuffed-up condition of the sands about them I
guessed they had been at it for some time. Chinaway tried to trip Gerard just then, who caught his arm
and head as he stepped behind him, and sent him cartwheeling away. The demon lord came up on his
feet, however, and immediately advanced once again, arms extended, hands weaving a sinuous
pattern before him. Gerard simply waited in a ready position. Chinaway stabbed taloned fingers
toward Gerard's eyes and hooked a blow against his rib cage. Gerard caught hold of his shoulder,
however, as Chinaway dropped and caught him about the thigh.

"Let's wait," Dalt said softly. "I want to watch." Luke and I both nodded as Gerard locked
Chinaway's head and Chinaway wrapped his other arm about Gerard's waist. Then they simply stood
there, muscles bulging beneath two hides, one pale and smooth, the other red and scaly. Their lungs
worked like bellows.

"I assume the thing's been dragging out," Luke whispered, "and they decided to settle it champion



against champion."

"Looks that way," I said.

"Coral must be inside then, wouldn't you think?"

"Wait a minute."

I ran a quick probe into the structure, locating two people within. I nodded then.

"Her and a single guard, I'd say."

Gerard and Chinaway still stood like statues.

"Now might be the best time to grab Coral," Luke said, "while everybody's watching the fight."

"You're probably right," I told him. "Let me see whether I can make myself invisible. That might
simplify matters."

"Okay," he said about a quarter minute later. "Whatever you did just then worked. You're gone."

"Indeed I am," I said. "Back in a bit."

"How will you get her out?"

"TI'll decide after I've reached her. Just be ready."

I moved slowly, careful not to scuff the sand. I skirted the circle, passing behind Caine. I
approached the door to the tower, soundless, checking about me constantly. Gerard and Chinaway
still stood exactly as they had been, locked, and applying enormous pressures to each other.

I passed between the guards, entering the dim interior of the tower. It consisted of a single round
room with a bare earth floor, stone pedestals beneath each slit window. A ladder led up to the second
floor through a hole in the ceiling. Coral lay upon a blanket to my left; the individual who was
ostensibly guarding her stood upon a pedestal, watching the fight through the nearest window.

I moved nearer, knelt, caught up her left wrist and felt her pulse. It was strong and steady. |
decided against trying to awaken her, though. Instead, I wrapped the blanket around her, raised her in
my arms, and stood.

I was about to try extending the invisibility spell to include her when the watcher at the window
turned. I must have made some noise in moving her.

For a moment, the guard stared at the sight of his prisoner drifting below him. Then he opened
his mouth, as if to give alarm-leaving me with small choice but to shock his nervous system into
insensibility with a charge from my ring.

Unfortunately, there was a rattle of arms as he fell from his pedestal to the floor. Almost
immediately, [ heard a cry from overhead; followed by sounds of rapid movement.

Turning, I hurried to the door. I had to slow and turn because of its narrowness. I wasn't certain
what the guards outside would think when a comatose Coral drifted by, but I didn't want to be trapped
inside. Peering ahead, I saw that Gerard and Chinaway seemed in the same position as before.
Seconds later, however, as I turned my body and took my first sidling step, there came a sudden,
sharp twisting movement from Gerard, followed immediately by a sound like that of a snapping stick.

Gerard let his arms fall and stood erect. The body of Chinaway hit the ground at his side, neck at
an unnatural angle. Eric and Caine applauded. The two guards beside the door moved forward.
Behind me, within, the ladder rattled at the other side of the room. I heard a cry from that direction.

Two more steps and I turned, headed left. The outside guards were rushing toward their fallen
champion. A half dozen paces, and there were more cries at my back, as my pursuers exited the
tower; and there were human cries as well, from the killing circle.

I knew that I couldn't outrun any of them, carrying my burden; and all that motor activity
interfered with my concentration to the point where I was incapable of performing magical
operations.



So I dropped to my knees, lowering Coral to the ground before me, turned without even rising,
and extended my left fist, plunging my mind deep within the ring, calling for extreme measures to halt
the pair of Hendrake commandos who were only a few paces away now, edged weapons ready to
pierce and to slash.

... And then they were caught up in the midst of flames. I think they screamed, but there was a lot
of noise just then. Two paces more, perhaps, and they fell, blackened and twitching, before me. My
hand was shaking, from its proximity to the powers that caused this; and I hadn't time, even, to think or
to feel as I swung toward the sandy place of the recent contest and whatever might be coming at me
from that direction.

One of the two guards who had rushed forward lay smoldering on the ground at Eric's feet.
Another-who had apparently attacked Caine-clutched at the knife in his gullet, fires spreading
outward, downward, upward, from his throat, as he sank slowly, then toppled to the rear.

Immediately, Caine, Eric, and Benedict turned to stare at me. Gerard, having just drawn on a
blue shirt, was buckling his swordbelt in place. He turned, too, just as Caine said, "And who, sir, are
you?"

"Merlin," I replied, "son of Corwin." Caine actually looked startled.

"Does Corwin have a son?" he asked the others. Eric shrugged and Gerard said, "I don't know."
But Benedict studied me.

"There 1s a resemblance," he said.

"True," Caine agreed. "All right, boy. Even if you are Corwin's son, that woman you're making
off with belongs to us. We just won her fair and square off these well-done Chaosites."

With that, he began walking toward me. A moment later, Eric joined him. Then Gerard fell into
step behind them. I didn't want to harm them, even if they were only ghosts, so I gestured and a line
was drawn in the sand before them. Immediately, it caught fire.

They halted.

Suddenly, a huge figure appeared at my left. It was Dalt, a naked blade in his hand. A moment
later, Luke was there. Then Nayda. The four of us faced the four of them, across the fire.

"She's ours now," Dalt said, and he took a single step forward.

"You are mistaken," came the reply, and Eric crossed the line, drawing his weapon.

Dalt was a couple of inches taller than Eric, and he had a longer reach. He moved forward
immediately. I expected some kind of cut from that big blade he carried, but he went in for a point-
attack. Eric, using a lighter weapon, sidestepped and came in under his arm. Dalt dropped the point of
his blade, moved to his left, and parried it. The two weapons were suited for very different styles-
Eric's being at the heaviest end of the rapier class, Dalt's at the lighter end of broadsword. Dalt's
could be a single-handed weapon for a big-enough, strong-enough guy. I'd have had to use it two-
handed myself. Dalt tried an upward cut just then, of the sort a Japanese swordsman would refer to as
kiriage. Eric simply stepped back and tried for a wrist cut as it passed him. Dalt suddenly moved his
left hand to the haft and executed a blinding two-handed cut of the sort known as naname giri. Eric
continued to circle, trying for the wrist yet again.

Suddenly, Dalt opened his right hand and let it drift back, as his right foot performed a huge
semicircular step to his rear and his left arm moved forward, leaving him in a left-handed European
en garde position, from which that massive arm and matching blade immediately extended,
performing an inside beat upon Eric's blade followed by a lunge. Eric parried as his right foot
crossed behind his left and he sprang backward. Even so, I saw a spark as his guard was creased. He
feinted in sixte, however, dropped his point beneath the parry that followed, extended his arm in



quatre; raised himself and his blade into something resembling a stop-thrust targeting the left shoulder
as the parry crossed, turned his wrist, and slashed Dalt across the left forearm.

Caine applauded, but Dalt simply brought his hands together and separated them again, executing
a little hopstep as he did so, leaving him in a right en garde position. Eric drew circles in the air with
the point of his weapon and smiled.

"Cute little dance routine you have there," he said.

Then Eric lunged, was parried, retreated, sidestepped, threw a front kick at Dalt's kneecap,
missed, then moved with perfect timing as Dalt attempted a head cut. Switching to the Japanese
himself, he spun in to the larger man's right, a maneuver I'd seen in a kumatchi exercise, his own blade
rising and falling as Dalt's cut swept past. Dalt's right forearm went suddenly wet, a thing I did not
really notice until after Eric had rotated his weapon, blade pointing outward and upward, and, the
guard covering his knuckles, had driven his fist against the right side of Dalt's jaw. He kicked him
then behind the knee and struck him with his left shoulder. Dalt stumbled and fell. Eric immediately
kicked him, kidney, elbow, thigh-the latter only because he missed the knee-set his boot upon Dalt's
weapon and swung his own about to bring its point in line with the man's heart.

I had been hoping all along, I suddenly realized, that Dalt would kick Eric's ass-not just because
he was on my side and Eric wasn't, but because of the rough time Eric had given my dad. On the other
hand, I doubted there were too many people of such ass-kicking prowess about. Unfortunately, two of
them stood on the other side of the line I had drawn. Gerard could have outwrestled him. Benedict,
Master of Arms at Amber, could have beaten him with any weapon. I just didn't see us as having much
of a chance against them all, with Caine thrown in for good measure-not even with a ty'iga on our
side. And if I were suddenly to tell Eric that Dalt was his half brother, it wouldn't slow his thrust by
an instant, even 1f he believed me.

So I made the only decision I could make. They were, after all, only Pattern ghosts. The real
Benedict and Gerard were somewhere else at this moment and would in no way be harmed by
anything I did to their doubles here. Eric and Caine were, of course, long dead, Caine being the
fratricidal hero of the Patternfall war and subject of a recent statue on the Grand Concourse, on the
occasion of Luke's assassinating him for killing his father. And Eric, of course, had found a hero's
death on the slopes of Kolvir, saving him, I suppose, from dying at the hands of my father. The bloody
history of my family swam through my head as I raised the spikard to add a footnote to it, calling
again for the wave of incineration that had taken out two of my Hendrake kin.

My arm felt as if someone had struck it with a baseball bat. A wisp of smoke rose from the
spikard. For a moment, my four upright uncles stood unmoving. And my fifth remained supine.

Then, slowly, Eric raised his weapon. And he continued to raise it, as Benedict, Caine, and
Gerard drew theirs. He straightened as he held it before his face. The others did the same. It looked
strangely like a salute; and Eric's eyes met mine.

"I know you," he said.

Then they all completed the gesture, and faded, faded, turned to smoke, and blew away.

Dalt bled, my arm ached, and I figured out what was going on just moments before Luke gasped
and said, "Over there."

My line of fire had gone out some time ago, but beyond the mark it had left, where my faded
kinsmen had just been standing, the air began to shimmer.

"That will be the Pattern," I said to Luke, "come calling."

A moment later the Sign of the Pattern hovered before us.

"Merlin," it said, "you certainly move around a lot."



"My life has become very busy of late," I said.

"You took my advice and left the Courts."

"Yes, that seemed prudent."

"But I do not understand your purposes here."

"What's to understand?"

"You took the lady Coral away from the agents of the Logrus."

"That's right."

"But then you attempted to keep her from my agents as well."

"That, too, is correct."

"You must realize by now that she bears something that contributes to our balance of power."

"Yes."

"So one of us must have her. Yet you would deny us both."

HYeS."

V!Why?"

"It's her whom I care about. She has rights and feelings. You're treating her like a game piece."

"True. I recognize her personhood, but unfortunately she is become both."

"Then I would deny her to both of you. Nothing would be changed, in that neither of you has her
now, anyway. But [ would take her out of the game."

"Merlin, you are a more important piece than she is, but you are still only a piece and you may
not dictate to me. Do you understand?"

"I understand my value to you," I said.

"I think not," it responded.

I was wondering just then how strong it really was in this place. It seemed obvious that in terms
of energy expenditure, it had been necessary for it to release its four ghosts to be able to manifest
itself here. Dared I oppose it with every channel on the spikard opened? I had never tried accessing
every Shadow source it controlled simultaneously. If I did this, and if I were to move very quickly,
could I get us all out of here before the Pattern reacted? If I couldn't, could I punch through whatever
it raised up to stop us? And if I succeeded-either way-to what place should we flee?

Finally, how might this affect the Pattern's attitude toward me?

(... if you are not eaten by something bigger, come tell me your story one night.)

What the hell, I decided. It is a good day to be listed a 1a carte.

I opened all the channels.

It felt as if I had been jogging along at a good clip and a brick wall had suddenly appeared six
inches before me.

I felt the smash and I went away.

I lay upon a smooth, cool stone surface. There was a terrible rushing of energies in my mind and
body. I reached into their source and took control of them, dampening them to something that didn't
threaten to take the top of my head off. Then I opened one eye, slightly.

The sky was very blue. I saw a pair of boots, standing a few feet off, faced away from me. I
recognized them as Nayda's, and turning my head slightly, [ saw that she wore them. I also saw then
that Dalt lay sprawled several yards off to my left.

Nayda was breathing heavily, and my Logrus vision showed a pale red light about her vibrating
hands, menacing.

Propping myself upon my left elbow and peering about her, I saw that she stood between me and
the Sign of the Pattern that hovered in the air perhaps ten feet away.



When it spoke again it was the first time I'd heard it express anything like amusement: "You
would protect him, against me?"

"Yes," she replied.

"Why?"

"I did it for so long that it would be a shame to fail him when he really needs it."

"Creature of the Pit, do you know where you stand?" it asked.

"No," she said.

I looked beyond them both at a perfectly clear blue sky. The surface upon which I lay was a
level area of rock, perhaps oval in shape, opening onto nothing. A quick turning of my head showed
that it seemed bitten out of a mountainside, however, several dark recesses to the rear indicating the
possibility of caves. I saw, too, that Coral lay behind me. Our stony shelf was several hundred meters
wide. And there was movement beyond Nayda and the Sign of the Pattern. Luke had just hauled
himself up into a kneeling position.

I could have answered the question put to Nayda, but there was no percentage in my doing so.
Not when she was doing such a fine job of holding our captor's attention and providing a crucial
respite.

To my left, I saw gold-pink swirls within the stone, and though I had never been here I recalled
the description from my father's story and knew this to be the place of the primal Pattern, the deeper
level of reality that underlay Amber itself.

I rolled onto all fours then, and crawled a few steps, seaward, Patternward.

"You are at the other end of the universe, ty'iga, in the place of my greatest power."

Dalt groaned and rolled over, sat up, massaged his eyes with the palms of his hands.

I could feel something like a vibration just at the edge of hearing coming from Nayda now, and
her entire form had taken on that reddish glow. I knew that she would die if she attacked the Sign, and
I realized that [ would attack it myself if it killed her.

I heard a moan from Coral.

"You will not hurt my friends," Nayda said.

I wondered then at its slapping me down before I could use the spikard, and transporting us
immediately to its stronghold. Did this mean I might actually have had a chance against it, out there in
Logrus territory where it was weakened?

"Creature of the Pit," it told her, "such a doomed, pathetic gesture as yours verges on the heroic.
I feel a certain fondness for you. Would that I had such a friend. No, I will not harm your companions.
But I must detain Coral and Merlin here as power counters, and the rest of you for political reasons,
until this dispute with my adversary is settled."

"Detain?" she said. "Here?"

"There are comfortable quarters within the rock," it said.

I rose carefully to my feet, fumbling at my belt for my dagger.

Luke got up and walked over to Coral, knelt beside her.

"Are you awake?" he asked.

"Sort of," she answered.

"Can you stand?"

"Maybe."

"Let me help you."

Dalt rose while Luke was assisting her. I continued to sidle toward the design. Where was
Dworkin when I really needed him?



"You may enter the caves behind you and inspect your quarters," the Sign said. "But first you
must remove that ring, Merlin."

"No, now's hardly a time to be unpacking and getting comfortable," I answered, slashing my left
palm with the dagger and taking a final step. "We won't be staying long."

A sound like a small thunderclap emerged from the Sign of the Pattern, but there was no
lightning, nor did I think there would be. Not when it realized what I was holding in my hand, and
where I was holding it.

"A thing I learned from Luke's father," I explained. "Let's talk."

"Yes," said the Sign of the Pattern, "like the reasonable beings that we are. Would you care for
some cushions?"

Immediately, three such objects appeared nearby.

"Thanks," I said, drawing up a green one. "I could sure use an iced tea."

"Do you take sugar?"



X1

Seated upon a cushion, dagger at my side, I held my left hand out over the Pattern, cupped palm
filled with my blood. The Sign of the Pattern hovered in the air before me, seeming, of a sudden, to
have forgotten Coral, Nayda, Dalt, and Luke. I sipped from the frosted glass in my right hand, a sprig
of fresh mint visible amid the ice.

"Prince Merlin," inquired the Sign, "tell me what it is that you desire, and let us resolve this
matter quickly. Are you sure I mightn't fetch you a napkin to place at the danger point? It would not
minimize your bargaining ability, if you stop to think of it. But it would serve to prevent accidents."

"No, that's okay," I said, half-gesturing with the blood-filled hand, so that its contents were
stirred, a small line of red trickling up my wrist. "Thanks, anyhow."

The Sign of the Pattern vibrated, grew still.

"Prince Merlin, you have made your point," it said. "But I do not think you realize the full
implications of your threat. A few drops of your blood upon my physical design could disturb the
functioning of the universe."

[ nodded.

"I know," I said.

"Very well," it answered. "State your demands."

"Our freedom," I said. "Let us go, and you remain intact."

"You give me small choice, but the same applies to your friends."

"What do you mean?"

"You may send Dalt whenever you wish," it said. "As for the demon lady, I relinquish her with
regret, as I feel she would have provided good company-"

Luke regarded Nayda.

"What is this ‘creature of the Pit,' ‘demon lady' business, anyway?" he asked.

"Well, there are a few things you don't know about me ..." she responded.

"Is it a long story?" he asked.

"Yes."

"Am I an assignment? Or do you really like me?"

"You're not an assignment, and I really like you."

"Then we'll hear the story later," he said.

"As I said, send her," it went on. "And Dalt. And Luke. I will be happy to send the three of them
wherever you wish. But does it occur to you that you and Coral are probably safer here than
anywhere else?"

"Maybe. Maybe not," I answered. "Coral, how do you feel about it?"

"Get me out of here," she said.

"So much for that notion," I told it. "Now-"

"Wait. You want to be fair to your friends, don't you?"

"Sure I do."

"Then let me point some things out to them which they may not have considered."

"Go ahead."

"Lady," it said, "they want your eye in the Courts of Chaos. Your feelings on the matter are
immaterial. If this can only be achieved by making you a prisoner, then it will be done."

Coral laughed softly.



"The alternative being to remain your prisoner?" she asked.

"Think of yourself as a guest. I will provide for your every comfort. Of course, there is a
positive gain for me in this state of affairs-apart from denying the adversary your presence. |
acknowledge this. But you must choose one of us, else the other will grab you oft."

I looked at Coral, who shook her head slightly. "So what'll it be?" I asked. Coral came over and
placed her hand upon my shoulder. ¢ "Get me out of here," she said.

"You heard ‘em," I told it. "Everybody goes."

"I crave your indulgence a moment more," it said.

"For what?" I asked.

"Consider. Choosing between the Logrus and myself is not a mere matter of politics-of selecting
this person or that to do a particular job. My adversary and I represent two fundamental principles by
means of which the universe is organized. You may tag us with nouns and adjectives from most
languages and dozens of disciplines, but we represent, basically, Order and Chaos-Apollonian and
Dionysiac, if you like; reason and feeling, if you prefer; madness and sanity; light and dark; signal and
noise. As much as this may seem to indicate it, however, neither of us seeks the other's extinction.
Heat death or fireball, classicism or anarchy, each of us proceeds along a single track, and without
the other it would lead to a dead end. Both of us know this, and the game we have played since the
beginning is a far more subtle thing-ultimately, perhaps, to be judged only esthetically.

"Now, I have gained a significant edge over my ancient adversary, for the first time in ages. [ am
in a position now to produce a historian's dream throughout Shadow-an age of high civilization and
culture such as shall never be forgotten. If the balance were tipped the other way we would be
contemplating a period of upheaval at least on par with that of an ice age. When I spoke of you as
game pieces 1t was not to minimize your roles in this. For this is a time of great fluidity, when the
Jewel and the man who would be king will make a difference. Stay with me, and I will guarantee the
Golden Age of which I spoke, and you a part in it. Leave, and you will be snatched away by the other.
Darkness and disorder will follow. Which would you have?"

Luke smiled.

"I know a good sales pitch when I hear it," he said. "Narrow it down to a simple choice. Make
them think it's their own."

Coral squeezed my shoulder. "We're going," I said. "Very well," said the Sign. "Tell me where
you want to go, and I'll

send you all there."

"Not all," Luke said suddenly. "Just them."

"I do not understand. What about you?"

He drew a dagger and slashed his palm. He advanced and stood beside me, extending his hand
out over the Pattern, also.

"If we go, only three of us may arrive," he said, "if that. I'll stay here and keep you company
while you deliver my friends."

"How will you know I've done it in a satisfactory fashion?"

"Good question," he said. "Merle, you got a set of Trumps on you?"

"Yes."

I removed them and showed them to him.

"Still got one of me in there?"

"Last time I looked I did."

"Then get it out and have it ready. Figure your next move before you take off. Stay in touch with



me till you make it."

"What about yourself, Luke? You can't sit there forever as a bloody threat to Order. It's only a
temporary stalemate. You have to surrender your position sooner or later, and when you do-"

"Do you still have some odd cards in that deck?"

"What do you mean?"

"The ones you once referred to as the Trumps of Doom."

I riffled through. They were mostly near the bottom. "Yes," 1 said. "Beautifully executed. I
wouldn't have tossed them."

"You really think so?"

"Yeah. Get together a bunch of stuff this good, and I'll get you an exhibit back in Amber."

"You serious? You're not just saying that because-" The Sign of the Pattern emitted a growling
sound.

"Everybody's a critic," Luke observed. "Okay. Pull all the Trumps of Doom."

I did this.

"Mix ‘emup a little. Keep ‘em face down, please."

"All right."

"Fan ‘em."

He leaned forward, took a card.

"Okay," he said. "I'm in business. Whenever you're ready, tell it where to take you. Stay in touch.
Hey, Pattern, I want an iced tea of my own."

A frosty glass appeared near his right foot. He stooped and took it up, sipped from it.

H'Thanks.ﬂ

"Luke," Nayda said, "I don't understand what's going on. What will happen to you?"

"Nothing much," he replied. "Don't cry for me, demon lady. I'll see you later."

He looked at me and quirked an eyebrow.

"Send us to Jidrash," I said, "in Kashfa-to the open area between the palace and the church."

I held Luke's Trump in my moist left hand, near to a humming spikard. I felt the card grow cold
just as Luke said, "You heard him."

And the world swirled and unswirled, and it was a brisk, windy morning in Jidrash. I regarded
Luke through his Trump. I opened channel after channel of the ring.

"Dalt, I might as well leave you here," I said. "You, too, Nayda."

"No," the big man said, just as Nayda said, "Hold on a minute."

"You're both out of the picture now," I explained. "Neither side wants you for anything. But I've
got to get Coral someplace safe. Me, too."

"You're a focus of the action," Nayda said, "and I can help Luke by helping you. Take me along."

"I feel the same way about it," Dalt said. "I still owe Luke a big one."

"Okay," I said. "Hey, Luke! You hear all that?"

"Yeah," he said. "Better be about your business then. Shit! I spilled it-"

His Trump went black.

I didn't wait for avenging angels, tongues of fire, lightning bolts, or an opening of the earth. I got
us out of jurisdiction real quick.

I sprawled on the green grass beneath the big tree. Wisps of fog drifted by. Dad's Pattern
sparkled below me. Jurt was seated cross-legged on the hood of the car, blade across his knees. He
hit the ground when we made our appearance. Corwin was nowhere in sight.

"What's going on?" Jurt asked me.



"I am beat, bushed, and whacked-out. I am going to lie here and stare at the fog till my mind goes
away," I said. "Meet Coral, Nayda, and Dalt. Hear their story and tell them yours, Jurt. Don't wake
me for the end of the world unless it has very good special effects."

I proceeded to do as I had promised, to the tune of a fading guitar and the distant voice of Sara
K. The grass was wondrous soft. The fog swirled through my brain. Fade to black.

And then, and then... And then, sir...

Walking. I was walking, almost drifting, through a California shopping mall I used to frequent.
Knots of kids, couples with infants, women with parcels, passed, words smothered by sounds from a
music store speaker. Potted oases sheltered, deli smells drifted, sale signs promised.

Walking. Past the drugstore. Past the shoe store. Past the candy store...

Narrow corridor to the left. I'd never noticed it. Must turn...

Odd there should be a carpet-and candles in high holders, and sconces, and candelabra atop
narrow chests. The walls glittered with their re

I turned back.

There was no back. The mall was gone. The corridor ended in that direction at a wall. A small
tapestry hung upon it, depicting nine figures who looked back at me. I shrugged and turned again.

"Still something left to your spell, Uncle," I remarked. "Let's be about it then."

Walking. In silence now. Ahead. To the place where the mirrors glittered. I had seen this place
long ago, I recalled, though its disposition-I suddenly realized was not peculiar to Amber Castle. It
was right there, on the tip of memory-my younger self passing this way, not unaccompanied-but the
price of that recollection would be loss of control here, I knew. Reluctantly, I released the image and
turned my attention to the small oval mirror to my left.

I smiled. So did my image. I stuck out my tongue and was so saluted in return.

I moved on. Only after several paces did I realize that the image had been my demon-formed
self, while my person had not.

A soft throat-clearing sound occurred to my right. Turning in that direction, I beheld my brother
Mandor within a black-framed lozenge.

"Dear boy," he stated, "the king is dead. Long live your august personage as soon as you have
assumed the throne. You had best make haste to return for a crowning at the End of the World, with or
without the bride of the Jewel."

"We ran into a few small problems," I said.

"Nothing worth resolving just now. Your presence in the Courts is far more important."

"No, my friends are," I said.

A momentary smile touched his lips.

"You will be in an ideal position to protect your friends," he said, "and to do as you would with
your enemies."

"I will be back," I said, "soon. But not to be crowned."

"As you would, Merlin. It is your presence that is desired."

"I promise nothing," I said.

He chuckled, and the mirror was emptied.

I turned away. I walked on.

More laughter. From the left. My mother's.

From within a red frame of carved flowers, she stared at me, a look of vast amusement upon her
features. "Seek him in the Pit!" she said. "Seek him in the Pit! "

I passed, and her laughter continued at my back for a time.



"Hsst!" To my right, a long, narrow mirror bordered in green. "Masster Merlin," she said. "I
have ssought, but the ghosst-light bass not passsed my way."

"Thanks, Glait. Keep looking, please."

"Yess. We musst ssit together in a warm place by night once again and drink milk and talk of the
old dayss."

"That would be nice. Yes, we must. If we are not eaten by something bigger."

"S-s-s-s-s!"

Could that be laughter?

"Good hunting, Glait."

"Yess. S-s-s!"

... And on. Walking.

"Son of Amber. Wearer of the spikard"-this from within a shadowy niche to my left.

I halted and stared. The frame was white, the glass was gray. Within was a man I had never met.
His shirt was black and opened at the neck. He wore a brown leather vest, his hair dark blond, eyes
perhaps green. "Yes?"

"A spikard was hidden in Amber," he stated, "for you to find. It conveys great powers. It also
bears a series of spells that will cause its wearer to act in certain ways under certain circumstances."

"I suspected this," I said. "What is it set to do?"

"Formerly worn by Swayvill, King of Chaos, it will force the chosen successor to take the
throne, behave in a certain fashion, and be amenable to the suggestions of certain persons."

"These being?"

"The woman who laughed and cried, ‘Seek him in the Pit." The man in black, who desires your
return."”

"Dara and Mandor. They laid these spells upon 1t?"

"Just so. And the man left it for you to find."

"I hate to surrender the thing just now," I said, "when it's proving so useful. Is there a way to lift
these spells?"

"Of course. But it should not matter to you."

"Why not?"

"The ring you wear is not the one of which I speak."

"I do not understand."

"But you will. Never fear."

"Who are you, sir?"

"My name is Delwin, and we may never actually meet-unless certain ancient powers come
loose."

He raised his hand, and I saw that he, too, wore a spikard. He moved it toward me.

"Touch your ring to mine," he commanded. "Then it can be ordered to bring you to me."

I raised mine and moved it toward the glass. At the moment they seemed to touch, there was a
flash of light and Delwin was gone.

I let my arm fall. I walked on. On an impulse, I stopped before a chest and opened its drawer.

I stared. There was no way to one-up this place, it seemed. The drawer contained a miniature,
scaled-down representation of my father's chapel-tiny colored tiles, diminutive burning tapers, even a
doll-sized Grayswandir upon the altar.

"The answer lies before you, dear friend," came a throaty voice I knew yet did not know.

I raised my gaze to a lavender-bordered mirror I had not realized hung above the chest. The lady



within had long, coal-black hair and eyes so dark I could not tell where the pupils left oft and the
irises began. Her complexion was very pale, emphasized perhaps by her pink eye shadow and lip
coloring. Those eyes... "Rhanda!" I said.

"You remember! You do remember me!"

"... And the days of our bonedance games," I said. "Grown and lovely. I thought of you but
recently."

"And I felt the touch of your regard as I slept, my Merlin. I am sorry we parted so, but my
parents-"

"I understand," I said. "They thought me demon or vampire."

"Yes." She extended her pale hand through the mirror, took hold of my own, drew it toward her.
Within the looking glass, she pressed it to her lips. They were cold. "They would rather I cultivated
the acquaintance of the sons and daughters of men and women, than of our own kind." When she
smiled I beheld her fangs. They had not been apparent in her childhood. "Gods! You look human!" she
said. "Come visit me in Wildwood one day!"

Impulsively, I leaned forward. Our lips met within the mirror. Whatever she was, we had been
friends.

"The answer," she repeated, "lies before you. Come see me!"

The mirror turned red and she was gone. The chapel stood unchanged within the drawer. I
closed it and turned away.

Walking. Mirrors to the left. Mirrors to the right. Only myself within them.

Then "Well, well, nephew. Confused?"

"As usual."

"Can't say as I blame you."

His eyes were mocking and wise, his hair red as his sister Fiona's or his late brother Brand's. Or
Luke's, for that matter.

"Bleys," I said, "what the hell is going on?"

"I've the rest of Delwin's message," he said, reaching into his pocket and extending his hand.
"Here."

I reached into the mirror and accepted it. It was yet another spikard, like the one I wore.

"It is the one of which Delwin spoke," he said. "You must never wear it."

I studied it for several moments.

"What am I to do with it?" I asked.

"Put it in your pocket. A use may suggest itself at some point."

"How did you come by it?"

"I switched it after Mandor left it, for the one you wear now."

"How many are there, anyway?"

"Nine," he replied.

"I suppose you know all about them."

"More than most."

"That wouldn't be hard. I don't suppose you know where my father 1s?"

"No. But you do. Your lady friend with the sanguinary tastes told you."

"Riddles," I said.

"Always preferable to no answer at all," he responded.

Then he was gone and I walked again. After a while, this was gone, too.

Drifting. Black. Good. So good...



A bit of light found its way through my eyelashes. I shut it out again.

But the thunder rolled, and after a time the light leaked in once again.

Dark lines in brown, great horny ridges, ferny forests...

A little later the faculty that evaluates perceptions awoke and pointed out that I was lying on my
side staring at the cracked earth between a pair of roots from the tree, clumps of grass dotted here and
there across the prospect.

... And I continued to stare, and there was a sudden brightness as of a lightning flash followed
almost immediately by a crack of thunder. The earth seemed to shudder with it. I heard the pattering of
drops upon the leaves of a tree, the hood of a car. I continued to stare at the largest crack that
traversed the valley of my regard.

... And I realized that I knew.

It was the numb knowledge of awakening. The sources of emotion still dozed In the distance, 1
could hear familiar voices in soft converse. I could also hear the sounds of cutlery against china. My
stomach would awaken in a bit, [ knew, and I would join them. For now, it was so very pleasant to lie
here wrapped in my cloak, hearing the gentle rain and knowing...

I returned to my micro-world and its dark canyon... The ground shook again, this time without
benefit of lightning or thunder. And it kept on shaking. This irritated me, for it disturbed my friends
and relatives, causing them to raise their voices in something like alarm. Also, it stirred a dormant
California reflex at a time when I just wanted to loll and savor my fresh-acquired knowledge.

"Merlin, are you awake?"

"Yes," I said, sitting up suddenly, giving my eyes a quick rub, and running my hands through my
hair.

It was the ghost of my father that knelt beside me, having just shaken my shoulder. "We seem to
have a problem," he said, "with rather extreme ramifications."

Jurt, standing behind him, nodded several times. The ground shook once again, twigs and leaves
fell about us, pebbles bounced, dust rose, the fogs were agitated. I heard a dish break in the vicinity
of the heavy red and white cloth about which Luke, Dalt, Coral, and Nayda sat eating.

I untangled my cloak and rose to my feet, realizing then that someone had removed my boots
while I slept. I drew them back on. There came another tremor, and I leaned against the tree for
support.

"This 1s the problem?" I said. "Or is something bigger about to eat it?"

He gave me a puzzled look. Then, "Back when I drew the Pattern," he said, "I'd no way of
knowing that this area was faulted, or that something like this would one day occur. If these shocks
should crack the Pattern, we've had it-in more ways than one. As I understand it, that spikard you
wear can draw upon enormous sources of energy. Is there some way you could use it to defuse this
thing?"

"I don't know," I told him. "I never tried anything like it."

"Find out fast, okay?" he said.

But I was already spinning my mind about the circle of tines, touching each one to life. Then I
seized upon the one possessed of the most juice, drew hard upon it, filled myself, body and mind,
with its energy. Ignition completed and engine idling, with me in the driver's seat, I shifted into gear
then, extending a line of force from the spikard down into the ground.

I reached for a long while, seeking a conversion metaphor to the subjective for anything I might
discover.

... Wading out from the beach into the oceanwaves tickling my stomach, my chest-feeling with



my toes the rocks, the strands of sea-weed... Sometimes a rock would turn, slip, bump against another,
slide...

I couldn't see to the bottom with my eyes. But I saw the rocks, the wrack, in their disposition and
movement, just the same, beheld them as clearly as if the bottom were fully illuminated.

Feeling, feeling my way now, down through the strata, single toe soft as a flashlight's beam
running along rocky surfaces, testing the pressures of one upon another, isostatic kisses of mountains
beneath the earth, orogenic erogenies of slow movement, flesh caressing mineral in the darkest of
secret places

Slip! The rock slides off. My body follows...

I dive for it, following the sliding passage. I race ahead, pouring forth heat, cracking rock,
splintering new pathways, outward, outward.... It was coming this way. I broke through a wall of
stone, another. Another. I was not certain this was the way to divert it, but it was the only one I knew
to try. Go that way! Damn i1t! That way! I accessed two more channels, a third, a fourth

There was a slight vibration within the ground. I opened another channel. Within my metaphor
the rocks grew stable beneath the waters. Shortly thereafter, the ground ceased its vibration.

I returned to the place where I had first felt the slide begin, stable now, yet still stressed. Feel it,
feel it carefully. Describe a vector. Follow. Follow it to the point of original pressure. But no. This
point is but a confluence of vectors. Trace them.

Yet again. More junctions. Trace them. Access more channels. The entire pressure structure,
intricate as a nervous system, must be described. I must hold its tree within my mind.

Another layer. It may not be possible. I may be courting infinity in my topographic branchings.
Freeze frame. Simplify the problem. Ignore everything beyond the tertiary. Trace to the next junction.
There are some loops. Good. And a plate is now involved. Better.

Try another jump. No good. Too big a picture to contain. Discard tertiaries.

Yes.

Thus general lines sketched. Vectors of transmission simply drawn-back to plate, almost.
Pressure exerted less than full pressure extended. Why? Additional point of input along second
vector, redirecting shear forces this valley.

"Merlin? Are you all right?"

"Let me be," I hear my voice respond.

Extend then, input source, into, feeling, transmission signature...

Is this a Logrus that I see before me?

I opened three more channels, focused on the area, began heating it.

Soon rocks were cracking, but a little later they melted. My newly created magma flowed down
fault lines. A hollowed-out area occurred at the point whence the precipitating force had originated.

Back.

I withdrew my probes, shut down the spikard.

"What did you do?" he asked me.

"I found the place where the Logrus was messing with underground stresses," 1 said, "and I
removed the place. There's a small grotto there now. If it collapses it may ease the pressure even
more."

"So you've stabilized it?"

"At least for now. I don't know the limits of the Logrus, but it's going to have to figure a new
route to reach this place. Then it's going to have to test it out. And if it's doing a lot of Pattern
watching just now, that may slow it."



"So you've bought some time," he said. "Of course, the Pattern may move against us next."

"It could," I said."I've brought everyone here because I thought they'd be safe from both
Powers."

"Apparently you made the payoff worth the risk."

"Okay," I said. "I guess it's time to give them some other things to worry about."

"Such as?"

I looked at him, Pattern ghost of my father, guardian of this place.

"I know where your flesh-and-blood counterpart is," I said, "and I'm about to set him free."

There came a flash of lightning. A sudden gust of wind lofted the fallen leaves, stirred the fogs.

"I must accompany you," he said.

"Why?

"I've a personal interest in him, of course."

"All right."

Thunder crashed about us, and the fogs were tom apart by a fresh onslaught of wind.

Jurt came up to us then.

"I think it's begun," he said.

"What?" I asked.

"The duel of Powers," he said. "For a long time the Pattern had an edge. But when Luke damaged
it and you snatched away the bride of the Jewel, it must have weakened it more, relative to the
Logrus, than it's been in ages. So the Logrus decided to attack, pausing only for a quick attempt to
damage this Pattern."

"Unless the Logrus was just testing us," I said, "and this is simply a storm."

A light rain had begun while he was speaking.

"I came here because I thought it was the one place neither of them would touch in the event of a
contest," he went on. "I'd assumed neither would care to divert energy from its own attack or defense
for a swipe in this direction."

"That reasoning may still hold," I said.

"Just for once I'd like to be on the winning side," he stated. "I'm not sure I care about right or
wrong. They're very arguable quantities. I'd just like to be in with the guys who win for a change.
What do you think, Merle? What are you going to do?"

"Corwin here and I are going to head for the Courts, and we're going to free my father," I said.
"Then we're going to resolve whatever needs resolving and live happily ever after. You know how it
goes."

He shook his head.

"I can never decide whether you're a fool or whether your confidence is warranted. Every time I
decided you were a fool, though, it cost me." He looked up at the dark sky, wiped rain from his brow.
"I'mreally torn," he said, "but you could still be King of Chaos."

"No," I said.

"... And you enjoy some special relationship with the Powers."

"If I do, I don't understand it myself."

"No matter," he said. "I'm still with you." I crossed to the others, hugged Coral.

"I must return to the Courts," I said. "Guard the Pattern. We'll be back."

The sky was illuminated by three brilliant flashes. The wind shook the tree.

I turned away and created a door in the middle of the air. Corwin's ghost and I stepped through
it.
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Thus did I return to the Courts of Chaos, coming through into Sawall's space-warped sculpture
garden.

"Where are we?" my ghost-father asked.

"A museum of sorts," I replied, "in the house of my stepfather. I chose it because the lighting is
tricky and there are many places to hide."

He studied some of the pieces, as well as their disposition upon the walls and ceiling.

"This would be a hell of a place to fight a skirmish," he observed.

"I suppose it would."

"You grew up hereabout, huh?"

"Yes."

"What was it like?"

"Oh, I don't know. I don't have anything to compare it to. I had some good times, alone, and with
friends-and a few bad times. All a part of being a kid."

"This place ... ?"

"The Ways of Sawall. I wish I had time to show you the whole thing, take you through all of the
ways."

"One day, perhaps."

"Yes."

I began walking, hoping for the Ghostwheel or Kergma to appear. Neither did, however.

We finally passed into a corridor that took us to a hall of tapestries, whence there was a way to
a room that I desired-for the room let upon the hallway that passed the gallery of metal trees. Before
we could depart, however, I heard voices from that hallway. So we waited in the room-which
contained the skeleton of a Jabberwock painted in orange, blue, and yellow, Early Psychedelic-as the
speakers approached. One of them I recognized immediately as my brother Mandor; the other I could
not identify by voice alone, but managing a glimpse as they passed, I saw it to be Lord Bances of
Amblerash, High Priest of the Serpent Which Manifests the Logrus (to cite a full title just once). In a
badly plotted story they'd have paused outside the doorway, and I'd have overheard a conversation
telling me everything I needed to know about anything,

They slowed as they passed.

"That's the way i1t will be then?" Bances said.

"Yes," Mandor replied. "Soon."

And they were by, and I couldn't make out another word. I listened to their receding footsteps till
they were gone. Then I waited a little longer.

I would have sworn I heard a small voice saying, "Follow. Follow."

"Hear anything just then?" I whispered.

HNOpe.H

So we stepped out into the hallway and turned right, moving in the opposite direction from that
which Mandor and Bances had taken. As we did, I felt a sensation of heat at a point somewhat below
my left hip. .

"You think he is somewhere near here?" the Corwin ghost asked.

"Prisoner to Dara?"

"Yes and no," I said. "Ow!"



It felt like a hot coal pressed against my upper leg. I jammed my hand into my pocket as I slid
into the nearest display niche, which I shared with a mummified lady in an amber casket.

Even as my hand closed about it, I knew what it was, raising all manner of philosophical
speculations I had neither time nor desire to address at the moment and so treated in the time-honored
fashion of dealing with such things: I shelved them.

It was a spikard that I withdrew, that lay warmly upon my paten. Almost immediately a small
spark leapt between it and the one that I wore upon my finger.

There followed a wordless communication, a sequence of images, ideas, feelings, urging me to
find Mandor and place myself in his hands for the preparations for my crowning as the next King of
the Courts. I could see why Bleys had told me not to put the thing on. Unmediated by my own spikard,
its injunctions would probably have been overpowering. I used mine to shut it off, to build a tiny
insulating wall about it.

"You have two of the damned things!" Corwin's ghost observed.

I nodded.

"Know anything about them that I don't?" I asked. "That would include almost anything."

He shook his head.

"Only that they were said to be very early power objects, from the days when the universe was
still a murky place and the Shadow realms less clearly defined. When the time came, their wielders
slept or dissolved or whatever such figures do, and the spikards were withdrawn or stashed or
transformed, or whatever becomes of such things when the story's over. There are many versions, of
course. There always are. But bringing two of them to the Courts could conceivably draw a lot of
attention to yourself, not to mention adding to the general power of Chaos just by virtue of their
presence at this pole of existence."

"Oh, my," I said. "I'll order the one I'm wearing to conceal itself, also."

"I don't think that'll work," he said, "though I'm not certain. I'd think they must maintain a constant
fluxpin with each source of power, and that would give some indication of the thing's presence
because of its broadcast nature."

"I'll tell it to tune itself as low as it can then."

He nodded.

"It can't hurt to make it specific," he said, "though I'd guess it probably does that anyhow,
automatically."

I placed the other ring back in my pocket, departed the niche, and hurried on up the hallway.

I slowed when we neared what I thought to be the area. But I seemed mistaken. The metal forest
was not there. We passed that section. Shortly, we came to a familiar display-the one that had
preceded the metal forest, on approaching it from that direction.

Even as I turned back, I knew. I knew what had happened. When we reached what had been the
area, I stopped and studied it.

"What is it?" my ghostly father asked.

"It seems a display of every conceivable variety of edged weapon and tool that Chaos has ever
spewed forth," I said, "all of them exhibited point up, you'll note."

"So?" he asked.

"This is the place," I answered, "the place where we were going to climb a metal tree."

"Merle," he said, "maybe this place does something to my thought processes, or yours. I just
don't understand."

"It's up near the ceiling," I explained, gesturing. "I know the approximate area-I think. Looks a



little different now..."

"What's there, son?"

"A way-a transport area, like the one we passed through to the place of the Jabberwock skeleton.
Only this one would take us to your chapel."

"And that's where we're headed?"

"Rigllt."

He rubbed his chin.

"Well, there were some fairly tall items in some of the displays we passed," he observed, "and
not all of them were metal or stone. We could wrestle over that totem pole or whatever the hell it is,
from back up the hall, clear away some of the sharp displays below that place, set the thing up-"

"No," I said. "Dara obviously caught on to the fact that someone had visited it-probably this last
time around, when she almost surprised me. The display was changed because of this. There are only
two obvious ways to get up there-transport something unwieldy, as you suggest, and clear away a lot
of cutlery before we climb. Or rev up the spikard and levitate ourselves to the spot. The first would
take too long and probably get us discovered. The second would employ so much power that it would
doubtless set off any magical wards she's installed about the area."

He took hold of my arm and drew me on past the display.

"We've got to talk," he said, leading me into an alcove containing a small bench.

He seated himself and folded his arms.

"I've got to know what the hell's going on," he said. "I can't help properly unless I'm briefed.
What's the connection between the man and the chapel?"

"I figured out something I think my mother really meant when she told me, ‘Seek him in the Pit," "
I explained. "The floor of the chapel bears stylized representations of the Courts and of Amber
worked out in tiles. At the extreme of the Courts' end is a representation of the Pit. I never set foot in
that area when I visited the chapel. I'm willing to bet there's a way located there, and at the other end
is the place of his imprisonment."

He'd begun nodding as I spoke, then, "So you were going to pass through and free him?" he
asked.

"Rigtlt."

"Tell me, do these ways have to work both ways?" he said.

"Well, no... Oh, I see what you're getting at."

"Give me a more complete description of the chapel," he said.

I proceeded to do so.

"That magic circle on the floor intrigues me," he said. "It might be a means of communicating
with him without risking the dangers of presence.

Some sort of image-exchange, perhaps."

"I might have to fool with it a long while to figure it out;" I said, "unless I got lucky. What I
propose doing is to levitate, enter, use the way at the Pit to reach him, free him, and get the hell out.
No subtlety. No finesse. If anything fails to do what we expect, we force our way through it with the
spikard. We'll have to move fast because they'll be after us once we start."

He stared past me for a long while, as if thinking hard. At length, he asked, "Is there any way her
wards might be set off accidentally?"

"Hm. The passage of a stray magical current from the real Pit, I suppose. It sometimes spews
them forth."

"What would characterize its passage?"



"A magical deposit or transformation," I said.

"Could you fake such a phenomenon?"

"I suppose. But what would be the point? They'd still investigate, and with Corwin gone they'd
realize it was just a trick. The effort would be wasted."

He chuckled.

"But he won't be missing," he said. "I'm going to take his place."

"I can't let you do that!"

"My choice," he said. "But he's going to need the time 1f he's going to help stop Dara and Mandor
from advancing the conflict between the Powers beyond anything at Patternfall."

I sighed.

"It's the only way," he said.

"I guess you're right."

He unfolded his arms, stretched, and rose to his feet.

"Let's go do it," he said.

I had to work out a spell, a thing I hadn't done recently-well, half of a spell, the effects half, as |
had the spikard to juice it. Then I lay it in a swathe across the display, turning portions of blades into
flowers, joined at the molecular level. As I did, I felt a tingling [ was certain was the psychic alarm
taking note of the enterprise and reporting it to central.

Then I summoned a lot of juice and lofted us. I felt the tug of the way as we neared it. I had been
almost dead-on. I let it take us through.

He whistled softly on regarding the chapel.

"Enjoy," I said. "It's the treatment a god gets."

"Yeah. Prisoner in his own church."

He stalked across the room, unbuckling his belt as he went. He substituted it for the one upon the
altar.

"Good copy," he said, "but not even the Pattern can duplicate Grayswandir."

"I thought a section of the Pattern was reproduced on the blade."

"Maybe it's the other way around," he said.

"What do you mean?"

"Ask the other Corwin sometime," he said. "It has to do with something we were talking about
recently."

He approached and passed the lethal package to me-weapon, sheath, belt.

"Be nice if you take it to him," he said.

I buckled it and hung it over my head and shoulder.

"Okay," I told him. "We'd better move."

I headed toward the far corner of the chapel. As I neared the area where the Pit was represented
I felt the unmistakable tug of a way.

"Eureka!" I said, activating channels on the spikard. "Follow me."

I stepped forward and it took me away.

We arrived in a chamber of perhaps fifteen feet square. There was a wooden post at its center
and the floor was of stone with some straw strewn upon it. Several of the big candles, as from the
chapel, were spotted about. The walls were of stone on two sides, wood on the others. The wooden
walls contained unlatched wooden doors. One of the stone walls contained a windowless metal door,
a keyhole at its left side. A key, which looked about the right size, hung from a nail in the post.

I took down the key and checked quickly beyond the wooden door to my right, discovering a



large barrel of water, a dipper, and a variety of dishes, cups, utensils. Behind the other door were a
few blankets and stacks of what were probably toilet tissues.

I crossed to the metal door then and knocked upon it with the key. There was no response. |
inserted the key in the lock and felt my companion take hold of my arm.

"Better let me do that," he said. "I think like him, and I think I'll be safer."

I had to agree with the wisdom of this, and I stepped aside.

"Corwin!" he called out. "We're springing you! It's your son Merlin and me, your double. Don't
jump me when I open the door, okay? We'll stand still and you can take a look."

"Open it," came a voice from within.

So he did, and we stood there.

"What do you know?" came the voice I remembered, finally. "You guys look for real."

"We are," said his ghost, "and as usual, at times such as this, you'd better hurry."

"Yeah." There came a slow tread from within, and when he emerged he was shielding his eyes
with his left hand. "Either of you got a pair of shades? The light hurts."

"Damn!" I said, wishing I'd thought of it. "No, and if I send for them the Logrus might spot me."

"Later, later. I'll squint and stumble. Let's get the hell out."

His ghost entered the cell.

"Now make me bearded, thin, and grimy. Lengthen the hair and tatter the clothes," he said. "Then
lock me in.

"What's going on?" my father asked.

"Your ghost will be impersonating you in your cell for a while."

"It's your plan," Corwin stated. "Do what the ghost says." And so I did. He turned and extended
his hand back into the cell then. "Thanks, buddy."

"My pleasure," the other replied, clasping his hand and shaking it.

"Good luck."

"So long."

I closed and locked the cell door. I hung the key on its nail and steered him to the way. It took us
through.

He lowered his hand as we came into the chapel. The dimness must have been sufficient for him
to handle now. He drew away from me and crossed to the altar.

"We'd better go, Dad."

He chuckled as he reached across the altar, raised a burning taper, and used it to light one of the
others that had apparently gone out in some draft.

"T've pissed on my own grave," he announced. "Can't pass up the pleasure of lighting a candle to
myself in my own church."

He extended his left hand in my direction without looking at me.

"Give me Grayswandir," he said.

I slipped it off and passed it to him. He unfastened it and buckled it about his waist, loosened it
in its sheath. "All right. What now?" he asked.

I thought fast. If Dana was aware that I had exited through the wall last time-a distinct
possibility, considering-then the walls might well be booby-trapped in some fashion. On the other
hand, if we went out the way I had come in we might encounter someone rushing this way in answer
to the alarm.

Hell.



"Come on," I said, activating the spikard, ready to whisk us away at the glimpse of an intruder.
"It's going to be tricky because it involves levitation on the way out."

I caught hold of him again and we approached the way. | wrapped us in energies as it took us,
and I lofted us above the field of blades and flowers as we departed.

There were footfalls from up the corridor. I swirled us away to another place.

I took us to Jurt's apartment, which didn't seem a place anyone was likely to come looking for a
man who was still in his cell; and I knew that Jurt had no need of it just then.

Corwin sprawled on the bed and squinted at me. "By the way," he said, "thanks."

"Anytime," I told him.

"You know your way around this place pretty well?" he said.

"It doesn't seem to have changed that much," I told him.

"Then how's about raiding an icebox for me while I borrow your brother's scissors and razor for
a quick shave and haircut."

"What would you like?"

"Meat, bread, cheese, wine, maybe a piece of pie," he said. "Just so it's fresh and there's lots of
it. Then you're going to have a lot of story to tell me."

"I guess I am," I said.

And so I made my way to the kitchen, down familiar halls and ways I had traversed as a boy.
The place was lit by just a few tapers, the fires banked. No one was about.

I proceeded to raid the larder, heaping a tray with the various viands requested, adding a few
pieces of fruit I came across. I almost dropped the wine bottle when I heard a sharp intake of breath
near the doorway I had entered.

It was Julia, in a blue silk wrap.

"Merlin!"

I crossed to her.

"I owe you several apologies," I said. "I'm ready to make them."

"I'd heard you were back. I heard you were to be king."

"Funny, I heard that, too."

"Then it would be unpatriotic of me to stay mad, wouldn't it?"

"I never meant to hurt you," I said. "Physically, or any other way."

Suddenly, we were holding each other. It lasted a long time before she told me, "Jurt says you're
friends now."

"I guess we sort of are."

I kissed her.

"If we got back together again," she said, "he'd probably try to kill you again."

"I know. This time the consequences could really be cataclysmic, too."

"Where are you going right now?"

"I'm on an errand, and it's going to take me several hours."

"Why don't you stop by when you're finished? We've got a lot to talk about. I'm staying in a place
called the Wisteria Room for now. Know where that is?"

"Yes," I said. "This is crazy."

"See you later?"

"Maybe."

The next day I traveled to the Rim, for I'd heard report that the Pit-divers-those who seek after
artifacts of creation beyond the Rim-had suspended operations for the first time in a generation. When



I questioned them they told me of dangerous activities in the depths-whirlwinds, wings of fire, blasts
of new-minted matter.

Sitting in a secluded place and looking down, I used the spikard I wore to question the one I
didn't. When I removed the shield in which I'd encased it, it commenced a steady litany, "Go to
Mandor. Get crowned. See your brother. See your mother. Begin preparations.”" I wrapped it again
and put it away. If I didn't do something soon he was going to suspect that I was beyond its control.
Did I care?

I could just absent myself, perhaps going away with my father, helping him at whatever
showdown might finally develop over his Pattern. I could even ditch both spikards there, enhancing
the forces in that place. I could still rely on my own magic in a pinch. But my problem was right here.
I had been bred and conditioned to be a perfect royal flunky, under the control of my mother, and
possibly my brother Mandor. I loved Amber, but I loved the Courts as well. Fleeing to Amber, while
assuring my safety, would no more solve my personal problem than running off with my dad-or
returning to the Shadow Earth I also cared for, with or without Coral. No. The problem was here-and
inside me.

I summoned a filmy to bear me to an elevated way to take me back to Sawall. As I traveled, I
thought of what I must do, and I realized that I was afraid. If things got pushed as far as they well
might, there was a strong possibility that I would die. Alternatively, I might have to kill someone I
didn't really want to.

Either way, though, there had to be some resolution or I'd never know peace at this pole of my
existence.

I walked beside a purple stream beneath a green sun atop a pearly sky. I summoned a purple and
gray bird, which came and sat upon my wrist. I had thought to dispatch it to Amber with a message for
Random. Try as I might, however, I could phrase no simple note. Too many things depended on other
things. Laughing, I released it and leapt from the bank, where I struck another way above the water.

Returned to Sawall, | made my way to the sculpture hall. By then, I knew what I must try to do
and how I must go about it. I stood where 1 had stood-how long ago?-regarding massive structures,
simple figures, intricate ones.

"Ghost?" I said. "You in the neighborhood?"

There was no response.

"Ghost!" I repeated more loudly. "Can you hear me?"

Nothing.

I dug out my Trumps, located the one I had done for Ghostwheel, bright circle.

I regarded it with some intensity, but it was slow to grow cool. This was understandable,
considering some of the odd areas of space to which this hall gave access. Also, it was irritating.

I raised the spikard. Using it here at the level I intended would be like setting off a burglar
alarm. Amen.

I touched the Tarot with a line of subtle force, at tempting to enhance the instrument's sensitivity.
I maintained my concentration.

Again, nothing.

I backed it with more force. There followed a perceptible cooling. But there was no contact.

"Ghost," I said through clenched teeth. "This is important. Come to me."

No reply. So I sent power into the thing. The card began to glow and frost crystals formed upon
it. Small crackling sounds occurred in its vicinity.

"Ghost," I repeated.



A weak sense of his presence occurred then, and I poured more juice into the card. It shattered in
my hand, and I caught it in a web of forces and held all of the pieces together, looking like a small
stained-glass window. I continued to reach through it.

"Dad! I'm in trouble!" came to me then.

"Where are you? What's the matter?" I asked.

"I followed this entity I met. Pursued her-it. Almost a mathematical abstraction. Called Kergma.
Got caught here at an odd-even dimensional interface, where I'm spiraling. Was having a good time
up until then-"

"I know Kergma well. Kergma is a trickster. I can feel your spatial situation. I am about to send
bursts of energy to counter the rotation. Let me know if there are problems. As soon as you're able to
Trump through, tell me and come ahead."

I pulsed it through the spikard and the braking effect began. Moments later, he informed me, "I
think I can escape now."

"Come on, then."

Suddenly, Ghost was there, spinning about me like a magic circle.

"Thanks, Dad. I really appreciate this. Let me know if there's ever anything-"

"There is," I said.

"What?"

"Shrink yourself down and hide somewhere about my person."

"Wrist okay again?"

Hsure.ﬂ

He did that thing. Then, "Why?" he asked.

"I may need a sudden ally," I replied.

"Against what?"

"Anything," I said. "It's showdown time."

"I don't like the sound of that."

"Then leave me now. [ won't hold it against you."

"I couldn't do that."

"Listen, Ghost. This thing has escalated, and a line must be drawn now. I-"

The air began to shimmer, off to my right. [ knew what it meant.

"Later," I said. "Be still."

... And there was a doorway, and it opened to admit a tower of green light: eyes, ears, nose,
mouth, limbs cycling about its sea-like range-one of the more inspired demonic forms I'd beheld of
late. And, of course, I knew the features.

"Merlin," he said. "I felt you ply the spikard here."

"I thought you might," I replied, "and I am at your service, Mandor."

"Really?"

"In all respects, brother."

"Including a certain matter of succession?"

"That in particular."

"Excellent! And what business were you about here?"

"I was but seeking something I had lost."

"That can wait upon another day, Merlin. We have much to do just now."

"Yes, that 1s true."

"So assume a more pleasing form and come with me. We must discuss the measures you are to



take upon assuming the throne-which Houses are to be suppressed, who outlawed-"

"I must speak with Dara immediately."

"I would rather lay some groundwork first. Come! Shift, and let us be away!"

"Would you know where she is just now?"

"Gantu, I believe. But we will confer with her later."

"You wouldn't happen to have her Trump handy, would you?"

"I fear not. I thought you carried a deck of your own?"

"I do. But hers was inadvertently destroyed one night when I was drinking."

"No matter," he said. "We will see her later, as I explained."

I had been opening channels on the spikard as we spoke.l caught him at the center of a
whirlwind of forces. I could see the transformation procedure within him, and it was a simple matter
to reverse it, collapsing the green and spinning tower into the form of a white-haired man clad in
black and white and looking very irritated.

"Merlin!" he cried. "Why have you changed me?"

"This thing fascinates me," I said, waving the spikard. "I just wanted to see whether I could do
it."

"Now you've seen it," he said. "Kindly release me to turn back, and find a more fitting form for
yourself."

"A moment," | said, as he attempted to melt and flow. "I require you just as you are."

I held him against his effort, and I drew a fiery rectangle in the air.

A series of quick movements filled it with a rough likeness of my mother.

"Merlin! What are you doing?" he cried.

I suppressed his effort to extricate himself by means of a transport spell.

"Conference time," I announced. "Bear with me."

I didn't just meditate upon the impromptu Trump I had hung in the air before me, but practically
attacked it with a charge of the energies I was cycling through my body and the space about me.

Suddenly, Dara stood within the frame I had created-tall, coal-black, eyes of green flame.

"Merlin! What's happening?" she cried.

I'd never heard of it being done quite this way before, but I held the contact, willed her presence,
and blew away the frame. She stood before me then, perhaps seven feet tall, pulsing with indignation.

"What is the meaning of this?" she asked.

I caught her as [ had Mandor and collapsed her down to human scale.

"Democracy," I said "Let's all look alike for a minute."

"This is not amusing," she responded, and she began to change back.

I canceled her effort.

"No, itisn't," I answered. "But I called this meeting, and it will be run on my terms."

"Very well," she said, shrugging. "What has become so terribly urgent?"

"The succession."

"The matter is settled. The throne is yours."

"And whose creature am I to be?" I raised my left hand, hoping they had no way of telling one
spikard from another. "This thing confers great powers. It also charges for their use. It bore a spell for
control of its wearer."

"It was Swayvill's," Mandor said. "I got it to you when I did to accustom you to the force of its
presence. And yes, there is a price. Its wearer must come to terms with it."

"I have wrestled with it," I lied, "and I am its master. But the main problems were not cosmic.



They were compulsions of your own installation."

"I do not deny it," he said. "But there was a very good reason for their presence. You were
reluctant to take the throne. I felt it necessary to add an element of compulsion."

I shook my head.

"Not good enough," I said. "There was more to it than that. It was a thing designed to make me
subservient to you."

"Necessary," he responded. "You've been away. You lack intimate knowledge of the local
political scene. We could not simply let you take the reins and go off in your own direction-not in
times such as these, when blunders could be very costly. The House needed some means to control
you. But this was only to be until your education was complete."

"Permit me to doubt you, brother," I said.

He glanced at Dara, who nodded slightly.

"He is right," she said, "and I see nothing wrong with such temporary control until you learn the
business. Too much is at stake to permit otherwise."

"It was a slave-spell," I said. "It would force me to take the throne, to follow orders."

Mandor licked his lips. It was the first time I'd ever seen him betray a sign of nervousness. It
instantly made me wary-though I realized moments later that it may have been a calculated distraction.
It caused me to guard against him immediately; and, of course, the attack came from Dara.

A wave of heat swept over me. | shifted my attention at once, attempting to raise a barrier. It was
not an attack against my person. It was something soothing, coercive. I bared my teeth as I fought to
hold it off.

"Mother-" I growled.

"We must restore the imperatives," she said flatly, more to Mandor than to me.

"Why?" I asked. "You're getting what you want."

"The throne is not enough," she answered. "I do not trust you in this, and reliance will be
necessary."

"You never trusted me," I said, pushing away the remains of her spell.

"That 1s not true," she told me, "and this is a technical matter, not a personal one."

"Whatever the matter," I said, "I'm not buying."

Mandor tossed a paralysis spell at me, and I pushed it away, ready for anything now. As I was
doing this, Dara hit me with an elaborate working I recognized as a Confusion Storm. I was not about
to try matching them both, spell for spell. A good sorcerer may have a half dozen major spells hung.
Their judicious employment is generally enough for dealing with most situations. In a sorcerous duel
the strategy involved in their employment is a major part of the game. If both parties are still standing
when the spells have been exhausted, then they are reduced to fighting with raw energies. Whoever
controls a greater quantity usually has the edge then.

I raised an umbrella against the Confusion Storm, parried Mandor's Astral Club, held myself
together through Mom's Spirit Split, maintained my senses through Mandor's Well of Blackness. My
major spells had all gone stale, and I had hung no new ones since I'd begun relying on the spikard. I
was already reduced to reliance on raw power. Fortunately, the spikard gave me control of more of it
than I'd ever held before. All I had to do was force them to use up their spells, then all trickiness
would be removed from the situation. I would wear them down, drain them.

Mandor sneaked one partway through, hurting me in a brush with an Electric Porcupine. I
battered him with a wall of force, however, slamming him into a system of revolving discs that
flashed off in all directions. Dara turned into a liquid flame, coiling, waving, flowing through circles



and figure-Bights, as she advanced and retreated, tossing bubbles of euphoria and pain to orbit me. I
tried to blow them away, hurricane-wise, shattering the great porcelain face, uprooting towers, family
groups with holes in them, glowing geometries. Mandor fumed to sand, which filtered downward
through the structure upon which he sprawled, became a yellow carpet, crept toward me.

I ignored the effects and continued to beat at them with energies. I hurled the carpet through the
flame and dumped a floating fountain upon them. Brushing out small fires in my clothing and hair, I
forced my consciousness through numbed areas in my left shoulder and leg. I fell apart and drew
myself back together again as I mastered Dara's spell of Unweaving. I shattered Mandor's Diamond
Bubble and digested the Chains of Deliverance. On three occasions, I dropped my human form for
things more suitable, but always I returned to it. [ hadn't had a workout like this since my final exams
with Suhuy.

But the ultimate advantage was obviously mine. Their only real chance had lain in surprise, and
that was gone now. I opened all channels on the spikard, a thing which might have intimidated even
the Pattern-though, now I thought on it, it had gotten me knocked senseless. I caught Mandor in a cone
of force that stripped him down to a skeleton and built him back up again in an instant. Dara was
harder to nail, but when I blasted her with all of the channels, she hit me with a Dazzlement spell
she'd been holding in reserve, the only thing that saved her from turning into a statue as I'd intended.
Instead, it left her in mortal form and restricted to slow motion.

I shook my head and rubbed my eyes. Lights danced before me.

"Congratulations," she said, over a span of perhaps ten seconds. "You're better than I'd thought."

"And I'm not even finished," I replied, breathing deeply. "It's time to do unto you as you'd have
done unto me."

I began to craft the working which would place them under my control.

It was then that I noticed her small slow smile.

"I'd thought-we might-deal with-you-ourselves," she said as the air began to shimmer before her.
"I was-wrong."

The Sign of the Logrus took form before her. Immediately, her features grew more animated.

Then I felt its terrible regard. When it addressed me, that pastiche-voice tore at my nervous
system.

"I have been summoned," it said, "to deal with your recalcitrance, oh man who would be king."

There came a crash from downhill as the house of mirrors collapsed. I looked in that direction.
So did Dana. Mandor, just now struggling to his feet, did also.

The reflective panels rose into the air and drifted toward us. They were quickly deployed all
about us, reflecting and re-reflecting our confrontation from countless angles. The prospect was
bewildering, for space itself seemed somehow bent, twisted now in our vicinity. And in each image
we were surrounded by a circle of light, though I could not detect its absolute source.

"I stand with Merlin," Ghost said, from somewhere.

"Construct!" the Logrus Sign stated. "You thwarted me in Amber!"

"And a short thwart for the Pattern, too," Ghost observed. "It sort of balances out."

"What are your wishes now?"

"Hands off Merlin," Ghost said. "He'll rule here as well as reign. No strings on him."

Ghost's lights began cycling.

I pulsed the spikard, open on all channels, hoping to locate Ghost, give him access to its
energies. | couldn't seem to make contact, though.

"I don't need that, Dad," Ghost stated. "I access sources in Shadow myself."



"What is it that you want for yourself, construct?" the Sign inquired.

"To protect one who cares for me."

"I can offer you cosmic greatness."

"You already did. I turned you down then, too. Remember?"

"I remember. And I will remember." A jagged tentacle of the constantly shifting figure moved
toward one of the circles of light. There was a blinding rush of flame when they met. When my vision
cleared, however, nothing had changed. "Very well," the Sign acknowledged. "You came prepared. It
1s not yet time to weaken myself in your destruction. Not when another waits for me to falter.

"Lady of Chaos," it stated, "you must honor Merlin's wishes. If his reign be a foolish thing, he
will destroy himself by his own actions. If it be prudent, you will have gained what you sought
without interference."

The expression on her face was one of disbelief.

"You would back down before a son of Amber and his toy?" she asked.

"We must give him what he wants," it acknowledged, "for now. For now... "

The air squealed about its vanishment. Mandor smiled the smallest of smiles, reflected to
infinity.

"I can't believe this," she said, becoming a flower-faced cat and then a tree of green flame.

"Believe as you would," Mandor told her. "He's won."

The tree flared through its autumn and was gone. Mandor nodded to me.

"I just hope you know what you're doing," he said.

"I know what I'm doing."

"Take it however you would," he said, "but if you need advice I'll try to help you."

"Thanks."

"Care to discuss it over lunch?"

"Not just now."

He shrugged and became a blue whirlwind.

"Till later then," came the voice out of the whirlwind, before it blew away.

"Thanks, Ghost," I said. "Your timing's gotten a lot better."

"Chaos has a weak left," he replied.

I located fresh garments of silver, black, gray, and white. I took them back to Jurt's apartments
with me. [ had a long story to tell.

We walked little-used ways, passing through Shadow, coming at length to the final battlefield of
the Patternfall War. The place had healed itself over the years, leaving no indication of all that had
transpired there. Corwin regarded it for a long while in silence.

Then he turned to me and said, "It'll take some doing to sort everything out, to achieve a more
permanent balance, to assure its stability."

"Yes."

"You think you can keep things peaceful on this end for a while?"

"That's the idea," I said. "I'll give it my best shot."

"That's all any of us can do," he said. "Okay, Random has to know what's happened, of course.
I'm not sure how he's going to take having you as an opposite number, but that's the breaks."

"Give him my regards, and Bill Roth, too."

He nodded.

"And good luck," I said.

"There are still mysteries within mysteries," he told me. "I'll let you know what I find out, as



soon as | have something."
He moved forward and embraced me.
Then, "Rev up that ring and send me back to Amber."
"It's already revved," I said. "Good-bye."
"... And hello," he answered, from the tail end of a rainbow.
I turned away then, for the long walk back to Chaos.
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